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CORPORATE PROFILE
AT

We, Guangdong Join-Share Financing Guarantee Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (“Guangdong Join-Share” or the “Company”, together
with our subsidiaries the “Group”, “we”, “our” or "us”) is a
leading financing guarantee services provider in Guangdong
province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”)
focusing on providing credit-based financing solutions to small and
medium-sized enterprises (the “SMEs”) to satisfy their financing
and business needs. Since our establishment in Foshan,
Guangdong province in 2003, our business network has been
significantly expanded to cover all the major cities in Guangdong
province and certain cities in Anhui province.

We primarily provide guarantees on behalf of, or entrusted loans
to, SMEs and individual business proprietors. We also provide
micro-lending to SMEs, individual business proprietors and
individuals in Foshan since July 2011 through Foshan Chancheng
Join-Share Micro Credit Co., Ltd.* (FBILEM P RRENDEENRE
R A7) ("Foshan Micro Credit”), which was consolidated into
our Group in June 2014.

We have established strong cooperative relationships with various
banks and non-bank financial institutions, which allows us to
diversify our sources of customer referrals, reduce credit risks, and
strengthen our leading position in our industry in Guangdong
province. We have a diverse shareholder base and do not have a
controlling shareholder. It is our aim to ensure the management’s
independence in the daily operations, and we endeavour to carry
out prudent corporate governance since our establishment without
being affected by any single shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”). The board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of our Company, the supervisors (the
“Supervisors”) of our Company and our experienced and
reputable management team are from diverse backgrounds and
with substantial expertise in the finance, banking, accounting and
legal industries. At present, having stable outlook, we are given
an “AA" corporate rating from CSCI Pengyuan Credit Rating Co.
Ltd* (REMTEETERDBERRAA)

Share capital of our Company comprises domestic shares (the
"Domestic Share(s)”) and H Shares (the “H Share(s)”)
(collectively referred to as the “Share(s)”). Our H Shares were
listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 December
2015, laying a solid foundation for our Group's future
development.

Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used in this annual
report shall have the same meanings as those defined in this
Corporate Profile. English translations of company names and
other terms from the Chinese language which are marked with *
are provided for identification purposes only.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
REER ()

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Minming (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Liejin

Mr. Li Shen Hua

Mr. Wu Xiangneng

Mr. Wang Bo
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Mr. Wang Bo

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Lau Kwok Yin
Mr. Zheng Zhenggiang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Liejin
Mr. Lau Kwok Yin

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 4101-4110, Block 1

Join-Share International Financing Center

No. 31 Fuhua Road

Dongping Community, Lecong Town, Shunde District
Foshan, Guangdong Province

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Room 4101-4110, Block 1

Join-Share International Financing Center

No. 31 Fuhua Road

Dongping Community, Lecong Town, Shunde District
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the PRC
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H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
Guangdong Branch

No. 509, Dongfeng Middle Road
Yuexiu District

Guangzhou, Guangdong Province
the PRC

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Branch

No. 11 Xiancun Road

Zhujiang New Town

Guangzhou, Guangdong Province

the PRC

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAW

King & Wood Mallesons

AUDITOR
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
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STOCK CODE
1543

HR% 58 % B 5L B2

EBPRELFELHRAA
B8

T

EAEKNER183%
AL
1781712171655 48

FEFREBIT
PEEREBITROARAA
EREDTT

A

EREREMT
B[R, A & 50955
RBIRITIRD AR A A
BEREDTT

[

EEEEIMNT
BT

VRS 1158
HEEEE-
SMEMERR

& BB

SHAGHADEHAH

@At ET

BT BRI 1)) T 10 2 2 SRR 28
BB

AT HBE

www.join-share.com

R 153 4K 55%
1543

221 FEHE ERVFEEEMERREEROBARLE



n
P:Sal

"

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
PR EEES

BE2021F 12431 BLEFE - AEERNEEE
BT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s operating
results were as follows:

Total revenue was approximately RMB318.70 million,
including revenue of approximately RMB310.07 million and
other revenue of approximately RMB8.63 million,
representing an increase of approximately 3.92% as
compared with last year.

Profit for the year and net profit margin were approximately
RMB96.35 million and 31.07%, respectively.

Profit before taxation amounted to approximately RMB137.25
million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.04% as
compared with last year.

Profit for the year attributable to equitable shareholders of
the Company amounted to approximately RMB81.99 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 23.07% as
compared with last year.

The payment of final dividends of RMBO0.05 per Share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is recommended by the
Board (2020: RMBO0.06 per Share).

BUREHNR/ARE31870AE T (BRI
AHARE310.078B T REMBIKEL
ARS8 E3IAETT) WEFE MY
3.92% °

FAFBERFNEESBHRARE

96.35B & 7T &31.07% °
HRATAEN AARKE13725A8TT X
FERMA411.04% o

KRB EERRELFRAFBOABAR
B81.99BE L REFHAP423.07% °

BEEOESREAE2021F12A318 1
FERARK B/ AR0.057T (2020
FBRARK0.067T) °

Consolidated Accounts

GRERZE
2019
20195

2020
20205

(RMB'000) (AR®TT)
Operating Results GEgE
Revenue Wi 310,072
— Net quarantee fee income — ERERAFE 193,166
— Net interest income — FBMAFE 78,747
— Service fee from consulting services — FARBE 38,159
Other revenue gl 8,631
Share of (losses)/gains of associates EEBENRASE)/ (3,022)
Provisions (charged)/written back for EREEEES(GHR/
guarantee losses (o] (10,249)
Impairment losses BERBERX (42,937)
Operating expenses 2ERX (125,245)
Profit for the year ENFIE 96,353
— Attributable to equity shareholders — ARAIREREA
of the Company [ 81,987
Key Financial Ratios TEMHBILE
Return on net assets FEEERX 4.1%
Return on assets BEOHE 2.8%
Net profit margin ey hHES 31.1%
Scale Indicators REREE
Total assets BEM@ 3,445,065
Total liabilities AEQ 1,076,279
Net assets FEE 2,368,786

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

284,447 306,001 275,025 264,238
176,562 187,194 164,340 137,912
78,683 87,783 78,235 86,403
29,202 31,024 32,450 39,923
22,240 60,305 52,560 10,574
15,108 12,584 (503) (528)
(2,811) (2,440) 5,064 19,944
(50,595) (58,307) (17,711) (20,538)
(114,095) (123,941) (120,093) (105,702)
118,077 142,949 144,337 123,204
106,577 133,158 125,092 106,069
4.9% 6.0% 7.0% 7.1%
3.7% 4.6% 5.5% 5.6%
41.5% 46.7% 52.5% 46.6%
3,188,508 3,191,768 3,034,383 2,238,959
774,445 784,872 672,769 503,204
2,414,063 2,406,896 2,361,614 1,735,755
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT »

EEREELY

Dear Shareholders: HIREE :

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present this annual AARREZEERL  RAZHRALQFHE2021F
report of the Company for the period from 1 January 2021 to 1A1HEZ2021F 12 A31HFERE -
31 December 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEREE (B

The "“14th Five-Year Plan” started in 2021, representing a
milestone year in the history of the Communist Party of China
(the "CPC") and the nation. Under the leadership of the Central
Committee of the CPC with Comrade Xi Jinping at core, the
entire CPC and the entire Chinese nation were united to fight
against poverty as scheduled, successfully achieved a moderately
prosperous society as scheduled, and materialised the first
centenary goal. Furthermore, the nation started to build a modern
socialist country in an all-round way while embarking on the new
expedition towards the second centenary goal. Over the past year,
facing complicated and dire domestic and foreign challenges and
various risks, the entire nation has made joint efforts to achieve a
good start of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, evidenced by the gross
domestic products of RMB114 trillion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 8.1%.

The central government actively implemented macroeconomic
policies focused on market players, especially the guarantees for
maintaining employment, the living standard, and market players,
while reform and innovations approaches were introduced to
alleviate the difficulties of enterprises and stimulate business
vitality. Besides an increase in tax cut and fee reduction of over
RMB1 trillion last year, manufacturing SMEs, coal power plants
and heating supply enterprises were also permitted to defer their
tax payments in stages. In addition, credits were extended to
enterprises in industries severely affected by the pandemic, and
supportive policies regarding deferred repayment of principal and
interest on loans for SMEs and credit loans remained in effect.
Furthermore, large commercial banks’ inclusive loans to SMEs
increased by more than 40%, and enterprises witnessed a stable
decline in their comprehensive financing costs.

In the past year, Guangdong Join-share persistently implemented
the instructions of leaders at all levels to ensure the improvement
of performance and efficiency. According to the plan and
arrangement made at the beginning of the year, the Company
has launched various innovative financial measures to support the
development of SMEs based on the work approach of “competing
for business and delivering excellent management”. With the
tremendous support of all Shareholders, Directors and Supervisors,
the management team and all employees strove hard to achieve
more significant results.

We successfully issued the first tranche of corporate bonds, and
took full advantage of its features as direct financing instruments
in the capital market, including low costs, large scale and long
maturity, in order to provide lower costs and better quality
financial supply to SMEs.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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Due to our clear strategic positioning, innovative business model,
efficient corporate governance, and outstanding performance in
the pandemic prevention and control, we have been recognised by
all parties in the society: according to the Circular in Recognition
of Financial Institutions and Financial Industry Associations for
Promoting Financial Information, Financial Innovation, and
Standardised Operation of “7+4" Financial Institutions issued by
the Foshan Municipal Financial Work Bureau in February 2021,
Guangdong Join-share was awarded the outstanding performer of
“Standardised Operation to Assist SMEs”, while Foshan Micro
Credit was awarded the outstanding performer of “Standardised
Operation to Promote Financial Information”. In March 2021, the
management of Join-Share and Foshan Micro Credit received the
“Innovative A-level Team of Annual Financial Development”. In
July 2021, the Party Committee of Guangdong Join-Share was
awarded the honorary title of “Advanced Grassroots Party
Organisation” by Foshan Non-public Party Committee. In
September 2021, Guangdong Join-Share was awarded by the
Guangdong Provincial Department of Industry and Information
Technology the “Guangdong Small and Medium Enterprise Public
Service Demonstration Platform”. In November 2021, |, being the
chairman of the Board, was named “Annual Innovator of Huizhou
Merchants”.

The industry is witnessing fierce competition. Looking ahead to
2022, we will uphold our role as a service provider in the
financial service industry and focused on the work approaches of
“compliant development, collaborative development, innovative
development and mutually beneficial development”, so as to
foster innovative business model, optimise group control, improve
incentive and constraint mechanism, and enhance cost control,
thereby further enhancing the profitability of the Company.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere gratitude to governments at all levels, the
Shareholders, business partners and corporate customers for their
continuous care for and support to the Company’s development
and show our high respect to all the staff for their hard work in
the past year. On the way to success, there will be various fights.
Looking into 2022, my operation and management team and | will
work diligently to embrace revolutions and victories of the future.

Mr. Wu Liejin
Chairman
Foshan, the PRC
25 March 2022

CHAIRMAN'S STA
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OVERVIEW

After being ravaged by the global pandemic in 2020, economic
recovery has become the mainstream of global economic
development. Under such favorable conditions, in 2021, with the
continued scientific implementation of pandemic prevention and
control measures, China has ushered in the fast track of
development where economic recovery has been achieved.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics, in 2021, China’s
gross domestic product (the “GDP”) grew by 8.1% over the
previous year, ranking one of leading positions among the world’s
major economies in terms of economic growth rate; China’s total
economic volume amounted to RMB114.4 trillion, breaking
through RMB110 trillion. The accelerated GDP growth rate
indicates that China’s high-quality development has achieved
results, making a good start for the “14th Five-Year Plan”; it is
expected that the momentum for which China’s economy
achieves stability while pursuing progress, will remain unchanged
in 2022, and investment will still have a pulling effect on
economic growth. When current global economic landscape
undergoes profound changes, China’s foreign trade has reached a
new record high, becoming a major highlight of economic
operation. China’s scale of imports and exports and market share
increased to a new level with ongoing optimisation on commodity
structure. However, due to the resurgence of global pandemic,
excessive price of raw materials and other factors, it is difficult
and time-consuming for foreign trade to achieve stable growth.

With the implementation of a series of policies to boost economic
vitality such as ensuring supply and price stability and easing
enterprises’ difficulties, China’s industrial production continued to
pick up with strengthened stability for energy supply, and
development of SMEs gradually recovered. In December 2021,
small and medium-sized enterprises development index (SMEDI)
was 86.4, representing an increase of 0.1 percentage points from
the previous month, achieving a rebound for two consecutive
months. In addition, China continued to coordinate pandemic
prevention and control with ongoing emergence of the resilience
of economic development, and improving quality of development.
In 2021, the Group's total annual revenue amounted to
RMB318.70 million.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAE
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In April 2020, in accordance with the notice of four supporting
systems under the Regulation on the Supervision and
Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies (No. 1 [2018]
of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission), the
Group has complied with industry regulatory requirements in
terms of its various business indicators and obtained the business
license of financing guarantee business reviewed, approved and
renewed by Guangdong Financial Supervisory Authority. The
survival of SMEs is related to economic development and overall
social stability. Over the past 18 years, the Group has leveraged
the active role played by financing guarantee in stabilising growth
and benefiting people’s livelihood, making outstanding
contributions to the safety and stability of industry chain and
supply chain along the Guangzhou-Foshan Economic Circle, as
well as the construction of national credit system. Mr. Wu Liejin,
the chairman of the Board, represented that the Group is a truly
integrated service finance, inclusive finance, grassroots finance,
and strives to achieve a mutual survival and win-win situations
with SMEs.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIO

2020548 - BREB(REERAFTNEEERK
By PO 18 B2 E ) 2 A 38 A0 (4R 4R BS 3%[2018]1
) AEBERELEREHFATEEES
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B 18F R  AEBEFHEREERERER -
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HEERTETRERNERBRERED
TEBER EFRRINEXERT  AEE
MHEEEN—BthEem THESHm &
BREF - IR EP NS ELERST -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E AR E AT ()

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The business of the Group primarily comprises two segments,
namely:

(1) Guarantees: providing guarantees on behalf of SMEs, and
individual business proprietors to guarantee their repayment
of loans or performance of their contractual obligations. The
main products and services include indirect financing
guarantees, attachment bonds, direct financing guarantees,
construction contract bonds and other contract bonds.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of the Group's
outstanding guarantee was approximately RMB9,967.71
million (31 December 2020: RMB9,333.52 million). For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the net guarantee fee
income was approximately RMB193.17 million (2020:
RMB176.57 million).

(2)  SME lendings: providing entrusted loans to SMEs and
individual business proprietors, where the Group deposits its
own funds into intermediary banks, which on- lend the
funds to ultimate borrowers selected by the Group. In terms
of entrusted loan business, the Group provides loans of
relatively large amount through banks, usually ranging from
approximately RMB1.00 million to approximately RMB8.00
million, and is not subject to geographical restriction. As at
31 December 2021, the balance of the Group’s entrusted
loans was approximately RMB234.92 million (31 December
2020: RMB158.57 million).

The Group also provides micro-lending to SMEs, individual
business proprietors and individuals in Foshan since July
2011 through Foshan Micro Credit, a subsidiary of the
Company. Foshan Micro Credit is permitted to conduct its
operations in Foshan. Due to limits imposed by certain laws
and regulations, the amount of micro-lending that the
Group may provide is up to RMB8.00 million. As at 31
December 2021, the balance of the Group’s micro-lending
was approximately RMB434.65 million (31 December 2020:
RMB379.51 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s net
interest income was approximately RMB78.75 million (2020:
RMB78.68 million).

1 2 GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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MAJOR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY
THE GROUP DURING THE YEAR

During the year ended 31 December 2021, with an aim to
strengthen the Group’s overall market position, the Group has
undertaken the major business activities as follows:

(1) On 29 January 2021, the completion acceptance works of
the “Join-Share International Financing Center (F Z15% i Bl
BX < @i 00)" project located in the central business district
(CBD) of Foshan New Town was successfully completed.
With the height of 198 meters and in “tripod (§)"” shaped,
it is a landmark Grade A office building. It has become the
first intelligent building system with full coverage of 5G
network in the financial center area, and is ancillary with
commercial center with 35,000 square meters. The centre
was officially opened on 5 November 2021.

(2)  On 18 March 2021, in order to provide financial services with
lower cost and better quality to SMEs, the Company issued
Tranche 1 of the corporate bonds (“Tranche 1 Corporate
Bond”) with nominal value of RMB260.00 million for a term
of five years, which was listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange on 24 March 2021. The coupon rate is 4.60%
per annum. The Group has an option to adjust the coupon
rate for the remaining duration at the end of the third year.
After the Group announces whether to adjust the coupon
rate, the investors have an option to redeem all or part of
the debt securities held at nominal value. As at 31
December 2021, the funds raised have been invested in the
support of financing development of SMEs in strict
accordance with the utilisation plan. For details, please refer
to the circular of the Company dated 7 August 2020, and
the announcements of the Company dated 18 June 2020,
28 August 2020, 24 November 2020, 12 March 2021, 15
March 2021, 16 March 2021, 18 March 2021, 23 March
2021, 5 May 2021, 17 June 2021, 30 August 2021 and 11
March 2022.

(3) On 21 May 2021, the Group injected registered capital of
RMB5.00 million in Guangdong Weicheng Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (ERAMABBEHLAR A F]), holding
an equity interest of 20% after injection.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E AR E AT ()

On 15 December 2020, the Group resolved to increase its
capital contribution in Foshan Micro Credit by RMB20.00
million, holding an equity interest of approximately
55.247% after injection. Business registration of such
transfer was completed on 23 June 2021.

On 1 September 2021, the Group resolved to dispose of 5%
equity interest in Zhongshan Join-Share Technology
Financing Guarantee Investment Co., Ltd.* (FF IR ZRER
EaERERIKZEEBRAQA) for a consideration of
approximately RMB10.70 million.

On 8 September 2021, the Company (as guarantor) entered
into certain guarantee service agreements, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to provide guarantees to Foshan
Lianyi Construction Materials Co., Ltd.* (351155 2 &4
BLEMR A7) (“Lianyi Construction”), Foshan Gaoji Real
Estate Consulting Co., Ltd.* (BT T EERMBERA
Al) ("Foshan Gaoji"), Huizhou Gaoji Network Technology
Co., Ltd.* (EIMNESEFRELRIEERAR]) (“"Huizhou Gaoji”)
and Guangzhou Fangjia Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
M ERBLERRABR QA (“Guangzhou Fangjia”) (each
as a warrantee) in favour of the lender(s) to each warrantee
of up to RMB80 million in aggregate (i.e. up to RMB20
million to each of Lianyi Construction, Foshan Gaoji,
Huizhou Gaoji and Guangzhou Fangjia) under the relevant
facilities. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 8 September 2021.

On 29 October 2021, the Company (as guarantor) entered
into a guarantee service agreement with Huanai
Construction Materials Co., Ltd.* (FEM MY FKEM AR D7)
("Huanai Construction Materials”) (as warrantee),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
guarantee to Huanai Construction Materials in favour of the
lender(s) of up to RMB70 million in aggregate under the
relevant facilities. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Net Guarantee Fee Income

The Group’s total guarantee fee income increased by
approximately RMB15.17 million, or approximately 7.02%, from
approximately RMB216.25 million for 2020 to approximately
RMB231.42 million for 2021. Such increase was mainly because (i)
the Group offered a variety of guarantee business product,
resulting in an increase for financing guarantee fee income by
approximately RMB26.48 million from approximately RMB156.94
million for 2020 to approximately RMB183.42 million for 2021; (ii)
the Group’s increased efforts in expanding its fund projects (State
Financing Guarantee Fund & Foshan Financing Guarantee Fund);
and (i) the increase in total maximum guarantees issued (net of
counter-guarantees) increased from RMB2,770.19 million as at 31
December 2020 to RMB4,036.23 million as at 31 December
2021.

Net Interest Income

The Group’s net interest income remained stable at approximately
RMB78.75 million for 2021, as compared with approximately
RMB78.68 million for 2020, which was a combined effect of
factors set out below.

— interest income from entrusted loan business decreased by
approximately RMBO.1 million or approximately 0.87% from
approximately RMB11.46 million for 2020 to approximately
RMB11.36 million for 2021, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the business volume as a result of the
banks tightening their entrusted loan business.

— interest income from micro-lending business decreased by
approximately RMB0.81 million or approximately 1.62%
from approximately RMB50.07 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB49.26 million for 2021.

— interest income from the factoring business increased by
approximately RMB3.59 million or approximately 23.53%
from approximately RMB15.26 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB18.85 million for 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the Group’s expansion of factoring business
during the year.

— interest income from cash at banks and pledged bank
remained stable at approximately RMB14.20 million for
2021, as compared with approximately RMB14.16 million for
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEwmED T (E)

Service Fee from Consulting Services

The Group’s service fee from consulting services increased
significantly by approximately RMB8.96 million, or approximately
30.68%, from approximately RMB29.20 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB38.16 million for 2021, primarily due to the
Group's active focus on consulting business.

Other Revenue

The Group’s other revenue decreased significantly by
approximately RMB13.61 million, or approximately 61.20%, from
approximately RMB22.24 million for 2020 to approximately
RMB8.63 million in 2021, primary because (i) investment income
from financial assets measured at FVPL decreased from
proximately RMB14.81 million for 2020 to approximately RMB6.55
million for 2021; (ii) investment income of receivable investments
decreased from approximately RMB5.13 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB3.48 million for 2021.

Share of (losses)/gains of associates

The Group recorded share of losses of associates of approximately
RMB3.02 million for 2021 as compared with the share of gains of
associates of approximately RMB15.11 million for 2020, which
was primarily attributable to net losses recorded by an associate
of the Company for its completion of “Join-Share International
Financing Center (F & ZEBE £+ 00)" in 2021.

Provisions Charged for Guarantee Losses

Provisions charged for guarantee losses primarily reflect the
management’'s estimate on the adequacy of provisions for the
Group’s guarantee business. Provisions charged for guarantee
losses increased significantly by approximately RMB7.44 million, or
approximately 264.77%, from approximately RMB2.81 million for
2020 to approximately RMB10.25 million for 2021, primarily due
to an increase of approximately RMB1,266.04 million of the
balance of outstanding financing guarantee from approximately
RMB2,770.19 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB4,036.23 million as at 31 December 2021.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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Impairment Losses

Impairment losses mainly include impairment and provision
charged for (i) default guarantee receivables which reflect the net
amount of the default guarantee that are unable to be recovered;
(i) receivables from guarantee customers which reflect the net
capital portfolio that is unable to be recovered for the financing
solutions provided by the Group to its customers; (iii) loans and
advances to customers which reflect the net amount of loans and
advances to the customers primarily in the entrusted loan and
micro-lending businesses that are unable to be recovered; and (iv)
factoring receivables which mainly reflect the net amount of
factoring financing services provided to customers that are unable
to be recovered. The Group’s impairment losses decreased by
approximately RMB7.66 million, or approximately 15.14%, from
approximately RMB50.60 million for 2020 to approximately
RMB42.94 million for 2021, primary due to (i) the decrease in the
impairment loss of receivables from default guarantee customers
from approximately RMB24.33 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB22.33 million in 2021; (ii) the write-back of impairment loss
of receivables from guarantee customers of approximately
RMB2.93 million for 2021, as compared to a impairment loss of
approximately RMB1.67 million for 2020; and (iii) the absence of
impairment loss on receivable investments of RMB6.08 million for
2021 as compared with 2020.

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses increased by approximately
RMB11.15 million, or approximately 9.77%, from approximately
RMB114.10 million for 2020 to approximately RMB125.25 million
for 2021, mainly because (i) the social insurance contribution
increased from approximately RMB1.23 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB7.91 million in 2021 due to the absence of
temporary relief policy in 2021; and (i) the consultancy fee
increased from approximately RMB8.83 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB13.59 million for 2021.

Profit before Taxation

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit before taxation
decreased by approximately RMB17.04 million, or approximately
11.04%, from approximately RMB154.29 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB137.25 million for 2021. The Group’s profit
before taxation accounted for approximately 54.24% and
approximately 44.26% of the Group’s revenue for 2020 and
2021, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E AR E AT ()

Income Tax

Income tax increased by approximately RMB4.68 million, or
approximately 12.92%, from approximately RMB36.22 million for
2020 to approximately RMB40.90 million for 2021.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year
decreased by approximately RMB21.73 million, or approximately
18.40%, from approximately RMB118.08 million for 2020 to
approximately RMB96.35 million for 2021, and the Group’s net
profit margin decreased from approximately 41.51% for 2020 to
approximately 31.07% for 2021.

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures
for the purchase of motor vehicles, office and other equipment,
office decorations and purchase of software. For 2021, the
Group's capital expenditures amounted to approximately RMB4.70
million (2020: RMB2.53 million), which was primarily related to
purchase of business operating system. The Group intends to fund
its capital expenditure by internal resources.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding capital
commitments relating to (i) the total maximum guarantee issued
to customers for its guarantee business of approximately
RMB9,967.71 million (31 December 2020: RMB9,333.52 million);
and (i) the Group’s leases of office premises of approximately
RMB15.05 million (31 December 2020: RMB8.15 million).

In October 2021, a group of individual investors initiated an
arbitration against the Company in respect of their overdue
lending with principals and interests amounted to a total of
RMB6.90 million to a third party which was guaranteed by the
Company. Such arbitration was still pending as at 31 December
2021. The Directors consider guarantee liability is within the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. Save as
aforesaid, the Group did not have other contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2021.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any of its
assets to secure any banking facility or bank loan.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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PROSPECTS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE
BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

n

Development trend of the industry

The People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”) plays a
market-oriented role in providing financial support to
SMEs

Since SMEs with large number and wide range are an
important support for the resilience of real economy, and
also the main force of scientific and technological
innovation and employment opportunities, their healthy and
stable development is crucial. In early 2021, the PBOC and
the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
(the "CBIRC") studied and formulated the 14th Five-Year
Plan, making inclusive micro and small financial services as
one of the development priorities.

In response, the PBOC lowered the interest rate on the one-
year re-loans in support of agriculture and micro and small
enterprises by 0.25 percentage points to 2% on 7
December 2021, resulting in a more favourable interest rate
for re-loans in support of agriculture and micro and small
enterprises. Meanwhile, the PBOC expects that starting from
2022, financial institutions and enterprises will
independently negotiate repayment on the principal and
interest of loans according to market-based principles. From
2022 to the end of June 2023, the PBOC will provide
funding for inclusive small and micro loans granted by
eligible local legal person banks at 1% of the remaining
incremental amount, so as to encourage them to increase
inclusive small and micro loans. With the support of the
policy, the loans in the field of inclusive finance maintained
a relatively rapid growth. At the end of 2021, the balance
of inclusive small and micro loans in the PRC was
RMB19.23 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of
27.3%. Such balance increased by RMB4.13 trillion during
the year, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB608.3
billion.

With credit structure optimisation intensified, financing
guarantee industry is expected to pursue progress
while ensuring stability

Since 2021, the severe global pandemic has exposed many
SMEs to economic risks. In order to increase financial
support for SMEs and focus on stabilising and strengthening
the real economy, the PBOC has increased its efforts to
optimise credit structure. The legal reserve ratio for small
and medium-sized financial institutions has been lowered to
9%, representing a 10% decrease as compared with the
previous ratio and 3% decrease as compared with that of
large financial institutions, which plays a key role in financial
support while stabilising the fundamentals of SMEs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E AR E AT ()

In addition, after the central bank introduced inclusive
financial support such as re-loans and re-discounting lines
for small and medium-sized banks, the Executive Meeting of
the State Council of the PRC proposed the newly-added line
of RMB300 billion for support of micro and small
enterprises in 2021, which supports local legal person banks
to grant loans to micro and small enterprises and individual
business proprietors, improves the policy of discount and
compensation for loans to enterprises in industries seriously
affected by the pandemic, and encourages banks to extend
more inclusive small and micro credit loans. In the work
conference held by the PBOC in the second half of 2021, it
was pointed out that the credit structure will continue to
“pursue progress while ensuring stability”, which is well
represented by the growing medium and long-term loans to
support the manufacturing industry; the inclusive loans to
SMEs will increase by quantity and expand by coverage at
lower costs; and the green credit growth rate may record a
significant increase as driven by and benefiting from carbon
emission reduction support tools and other policies.
Technology innovation, private enterprises, rural
revitalisation and other policy encouragement will also be
the focus.

The Board believes that with the flourishing development
and widespread application of financial technology, digital
transformation has become the consensus among the
industry. Under circumstances where China progressively
implements favourable policies for SMEs, the financing
guarantee industry will further clarify its development
requirements and conduct a series of practical explorations
in the areas of re-guarantee system development, innovative
development, operation and management, and active
transformation. This will effectively promote the industry to
maintain a positive and healthy operation, while providing
solid support for compliant, professional and diversified
financing guarantee companies to prevent financial risks and
cope with multiple challenges.

China’s financing guarantee industry will continue to
improve its function of capital service, establish an
institutional mechanism adapted to the characteristics of the
financial technology industry, and continuously improve its
financial innovation and technology application capabilities,
so that financial resources can more effectively flow to
SMEs, promoting the sustainable development of the real
economy.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

(Z) AREEREEE

() Development strategies of the Group

In 2021, China made new achievements in its high-quality
economic development and realised a good start of the
14th Five-Year Plan. In 2022, China’'s economy will continue
to maintain a stable performance with good momentum of
growth. Corporate finance, foreign investment, high-tech
investment and digital economy are expected to provide
solid support for high-quality development of China’s
economy. In 2022, the Group intends to adopt the
following measures:

1. Formulating strategies to further optimise the Group's
management and control model.

2. Innovating business model to create a new profit
growth point.

3. Providing active supervision to exercise strict control
over risks in adherence to the regulated and stable
development.

Founded in May 2003 as the earliest financing guarantee
institution in Foshan, the Group pioneered the model of
“"mixed ownership of financing guarantee”, and became the
first domestic company listed on the Main Board of Hong
Kong with financing guarantee as its main business in 2015.
With sound governance structure, stable business model,
complete risk control system and excellent corporate culture,
the Group has formed a national brand possessing
independent innovation in the guarantee industry, by
maintaining its foothold in Guangdong with its business
coverage across the country. At present, the annual business
volume of the Group amounts to RMB20 billion or RMB30
billion, and over the past 18 years, it has served more than
12,000 enterprises in total with an accumulated service
amount of more than RMB120 billion, with branches in
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Zhongshan, Zhaoging,
Yunfu and other regions in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E AR E AT ()

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Capital Structure

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its operation as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for the
Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure in order to maintain a balance before the higher equity
holders/shareholders returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group operates and conducts business in the PRC, and all the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB. Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits are denominated in RMB, while bank deposits are placed
with banks in the PRC. Any remittance from the PRC is subject to
the restrictions on foreign exchange control imposed by the PRC
government.

The Group has some bank deposits denominated in US dollars
which exposes the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
Group will continue to monitor closely its exposure to currency
movement and take proactive measures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate to
capital investments in the registered capital of its operating
subsidiaries, granting micro-lending and entrusted loans, making
default payments, maintaining security deposits at banks and
other working capital requirements. It has in the past funded its
working capital and other capital requirements primarily by equity
contributions from Shareholders, cash flows from operations and
banks and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and bank deposits
was approximately RMB1,084.46 million.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB69.42 million which are repayable
within one year bearing interest at a range of from 3.92% to
7.50% per annum and are guaranteed.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has debt securities issued of
approximately RMB260.00 million, which was the face value of
the Tranche 1 Corporate Bonds with a coupon rate of 4.60%.

In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group had other
financial instruments of approximately RMB111.33 million,
financial liabilities measured at FVPL of approximately RMB16.38
million and lease liabilities of approximately RMB15.05 million.

The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 were 31.24% and 24.29%, respectively, which
was calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets. Such
increase in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the issue of
corporate bonds (tranche 1).

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Group enters into guarantee contracts with off-balance-sheet
risk in the ordinary course of its business. The contract amount
reflects the extent of the Group’s involvement in the financing
guarantee business and represents its maximum exposure to credit
loss. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding
guarantee totaled approximately RMB9,967.71 million. Save as
disclosed above, the Group had no other off-balance-sheet
arrangements as at 31 December 2021.

Significant Investments

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Major business
activities undertaken by the Group during the year” in this
Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group had no
significant investments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Major business
activities undertaken by the Group during the vyear” in this
Management Discussion and Analysis, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
ERENREDH (B)

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

The Group had no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

From 31 December 2021 up to the date of this annual report,
the Group did not have any other significant events.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The total number of staff within the Group as at 31 December
2021 was 309 (31 December 2020: 315). As at 31 December
2021, the number of staff holding a bachelor’s degree or above
was 263, accounting for 85.1% of its total number of staff; and
the number of staff holding a junior college degree or below was
46, accounting for 14.9% of its total number of staff. The
Directors believe that employees’ quality is the most important
factor in sustaining the development and growth of the Group
and in raising its profitability. The Group offers a base salary with
bonuses based on its employees’ performance and benefits and
allowances to all its employees as an incentive. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred staff costs
(including salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits and
contributions to retirement schemes) of approximately RMB80.13
million. The Group also offers trainings to its new employees once
a year. The Directors believe that both the performance-based
salary and staff training play an important role in recruiting and
retaining talent as well as enhancing employee loyalty.

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes organised
by the respective local governments of the PRC whereby the
Group is required to pay annual contributions for PRC based
employees at certain rate of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year. The Group has
complied with the relevant requirements during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
X EEREREHE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Liejin (R3i), aged 60, is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Group. He was
appointed as a Director on 23 May 2003 and was re-designated
as an executive Director on 6 June 2014. Mr. Wu joined the
Group on 23 May 2003. Mr. Wu is responsible for the overall
development planning and business operation of the Group. Mr.
Wu is also the chairman of each of Foshan Micro Credit, Anhui
Join-Share Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (Z#FP R R EREER
BPBR2A7]), Zhongshan Join-Share Technology Financing Guarantee
Investment Co., Ltd.* (FILFRBRERTREERIREBTRAA])
as well as a director of each of Foshan Join-Share Investment and
Financing Consultancy Co., Ltd.* (f L Z B ER g & A RS
AR A7), Foshan Join-Share Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.* (f
I 2 B ¥ 3% & B R A F))("Foshan Zhongying Xingye”),
Guangdong Join-Share Capital Management Co., Ltd.* (ERF &
BREANREEARAR), Guangdong Join-Share Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd* (ERFREBEHREREEFRAQAF),
Guangdong Join-Share Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.* (BER+FE
BREREMREAGRAA) and Yunfu Puhui Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd* (EFMEEMEERBKMDBRZAF)("Yunfu Puhui
Financing Guarantee”) and Guangdong Join-Share Digital
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EXRHFRABEHFTEEERRA)
(“Guangdong Join-Share Digital Technology”). Apart from his
duty in the Group, Mr. Wu holds or has previously held positions
in various associations since 2008.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Organisation, programme and university

B SEIRKE

13th National People’s Congress
TZEE2EARKERARS

11th and 12th Guangdong Provincial People’s Congress
BREE+T—|E  TZTEARRKKAE

China Financing Guarantee Association
TEREERERBS

Guangdong Credit Association

EREERBE

Guangdong Provincial Credit Guarantee Association
EREERERBE

Guangdong Financing Guarantee Association

EREREEREHS

Guangdong Association for Promotion of Science & Technology and Finance

BEREAMKCREES

Guangdong Financial Think Tank Association
EREAcmEERaS

Local Finance Association

WwHERne

General Chamber of Commerce of Foshan Industry & Commerce Federation

BLUTIAXBESRARE

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Wu worked at Tongling
Finance and Economics College (8P BF 7 EH R E ) (now known
as Tongling University (#i/£f7)) in the PRC from July 1983 to
May 1993, and was primarily responsible for teaching courses and
school administration management. He had been a Party
committee member of the college, director of accounting
department (with professional lecturer title) during that period. He
had also concurrently been appointed as a vice director of
Tongling municipal youth league committee through September
1985 to October 1988. Then from May 1993 to May 1994, Mr.
Wu served as the manager of the general manager(s) office at
Hainan Jialing Group* (BE#=ME%SE), a company principally
engaged in industry, trade, real estate development, where he
was primarily responsible for system establishment and branch
management. Mr. Wu has about 22 years of experience in
finance industry. From May 1994 to May 2001, he served as the
vice general manager and then general manager at Guangzhou
Yinye Development Group Co., Ltd.* (EMEXEZHREEBEFR A
Al), a company principally engaged in materials supply and sales,
investment, properties development and consulting service, where
Mr. Wu was primarily in charge of operation management of the
company.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

From May 2001 to May 2003, Mr. Wu served as the general
manager at Guangdong Yinda Financing Guaranty Investment
Group Co., ltd* (BERPEMERRKEEBBRAA), a
company principally engaged in providing financing guarantee,
guarantee-related consulting service and doing investment, where
he was primarily responsible for business operations.

In July 1983, Mr. Wu received his bachelor’s degree of economics
from Anhui Finance and Trading College (Z# B Z £5%) (now
known as Anhui University of Finance and Economics (ZHIE 48K
&)) in the PRC, majoring in business accounting. In July 2010, he
obtained a certificate of completion for a “Foshan 2010
Advanced Workshop of Enterprises Leaders” ({5 1LT2010F (2%
B8 A S RHMEIL) granted by Fudan University (fE B X22) in the
PRC. In April 1990, Mr. Wu obtained a lecturer eligibility
qualification certificate (FEEM{TREEFES) of the PRC granted by
Teachers Qualification Evaluation Committee of Tongling Finance
and Economics College (#fE I S ERIERUMBBTIELZE D).
In September 2007, he obtained a certificate from a training
course on eligibility of independent directors of listed companies
of Shanghai Stock Exchange (L/B#EHFX S LM ARIEIES
B & #555)|3E) granted by Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC.
In December 2013, Mr. Wu obtained a certificate of senior credit
manager (guarantee) granted by the department of human
resources and social security of Guangdong Province. In December
2016 and January 2017, Mr. Wu was successively awarded 2016
Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals (20164 [& & 5 4% @
Z= A#7) and Huishang Leader of the 4th Huishang Oscar (58 PUJE
BB AT RE P SE ). In September 2017, Mr. Wu was selected
as one of the 2016 Senior Financial Management Talents of
Foshan (2016 FE#H UM & Rm A EE AA). In October 2017, Mr.
Wu was recognised as Senior Financial Professional Talent of
Chancheng District by the government of Chancheng District of
Foshan. In December 2018, Mr. Wu received the "“Second
Fengyun Huishang Award” from Guangdong Province of Anhui
Chamber of Commerce and Yangcheng Evening News. He was
elected as a representative of 13th National People’s Congress in
2018. He was awarded “Anhui Merchants Innovators of the Year”
in 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wu was beneficially
interested in 32,110,351 Domestic Shares.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Minming (3R#{BH), aged 41, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a non-executive Director on
21 April 2015. Mr. Zhang joined the Group on 21 April 2015.

Mr. Zhang has about 11 years of experience in enterprise
operations and management industry. From August 2008 to May
2009, Mr. Zhang served as the manager of purchasing
department at concretes branch of Guangdong Formanda Group
Co., Ltd* (BRBMHESEBRAA]), a company principally
engaged in property development and the commodity concretes
production, where he was primarily responsible for coordinating
daily purchase work of concretes company and controlling
procurement cost. From May 2009 to May 2010, Mr. Zhang
served as the general manager of Guangdong Formanda Group
Co., Ltd. and primarily responsible for daily operational
management, establishing and improving management system, and
implementing and realising management objectives and
development goals. Since May 2010, Mr. Zhang has been the
president of Guangdong Formanda Group Co., Ltd.* (EERFI8HE
S£BARATA) and primarily responsible for formulating and
implementing the overall strategy and annual operational plan of
the group establishing and improving the management system and
organisational structure of the group.

Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’'s degree of science from Saint
Peter’s College in the USA in May 2003, majoring in computer.
Mr. Zhang received his master of business administration degree
from Saint Peter’s College in the USA in May 2005.

Currently, Mr. Zhang is the vice-chairman of Guangdong Credit
Association (BERE=ZAHE).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Shen Hua (ZFFE), aged 64, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Li was appointed as a non-executive Director on 29 January
2021. Mr. Li joined the Group on 29 January 2021.

Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience in management and
operations of enterprises in the PRC. He founded Guangdong
Huaxing Glass Co., Ltd* (ERZEEFEROHERLF), a
manufacturer of glass products in the PRC, in February 2001 and
is the chairman and the chief executive officer of such company.
Mr. Li also currently serves as the vice chairman of China
Packaging Federation Council* (FFEI B #E A &), the executive
chairman of China National Association for Glass Industry* (& [
HAXEE#HZ) and the standing vice chairman of Chinese
Privately Operated Science and Technology Industrialist
Association* (FEIREZRFEEXIHE) and China Trade and
Investment Working Committee* (FEEZEEETIELZE D).
Mr. Li held various positions at governmental bodies and social
organisations previously, including the standing committee
member of the Foshan Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference* (KL ZE B <),
the vice president of the Foshan Nanhai Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B 17 f# 1L
MEEREZEE) the standing committee member of the
Guangdong Federation of Industry and Commerce* (BRELH
£WA€ (#72)) and the vice chairman of Foshan General
Chamber of Commerce* (BT TEEBAES (AE2)).

Mr. Li obtained the degree of Doctor of Business Administration
from the VU School of Management, Switzerland in November
2017. Mr. Li was awarded as the “Honorary Citizen” by Los
Angeles County, California, USA in 2016. He received various
honors such as “Outstanding Staff Care Private Ownership
Entrepreneur* (REIEE B TEFREDTHEK)", "Advanced Private
Ownership Entrepreneur of Nanhai District* (B8 L RE B
)", "Foshan Dacheng Entrepreneur* ({11 o KD EKR)", and
“Meritorious Entrepreneur of China National Glass Industry* (/[
HAKBITEDH®ER)" from 2007 to 2018.

As of the date of this annual report, Mr. Li was beneficially
interested in 77,720,000 Domestic Shares and 35,000,000 H
Shares.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Mr. Luo Zhenqing (##Ri&), aged 44, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Luo was appointed as a non-executive Director on 6
June 2018, retired on 5 June 2021 and re-elected on 13 January
2022. Mr. Luo joined the Group on 6 June 2018. He is an
accountant and has about 25 years of experience in state-owned
assets and enterprises management. Mr. Luo served as the
accountant and the chief financial officer of Foshan Expressway
and Industry Company Limited* (1L A E ¥ E QR from
July 1995 to April 2003, the manager of the finance and audit
department of Foshan Chancheng Road and Bridge Construction
Co., Ltd.* (BBIL MR EBERER AT from April 2003 to
July 2009, the chief financial officer of Foshan Railway Investment
and Construction Co., Ltd.* (FBILTTE KL ERZEBBRAF)
from August 2009 to May 2012 and the deputy general manager
of Foshan Torch Innovation Entrepreneur Park Co., Ltd.* (1A
BRIFTAIEE AR A7) from May 2012 to November 2013. Mr.
Luo has been a member of the Communist Party Committee, a
director and a deputy general manager of Foshan Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (#BILTTI&EER AR A F]) (now known as
Foshan Financial Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.* (8L £ @R E
=& B PR A 7)) (“Foshan Financial”), since December 2013. Mr.
Luo has served as the chairman of the board of supervisors of
Foshan Innovation and Entrepreneur Industry Guidance Fund
Investment Co., Ltd.* (FBILMEIFAIXEXSIEESKREBRA
Al) since December 2015. Mr. Luo has served as the legal
representative of Foshan Science and Technology SME Credit Risk
Compensation Fund Co., Ltd.* (BIUm R R/ NDEEERR
HEESAR AR since December 2016. Mr. Luo has served as
an executive director, legal representative and general manager of
Foshan Quality Technology Innovation Project Loan Risk
Compensation Fund Co., Ltd.* (B ILT{EE Kk alFEE B A
% 1B E 2 B PR A T since December 2016. Mr. Luo has been a
director of Keen Fortune Investment Limited since June 2017. Mr.
Luo has been a director of Fojin Hongkong Limited since
September 2017.

Mr. Luo obtained a college diploma from Foshan University ({11

BRI 2K 1l 287) majoring in business administration by means of
in-service education in January 2008.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Zhao Wei (#H1&), aged 43, is a non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhao was appointed as a non-executive Director on 29 January
2021. Mr. Zhao joined the Group on 29 January 2021.

Mr. Zhao has over 25 years of experience in the finance industry
in the PRC. Mr. Zhao joined Foshan Financial, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, in July 2017 and is currently the
deputy chief officer of the strategic investment department of
such company, being in charge of general operation. Prior to
joining Foshan Financial, Mr. Zhao served as an officer responsible
for information management at the Heng Yang Branch of Industry
and Commercial Bank of China in Hunan Province from
December 1995 to May 2004, a project manager at Guangdong
Guang Xin Certified Public Accountants* (FE5 EE & 5T =T
BBRAT]) from June 2004 to April 2009, an assistant manager in
the finance department of Southern Airlines Culture and Media
Co., Ltd.* (F IR & E XL EERR D BR A F]) from May 2009
to January 2017, and a senior merger and acquisition advisor of
Foshan Public Utilities Holdings Co., Ltd.* (LT A=A
fR/A7]) from February 2017 to June 2017. Mr. Zhao currently
serves as a director of Foshan Innovation Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd* (FILTHAIFTRI IR EBBR2AF]) and a director of Foshan
Guangfotong Electronic Toll Operation Co., Ltd.* (ff 1L &G
BETREBLEARR AR, and a director of Fojin Hongkong Limited
(& B/ BEBRAA) since December 2017.

Mr. Zhao obtained a professional undergraduate graduate
certificate in Finance at the Hunan University, the PRC in June
2001. He holds the PRC Certified Public Accountant National
Unified Exam Certificate* (;¥fi @ st 2B —EH A KES).

Mr. Ou Weiming (EX{€8H), aged 54, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 6 June 2021. Mr. Ou is a vice president
of the Group, a director of Foshan Micro Credit, head of office of
the Board of the Group and the general manager of the
administration department, in charge of the human resources
department, business management department and Yunfu
Company. He joined the Group on 25 April 2005, and is
responsible for promoting the implementation of the Group’s
strategic planning and the Group’s management and control,
human channel development and maintenance,
administration, party affairs and labour union.

resources,
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Mr. Ou has over 28 years of experience in finance industry. Prior
to joining the Group, he served as a director, manager, deputy
general manager and other positions successively at credit sector
of Foshan Branch of Agricultural Bank of China from July 1993 to
April 2005, a commercial bank listed on Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1288) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601288),
where Mr. Ou was primarily responsible for marketing, credit
business investigation and risk assessment work successively.

Mr. Ou received his bachelor’'s degree in education from Hainan
Normal University in the PRC in July 1990, and his master’s
degree of science from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (£ EHEKE) in the PRC in June 1993, majoring in
applied mathematics. In September 1996, he obtained an
engineer certificate granted by Professional and Technical Title
Evaluation Committee of Foshan Branch of Agricultural Bank of
China (FEIRERITHEILTHOTEERMBBEAELZES). In
November 2000, he also obtained an advanced professional
certificate of finance granted by the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (FFZE AR EMBE AZEEL) (now known as Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security) (2 AR £FE A ) ERMT &R
FE20). In May 2011, he obtained a certificate of completion for
an “EMBA Advanced Workshop of CEOs in Guangdong Credit
Guarantee Industry” (R % 15 A ERTT X B HEMBART S IT),
granted by South China University of Technology (¥R T A2,
In December 2012, Mr. Ou was awarded as “Excellent Manager”
by the Foshan Guarantee Industry Association (3 1L #E{R1T %%
®); in January 2014, he awarded as “China Guarantee Elite” (4
BIZ{REA) by the fourth session of “China Guarantee Pioneer &
China Guarantee Elite” (FFBI#E{RICEE « BRI A) selection
activity hosted by China Guarantee magazine ({FERIE{R) ¥
#t); in November 2017, he was awarded as “National
Outstanding Executives” (2BIEFHSE) under “National Excellent
Micro-credit Company” (2EIEF/NE A) by China Micro-credit
Companies Association; in March 2018, he was awarded as
“2017 China Small and Micro Financial Institution Person of the
Year” (2017F /Bl & Bbi%#E £ Z A %)) by National Federation
of Micro and Small Financial Institutions (/N4 Rl 2 BB fE
); in June 2018, he was awarded as “Excellent Micro-credit
Company” (85 /NE A) by Guangdong Association of Microcredit
Companies; in December 2020, he was awarded as “Industry
Special Contribution Award” (TR ER ) by Guangdong
Association of Microcredit Companies.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ou concurrently serves as a director of China Micro-credit
Companies Association (FEI/NEBERARIITERHE), executive
vice-chairman of the supervisory committee of Guangdong
Association of Microcredit (BERE/NBEBERATITEWS), vice
president of Foshan Micro Credit Company Association (ff 1L/
BMERDEITERS).

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Xiangneng (R[E#E), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 August 2013.

Mr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
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Position

B

Entities Principal business

TEEE

1

Secondment Supervisors Committee —

of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration
Commission of Guangdong
Province

EREARBFEFEEEEEREZ —

BEINREES

ERES

Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Ltd. (@ wholly

Projects investment,
shareholding and

state-owned company) management
BREEERREARAF HEARE  #ERR ElR S
(BEBERR) B

Guangzhou Nengdi Asset —
Management Co., Ltd.

BEMEaEEERARAA] — mmm

Mr. Wu received his master's degree of management from
Xiamen University (BEF§ X&) in the PRC in June 2002, majoring
in accounting. He also obtained various professional qualifications
or certificates, including a certificate of completion (& &l & &%)
issued by examination council of chartered accountants’ at
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (FF & A R &AM BBk & =t
fiZzxEB8=) (the "MOF”) in June 1999, non-practice
membership certificate GE¥LZEE BF &) granted by the
Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants (/&
HETMETMM%E) in February 2010, senior accountant
qualification certificate (m R ZETAIEEEE) of the PRC granted
by Department of Personnel of Guangdong Province (B & A=
EZ) (now known as Department of Human Resources, Social
Security of Guangdong Province (EERA AN ERMLZRIEEE)
in March 2008 and the certificate of national accounting leading
personnel (2E @ 5F%EE A7) granted by MOF in October 2009.
In August 2010, he obtained a certificate for training course on
senior managers of listed companies (A RlSREE A 57
Jt) granted by Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the PRC.

Mr. Wu currently serves as an adjunct professor of the School of
Management of Sun Yat-sen University (FFILUAEE), an external
MPACC tutor of Guangzhou University (BN AZ2), a member of
Guangdong accounting experts pool and external instructor
teaching the postgraduate program in finance at Guangdong
University of Technology (R L& AZ).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung Hon Man (%), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 June 2014.

Mr. Leung has over 21 years of experience in company
management, accounting and company secretarial matters. From
June 1990 to May 1994, he served as a senior officer in the
loans department of the Hong Kong Branch of the Kwangtung
Provincial Bank (BEERAERITEED1T) (now known as Bank of
China (Hong Kong) Limited (FEIER1T (F8) BMRAF]). From
May 1994 to August 2000, he served as the finance manager in
Soundwill Holdings Limited (£#5EBERAF]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 878) and primarily
engaged in property consolidation, development and leasing,
where he was principally responsible for financial management.
From August 2000 to December 2007, Mr. Leung was employed
by Sanyuan Group Limited (ZTS&BIBRAF]), a company
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange and primarily engaged in
property investment, medical care and healthcare etc., where he
held various positions including the company secretary, financial
controller and executive director and primarily responsible for
financial management. Mr. Leung has served as the chief financial
officer since December 2007 and served concurrently as the
company secretary since August 2008 in Chigo Holding Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 449) and
primarily engaged in designing, development, manufacturing and
sales of air-conditioning products, where he is responsible for
financial management and compliance.

Mr. Leung received his professional diploma in business studies
(banking) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (F/& T E7) (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (& /& T K E2))
in Hong Kong in November 1990. Mr. Leung received his Master
of Business Administration degree through distance learning
course from Andrews University in the United States in August
1996 and master degree of accounting through distance learning
course from Central Queensland University in Australia in
September 1999. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (/& &I AE)
since April 2008 and a certified practising accountant of CPA
Australia CEM&ETEI/A <) since August 2000.

BEx E=kafREEE#E)

BPERE  555% 0 I2014F6 238 E LT
BENIEHITESE -

REETRNRERE  SHRARWEETEFAE
B2 F K% - 199096 A £19944F 57 -
HRERGRTEEHTT RWBPRIRT (FH)
BRAGIEEESSJEL - 1994458 %

2000F8 A F RN HBEBABR A MY B
4838 - Z N E AR FT BT (R R5R - 878) ¢
FEREVELAH BREEE THEETEAE
SBER - 200068 A £2007F 128 - 2%
EZERZTTEBBRDA - %A E AT
RETE™ FEREMELE  BEERERR
S MPBHRENETZEBRUSED AW
E UBBERITES TFTEEENKE
o RHEAB2007F12 ARHEESIERAR
NEIFIEHEE - 82008F8 AERIEFER A
ME - ZARIRER AT LT (BRDAEE : 449)
FTERETFHEROR  FE HEREE
2% mMEAEVBEERARERH-

BEER1990F 11 AEEEMEE SR IERR
(RBEBEIRS)ME(RITH)EEE -
PRI AER1996F 8 AFEBENEERIZEEE
BZSBARETEmERBE TS - WHN1999F
OB BEREERRENERMPRELH X
Bet B2 c §2008F4AREEE A
BAGMAEELREE - AR B200068AH
EAERMNetiASEMEsta -

221 EEHRE ERPEBREMARRRERBGERLS

35
-



36

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Mr. Wang Bo (Ei), aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 June 2021.

Mr. Wang is currently the chairman of the senior partners
meeting and secretary of the party committee of Guangzhou
Kingpound Law Firm (BM&WEEENEMAT). He is also the
honorary president of Guangzhou Lawyers Association (J& /|1 /&
Fit%2), the executive vice president of Federation of NGOs of
Guangdong Province (BREH SR E), the president of
Guangdong Southwest University of Political Science & Law
Alumni Association (EERA&FMEBIEKER K E), the chairman of
supervisory board of Guangdong Province Anhui Chamber of
Commerce (BREZ#H M), an arbitrator of Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration C&IIBIBR{F£LBT) and an arbitrator of
Guangzhou Arbitration Commission (FE M {F & Z).

Mr. Wang has acted as legal adviser to organisations and entities
such as the People’s Government of Guangdong Province (ER%E
ARBUF), the Guangdong Provincial Party Committee Network
Information Office (ERAEZ#M{E), the Food and Strategic
Reserves Administration of Guangdong Province (BER&ERE D),
the People’s Government of Guangzhou Municipality (BN AR
B JF), the PRC Guangzhou Customs District (FR & A B HANE &N
/8 #), Guangzhou City Investment Group Company Limited* (F&
T RIS E @ AR A 7)), the Guangdong Branch of China
Construction Bank, Guangzhou Development Industry (Holdings)
Co., Ltd* (EMBEEEXIEREBERM AR AT, Kunwu Jiuding
Investment Management Co., Ltd* (REENSREEEFRAF)
and Guangzhou Times Shengyu Investment Co., Ltd. (BN
BRI E G MR AR]). He was previously an independent director of
the Midea Group (EH % E).

Mr. Wang has edited or co-edited a number of textbooks,
including Cases and Commentaries on Securities Law ({F& % A%
B ELFEAT)), Criminal Law ({FHIJEZ)), and  Introduction to
Economic Law (AGEE%)). He has published several papers in
national and provincial publications, such as Legal Issues in Futures
Trading KBEREIER S 4 E)AEZHE)) and Plot Problems in
Criminal Law of China ((GGREE AR AISEIMIRE)).

Mr. Wang graduated from Southwest College of Political Science
and Law (FARBUEZPT) (now known as Southwest University of
Political Science and Law (FEEEEUEAE)) in July 1983 with a
bachelor’'s degree in law and in June 1988 with a postgraduate
diploma in criminal law.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Wang was awarded “2005-2007 National Outstanding
Lawyer” (2005-20074F £ 2 B2 F &A1) by National Lawyers
Association in 2008, “Party Member Lawyer Pioneer in the Lawyer
Industry for launching overachiever contests” (£E7T¥#A]%LFE
JEB)® B 2EIZ L) by the Ministry of Justice in 2011, “Individual
Second Class Merit (fBIA =%31)" by Department of Justice of the
Guangdong Province in 2016, “Political and Legal Officer with
People’s Satisfaction” (ARMBBUE#ZE) in Guangzhou by the
Fifth Session of Guangzhou Municipal Committee in 2013,
“Model Worker of Guangzhou” (/N4 8)#E#5) by Guangzhou
in 2009, “Top Ten Lawyers of Guangzhou” (&M ™ +1{£7260) by
Guangzhou Municipal Bureau of Justice in 2007, and "“40th
Anniversary of Reform and Opening-up Contribution Award” (2
ZHAMA0FEFE B ) by Guangzhou Lawyers Association in
2018.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Li Qi (FH), aged 44, was appointed as the chairman of the
board (the “Board of Supervisors”) of supervisors of the
Company (the “Supervisors”) on 21 April 2015. Mr. Li joined the
Group on 11 May 2012.

From September 1994 to August 1998, Mr. Li served as an
accountant at a financial department of Ningyuan Steel Factory in
Zhangjiakou City, Hebei (ATdb3RZ A =iz &), where he was
primarily involved in plant accounting and operational analysis.
Since September 1998, he has worked at Huanai Home
Investment Holding Co., Ltd.* CEMREREELEEHR D A)
(“Huanai Home Investment”), a company primarily engaged in
investment on household industry and related projects, where he
served successively as the assistant to general manager, chief
financial officer, vice president and director of the group at this
company and was primarily responsible for financial management,
human resources management, enterprise informatisation and
coordinating the work of daily operation of Huanai Luxehome
Building Material Co., Ltd.* CEMH REM BRAF]), a subsidiary
of Huanai Home Investment.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Mr. Li received his college diploma from Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAJdb 48 & K£28) in the PRC in June 1995
through self-study higher education examination (S5# & B &%
&), majoring in business economy management. In December
2004, he obtained a certificate for the forty-eighth business
administration training course (£ 48HiT & E53IHE) granted by
School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University (/&
R B EIBERT) in the PRC. Mr. Li obtained an executive
Master of Business Administration degree from Renmin University
in January 2017 and a qualification certificate of accountant (&
PRI E 1B £) granted by MOF in May 1998.

Ms. Li Wanmin (F®i#f), aged 32, was appointed as a
Supervisor on 13 January 2022. Ms. Li joined the Group on 13
January 2022.

Ms. Li has over nine years of experience in accounting and
finance. She has been an accountant supervisor of Foshan
Hengtong Jianshe Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (fflUTERAIEEXAR
fR A R]) since May 2012.

Ms. Li graduated from Guangdong University of Finance and
Economics (ERBI#EKRE) (formerly known as Guangdong College
of Commerce* (BEREEPT)) majoring in accounting in June
2012.

Mr. Chen Xin (BR#), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 6 June 2021. Mr. Chen joined the Group on 6
June 2021. Mr. Chen currently serves as a executive director of
Foshan Jinmao Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd.* (BBILS XA BSREREESEE AR AF) (formerly known
as Foshan Jinmao Investment Advisory Management Co., Ltd.* ({3

WEXEEBREEERAR)).

Mr. Chen was the president of Huayuan Industrial Co., Ltd.* (¥
BEERMAMR AT and the vice chairman of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd.* A EER MDA AF]). He has served Foshan small
and medium-sized enterprises for many years as an economic
development consultant in Chancheng District, Foshan City and
Lishui Town, Nanhai District.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chen graduated from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (ZEF B K &) with a doctorate degree in
engineering in November 1990 and was qualified as a senior
mechanical engineer (#4%= 4 T2E) by the Department of
Personnel of Guangdong Province (E¥ & AZEEE) in December
1995.

Mr. Zhong lJian ($#£E%), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent Supervisor on 21 April 2015. He joined the Group
on 21 April 2015.

From December 1979 to August 1982, Mr. Zhong worked at the
credit section of the central sub-branch of the Peoples’ Bank of
China in Foshan. From January 1988 to April 1995, he worked at
Foshan Chengqu Law Firm (1L TH & ZENEF5FT), where he
successively served as a lawyer and deputy director. From April
1995 to December 1997, Mr. Zhong worked as the director of
Foshan Huayang Law Firm (f LT EF 2 EFAT). From
December 1997 to November 2005, he worked as the director of
Guangdong Tongfa Law Firm (/& B @ A2 A= FT). From
November 2005 to May 2018, Mr. Zhong worked as the director
of Guangdong T & Z Law Firm (ERiEEIE&ZEMEEFT). Since
May 2018, Mr. Zhong has been serving as the director of
Guangdong T&J Law Firm.

Mr. Zhong received his bachelor’s degree of philosophy from
South China Normal University (ZEmgRI#E3AE2) in July 1986 in the
PRC, majoring in political education. He received his bachelor’
degree of law from Sun Yat-Sen University self-study programme
in December 1993 in the PRC, majoring in law. He had took
graduate course in procedure law at Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (FFE & BUE R E) in the PRC in July 2002.
Mr. Zhong was qualified as an independent director for listing
companies in the PRC in May 2008. He has been the arbitrator in
Foshan arbitration committee and Guangzhou arbitration
committee since March 2010 and November 2013 respectively.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Since 2006, Mr. Zhong successively served as the president of the
fifth session of Foshan Bar Association (ff1L M 2EI#H <), the vice
president of the sixth session of Foshan Bar Association and the
president of the ninth session of Foshan Bar Association. He also
served as the legal consultant of the People’ Government of
Foshan City (1L ARBT), the People’ Government of
Chancheng District, Foshan (#1L &3k E A REUT), the People’
Government of Nanhai District, Foshan (1L &&= A R ET),
Bureau of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Foshan (ff L
M{EED), Bureau of Commerce of Foshan City (f LT E#E),
Urban Construction Bureau of Land & Water of Chancheng
District (3 & B + 3 = F /K% fH), Office of Public Assets
Management of Chancheng District (#3%[& /2 & ##), China Citic
Bank Foshan Branch ({58771l 77), Guangdong Dongpeng
Ceramics Co., Ltd.* (BEREBEEEKRMDAER A F]), Guangdong
Hanford Investment Group Holding Co., Ltd.* (ERIERKREEE
=Rz B PR A7) and other entities. In addition,
representative to the Fourteenth and Fifteenth People’ Congress of
Foshan City.

he was a

Mr. Huang Shaoxiong (=4 #), aged 33, was elected as an
employee representative Supervisor on 20 December 2021. Mr.
Huang joined the Group in July 2009.

Mr. Huang is experienced in the development of online and
innovative financing guarantee business. From July 2009 to
March 2014. Mr. Huang served as a project manager of Foshan
Zhongying Xingye, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
primarily responsible for customer development and project
implementation. From March 2014 to June 2015, he served as the
head of business development of Guangdong Zhongsheng
Venture Capital Co., Ltd.* (BRFRAKETEEERAF),
primarily responsible for the building of online financial platform.
From July 2016 to May 2020, he served successively served as the
assistant to general manager and deputy general manager to the
business management department, the head of product research
and development department and the head of retail guarantee
business department of the Company, primarily responsible for
channel expansion and maintenance, innovative products’ research
and development and management, as well as online guarantee
business’s expansion and management. Since May 2020, he
served as the deputy general manager of the retail guarantee
business department of the Company and the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Join-Share Digital Technology, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, primarily responsible for
the expansion of online business and promotion of digital
products of the Group.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Huang graduated from South China University of Technology
(FEFIE T KE), majoring in Japanese in July 2009.

Ms. Huang Yuzhen (ZFHi¥), aged 43, was appointed as an
employee representative Supervisor on 6 June 2018. She joined
the Group on 25 May 2006.

Ms. Huang received her bachelor’'s degree by in-service education
from the Zhejiang Gongshang University in 2004, majoring in
accounting. She is a member of the Communist Party of China.
From July 1996 to February 2006, Ms. Huang served as the
deputy director of the business department of Fengshun sub-
branch, Meizhou branch of the Bank of China and held various
positions in international-domestic settlement, accounting, the
office and the business department. Ms. Huang joined the
Company in May 2006 and currently serves as the vice general
manager of the audit department of the Company. Ms. Huang
obtained a certificate of corporate human resources manager in
October 2008 and a certificate of intermediate credit manager
(guarantee) in March 2014.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Huang was beneficially
interested in 50,000 Domestic Shares.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ou Weiming (EX{&8H), aged 54, is a vice president of the
Group and a director of Foshan Micro Credit, details about Mr.
Ou’s biography are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management — Non-Executive Directors”
above.

Ms. Lu Haoming (PE8EER), aged 54, is the chief financial officer
and general manager of finance management department (B4 7%&
2 EF) of the Company and director of both Foshan Micro Credit
and Shenzhen Join-Share Engineering Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (&3
MABRETRERBRAA) ("Shenzhen Join-Share
Engineering”), respectively. Ms. Lu joined the Group on 8 July
2003. She is responsible for the overall financial management of
the Group.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Ms. Lu has about 30 years of experience in finance industry. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked as a department vice manager
at Foshan International Trust Investment Co., Ltd.* (#BIIEIE =
&2 7)) from July 1988 to March 2001, a company principally
engaged in trust products and investment, where she was
primarily responsible for accounting and financial management of
foreign exchange business, financing and fund management of
foreign exchange fund, and accounting and financial management
of the Hong Kong subsidiary of that company. From April 2001
to September 2001, Ms. Lu served as the chief financial officer at
Guangdong Fotao Group Co., Ltd.* (ER#HEEE)
("“Guangdong Fotao”), a company principally engaged in
manufacturing and distribution of ceramic hardware accessories
and functional ceramic materials, where she was primarily
responsible for supervising the operations and finance of
Guangdong Fotao Group Materials Industry & Trade Co., Ltd.* (&
RHHHEEMETZEABMRAA]) and Guangdong Fotao Group
Import and Export Branch Company* (ER{FHAEERE L DD D
&]), two subsidiaries of Guangdong Fotao. From September 2001
to January 2002, Ms. Lu served as a director deputy general
manager and the manager of the financial management
department in Sanitaryware Co., Ltd.* (CZABRA A, a
subsidiary of Guangdong Fotao, where she was primarily
responsible for financial management. From July 2002 to August
2003, she was the manager of auditing and financing department
(sFBFEF) at the central branch company in Foshan of Huatai
Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd.* (EZRFERKRERMDHER
A 7|]), a company principally engaged in property and casualty
insurance as well related insurance service and investment, where
primarily responsible for accounting, financial
management, and ensuring the implementation of financial policy
of the head office in branches.

she was

Ms. Lu received her bachelor's degree of economics from Jinan
University (ZBmAZ) in the PRC in July 1988, majoring in
accounting. In December 1992, she obtained a qualification
certificate of accountant of the PRC granted by MOF. In March
2014, Ms. Lu obtained a certificate of senior credit manager
(guarantee) granted by the department of human resources and
social security of Guangdong Province.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Huang Biwen (E$X), aged 46, is the chief risk officer of
the Group. Ms. Huang joined the Group on 5 June 2003 and has
over 15 vyears of working experience in the Group. She is
responsible for risk management of the Group.

Ms. Huang has over 20 years of experience in finance industry.
Prior to joining the Group, she worked as a clients manager at
Foshan Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
August 2000 to June 2003, a commercial bank listed on Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1398) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 601398), where Ms. Huang was primarily responsible for
credit customers management, including investigating customer
credit status, credit rating, credit management, post-loan
inspection, credit risk classification, loan recovery, managing non-
performing customers, and collaborating with law firms to take
actions against non-performing clients. The rich practical
experience at Foshan Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China enabled Ms. Huang to have a deep understanding of risk
management mechanism in a financial institution and provided
solid experience basis for her implementing of a comprehensive
risk management.

Ms. Huang received her bachelor’'s degree of economics from Sun
Yat-Sen University in the PRC in June 1997, majoring in
international finance. In November 2001, she obtained an
intermediate qualification certificate of financial economy granted
by MOP. In May 2010, she obtained a certificate of completion
for an “"EMBA Advanced Workshop of CEOs in Guangdong Credit
Guarantee Industry” (R & {5 A & R1T % B FHEMBARHE IT),
granted by South China University of Technology (ZEfIE T KE2).

In March 2014, Ms. Huang obtained a certificate of senior credit
manager (guarantee) (=AR{s AE LA (J&EIR)) granted by the
department of human resources and social security of Guangdong
province.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B EFREAEEEE)

Mr. Zheng Zhenggiang (EBIE3®), aged 44, is the secretary to the
Board, general manager of Foshan Micro Credit and director of
Foshan Micro Credit and Yunfu Puhui Financing Guarantee,
respectively. Mr. Zheng joined the Group on 13 April 2005 with
past positions of the assistant general manager of development
and planning department, assistant general manager of guarantee
department, deputy general manager of Guangzhou Branch,
deputy general manager of development and planning
department. He is responsible for overall management of the
micro-lending business of the Group.

Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of experience in finance, guarantee
and corporate management. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked as an employee at Guangzhou Municipal Postal Office (&
INTREP B /B) from July 1998 to June 2002, where he was
primarily responsible for economy operation analysis and business
management. From August 2002 to March 2005, Mr. Zheng
served as the general manager at Guangzhou Baofu Auto Beauty
Co., Ltd.* (BMNTIRFTEERDEGRAF]), a company primarily
engaged in automobile beautifying and maintenance service,
where he was primarily responsible for overall operational
management.

Mr. Zheng received his bachelor’s degree of economics from
Central University of Finance and Economics (FFRBEFA&EAE) in the
PRC in July 1998, majoring in monetary banking. In November
2007, he obtained an intermediate qualification certificate of
financial economy granted by MOP. In March 2014, Mr. Zheng
obtained a certificate of senior credit manager (guarantee)
granted by the Department of Human Resources and Social
Security of Guangdong Province.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board currently comprises one executive Director, five non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Board is
committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and
adherence to the principle of CG Code with emphasis on
transparency, independence, accountability and responsibility.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, except
for the deviation from the CG Codes provision A.2.1 (which has
been renumbered as code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022)
relating to the separation roles of chairman and chief executive
officer, which is explained in the paragraph headed “Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer” below in the Corporate
Governance Report. The Board will continue to review and
improve the Company’s corporate governance system to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Duties and Division of Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring its
business and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility of day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. The powers and
duties of the Board include convening Shareholders’ meetings,
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at general meetings,
determining the Group’s business and investment plans,
formulating its annual financial budgets and final reports,
formulating proposals for profit distributions and for the increase
or reduction of registered capital the members of the Group as
well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred
by the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERER®RE (&)

The Board is also responsible for, among others, performing the
corporate governance duties as set out in paragraph D.3.1 (which
has been renumbered as code provision A.2.1 since 1 January
2022) of the CG Code, which includes (a) to develop and review
the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management; (c) to review and monitor the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Directors and employees; and (e) to review the Group’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established five Board committees, including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration and
appraisal committee (the “Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) and the strategy committee (the
“Strategy Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”).
The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,

in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
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Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wu Liejin is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
the president of the Group (the “President”). The Company does
not have the position of chief executive officer, the duties of
which are performed by the President.

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has been renumbered as
code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) provides that the
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be divided. Mr. Wu Liejin, has been performing the roles
as the Chairman and the President since 19 April 2018. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
President in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective
and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
further believes that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately
ensured by the current Board, which comprises experienced and
high calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof being
independent non-executive Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business, family or other relationship between the Directors, the
Supervisors, the Chairman and the senior management of the
Company.

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including one executive Director namely Mr. Wu Ligjin
(Chairman and President), five non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Zhang Minming, Mr. Li Shen Hua, Mr. Luo Zhenging, Mr. Zhao
Wei and Mr. Ou Weiming, and three independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Wu Xiangneng, Mr. Leung Hon Man and
Mr. Wang Bo. Particulars of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Ms. Gu Lidan tendered her resignation as a non-executive Director
with effect from 5 January 2021 due to job transfer. Mr. Zhang
Deben and Mr. Liu Heng did not offer themselves for re-election
as Director due to other work arrangements and retired from
office as a non-executive Director and an independent non-
executive Director, respectively, on 5 June 2021. Each of Ms. Gu,
Mr. Zhang and Mr. Liu confirmed that he/she had no
disagreement with the Board and there were no other matters
regarding his/her resignation that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders or the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Shen Hua and Mr. Zhao Wei were appointed as non-
executive Directors with effect from 29 January 2021. Mr. Ou
Weiming and Mr. Wang Bo were appointed as non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Director, respectively, with
effect from 6 June 2021. Mr. Luo Zhenging, whose resolution for
re-election was not passed due to formality and accordingly
retired from office as a non-executive Director on 5 June 2021,
was re-appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 13
January 2022. Please refer to the circular of the Company dated
24 December 2021 and the announcements of the Company
dated 4 June 2021, 23 December 2021 and 13 January 2022 for
details of Mr. Luo’s retirement and re-appointment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
complied with the requirement of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules to have not less than three independent non-
executive directors, including at least an independent non-
executive director who has the relevant professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise, as well
as Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, which stipulates at least one-
third of the directors shall be independent non-executive directors.
The Company had three independent non-executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2021, representing one-third
of the total number of Directors and was in compliance with the
relevant requirements. In accordance with the Articles of
Association, the Directors (including non-executive Directors) are
elected by Shareholders at a general meeting for a term of three
years, which is renewable upon re-election and re-appointment.

None of the independent non-executive Directors has any business
or financial interests in the Company and its subsidiaries, nor do
they hold any executive positions in the Company, which
demonstrated their independence. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of their independence as per Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the Company was of
the opinion that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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Positions in other Listed Companies Held by Directors

Other than those disclosed in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report, none
of the Directors holds any directorship in other listed companies.

BOARD MEETINGS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board should
hold at least four meetings a year at approximately quarterly
intervals, to be convened by the chairman of the Board. Notices
of not less than 14 days will be given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with the opportunities to attend
and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

Meetings of the Board shall be held only if more than half of the
Directors are present. Directors shall personally attend the
meeting. In the event that any Director is unable to attend a
meeting for any reason, he/she may appoint another Director by a
written power of attorney.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held 12
meetings in total, with details of the attendance of Directors

specified as follows:

Mr. Wu Liejin

RIS
Mr. Zhang Minming
SR BRBR % A
Mr. Li Shen Hua
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
FRESLE
(FR20215F1A29B B Z )
Mr. Luo Zhenging (retired on 5 June
2021 and re-appointed on
13 January 2022)
BIRE A (2021 F6 ASHRMTE
K&2022F1R13HEEHEM))
Mr. Zhao Wei
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
H OEEE
(202151 A29B B & T)
Mr. Ou Weiming
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
BUERA L E
(R202156 A6 REZE)
Ms. Gu Lidan
(resigned on 5 January 2021)
BEE S22+ (3R2021F1 ASHET)
Mr. Zhang Deben
(retired on 5 June 2021)
REAE A (R2021F6 A5HIEM)
Mr. Wu Xiangneng
RAIRE L&
Mr. Leung Hon Man
REX S
Mr. Wang Bo
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
F OREHE
(R202156 A6 B EZE)
Mr. Liu Heng
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2 1854 (R202156 ASART)
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Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings
during
the tenure
Position of office
HERE
Bk for R SRR
Executive Director, Chairman and 12/12
President
HITES  FEREBEH
Non-executive Director 12/12
FEHITES
Non-executive Director 9/9
EHITES
Non-executive Director 6/6
EHITES
Non-executive Director 9/9
FEHITES
Non-executive Director 6/6
EHITES
Non-executive Director 0/0
EHITES
Non-executive Director 6/6
FEHITES
Independent non-executive Director 12/12
BUIERITES
Independent non-executive Director 12/12
BUIERITES
Independent non-executive Director 6/6
B IEHITES
Independent non-executive Director 6/6
B IEITES

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Attendance
rate

s
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

N/A
i B
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%




During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Chairman held
meetings about corporate governance and development with the
independent non-executive Directors without any other Directors
present (except himself).

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

According to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be elected
at the general meetings for a term of office of three years. Upon
expiration of the term of office, a Director is eligible for re-
election and re-appointment. The Company has implemented a set
of effective procedures for appointment of new Directors. The
nomination of new Directors shall be first deliberated by the
Nomination Committee and then submitted to the Board of
Directors, subject to the approval by the general meeting.

The term of each of the fifth session of the Board and the fifth
session of the board of Supervisors (the “Board of Supervisors”)
commenced on 6 June 2021 and will expire on the date of expiry
of such session, which is expected to be 5 June 2024.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Details of Directors and Supervisors’ service contracts are set out
in the paragraph headed “Directors and Supervisors’ Service
Contracts” under the section headed “Report of the Board of
Directors” in this annual report.

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws,
rules and regulations and the Group’s various governance and
internal control policies.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company arranged two in-house trainings on corporate
management, governance and law compliance (P& « B4
AR SF) and on disclosure of inside information and other
information (RFEBE N EMERIAHFE) for the Directors and
senior management of the Group, in compliance with Provision
A.6.5 (which has been renumbered as code provision C.1.4 since
1 January 2022) of the CG Code. According to the records
provided by the Directors, the Directors received the following
trainings during the 2021:

(1)  Directors’ ongoing responsibilities and obligations and
practices

(2)  Management of major transactions, connected transactions
and insider trading

ARAHERTERES2HBERLERE - Y
ERENFEEZ MBREIEE - REIE2021F12
A3MBLEE  ARRAAAEBEERRE
HEZHETABLEEE  BRMEARETNU
MAREEREAME R AT E R IE RIS
Al FAECEERTAEAGS(HEH202241
A1BEEESEHRERATINELC1.4)1E - 1B
BEERE L EFR2021FMES T
TN

(1) EFNREETRESZBLAXER

t

2 BARS BEXSZRARXZEE

><\

Trainings
attended/
Number of
trainings held
during the
tenure Attendance
Directors of office Rate
HERE
ERARETTHY
Al R =
Executive Director BITE=E
Mr. Wu Liejin R 2/2 100%
Non-executive Directors EBRITEE
Mr. Zhang Minming SRENAA ST A& 2/2 100%
Mr. Li Shen Hua FRESRA 2/2 100%
(appointed on 29 January 2021) (7202141 H29H
BEE)
Mr. Luo Zhenging (retired on 5 June 2021  Z#iR/B &KL 1/1 100%
and re-appointed on 13 January 2022) (R20215F6 ASHRER
2022F1B13BEEHZE
£)
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Trainings
attended/
Number of
trainings held
during the
tenure Attendance
Directors of office Rate
HERE
ERIREETTHY
BEEllR & g
Mr. Zhao Wei (appointed on 29 January tH OEkAE 2/2 100%
2021) (FR2021%1H29H
BZT)
Mr. Ou Weiming (appointed on 6 June BX {2 BE 90 A (72021 4F 1/1 100%
2021) 6 A6 HEEE)
Ms. Gu Lidan (resigned on 5 January 2021) EZ=FNZ+t 0/0 N/A
(FR20215 1 ASHBHE) i A
Mr. Zhang Deben (retired on 5 June 2021) SR{EARLA 1/1 100%
(R2021F6 A5HIRME)
Independent non-executive Directors BIAERITESE
Mr. Wu Xiangneng RARE L& 2/2 100%
Mr. Leung Hon Man* PIEN 0/0* N/A
3 A
Mr. Wang Bo * REAE 1/1 100%
(appointed on 6 June 2021) (72021F6 A6 AEELE)
Mr. Liu Heng 2 ELkE 1/1 100%
(retired on 5 June 2021) (PR2021F6 A5HIRMAE)

EEERA - REX S EEENARRRRS
Bl BEHEHBEL SRR T ARFABEIIE
EEME - WABIT2MERMNGFAAEE
TTHIEESINIER - B8 : (1) Bookkeeping, Audit
Planning and SMEFRS Report automation for
Small & Medium Practitioners : }(2) 2021
Accounting CPD Carnival - B&EB &I AE
B|ITHIEFITE B ¢ E-learning webinar:Listing
Rules Compliance Series-Session1-4 o f &
8/ YIEEMEBERITMEIIEAR - Tips for
handling raids by regulators in Hong Kong °

* Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Mr. Leung Hon Man was unable  *
to participant in the on-site training of the Company, but he has
read and studied the written materials of the Company’s internal
training and participated in the following training programs on his
own: the training program held by CPA Australia, including (1)
Bookkeeping, Audit Planning and SMEFRS Report automation for
Small & Medium Practitioners; and (2) 2021 Accounting CPD
Carnival, the training program held by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant, namely E-learning webinar: Listing Rules
Compliance Series-Session1-4, and the training program held by
Deloitte/Yang Chan &amison, namely Tips for handling raids by
regulators in Hong Kong.
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The Directors will keep abreast of the latest development in legal
and regulatory requirements and the operation of the Company to
facilitate the performance of their duties. Training will also be
provided for the Directors when necessary to ensure that the
Directors understand the business and operation of the Group and
their duties and obligations under the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal litigation against its Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are five committees under the Board including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the
Strategy Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of five members, being Mr. Wu
Xiangneng, Mr. Leung Hon Man and Mr. Wang Bo, who are
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Li Shen Hua and Mr.
Luo Zhenging, who are non-executive Directors. Mr. Wu
Xiangneng is the chairman of the Audit Committee who has a
professional qualification in accountancy. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop and review
policies and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have been published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the members are

as follows:

Mr. Wu Xiangneng
RAEEkE
Mr. Leung Hon Man
REN KL
Mr. Wang Bo
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
T OREAE
(7202156 A6 HEET)
Mr. Liu Heng
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2| 1B4E (202156 ASHIRM)
Mr. Li Shen Hua
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
FRERE
(FA2021F1A29B & ZF)
Mr. Luo Zhenging
(retired on 5 June 2021 and
re-appointed on 28 March 2022)
BB RE
(7202156 A5 HRER
20223 A28 AEHEM)
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Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings
during the
tenure of Attendance
Position office rate
HERE
B fir ER A SRR E =
Independent non-executive Director 2/2 100%
BYIFATES
Independent non-executive Director 2/2 100%
BYFNITES
Independent non-executive Director 11 100%
BYIFATESE
Independent non-executive Director 1/1 100%
BYFRITES
Non-executive Director 2/2 100%
HEHMITESE
Non-executive Director 171 100%

FHTES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles, policies adopted by the Group
and the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, reviewed the Group’s interim and annual results, and

discussed the Group’s financial

reporting matters with the

management. The Audit Committee has met with the auditor of
the Company in the absence of management of the Company.

BE2021F12A31 B I FEEME - NARIER
ZESERINASEEMANSERA - BER
AEEMREREREEANSZEH RS  EEHAR
EEMNPHPMFEES  THERERHTASE
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During the period after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this Corporate Governance Report, the Audit Committee held one
meeting. During such meeting, the Audit Committee reviewed
with the management and the Company’s auditor, KPMG, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal control and financial reporting matters including
the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 as set out in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is of the view that the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and all the relevant and required disclosures are
adequate.

REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of five
members, being Mr. Leung Hon Man, Mr. Wu Xiangneng and Mr.
Wang Bo, who are independent non-executive Directors and Mr.
Luo Zhenging and Mr. Ou Weiming, who are non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee is chaired
by Mr. Leung Hon Man, an independent non-executive Director.
The primary duties of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
include but are not limited to (i) making recommendations to the
Directors regarding the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policies; (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee have been published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration and &=
S

Appraisal Committee held four
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021F 12 A31 HILFEEM - HMEEZ

2
meetings. Details of the G EMARGE - KELFEFBAT

attendance of the members are as follows:

Mr. Leung Hon Man
REX S
Mr. Wu Xiangneng
RAIREEE
Mr. Wang Bo
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
F ORESE
(2021576 A6 B EZ )
Mr. Liu Heng
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2| 18%4 (R2021F6 ASARM)
Mr. Luo Zhenging
(retired on 5 June 2021 and
re-appointed on 28 March 2022)
BRI E
(R2021F6 ASAREK
20223 A28HEEHE )
Mr. Zhang Deben
(retired on 5 June 2021)
SREAL A (202166 ASHIRMT)

Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings
during the
tenure of Attendance
Position office rate
HERE
B fir ER A SRR E =
Independent non-executive Director 4/4 100%
BYFNITES
Independent non-executive Director 4/4 100%
BYIFATES
Independent non-executive Director 1/1 100%
BYFRITES
Independent non-executive Director 3/3 100%
BYIFATESE
Non-executive Director 3/3 100%
FEHTES
Non-executive Director 3/3 100%
FEHITES
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee, under the leadership of the Board,
proactively carried out work in accordance with relevant provisions
under the Articles of Association and the terms of reference of
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. It approved the
performance of the Directors and evaluated the terms of the
executive Directors’ service contracts. It examined the performance
assessment mechanism and remuneration distribution plan for
Directors and senior management through study and examination
of the Company’s remuneration distribution system, and proposed
advisory opinions on relevant circumstances and problems in the
execution of remuneration management of the Company. At the
same time, the remuneration of Directors is determined according
to the completion of business objectives, the results of Directors’
performance evaluation and reference to the remuneration levels
of related positions of similar companies in the market. The
committee practically fulfilled its obligations of due diligence,
ensured the Board's effective control and supervision over the
Company’s operation and management and safeguarded the
interests of all Shareholders and the Company as a whole.

During the period after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this Corporate Governance Report, the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee held one meeting, During such meeting, the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee recommended to the
Board the proposed remuneration of the proposed non-executive
Director.

Remuneration of the senior management for the year ended 31
December 2021 by band is as follows:

Remuneration range

HZE2021F12A31BIEFE  HFWEEZEZS
EESFSAE T REBE(RAAER) - Fe
EnZEeBREGEETERATRERARSE
T EEHAESHRABRMTHNITE
ERBERER - BB IEAES RN B
PEHER HEELSAEREABNEREX
HWHl - FE DB A RETES  YYHARR
MBS TRERNABBE R AMERERE RS
MERE RABRECLEEZEKEBER ESF
BERERFHERARZENS ERBECEM
BRIk EETCESHM - EET T
PORERT BRTESSHARRKLES
EBOMERERIMEE  HET2ERREERAR
AR RS Fa o

MR2021F12 A3 BEEEARBEE ATRE A 5
HH - FMEEZZE®AMIAgH®  RZE
R FWEEZZESRIFEENITES
WEZEFMmESSFELHEBER -

HZE2021F12 A3 B I FEZRFHNERSHH
BREEABEHHOT

Number of people

FrioN g E AE
(RMB)

(AR®)

Above 1,000,000 1,000,00054 £ 4
600,000 to 1,000,000 600,000 % 1,000,000 1
Below 600,000 600,000 JA T~ 0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, being Mr.
Wu Liejin, who is an executive Director, Mr. Zhao Wei, who is a
non-executive Director and Mr. Wu Xiangneng, Mr. Leung Hon
Man and Mr. Wang Bo, who are independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Liejin,
an executive Director and the Chairman. The primary function of
the Nomination Committee is to (a) review the structure, size and
composition (including the age, gender, race, language, cultural
background, educational background, skills, knowledge, industry
experience, professional experience, length of service and diversity
of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship after consideration of the
Company’s board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”);
(c) assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
have been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. For internal policies, processes and criteria of
nomination, please refer to the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.
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During the year ended 31

members are as follows:

Mr. Wu Liejin

RIS AE
Mr. Wu Xiangneng
RAIRE ST A
Mr. Leung Hon Man
REX S
Mr. Wang Bo
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
F ORSEAE
(PR20215F6 A6 R EZ )
Mr. Liu Heng
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2] Bi4 (R2021F6 ASHIEMT)
Mr. Zhao Wei
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
wOEEE
(PR20215F1 A29R B ZE)
Ms. Gu Lidan
(resigned on 5 January 2021)
BN+ (70202141 ASBEHT)

During the year ended 31

December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held five meetings. Details of the attendance of the

December 2021, the Nomination

HZE2021F12A31BILFEHHE - 2R2E8
AASKGZ - KEHBFBOT !

Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings
during the
tenure of Attendance
Position office rate
HERE
B fir ERA A SRR B =
Executive Director, Chairman and 5/5 100%
President
HITES EREHREH
Independent non-executive Director 5/5 100%
BYIFATESE
Independent non-executive Director 5/5 100%
BYFRTES
Independent non-executive Director 1/1 100%
BYIFNTES
Independent non-executive Director 4/4 100%
BYFEMITES
Non-executive Director 5/5 100%
FEMITES
Non-executive Director 0/0 N/A
FEMITES & A

REZE2021F12831HILFE @ REEESH

Committee reviewed the size, structure and composition of the
Board, made recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and reviewed the
independence and appropriateness of the independent non-
executive Directors.

During the period after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this Corporate Governance Report, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting. During such meeting, the structure, size and
composition of this session of the Board have been reviewed.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee identifies and selects persons who are
qualified to serve as directors, and provides recommendation to
the Board on this matter. If the Board intends to submit a
proposal to appoint a person as a Director at a general meeting,
the reasons for appointing that person shall be stated.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the following
measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) for the
purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy were
adopted:

(A) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be non-
executive Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(B) at least 65% of the members of the Board shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(C) at least 30% of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

(D) at least 75% of the members of the Board shall have more
than seven years of experience in the industry he s
specialised in; and

(E)  at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have China-
related working experience.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee examined the structure, number of members and
composition of the Board and considered the Measurable
Objectives set out above for the purpose of implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy were achieved.

In order to better meet the requirements of the Board Diversity
Policy, new Measurable Objective will be introduced as soon as
practicable that at least one female Director shall be introduced
on or before the date of expiry of the fifth session of the Board,
which is expected to be on 6 June 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RERERE (&)

REBBUR

REZEEVEYEBEFERETEZTNA
T URHAEFTEREER -FEFSHN
BRAEGERBERALRESTNZR  FJ
R EZALTHIES -

EFTESTbBE

REZE2021F12A31BILEE  EHESS
ZIAbBEmME - ERMA T stERZ ([T
STEEE])

(A) ELANEEFEXBARFATESER
BAFATES

By ;

Q ZEPONEZFSKEAEFSTHEM
BEER

D) ZELTSNEFCKEAREFTHITER
FETFEN &S &

(E) ZD50%EFEXRBEHEETEMEHET
[(F3

HZE2021F12A31HILFE @ REERE8CHE
BEEEGMRE  KEABMKEBRITEE L
XHE M ERESEE L EBREMENAFE
BIZEUER -

AERFAEEEZILELBUREN  HRBEA
TERTRRVNEFNAEEZ  BIRER
[EEEeHEB A (FEF2024F6A6H )k~
AISlEEb—RZHES -

221 EEHRE ERPEBREMARRRERBGERLS

61



62
-

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERER®RE (&)

The Nomination Committee was aware that as at the date of this
annual report, the Board was entirely comprised of males and two
among the four senior management of the Company are females.
Having considered the particulars of the Directors, including the
newly appointed non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee was of the view
that the Board has achieved the objective of current Board
Diversity Policy. For the newly appointed non-executive Directors
in 2021, (i) Mr. Li Shen Hua has more than 30 years of
experience in corporate management and operation in the PRC
and obtained a PhD in business administration from the VU
School of Management in Switzerland in November 2017. In light
of the recognition of Guangdong Huaxing Glass Co., Ltd. (BHRZE
3% 38 B% 19 B R A &) under his management as the most
influential industry player in Guangdong Province in September
2015; (ii) Mr. Zhao Wei has over 25 years of experience in the
finance industry and was appointed by Foshan Financial following
re-designation of Ms. Gu Lidan; and (iii) Mr. Ou Weiming has
over 28 years of experience in finance and is responsible for day-
to-day operational management of Foshan Micro Credit, the
Nomination Committee considered that each of Mr. Li, Mr. Zhao
and Mr. Ou demonstrated different corporate management and
finance skills and would be able to assist the Group in its
operation and management after becoming a new Director. For
the re-elected existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wu Xiangneng and Mr. Leung Hon Man, and the
newly elected independent non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Wang Bo, the Nomination Committee was of the view that they
would bring to the Board various knowledge, skills and experience
and contribute to the Board's diversity taking into account their
reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience in the
relevant sectors, professional and educational background, and
potential time commitments. (i) Mr. Wu Xiangneng is experienced
in finance and financial management in the PRC; (ii) Mr. Leung
Hon Man is experienced in company management, accounting
and secretarial matters and possessed relevant qualification and
experience in Hong Kong; and (iii) Mr. Wang Bo is an experienced
PRC lawyer who has acted as legal adviser to a number of PRC
government authorities and reputable organisations.

The Nomination Committee is well aware of the requirements of
gender diversity of the Board under the Listing Rules. It will made
recommendation to the Board on proposed revision of the
Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity Policy as soon as
practicable and at least one female Director will be introduced on
or before the date of expiry of the fifth session of the Board,
which is expected to be on 6 June 2024.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee consists of five members, being
Mr. Zhang Minming and Mr. Li Shen Hua, who are non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wu Liejin, who is an executive Director and Mr. Wu
Xiangneng and Mr. Wang Bo, who are independent non-
executive Directors. The Risk Management Committee is chaired
by Mr. Zhang Minming, a non-executive Director. The primary
duties of the Risk Management Committee include but are not
limited to (i) identifying and managing all of the material risks,
including credit risks, operational risks, liquidity risks, market risks,
legal and compliance risks and reputation risks, that the Company
may encounter in its business operations; (ii) determining
important management strategies and policies with respect to risk
management; (iii) establishing and improving credit evaluation
standards and risk management measures and procedures; and (iv)
coordinating with the relevant commercial banks and financial
institutes relating to risk sharing. The terms of reference of the
Risk Management Committee have been published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk Management
Committee held two meetings. The details of the attendance of
the members are as follows:

Position

Bk

HE2021F12A31BIEFEHRE - ABREEEZ
E2AMAgH KNELREFBOT

Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings

during the
tenure of
office
HERE
EHI R &R E

Mr. Zhang Minming Non-executive Director 2/2
SR AR 5T A& EMITES
Mr. Wu Liejin Executive Director, Chairman and 2/2
President
RINEFTAE HITESE  FRREH
Mr. Li Shen Hua Non-executive Director 2/2
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
FRESLE EMITES
(FR2021F1A29R B ZE)
Mr. Zhang Deben Non-executive Director 0/0
(ceased to act as a member of the
Risk Management Committee on
29 January 2021, and retired on
5 June 2021)
SRIBEARSE A& EHMITESE
(FR202151 A29B T HETRER
EEZEENE - RR2021%F
6 ASHRME)
Mr. Wu Xiangneng Independent non-executive Director 2/2
RARE ST E BYUIENITES
Mr. Wang Bo Independent non-executive Director 171
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
F RS BYIFATESE
(PR20215F6 A6 R EZ )
Mr. Liu Heng Independent non-executive Director 1/1
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2 Ef4E BYERITES
(7202156 ASHRE)
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk Management
Committee earnestly reviewed the Company’s risk management
work plan, urged the Company’s internal audit function to strictly
execute the audit plan, and proposed instructional opinions on the
problems identified in internal audit. In 2021, the Risk
Management Committee fulfilled its duties in compliance with the
professional standards of independence, objectiveness and
fairness, and completed relevant work in a better way.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Strategy Committee consists of five members, being Mr. Wu
Liejin, who is an executive Director, Mr. Zhang Minming, Mr. Zhao
Wei and Mr. Ou Weiming, who are non-executive Directors and
Mr. Wang Bo, who is an independent non-executive Director. The
Strategy Committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Liejin, an executive
Director and the Chairman. The primary duties of the Strategy
Committee include but are not limited to (i) studying and advising
on long-term development strategy; (ii) studying and advising on
material investment plans and capital operation plans subject to
the approval of Board as required by the Articles of Association;
(iii) studying and advising on other material matters that may
impact on company development; (iv) assessing and inspecting the
implementation of the above issues; and (v) handling other
matters as authorised by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Strategy Committee have been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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HZE2021F12 831 B ILFEHMH  BKEES
AR2RgZ - HEHBFBEOT !

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Strategy

Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
members are as follows:

Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings
during the
tenure of Attendance
Position office rate
HERE
B fir EH R EHRRE =
Mr. Wu Liejin Executive Director, Chairman and 2/2 100%
President
RIS AE MITEE  FRFREH
Mr. Zhang Minming Non-executive Director 2/2 100%
SR AR ST A& EHMITESE
Mr. Zhao Wei Non-executive Director 2/2 100%
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
HOEEAE EHMITESE
(FR20215F1A29R B ZE)
Mr. Ou Weiming Non-executive Director 171 100%
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
BRE A ST EHMITESE
(R2021F6 A6 AEEE)
Ms. Gu Lidan Non-executive Director 0/0 N/A
(resigned on 5 January 2021)
Bzt (R202151 ASHEE) FHTES TiE A
Mr. Zhang Deben Non-executive Director 171 100%
(retired on 5 June 2021)
REAREA (R2021F6 ASERME) FRTES
Mr. Luo Zhenging Non-executive Director 0/0 N/A
(appointed on 7 January 2021
and ceased to act as a member of
the Strategy Committee on
29 January 2021)
ERB & EHMITESE NE R
(FR20215F1 A7 EEN
202151 298 NHEF
BEEEGKE)
Mr. Wang Bo Independent non-executive Director 171 100%
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
F OREAE BYUIFNITES
(R2021F6 A6 AEE )
Mr. Liu Heng Independent non-executive Director 171 100%
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2 B4 (R2021F6 ASHRME) BIUFNTES
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Strategy
Committee proactively fulfilled its duties and conducted systematic
study on and adjustment to strategic plan based on the industry
environment and market situation in a prompt manner. In
addition, given the actual conditions of the Company, the
committee put forward reasonable suggestions on adjustments to
the implementation of development strategy. Relevant strategic
suggestions gave rise to satisfactory effects upon implementation
by the management.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021, which give a true and fair view of the affairs of
the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash
flows.

The senior management had provided to the Board such
explanation and information as were necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s
financial statements, which were put to the Board for approval.
The Company provides all members of the Board with annual
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the section headed "Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
practice for carrying out securities transactions by the Directors
and Supervisors. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors
and Supervisors, they have confirmed their compliance with the
relevant standards stipulated in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company or
Director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his office or
employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely to possess
inside information in relation to the securities of the Company).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no incidence of non-
compliance was noted by the Company.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, the Company has
appointed Mr. Zheng Zhenggiang and Mr. Lau Kwok Yin as joint
company secretaries. Mr. Lau Kwok Yin, as an external service
provider, assists Mr. Zheng Zhenggiang, who is the primary
corporate contact person of Mr.
performing his duties as company secretary of the Company. Each
of Mr. Zheng Zhenggiang and Mr. Lau Kwok Yin has confirmed
that he received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Lau at the Company, in

Mr. Zheng Zhengqiang (EBIE3&), aged 44, was appointed as the
joint company secretary of the Company on 13 May 2015. For
details of the biography of Mr. Zheng, please refer to the
section”Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

ERXHRETEETH

AT EERMA TR BIKT &+ A8 EmETTA
EFRTEFRZMRESTR ([EESH]) A
BEEERESETELSR S KREENE
EELEAERERE ESREEER  ERE
E2021F 12 A31 B IEFE M ETIZESTAIRN
& »

KRARIEFITE — D TBERNZESTRINE @R
B (BEXARAEMNEE - LM BRRRNEM
EFNEE  BEURATAARKMER A
BB TIEMERERAFTZLFBEENAE
HEB)ETEARHHEMEIES - HE2021F
12A31BIEFEHE  RARNWENBEME
BEMH-

BEATIRE

BRBRITMNCES ATREFTA EMRAK
BAKE  ARRZRBERLERIEE
EETBEARNNWE  BIEBEE(EAIN
IRAIRERE) BB B EREEBITHRIEARR
AMARAMENEE - FEERARANEE
Bt AN BEPIESRCAE - B IER A RBIHBE L
FAEEEMREE2021F12 A31HILFEHM
BSOS/ NSRBI EEE -

BRIESASC 4 - 445% 0 M2015F5 138 T
BARNRBMEATNE EHEELENBEF
B BLEAFTHNESE EIReRERE
B —ffe

ANNUAL REPORT 2021




Mr. Lau Kwok Yin (ZIEE), aged 36, was appointed as the
joint company secretary of the Company on 30 May 2018. Mr.
Lau is an assistant vice president of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. He has over 12 years of experience
in corporate secretarial services, finance and banking operations.
He holds a bachelor’'s degree in business administration
(accounting and finance) from The University of Hong Kong, and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder, and a
fellow of each of The Chartered Governance Institute and The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board understands that it is the Board’'s responsibility to
evaluate the risks of the Company and implement the Company’s
strategic objectives through established, appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall have the decision on all operation matters and is
committed to establishing and improving the internal control
system. It shall also supervise the implementation of the internal
control system to safeguard the investment of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. The Company has, amongst others,
(i) strengthened the implementation of its accounting policies by
all of the relevant department and has appointed one of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hon Man,
to further enhance the financial and accounting functions of the
Group; and (i) established a specific internal control supervision
team to regularly monitor and perform sample checking on a
monthly basis to make sure proper and
implementation of internal control procedures. The internal control
supervision team will also report its findings and results to the
responsible senior management and the Audit Committee on a
regular basis.

continuous
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In addition, to further enhance the degree of enforcement of the
internal control measures, the Group has strengthened (i) the
internal policy which escalates the level of disciplinary action
against those employees who have failed to strictly observe the
respective internal control measures; and (ii) the double checking
and review arrangements of the respective internal control
measures. Training has also been provided and will continue to be
provided to the Group’s employees to increase their awareness of
the Group’s internal control policies and ensure compliance with
the same.

The Group endeavours to strengthen the risk prevention and
internal control capabilities. The Audit Committee continues to
review and evaluate the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and to report the findings
to the Board. The Board continues to review and evaluate the risk
management and internal control systems at least once a year
covering the previous financial year to ensure that no material
internal control loophole exists. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Audit Committee has reviewed the risk
management and control systems of the Group and considered
them effective and adequate. The risk management and internal
control procedures mentioned above were effectively implemented
by the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has an internal audit function. The primary role of the
internal audit function is to help the Board and the senior
management of the Group to protect the assets, reputation and
sustainability of the Group. The internal audit function provides
independent and objective assurance as to whether the design
and operational effectiveness of the Group’s framework of risk
management, control and governance processes, as designed and
represented by the Company’s management, is adequate. The
internal audit function of the Group is independent of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall
risk management and control framework are reported to the Audit
Committee as appropriate. The internal audit function also reviews
annually the Company’s management’s action plans in relation to
audit findings and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the
mitigating controls before formally closing the issue.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. The Company has formulated and
implemented the Information Disclosure Rules which set out,
among others, the reporting procedures for handling and
dissemination of inside information. The secretary to the Board is
in charge of matters in relation to information disclosure of the
Company, urging the Company to formulate and exercise
information disclosure rules and internal reporting rules for
material information, and procuring the Company and relevant
parties to discharge their duties of information disclosure in
compliance with the laws. The Board acts as the special organ in
charge of information disclosure of the Company while the
secretary to the Board and the personnel of the Board office are
responsible for information disclosure of the Company. The
Company confirms that relevant personnel have complied with the
requirements of Information Disclosure Rules during the vyear
ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, KPMG, for audit and
audit related services amounted to a total of RMB2.81 million.
There were no non-audit related services provided by KPMG
during 2021.

An analysis on the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG for the
provision of annual auditing services is as follows:

Services by the Auditors
B AT R 3t B9 AR 75
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Amount
&8
(RMB)
(ARE)

Annual auditing services: FEBEZRE
2021 interim reviewing service 20214 /R Bi 2 B AR 755 682,500
2021 annual auditing service 2021 FFEE RS 2,130,000
Total et 2,812,500
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held
three general meetings. The details of the attendance of the

Directors are as follows:

Mr. Wu Liejin

R LE
Mr. Zhang Minming
SRENER L A
Mr. Li Shen Hua
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
TRERE
(FR2021%F 1298 B ZE 1)
Mr. Luo Zhenging
(retired on 5 June 2021 and
re-appointed on 13 January 2022)
BIRB R E
(FR2021F6 ASHREKR
2022F1 B 13HEERT)
Mr. Zhao Wei
(appointed on 29 January 2021)
H OEEE
(FR2021%F 1 A29B EE )
Mr. Ou Weiming
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
BR{Z B E A
(R2021F6 A6 R EZT)
Ms. Gu Lidan
(resigned on 5 January 2021)
BEZ £ (7202141 A5 HEBHE)
Mr. Zhang Deben
(retired on 5 June 2021)
SRIEARSE A (R20215F6 ASHEME)
Mr. Wu Xiangneng
RAAEEE
Mr. Leung Hon Man
RIENLE
Mr. Wang Bo
(appointed on 6 June 2021)
T REE
(202156 A6 HERT)
Mr. Liu Heng
(retired on 5 June 2021)
2| B%E (202146 A58 EE)

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

BRRXE

HZE2021F12A31 B ILFEHRE - K288 H
ZRBERAE  BEEHEFBOT

Meetings
attended/
Number of
meetings
during the
tenure of
Position office
HERE
Bk far EHR SRR
Executive Director, Chairman and 3/3
President
MITES - TEREBH
Non-executive Director 3/3
JEHITES
Non-executive Director 2/2
EHITES
Non-executive Director 3/3
EITES
Non-executive Director 2/2
FEHITES
Non-executive Director 0/0
EHITES
Non-executive Director 0/0
EHITES
Non-executive Director 3/3
JEHITES
Independent non-executive Director 3/3
BUIERITES
Independent non-executive Director 3/3
B IEHITES
Independent non-executive Director 0/0
B IEHITES
Independent non-executive Director 3/3
B IENITES
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Attendance
rate

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

N/A
& B
N/A
i@ F
100%
100%
100%
N/A
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Annual General Meeting BEBEXE

The 2020 annual general meeting of the Company was held at AN7AR]2020F E R FEEF K& H2021F6 754
Training Room, 5/F, Building D, Sino-European Service Center, No. B NFEZMIERERBEERE f1LHIEE R L%
2 South of Lingnan Road, Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, — #$E %8 A E R 258 P BL AP O DR S 3 = 88
Guangdong Province, the PRC on 4 June 2021 at 3:00 p.m. (the 77 ([2020FEERFBAKE ) -

“2020 AGM").

At the 2020 AGM, the following resolutions were considered and 2020 FERREFAE £ NI RBERD IR
passed by way of poll by Shareholders and their proxies. The poll HX%&T&#?HS{’&E]\W\TX?R AAHAEEB
results are set out as follows: B RERRERHEHINT

Number of votes and percentage of the

Ordinary Resolutions total voting shares at the 2020 AGM (%)
EHRIE2020E ERFEEXE LHRRE
THERAR B BRI E 53 L (%)
For Against Abstain
BR R#
1. To consider and approve the report of the board of directors of the 1,158,216,353 0 0
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

B LA ZE2020F 12831 BILFEARAEFTERE ©

2. To consider and approve the report of the board of supervisors of the 1,158,216,353 0 0
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —
BHRIEBZE2020612 A31 B ILFEARAIEZ GRS ©

3. To consider and approve the audited financial statements and the report of 1,158,216,353 0 0
the auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —
BERAERZE2020F12 831 B IFFEAR AL B XU BRRE R BRI R
£,

4. To consider and approve the profit distribution plan and the dividend 1,158,216,353 0 0
distribution plan for the year ended 31 December 2020. (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

ERRMESZE202005 2 AN AEFENBEIEAREBRESRAE -

5. To consider and approve the proposal for the budget of the Company for 1,158,216,353 0 0
the year ending 31 December 2021. (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —
BEaMBEARREE2021F12ANBIEFENREE TR -

6.  To consider and approve the reappointment of KPMG as the Company’s 1,158,216,353 0 0
auditor and to authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix its (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —
remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2021.

EE M EBBESHGTMELAARE2021F12A31H EFEAAR
REMIBREARNRNEEFSEFTEME
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Extraordinary General Meetings

An extraordinary general meeting was held on 29 January 2021
(the “1st EGM").

At the 1st EGM, the following resolutions were considered and
passed by way of poll by Shareholders and their proxies. The poll
results are set out as follows:

B B i SR K &

iR R A S ([FE—REEFIRERE ) 12021
F1H29HHE1T -

RE—REFERRAE  BREEXZERERNU
BRETAZZLRBUTRESR - REXRE
RFHIWT

Number of votes and percentage of
total voting Shares at the 1st EGM (%)
ERREE—RERKRREXE L

Ordinary Resolutions

FRRAERGBHET 5 LL(%)
For Against

Abstain
B R# -1

1. To consider and approve the appointment of Mr. Li Shen Hua (Z)%%) as a 1,157,427,681 0 0
non-executive director of the Company for a term commencing on the date (100.000000%) (0.000000%) =
of passing of this resolution until the date of expiry of the fourth session of
the board of directors of the Company.

B AEZEFARERERAAAENTES  EHERAEZRERRE
BREAARENEESZSEHER 2B -

2. To consider and approve the appointment of Mr. Zhao Wei (##{&) as a non-
executive director of the Company for a term commencing on the date of
passing of this resolution until the date of expiry of the fourth session of the
board of directors of the Company.

B MMAERERRAERRATFRATES  EHETRERERAEH
REANRENEESSEHERZ AL

1,157,427,681 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

3. To consider and approve the amendments to the Directors and Supervisors'
Allowance Policy of the Company as described in the circular of the
Company dated 12 January 2021.

BRRIEARDFBEA2021F1 R 12 BB HFTRAET(ES - BEEER
HE) e

1,157,427,681 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) —
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An extraordinary general meeting was held on 4 June 2021 (the BRREREAZ ([EFZREFKREKXRE]) 72021
“2nd EGM"). F6R4B BT

At the 2nd EGM, the following resolutions (save for resolutions R ZXEEFIREAE  REKLHEST iﬁ%lfk
1(d) and 3(d)) were considered and passed by way of poll by &mﬁ_t%u%I[LﬂMTﬁ% %2 (BRORFEZE1(d)
Shareholders and their proxies. The poll results are set out as AN  EERRERETIOT ¢

follows:

Number of votes and percentage of
Ordinary Resolutions total voting Shares at the 2nd EGM (%)
ERREE-RERBRERE L

TiERER ARAERDBEEIE (%)
For Against Abstain
-1 R# -

1. To consider and approve the re-election and the election (where applicable)
of each of the following candidates as a director of the Company (the
“Director(s)”) for a term of three years commencing on 6 June 2021 till the
date of the expiry of the 5th session of the board of Directors, which is
expected to be 5 June 2024 (each of which resolutions set out below shall
be considered and passed as a separate resolution):
BEIMATEER (WER) TR REAZETARRAESE((EE]) @ £
HBE20156 A6 R RAM=F EEFTEEFEENEMZAL B A
202456 ASA (T XX ERAREBERBILRAERERNEB)

(a) To elect and appoint Mr. Wu Liejin (R51/3#) as an executive Director; 1,151,832,041 0 0
@ RBRERZERIELLRATES: (100.000000%) (0.000000%) =
(b)  To elect and appoint Mr. Zhang Minming (3&§{%) as a non-executive  1,151,832,041 0 0

Director; (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

b)) BERZERFALLERINTES:

(c) To elect and appoint Mr. Li Shen Hua (Z%2) as a non-executive 1,151,832,041 0 0
Director; (100.000000%) (0.000000%) —
 BERZEFTRELERFNTES

(d)  To elect and appoint Mr. Luo Zhenging (##&)5) as a non-executive 526,831,172 625,000,869 0
Director; (45.738541%) (54.261459%) —
(d) RBERZEERRBLERFRTES:

(e) To elect and appoint Mr. Zhao Wei (##{£) as a non-executive Director;  1,151,832,041 0 0
) RBRERZEHEBELEAFHGTES: (100.000000%) (0.000000%) =
221 FERE ERIERBENTIRFRI/BERL /5
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Ordinary Resolutions

EEREE

(f) To elect and appoint Mr. Ou Weiming (BUfZRf) as a non-executive
Director;
(f) BREREAREBEALERFRITES

(99 To elect and appoint Mr. Wu Xiangneng (R [@#£) as an independent
non-executive Director;

(90 RERZERAELEERBUNFNTES:

(h)  To elect and appoint Mr. Leung Hon Man (Z%X) as an independent
non-executive Director;

(h RBRERZERENEERBUNFNTES:

(i) To elect and appoint Mr. Wang Bo (£)%) as an independent non-
executive Director;

(i) BEREATRAERBYIFRNITES

2. To consider and approve the re-election and the election (where applicable)
of each of the following candidates as a supervisor of the Company (the
“Supervisor(s)”) for a term of three years commencing on 6 June 2021 till
the date of the expiry of the 5th session of the board of Supervisors, which
is expected to be 5 June 2024 (each of which resolutions set out below shall
be considered and passed as a separate resolution):
BRLMEEERER (WER) THSEEARRNLAIES ([RE]) - £H
B20216H6ERAH=F EXELEESFSEHAER 2B I B R
2024F6 ASH (TXBRERBREBIERBLRBRER LBMA) -
(@  To elect and appoint Mr. Li Qi (%) as a Supervisor;
(@) BERZATHRAERES:

(b To elect and appoint Mr. Liu Shu (&) as a Supervisor;
(b) BERZAIBTERES:

(0  To elect and appoint Mr. Chen Xin (FR#7) as an independent
Supervisor;

© RBERZERNEERBIE

(d) To elect and appoint Mr. Zhong Jian (#£%%) as an independent
Supervisor;

d) BRERZTEBRRERBUE

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

Number of votes and percentage of
total voting Shares at the 2nd EGM (%)

RURAGH = REERRRKE L
FRRERBBYHESL(%)

For Against
BR R #

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

1,151,832,041 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Number of votes and percentage of
total voting Shares at the 2nd EGM (%)
RERIGE-REHREXE L

Ordinary Resolutions

TERAR ARRERBBHE S (%)
For Against Abstain
=48 R# £

3. To consider and approve the allowance proposal for the fifth session of
Directors and the fifth session of Supervisors as described in the circular of
the Company dated 14 May 2021 (each of the following resolutions will be
considered and approved as a separate resolution):

EREAMERARR B A201E5 14BN BHAMAEREESNEREE
SRR (TXBRERZRERERBURZREZRLAER)

(@  Wu Liejin 1,151,832,041 0
@@ R (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(b) Zhang Minming 1,151,832,041 0
(b) KA (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(c) Li Shen Hua 1,151,832,041 0
(O =FE (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(d  Luo Zhenging 526,831,172 625,000,869
d  BRE (45.738541%) (54.261459%)
(&)  Zhao Wei 1,151,832,041 0
() #fR (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
i) Ou Weiming 1,151,832,041 0
i) BX 2 A (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(9) Wu Xiangneng 1,151,832,041 0
(99 Rma (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(h) Leung Hon Man 1,151,832,041 0
(hy REX (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(i) Wang Bo 1,151,832,041 0
(i) 1 (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
) Li Qi 1,151,832,041 0
)} &35 (100.000000%) (0.000000%)
(k) Liu Shu 1,151,832,041 0
k) 2% (100.000000%) (0.000000%)

221 EEHRE ERPEBREMARRRERBGERLS
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Ordinary Resolutions

EEREE

() Chen Xin

O &#H

(m)  Zhong lian
(m) BE

—
>

Liang Yi
RE

—
>

=
g

Huang Yuzhen
() =EW¥

4. To consider and approve the change of registered office of the Company to
Room 4101-4110, Block 1, Join-Share International Financing Center, No. 31
Fuhua Road, Dongping Community, Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

BRERMAERDRFMB RS EZPEEREHLTIEEE LA ER T
BEEXR3IFTREEER ST OIRI01EAI0E

Special Resolution

FHIREE

5, To consider and approve the proposed amendments of the articles of
association of the Company as described in the circular of the Company
dated 14 May 2021.

BZERBERD R B#A202165 8 148 OB KATIERE T AR A A R

Figo

During the period after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this Corporate Governance Report, one extraordinary general were
held on 13 January 2022, where Mr. Luo Zhenging was elected as
a non-executive Director and Ms. Li Wanmin was newly elected as
a Supervisor, each with effect from 13 January 2022.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

Number of votes and percentage of
total voting Shares at the 2nd EGM (%)
RERGEE-RERKREXE L
FRRERGBHET 5 LL(%)
For Against Abstain
R R # £

1,151,832,041 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

1,151,832,041 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) -

1,151,832,041 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

1,151,832,041 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

1,151,832,041 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) -

Number of votes and percentage of
total voting Shares at the 2nd EGM (%)
RERGEE-RERKREXE L
FRRAERGBHET 5 LL(%)
For Against Abstain
BRL R # E$

1,151,832,041 0 0
(100.000000%) (0.000000%) —

M2021F 12 A31 BEEEARPEEATRE A 5
IEEARS  R2022F 1 A13B B AR R X
g BRBERIRBAERIERNITES NIRRT
B+ AFEEE  9E2022F1 B13BBAER -
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company attaches great importance to listening
and accepting reasonable suggestions and opinions from
Shareholders and investors. To promote effective communication,
the Company maintains a website at www.join-share.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at the general meetings
of the Company, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

For details of Shares held by Directors, Supervisors and the
President and details of public float, please refer to the section
headed “Report of the Board of Directors” in this annual report.

CONVENING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

According to Article 65 of the Articles of Association, when an
extraordinary general meeting is requested in writing by
Shareholders who separately or jointly hold more than 10% of the
voting shares of the Company, the Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting as soon as practicable upon receipt
of the foresaid written request. In the event that the Board
cannot or fails to perform its duty to convene a meeting, the
Board of Supervisors shall convene and chair the meeting
promptly; if the Board of Supervisors fails to convene and chair
the meeting, Shareholders who separately or jointly hold more
than 10% of the voting shares of the Company for more than
90 consecutive days may convene and chair the meeting
themselves.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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B R AY Bl

RARRE  BRENEREBREMEIRES
BERERREREETHARENER  RIREEK
BEIEFEE - ARA+HERMEERKAE &
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B AR RIS R (www join-share.com) FI &
EHRHEEBEEREENGNEE VHH
B CEEARFTHAMAMBIE UHARAL
AEER o

R SRAEF

RREBROME LN - RRFERBIERA
SIREFH(BEERENES) REBILA
S
RERAE LIRENAAERZRMRE LWR
AIAREATAETRR  REERERSBE
REBRITRMBRARE B FAETE -

BARNES  BEFRARFENRNDUARARA

THRKRFRE  F2HAFRIEFTERE ] —
#f o

BRBRRRXERIEZEE

RIFABIERESKF  BEBREQ/THEAR
ABITHEINAERRENRN B 2 TR LW
BRAEEEAERAFRERRRAGHK &
FeaWIH A EREREEEEATERT
EROABRERRAE -EFSTEETHE
TETASEZREN EFERENRKEE
MEFER EFETAENEIFEZN &
BATRAUALERREAMBAARAANZ
TR ERODBERAABTTARMESR -
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According to Article 66 of the Articles of Association, when the
Company is to hold a general meeting, Shareholders who
separately or jointly hold more than 3% of the voting shares of
the Company may submit a proposal to the Board in writing 10
days before the date of the general meeting, and the Board shall
notify the other Shareholders within two days of receiving the
proposal and include it for consideration at the general meeting.
The matters stated in the proposal must be within the functions
and powers of the general meeting and it shall have a clear
subject and specific resolutions.

The aforesaid request for convening an extraordinary meeting and
proposal at general meetings shall be delivered to the Company’s
office at Room 4101-4110, Block 1, Join-Share International
Financing Center, No. 31 Fuhua Road, Dongping Community,
Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, the
PRC.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could email their enquiries to zysd@join-
share.com or mail their enquiries in writing to the Company’s
office at Room 4101-4110, Block 1, Join-Share International
Financing Center, No. 31 Fuhua Road, Dongping Community,
Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, the
PRC.

AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In light of the abrogation of the Interim Measures for the Post-
holding Qualifications of Directors, Supervisors, and Senior
Management of Financing Guarantee Companies* (@& M &R
NAES  HEF aREBABSTRERERETINE)) and other
regulations, as well as in accordance with the provisions under the
relevant laws, the Articles of Association was amended and
approved by the Shareholders at the 2nd EGM. For details, please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 14 May 2021.
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ABOUT THIS ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 1.

GOVERNANCE REPORT

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance

Report (hereinafter referred to as the “ESG Report”)

published by the Group. This ESG Report outlines the
principles and sustainability philosophy and practices upheld

by the Group in fulfilling its corporate social responsibility

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

1.1 Reporting Standards 1.1 HREFEE
This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and the
contents of this ESG Report have complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions and the requirements
of the four reporting principles (materiality,
guantitative, balance and consistency) of the Guide.

An index of the Guide prepared in accordance with & o
the contents of this ESG Report is inserted in the last
chapter of this ESG Report for readers’ easy reference.

Materiality This ESG Report has disclosed the stakeholders communication and the identification of
material issues.

BE1 RESGHREFRETHROERNBRARBRIENZENEEH -

Quantitative The statistical criteria, methods, assumptions and/or calculation tools used in this ESG
Report for reporting emissions/energy consumption (where applicable), as well as the
sources of conversion factors, are described in the explanatory notes of this ESG Report.

g1t AESGHRERHBERBNE RFER (WMER) TANBNRIIZE - 7% BER
FAETE  URBREAZRNHKR  HERSESZPETHHA -

Balance This ESG Report presents the Company’s performance during the Year in an unbiased
manner and avoids the selection, omission or formats of presentation that might
improperly affect the decisions or judgments of the readers of this ESG Report.

F i RESGHRE MR IAEMERARAARFENRER  #RARSNMAEHTEEERKL
HETEER BRI EZHRER -

Consistency The statistical methodologies applied to the data disclosed in this ESG Report shall be
consistent. If there are any changes, a clear explanation will be made.

— % RESGHRE R BRBIBEAERNRATEIRT B - MARE - BRREDFEHPA -
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1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Reporting Scope

This ESG Report mainly focuses on the overall
performance of the Group’s core business in respect
of practicing sustainable development and fulfilling
corporate social responsibility for the Year. Unless
otherwise specified, the environmental performance
indicators of this ESG Report cover the performance of
the Company’s head office in Foshan.

Preparation of the Report

Through communications with the stakeholders, the
Company gained a better understanding of the
Group’s current situation of environmental and social
aspects. Based on the results of communications with
the stakeholders and the operating performance of the
Group, this ESG Report summarises the Group's
efforts on environmental and social aspects.

Approval for the Report

This ESG Report was approved by the management
on 25 March 2022 upon confirmation by the
management.

Feedback

For further details about the Group’s corporate
governance, please refer to the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report
and the official website of the Company at
(www.join-share.com). Your comments on this ESG
Report are welcome and appreciated. If you have any
enquiries or suggestions, please feel free to contact
the Company at (zysd@join-share.com).

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Group adheres to the concept of “Green” throughout
its business operations. As a result, the Group is determined
to keep off those enterprises which adopt the extensive
economic growth pattern featuring great investment, high
energy consumption and pollution, and low efficiency, and
invest in environmental-friendly high-tech businesses. Under
its innovative business pattern that integrates investments
with loans, it will direct the “Financial Liquidity” (& @/&E7K)
to strategic emerging industries, achieving a win-win
situation of efficiency growth and environmental protection.
While continuing to make progress in a stable manner, the
Group will also continue to optimise its risk prevention and
control system, and strive to achieve quality, effective and
sustainable development, so as to make due contribution to
the development of SMEs, effectively fulfill its social
responsibilities, and persist in being a systematic provider of
investment and financing services with the highest
systematic value for SMEs.

2.1 Board Statement

The Group has established an environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) management structure to
strengthen our ESG management efforts. The Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing ESG issues,
which includes steering the corporate in grasping
opportunities and coping with risks arising from
sustainable development. The Board regularly reviews
and oversees ESG policies and strategies, including
approving and determining ESG-related goals,
reviewing progress towards goals, evaluating,
prioritising and managing material ESG issues. The
Company has set directional goals related to the
environment and will review progress towards the
Group's ESG-related goals in the future to oversee and
improve our sustainability.

o] #7486 3% FR SR BR

AEEBREIFE NESEFESR
EBER HRSERA SERE 25
F o BERa R EEER T ANDEE
BRGR AREXB L BENMER
A RREEE - MARIMKRERS
MEBRRA - 52 BE K] 5|17 B 1
MEEX  BRYRERNRERNER
AEBGBRERFRPIE - THELER
iR s  BERARAEE  A¥&E
AFENER  RTIVHEERERMHEE
BER  VEBTHERET  BRHEA
i REE S RGN E R E R
B ER -

21 EEEEH

ANEBDETESGEE HEarE
JA (T TBEIESG]) BIAZEH - bAinsg
KRIIHESGER I -E=2EREA
FEREESGIEEEME T -
BETEARMEGAIFERESK
MEBFER  ZEE2T g i
N ESBESG T ST AR AS - BRIt
MERESGHEB B ZRT - 0 B
IZEE T BRI RERE
ESGEBEHEIERE - B2
FIVIERBEMREN A MEEEZE K
R AQBSIRIEAEEESGH
e IRETEERS  UEE KT
EAHEERENTE-
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2.2 Environmental, Social and Governance 22 RIE -HERELESE

Committee

In order to fully integrate sustainable development ABTHRUREER2EBAIANE
into the Group’s overall development strategy and EREBEREFR  BERETE
actively fulfill its corporate social responsibility, the ¥teif AEBEREVERE
Group has established a governance structure to %Mﬂ]ﬂ?ﬁESGE@ =g HESG
strengthen ESG management. The Board assumes full FHEIEEREAEZHLET BT
responsibility for ESG strategy and reporting, ESGHHR E & - il EFESGHEE K 7
supervises ESG-related matters, and formulates EHEEEE o R AR EKILESGE B
ESG-related policy and strategy. The Company has T HLEECHEFENENTE
established the ESG Committee, which, under the T HEEEBFAEEHLRS N &
leadership of the secretary to the Board, cooperates EXASEMNAFERRKENH
with department heads to implement the Group’s 1 WEHRESSER  AIFE
sustainability strategies and reports regularly to the RARNEELESGHEMES -

Board so that the Group can continue to improve its
ESG performance.

Role Responsibilities

At B 5 40

Board e Determine and approve the policies, strategies, plans, goals and
annual work for the ESG management of the Group

Exg o HMAMBHAKEESGEREFH - HK  RE BEERFEIHE

o Rewew and oversee ESG performance and progress towards goals
on a regular basis

o EHRA MEBESGRALBRENEE

ESG Committee e |dentify, assess, review and manage material ESG issues
ESGZE® o  FHA-FE BREEBEEEANESGEER

e Coordinate and facilitate the implementation of the ESG policies
across various departments, and monitor the ESG-related work of
all functional departments

o WBFARMEZIFINITSIBESGHEER - RS HAEIBPIAESGIAR
TS

e Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s ESG policy and practices,
and ensuring that the Group complies with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements

s BERNRERASEMNESGHRERER  MRAZBEREERE
BRETEK

Representatives from each department e Comply with all ESG-related policies and systems

and subsidiary
HEEPFIRME R R & o EBFFRIBESGHBER KHIE

e Carry out specific ESG work and regularly collect and collate
relevant information and data

c ABRRRERABESGI{F EHKE  BEMABEEMBIE
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group maintains close communication with its
stakeholders through various communication channels
and listen to their opinions and suggestions extensively
so that it can keep abreast of their opinions and
expectations for the Group. Meanwhile, the Group
continues to improve its sustainable development
strategies and plans based on the opinions of its
stakeholders, so as to jointly realise its sustainable
development plans and create a future with the

23 HipHsLH

AEBRBLEEREBEFNE
REFZYAR - BZEBET
BREES  URETREAMAHAR
SENERMHE Wik HE M EE
BENERBENEAEEN AR
BERRELAE KREREA
?iité’ﬁ?é?riﬂ EIJLT SR EIE

CBRERERMEERIFHR
;g .

coexistence of sustainable economic growth,
environmental friendliness and social development.

Major stakeholders Methods of engagement

FERGBE FEZHEFN
Customers e Visits by customer relationship managers
zF o EPHBREKERS
e Daily operation/communication
e HEZLE /R
e Online service platform
e WERBFAE
e  Customer hotlines
o FEEF
e Email
o HFE
Employees e Employee opinion survey
BT e BIERAB

e Performance appraisal and discussions
o TERBAZKAEH

e Face-to-face interviews

. EHEY

e Business briefings

o  XTERR
e Volunteer activities
o ETIEH

e  Advisory committee/panel discussions

° "FT}DJlJuH A = El/g%u—}nfﬂl J\Z\H

o Semlnars/workshops/lectures

o WFE® ITIEH HERE

e  Publication (such as staff communication)
e TIM(WMEIB®A)

e  Staff communication meetings

e BIEBKRE

221 EEHE BERPEREMNAEFRREROBARAS
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Major stakeholders

TERGBE

Investors

REE

Business partner

EBRH

Regulatory authorities

EEHE

Media
3

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

Methods of engagement

FEZ2EFX

Results announcement
ES WN il

Senior management meetings
BREBAEGE
Interviews

HEEA

Reports

HE

Meetings

S

Visits

wah

Lectures

B

Meetings

g

Written responses to public inquiries
HARFA A S E [ E
Compliance reports

ERmE

Press conferences
MEEGE

Press releases

HER

Interviews with senior management
BREBRAESM

Results announcement
EER

Media gatherings

BEEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021




Major stakeholders

FERHE

Industrial peers

BES

Vendors

g7

Communities/Non-governmental
organisations

R E A

Methods of engagement

FEZ2EFX

Strategic cooperation projects
REEIESEIAR

The Group's notices
SERE

‘Town hall" meetings
RN

Vendors management programs
BEhERRERF

Meetings

g3

Vendors evaluation systems
B 77 Al il =

Site inspections

iR

Volunteer activities

BELEY

Donation

B

Community investment plans
HEEEE

Community activities
R & &
Seminars/lectures/workshops
Mg HEESTIEY
Meetings

P
=i
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2.4 Material Issues 24 EEMEE
During the Year, the ESG Committee and the AEE ESGREEGNEBERR
management confirmed that the results of the EZNERNERDABERARAESE
materiality matrix continued to apply as there were no ErER  BRFEEEBMLE
significant changes in the business and operating BRRAEEEERELCRLEFEDN
environment during the Year and the results of the FENHTHERDEEERHED
materiality assessment for the prior year still HIZE o BRIk 2N REBETEIRE
responded to the expectations of stakeholders. In EEMEERNNER  BEABR
addition, the Group will manage related risks, explore % ZIRARRE - AR o
related opportunities, and expand business
opportunities based on the results of identified
material issues.
Governance Environmental Social
&g RiE #HE
1. Responsibility Governance 4. Energy Management 10. Employee Health and Safety
BEEER BeRE R BIREELZS
2. Compliant Operations 5. Water Resource Management 11. Employee Remuneration and
BRKE IKERE TR Benefits
3. Risk Management 6. Climate Change 8 T % Bl 248 51
[ b i 7R RixE1t 12. Employee Training and

HEmE IR
8. Waste Management

BEEYER

mEREEIE

7. Emissions Management

9. Greenhouse Gas Management

Development
BIElEER

13. Prohibition of Child and Forced
Labour
REETREHST

14. Employment Management
BEER

15. Supply Chain Management
HEEER

16. Customer Satisfaction
BEFEmEE

17. Protecting Customer Privacy
BRI RE

18. Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights

HBEERE

19. Product and Service Quality
EmkRBEE

20. Investor Relations
REEBIF

21. Information Security
EREER

22. Integrity Operation
BRIBUZ R

23. Supporting Social Welfare
XEHENE

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.  ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANC

IRIE 4t

COMPLIANT OPERATIONS

In strict compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
such as the Company Law of the PRC ({FhZE A R K FE A
A]7&)), Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China ({#
EAREFMBERAM)), the Interim Measures for the
Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies ({g& 1%
BERABEIEETIE)) as well as Regulation on the
Supervision and Administration of Financing Guarantee
Companies (BEEERARIEBEEEIEN)), the Group has
formulated a series of measures to ensure the compliant
operation of the Group.

3.1

Risk Management

To further standardise and strengthen the Group’s risk
management, the Group strictly complies with relevant
national laws and regulations and industry regulatory
requirements. It implements a comprehensive risk
management system based on “Double responsibilities,
Double reviews, One meeting” and establishes various
risk control models suitable for the Company’s business
features on the “ldentifiable, Measurable, Controllable,
Disposable” basis for the implementation of “Three-All
Risk Management” mechanism. The Group has
formulated business guidelines and industry risk
classification guidance from time to time for promoting
healthy business development and risk control. In
addition to conducting risk assessments and adopting
stricter and higher standards, it has strengthened
specific risk regulations over or conducted specific
risk investigations into higher-risk industries, industries
that may involve money laundering, companies
vulnerable to macroeconomic impacts, or projects
where major counter-guarantee measures are in
abnormal conditions. In order to assess and improve the
existing risk management system in a timely manner,
it has also prepared a Risk Management Report. To
conduct the full coverage of management of the
financial guarantee business, the Group has formulated
the “Operation Manual on Financing Guarantee
Business” ({ B & EIREBRIEFM)), the “Measures
for Project Risk Classification” (8 E R 5 8% 12
#5%)), the “Guidelines for Project Supervision”({I&
B EEE IR 1E4E5])), the “Operating Rules of Project
Assessment Committee” ({78 B f7 28 & B G EAHA)),
the “Employee Expense Reimbursement Policy”({& T
F L MEEER)), the “Measures for Reputation Risk
Management” (& & & & & 12 ##%)), the “Internal
Audit System and Management Measures”({ A EFE T
FIZEE L)), the “Internal Audit Management
System”({ A BEF ST EIRHIE)) and the “Rules for
Managing Property and Materials” ({81 E ¥ & & ¥ 4H
A11)), thereby reducing risks of money laundering and
default.

e RERRE (B

BREE

AEEBEBEB(TFEARKXME QA
) (REARAMBRZES) (BE

HEERARE

RAFEEEREA)EEBEREM

BEITIE)ARC(RE

WHET —RINEBARBERAEENE
MEE -

3.1

B b 1

FSE—Z B IN R AR B A R
B R B B AGE T BIR AR A
BERRITREEENR BTN
[#£5  2% . —|RERNEE
R ERER  ZRATHR A
AEAES - AREINRA
BIAEA AREHB NS ERR
ZHIR - BT =2 |88 - AL
[ 1 5E B TE A 1R 5| 7T E R
DRIEEER  EEREXHRE
TREERZES - RZMHREER
T% AP RAENTE HX
REEEZ BN RRHENRER
e B N IEHIR LR TR B TR
A BERERBMESNER
A 3 B ANAE T4 E B B E A
BEBHERRES - BT @GN
TERANRAREEER  Hig
HE(RBRERRE) - ARETIE
(REEREHRETM CAB
R BEEERWE) (RREER
153 - (HEBEFBRLZ B ERFEM
) (BEIRXHMBEHE) (BE
[R\Be B I A ~ KN BEDEE AT Il /E &
gEmE)  (ABEEEBE)
TCHEMEERMADE - HRE
EREGRENZEZEIE - KM
BRAEEEMENSZ R -

221 EEHE BERPEREMNAEFRREROBARAS

389
-



90
-

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE e hERRE (B

Three-All Risk Management
=2ER

All aspects

including the management of major
risks, such as credit risk, operational
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, legal
risk, reputation risk, etc.

2EHY

BRERRRERE BIERRE
2 misRRERE  RBERRE
B RRRRERE  BEEARER

FTXZ2RABERE -

All staff

double due diligence by the
project manager and risk control
manager working in parallel
under the mechanism of “Specific
responsibilities for specific officers”;
independent review of financial and
legal departments, scientific and
democratic decision-making by t
h e Risk Management Committee,
contracts concluded and witnessed
by two persons, post-transaction
supervision and auditing supervision
in the management system.

281

[ AT | IR B &S EE LR
FIEBAS MK AEMER
XEUNBLTE MBRIRE
MIEEFEZREE EA2HEAR
BHORE RENEREEMEST

- ER
BEEF-

All processes
including risk
assessment,

identification, risk
risk monitoring,
risk control, risk pricing, risk
diversification, risk management
and risk compensation during
business operation to achieve the
risk management objective of “Full
Coverage Without Omission”.

2R
BREBEZLBRETORRBEA
[ B RF A - LB BEOR) - LR AE S
[\ fe E (B - R ER oy B - B ER R
RiE#ES BRI2EBE T
BRINEREEBR -

The Group also regularly organises professional team
building activities for its risk control officers to
improve the comprehensive level of the risk control
team by means of system promotion, salon sharing,
product training and skill learning.
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3.2 Upholding Anti-corruption and Integrity

With integrity operation as the cornerstone of its
business, the Group strictly complies with related laws
and regulations, including the Law of the PRC on
Anti-Money Laundering ({¥ # A R £ MBI = 5 85)),
the Guidelines for Risk Assessment of Money
Laundering and Terrorist Financing and for Client
Classification Management in Financial Institutions
KerEBLENMRHRERRIGELREFSBER
#£31)), and the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter
Terrorist Financing Ordinance ({3T%E#1EH)), the
Drug Trafficking (Recovery Of Proceeds) Ordinance
(BRE (BFIEZE) 1£61)) and the Organized and
Serious Crimes Ordinance ({7 #8% & B &= SR 1T1401))
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“HKSAR") and the United Nations (Anti-Terrorism
Measures) Ordinance ((Et& B (REMEZREIE) 1K
B1)). To this end, the Group has adopted a series of
measures to continuously strengthen the
implementation of anti-corruption efforts. It has
formulated the “Anti-Money Laundering Management
Measures" (R EEE BRI EA)) and the
“Anti-Corruption Management Measures” ({ X SEHEE
IB#E)) to further prevent the occurrence of fraud
and strengthen governance and internal controls. The
system specifies the prevention and control,
whistle-blowing, investigation and reporting, guidance
and supervision of anti-fraud work, as well as the
handling and reporting of fraud cases and anti-fraud
work discipline, including, among other things,
whistleblowing channels and protection of
whistle-blowers, to ensure that the Group is operated
in a proper and orderly manner. In order to promote
an atmosphere of integrity in the Group, the Group
issued a “Training Circular on Anti-Corruption and
Integrity Promotion” during the Year to provide
directors and employees with training on corruption
and integrity knowledge, covering the prevention and
control of corruption and the hazards of corruption
and internal governance.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
violation of laws and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, or any
situation that had a significant impact on the Group.

3.2

R RIBER

AEBMBREREERLEZAR
BRR BT (R EARKME RTE
E) K EBEBTENZMmEE R
BB EREFPOBERESD) &
BRERTERR ([FERFHITHE])
B GTBEE G - CRE GEFTF
@) &P (BB NRBREFETHR
IS B (RRMEERER) 5
PERBERER - Bt A%
BERENT — RIIEHE G - EINGR
FERBRIE - EHE(REE
EEMREIF(RFEERERIE)
DA — I8 SEBRAT R 3 A& - Al
SEROBIEAMABIEH o X B EAAMET
REEEE T VYRR TRT) ANFR I - 823
HEMBE  HENEE U KRFE
BRI M) BR IR R A e [ SR R Y
THELERSZHBEAT  HhEeET
[BEREMBRFEORE - KM
BREBZENSHTHEHRERF -
REHAEEREFE  AFE -
AEETET(ERRESERER
BIFFEM)  REEMBE THETT
E‘i%TEJ%?%%Dé&UDEJ\I NERED
AR RBREEEANIARE

AEER  NREBEWREFREME
RELERAE - BIR - BGEFOARER
BAEVERMARD - AR EEREX
ERFENBN
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3.3

Protection of Information Security

The Group places great importance on the protection
of personal data to safeguard business and customer
privacy. It strictly complies with related laws and
regulations, including Regulations of the People’s
Republic of China for Safety Protection of Computer
Information Systems ({F#FE ARZLFMBEFHKEER
L EREMND), the Measures for Security
Protection Administration of the International
Networking of Computer Information Networks ({z+&
HEEHGBEBREEAZ2REBTENE)), the
Provisions on the Technical Measures for the
Protection of the Security of the Internet ((BEt#E %
2 RERMEEIET)), the Requirements on the
Internet Interactive Service Security Protection ({ & B
WPTERARB T2 HRESIEEK)), and the Basic
Procedures and Requirements on the Internet Service
Security Assessment ((EEAERB L2 EEREF R
EsK)), as well as the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance ({fAIAE X (FLEE) 1561)) of the HKSAR. To
safeguard the security of information assets, as well as
the continuous and stable operation of information
systems and services, the Group has formulated the
“Information Security Management Rules” ({{Z BfR%
EIEHE)), the"Manual on Employee Information
Security” (BT B & Z2FM)), the “Measures for
Server Room and Network Security” ((H#FE & 4845 %
2EEIE)) and the “Implementation Rules for
Backup and Recovery Management” (Level 3) ({51
HIREEIREMAMA) (=) to reduce the risk of
data leakage and protect information security.

In order to make its employees fully understand the
importance of information security in the financial
industry, the Group provides relevant training for
employees to clarify their knowledge and
responsibilities for information security related to their
positions. It requires employees to immediately lock
the computer screen or log out of the information
system page they currently logged in to prevent
information from being stolen or unintentionally
damaged when they leave the computer. Employees
must ensure that the Company’s unified security
software has been installed on the computers they
use, while keeping an eye on whether virus signatures
are up-to-date. The Group’s network administrators
should review the firewall access control policy every
three months to optimise overdue and over-privileged
strategies.

3.3 REEER:2

AEEETEERREEABER AR
BEBREPMLE - HFIBRRKET
(PEARKEMBIGHEBERRS
REREGD)  GHERESBK
SRBETE2RETERL) (B
BREZ2RERMERRE) (B
BERXEARBLZEREETEER
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The Group configures strict settings to restrict access
to customer data, the server room and data service
center, and any employee who requires authorised
access to perform his/her job tasks must seek approval
from the relevant competent officer. Confidential files
must be encrypted before outbound transmission, and
file passwords and outgoing documents must be sent
separately.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any
material incident relating to intrusion into customer
privacy or loss of customer data.

Satisfying Customer Demands

The Group values its customers’ opinions and
suggestions as the cornerstone of its continuous
improvement. It gains trust of its customer base by
providing considerate customer services, which
cultivates a clear, transparent and positive relationship
with its customers. Its multiple customer
communication channels, including online messages,
hotlines and emails, are designed to collect and
respond to customers’ opinions and suggestions in a
timely manner, so that the issues facing its customers
will be effectively resolved. It also introduces financial
related knowledge and ideas to the public through
forums and lectures to raise public awareness of
preventing financial risks. During the Year, the Group
did not receive complaints from customers, and
customer recognition was 100%.

3.4
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3.5 “rEMsAEMRE

3.5 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to the
protection of intellectual property rights. In strict
compliance with the laws and regulations, such as the
Advertisement Law of the PRC ({(Fh#E AR HEMBEE
35)), Patent Law of the PRC ({FEEAREMBEEF
7%)), Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law
of the PRC ((FREAREMBEFEEMKEAAI)), and
Trademark Law of the PRC ((FREARILMEEFIZ
&), as well as the Patents Ordinance ((ZEFI{&H1))
and Copyright Ordinance (h#E{4f1)) of the HKSAR,
it adheres to the competitive concept of “Competition
in the Sun (¥ TRIFEM)” and strives to deliver true
and accurate information to the public through
various legal channels.

The Group has registered its trademarks and names to
protect its reputation against infringement, and its
software systems are developed by independent teams
for internal use in full compliance with local laws and
regulations. The Group purchases genuine hardware
through long-term cooperation with regular vendors,
which ensures that its employees’ computer systems
are installed with safe genuine computer software,
office software and database system of the Company,
and prohibits any illegal use of third-party intellectual

property.
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3.6 Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to managing its supply chain
in a responsible manner and regulating the selection,
evaluation and monitoring procedures of its vendors in
a fair, open and equitable manner. The Group values
the mutually beneficial and long-term cooperative
relations established with its vendors. Before selecting
vendors, it would conduct market research, quality
comparison, and double procurement to ensure
fairness and impartiality. In selecting vendors, apart
from product or service quality, goodwill, cost and
other factors, it would also take into account of
vendors’ ethical standards in the environmental and
social aspects, as well as environmental standards and
labour conditions. It would give priority to those
vendors who meet the ethical standards and have
commitments to corporate social responsibility. It also
reviews its vendors’ code of conduct regularly and
strive to build strong business relationships with
high-quality vendors’ who are committed to
maintaining the ethical standards. It also promotes
green purchasing, such as purchasing products and
services that have a low impact on the environment.

During the Year, the Group’s procurement was mainly
computers, stationery, office equipment, food and
beverage, etc., with a total of 25 vendors’ from
Guangdong province.

|
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EMPLOYEE CARE

The Group is well aware that employees are an important
cornerstone of its business success. It is committed to
protecting the legal rights and interests of its employees,
enhancing training to build an excellent team, and
protecting the health and safety of employees to create a
working environment of equality, diversity, care and mutual
growth for employees. The Group protects the rights and
interests of its employees in strict compliance with relevant
laws and regulations such as the Labour Law ({4 &)%),
the Labour Contract Law ({3 8)& [F’%)), the Law on the
Protection of Minors ({RAKF AREE)) and the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Child Labour ({Z|H{FHZETRTE)) of
the PRC. It formulated the “Measures on Recruitment and
Employment ((FREEEREE & 1B 9155))", the ”Administrative
Measures for Staff Attendance (B TZHEEH L))", t
“Remuneration Management Measures ({¥ @H”qfiﬁ#/i%
the “Join-Share Remuneration Standards ({22 5% iz % B 1Z
AEEK))” and the “Detailed Operation Rules for Staff
Promotion and Management ((E TEHEEZEMA)",
which describe the relevant policies, standards, procedures,
working hours, remuneration, welfare benefits and training
programs.

During the recruitment process and the employees’
enrollment, the Group strictly verifies the information
presented on the identity card such as the applicant’s age,
so as to resolutely refuse to hire child labour. The Group
will sign a labour contract with the new employee on the
date of enrollment to clarify the labour relations as well as
the rights and responsibilities of both parties for the
purpose of preventing forced labour. During the Year, the
Group did not discover any cases of employing child labour
or forced labour.
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4.1

Promoting Talent Development

The Group has always attached great importance to
the development of a talent team and continues to
invest in training resources. It believes that
outstanding talents are the driving force for the
sustainable development of the enterprise and the key
to building the core competitiveness of the enterprise.
It is committed to providing employees with sufficient
training resources to achieve the common growth and
development of employees and the Group. It makes
estimates and develops recruitment plans based on its
business requirements and analysis. The selection and
recruitment will be carried out in accordance with an
equal and unified criteria through open and
transparent channels. The Group is dedicated to
creating a harmonious and inclusive workplace by
providing equal opportunities and prohibiting
discrimination or harassment of any person on the
basis of gender, age, nationality, race, color, etc. For
the selection of candidates for any position, it focuses
on academic background, professional qualifications,
working experience and related job performance of
the candidates, and conducts a comprehensive
assessment of candidates through various process,
including resume screening, first interview, assessment
and second interview to select the candidates that
best suit our positions.

The Group and its employees are equally entitled to
terminate the employment relationship. If an employee
violates work discipline, the Group will carefully review
the situation and consider dismissal only if there is a
valid reason for doing so. At the same time,
employees may voluntarily terminate their labour
contracts. Employees who voluntarily leave the
Company are required to complete the work handover
and resignation procedures.

4.1
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The headcounts of the Group for the Year are as REE AEEHEIHHEOT :
follows:
Indicator 2021
BiE 202155
Total number of employees 309
BT 4%
Number of employees by gender
RHEREISHETI AR
Female 132
2z
Male 177
St

Number of employees by employment type
RERENIISHET A

Full-time junior staff 226
ZRUBET
Full-time middle management 78
ERTPREEE
Full-time senior management 5
rRERERRE

Number of employees by age groups
RERISHEIAR

Below 30 years old 64
30T
30-50 years old 227
30-50%%
Above 50 years old 18
505% A &£

Number of employees by geographical region
RpEISHETAE

Employees in Eastern China 24
ERRIGES
Employees in Southern China 285
B @i E 8
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4.2 Employee Benefits

In order to attract and retain outstanding talents, the
Group upholds the principles of fairness, justice,
openness and transparency in remuneration
management. The Group endeavors to provide its
employees with market-competitive remuneration and
all-round welfare packages. The Group formulates and
implements the “Remuneration Standards of
Join-Share ({FF R EXZFH B Z XK ))", stating that
employees’ remuneration package shall follow the
strategies of internal fairness and controllability after
taking into account the level of peers and market
competition, which constitutes a holistic remuneration
incentive system comprising fixed salary, performance
commission, performance bonus, and welfare subsidy.

In addition to paid annual leave, statutory paid sick
leave, personal leave and maternity leave provided
clearly by the Group, employees also enjoy marriage
leave, paternity leave, personal leave and bereavement
leave. In terms of allowances, in addition to pension
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment
injury insurance, medical insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund,
employees are also entitled to a variety of allowances
for meals and missed meals, refreshing drink
allowances, accidental injury insurance and festival
grants. The Group also offers a wide range of
corporate activities, such as staff meetings, birthday
parties, traditional festival celebration, Lantern Festival,
Women's Day, etc., to get together and have a better
relationship with each other.

In November 2021, Guangdong Join-Share moved to a
new workplace, where air quality fully meets the
standards. However, in order to take care of the
needs of pregnant female employees, the Company
took special care measures, including allowing
pregnant female employees to apply to work from
home and work online in the early stage; setting up a
sunroom in the Company’s sky garden as a temporary
office for pregnant female employees. In addition, the
labour union established a “pregnant mother's home”
group to care for pregnant female employees and
follow up on the situation, reflecting the Company’s
humanistic care.

4.2
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In order to enrich the cultural life of employees and
enhance the cohesion of employees, Guangdong
Join-Share held a “Word Game on Lantern Festival”
event at the headquarters on 26 February 2021,
which made the employees feel the warmth of
“home"” and the happiness of the festival. Employees
started to guess the riddle while tasting the
dumplings. With beautiful decoration of colorful
balloons and abundant prizes, the event was filled
with festive atmosphere. The event was both
knowledgeable and entertaining, with employees
racing to guess the riddles.

8 March 2021 marked the 111st International
Women's Day. Guangdong Join-Share sends holiday
gifts and blessings to female employees on such a
special day every year, so that they can feel a warmly
home-like atmosphere. In order to create a healthy,
happy and positive corporate culture, its
Administration Department organised a themed
celebration for all female employees. All female
employees gathered together to enjoy a delicious
afternoon tea followed by a “Talent Show — Creative
Fruit Platter(F ZRR—AIB/KEBHE)" competition.
With delicious afternoon tea, thoughtful greetings and
interesting competition, female employees were
immersed in a happy and joyful festive atmosphere.
The Group also prepared holiday benefits such as
grain and oil cards and buffet coupons for all female
employees.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BRAAKEN2021F2A268 5
BEE T X LEE  EaRETEE
B RPN T (BT E B
EB) - BB TR EINR ] AUREA
EAMRE - ET —2RESE
—EFARBE® TEERKEKEE
HRICHEBHBEDINES - TR
TEHHMRS - JEERLA MM
X EIREENE - B TR B RE# -

20213 A8BRE I EARBK =N
B ERPRARESTFHSHE
EE—EBRKNBTERERLE
TR EEHHBYRIE  BARRK
ZARARERKRE - BEERER
% BmE EMRARESE - 1T
BERFAZ2RLZETHR T
BEVEH AXBE—%¥ TEF
AERTTZR%E BERIAZ2ER
— BIEKEHEILE - EKRAT
FHBOHRE BOMEE -
ZETIMILEERSE - =EHEH
FEF - AEEINNAMELETE
HBTEHE  BBESFZEAREN -




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANC

3

il
Sf
P

e RERRE (B

In order to celebrate the 100th anniversary of the
founding of the Communist Party of China, to further
activate the party building culture for the Non-Public
Sectors of the Economy, and to inspire all the party
members and cadres to love the country and the
party, cherish posts and devote wholeheartedly to
work, the non-public party committee of Foshan City
held a poetry recitation and red song singing activity
of “Following the Party forever”, in which the chorus
of “Never forget why you started (‘R #]/L00)"
performed by Join-share CCP Committee was
announced to won the second prize after the
evaluation.
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Quarterly birthday party has always been a corporate
cultural activity of Guangdong Join-Share. Every warm
birthday party represents the recognition of the
long-time hard work of every employee and the
Company’s deep blessings and wishes to employees,
which will inspire employees to continuously uphold
the excellent style of diligence and pragmatism and
striving for excellence and devote themselves to
various tasks with full enthusiasm.

Guangdong Join-Share held unique birthday parties for
employees, including fun and exciting games and a
variety of carefully packaged gifts, so that the birthday
stars could enjoy a pleasant and memorable day.
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4.3 Occupational Health and Safety 43 BERRRZ
To safeqguard the health of its employees, the Group is RTEETINRE AEEBBNR
committed to providing them with a healthy and safe BTRERELEZHIIERE &
workplace in strict in compliance with the Law of PRC BEF(REARLFBEBEZERD
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases AR (TESMBEGEEER
(R E AR KRB ZERPIEE)), the Provisions on E) (T RBIGH) R E BRI
the Supervision and Administration of Occupational TR ERZ 2 REERDIDZE
Health at Work Sites (TYESS T ER £ BIBRE)), HEEREER -

the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances ({ T
SR 5H1)), the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance ({B&Z %2 KEREIEHI)) of the HKSAR and
other relevant laws and regulations.

To safeguard the health and safety of its employees ° ABTREEIFERREMEDR
the Group formulated the “Join-Share Pandemic 2 AEEEHIE(RRRERY
Prevention and Control Plan for COVID-19"({/h &% i FRERRSRENEIETR)
FEHEFAERRSREBHEIIESER)), “Join-Share (P REREFITMRE SRR M
Pandemic Prevention and Control Emergency Plan for REBERESTERINC(RREE
COVID-19" ((FF BB EMAERE S RANMAZE BIM&EIEm) WA THEH
frizfE=F82)), and “Join Share Work Resumption RIS AR TR 5 R b K %18 TIEE
Guidelines during the Pandemic” ({Fh BB EE TIH&E B/E(TTEEBNE]) - BE
#55)), and established the Leading Group for HEZBENOT

COVID-19 Pandemic Prevention and Control (“Leading
Group”), whose main responsibilities are as follows:

. Organising and coordinating the publication . 4B 48 15 8 3 B T AR R Rk
information related to the COVID-19 pandemic R EEEM SELT
and promotions, as well as carrying out health B ARBEHE
education;

. Collecting employee health status for statistical . M E TREBHEELENK
purposes, and timely preparing and submitting £ FEt o WAFIRE R E
follow-up reports; I

. Procuring personal protective equipment and . REBRIHEAR  BZR
cleaning supplies at the Group’s headquarters ARENRERELIE I
for stable supplies, as well as assisting the WEE D FARIEEEBN
relevant subsidiaries to purchase the relevant ERm e

personal protective equipment.

The Group did not identify any work related fatalities REBRBE=F (BREAFE)F
in the past three years including the Year. BEARTETER -
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4.4 RENTER

4.4 Promoting Talent Development

The Group promotes the common growth and
development of employees and itself under the core
values of “Co-creation, Sharing and Joint Growth”. In
line with its corporate culture, the Human Resources
Department has set up the training programs,
pursuant to which its employees will be provided with
training session commensurate with their job
requirements to broaden their knowledge and build up
their skills, thus maintaining the competitiveness of the
Group.

Furthermore, the Group has on multiple occasions
organised CCP seminars for its employees who are
CCP members, including learning and education of the
history of the CCP, which is aimed at encouraging
them deeply study the CCP’s ideological might,
historical experience, revolutionary ethos, and historical
trends and to draw wisdom and strength from
practice. It also organised an activity with the theme
of “learning and implementing the guiding principles
from a series of important speeches by General
Secretary Xi Jinping, stepping up the high-quality
development of the Company’s business”, in the hope
that all CCP members will strengthen their beliefs and
excel at their work based on their posts by learning
the spirit, the ideas and the strength from General
Secretary Xi Jinping’s important speeches, as well as
promoting the high-quality development of the
Company’s business while effectively putting the
responsibilities of the CCP member into actual action
and practice. Besides watching movies featuring
patriotism, the Group’s CCP member also watched the
important speech delivered at the fourth session of
the 13th National People’s Congress, which fully
embodied the concept of People First, during which
they were expected to take the initiative to deepen
their understanding of the important address by
General Secretary Xi Jinping and to CCP members will
play a leading role for the Group’s employees to
commit themselves to the work and strive for
composing new chapters. In addition, Mr. Wu Liejin,
Chairman of the Board, also shared his personal views
on hot issues such as the “Agriculture-Related
Development” (i.e., development of agriculture, rural
areas and farmers), independent innovation, carbon
peak and carbon neutrality.
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PROMOTING ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS

The Group attaches great importance to environmental
management. With its major business operations
concentrated in offices, the impact on the environment and
natural resources is minimal. However, the Group is aware
of the urgency of climate change and future environmental
challenges. In compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC (K #EARLMBEIRZIREE)) and the Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC ((FZEARKEMBEEH LR
7£)), the Group encourages its employees to protect the
environment and enhance their environmental awareness.
The Group has formulated the “Corporate Environmental
Policy” so that relevant environmental measures are in place
to reduce the environmental impact caused by the Group’s
operations. During the Year, the Group did not violate any
relevant environmental protection laws or cause any major
incidents that had a negative impact on the environment
and natural resources, nor did it receive any environmental
penalties or litigation notices related to the Group.
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5.1 Greenhouse Gas Management

Climate change is an environmental issue that is
highly concerned by the world. In coordinating with
the national strategy to address climate change, as a
responsible enterprise in compliance with the policies
and measures adopted by the government, the Group
will proactively reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and
make regular disclosures as to its carbon emissions in
order to keep a good track of its performance in
emission reduction. Set forth below is a summary of
the greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) from its
headquarters in Foshan during the Year™:

GHG Unit

inE R E5 i

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes CO2 equivalent

(tCO.e)

HEAREREHEW(EET) N _SEbiE 2
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e

MR EREHEMR (HE2) NSk =
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 & 2) tCO,e
mRERBYME (HE1R2) A SR E S

GHG emission intensity

3
-
jul |-
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RIRZLRE2HREEERNRRKRZ
B REABEREHRRERELE
B RPHERBEENDEE A&
BEBE S BRSHRRER - U
BB EREEROBER - E T
PR ERWE - AR BRI
HERR o AT 2 3 PIRL I 6 1L 48
BB A EANF E AR E R PO

Zm:
2019 2020 2021
20195 & 20204 20215
12.50 8.85 8.29
25.67 22.08 23.75
38.17 30.93 32.04

iR = R AR P

Per square meter (Scope 1 & 2)

FBFEHK(BE1R2)

tCO,e/m?

0.02 0.01 0.004

NS EE T K

5.2 Emissions Management

In order to reduce the emissions, the Group performs
regular maintenance on its vehicle fleet to maintain
their efficiency, inspect the conditions of tire wear,
and keep the tires inflated. Furthermore, it ensures
that the engines run without idling by providing
drivers with low-carbon driving training.

1. In accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol developed by the
World Resources Institute and World Business Council for
Sustainable Development and the 1SO14064-1 prepared by the
International Organization for Standardization

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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5.3 Energy Conservation and Consumption 5.3 EiREREFE

Reduction
Energy represents a major consumption in offices, and BERERAEEEMERE  THA
a series of energy-efficient measures are taken at BT —RIETREFE M - A& E
workplaces. The Group regularly monitors its energy TEEAES YR BL R A e - A
consumption efficiency to adjust its energy-saving RETREREIE - ANFE - AEEMLR
measures in a timely manner. During the Year, the FILABPHAEEELBIZPHLE
Group's headquarters in Foshan had a total electricity FEEE /38923 TR - MAERES
consumption of 38,923 kWh during its operation and BEARGFHAKNTTRE -
a total electricity consumption intensity of 5.17 kWh
per square meter.
The Group's major energy consumption is derived AEBETEMNRERERRABNRAE
from the lighting and air-conditioning system of its BRI ZEF R L - WFIABRCE
offices, and it has implemented various measures to BRIAEREE IS I
conserve energy and reduce consumption as follows:

lllumination system e Natural lighting is fully utilised to reduce power consumption;

LB o FABANXRE WIEE:

e Lighting fixtures are regularly cleaned,

s THIBZREA:

e Separate two-way switches are installed in the conference rooms
to keep the lights off when lighting is not required,

e UEHRELEF/IYNME BERHAMBMATLENRAREFNE

e Energy efficient lamps are installed;

e LESHRUANEE

e The lights shall be turned off before leaving the office.

o EXBIFEMAEAABHEE -

Air-conditioning system e  Filters are regularly cleaned;
=T R o TEHERMBEMH

e The air conditioning system shall not be installed to a place under
direct sunlight;

s WMERTRARRNLEENAGEERIFOMLE

e A proper temperature shall be set for the system;

e REMBRESENRE

e Casual wear for employees is permitted in hot weather and each
Friday.

s AHEBIAKRBRRLNEBEHPRFERERM LI -

The Group used 2017 as the base year to maintain a REBP2017TFREEF RS
certain level of or gradually reduce greenhouse gas REHNR AEE - AKENEZE
emissions, electricity and water consumption, and YIEE S EDEFFNE LR HIK
waste generation. o

21 EEHE BEEPERaznarfrarsares 10/



108
-

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE e hERRE (B

5.4 Water Resource Management

5.5

The Group’s water is mainly sourced from the
municipal water supply and therefore there is no
water extraction problem. In order to raise the
awareness of water conservation among our
employees and reduce our own water consumption,
including placing water-saving labels in each restroom,
and regularly checking water meter readings, and
regularly carrying out the leak test of concealed
pipelines. During the Year, the Group’s total water
consumption amounted to 122 tonnes, equivalent to
0.02 tonnes per square meter.

Reduction of Resource Waste

The Group is committed to reducing resource
consumption, and establishing the awareness of
conservation among its employees. It encourages its
employees to use recyclable items, while toner
cartridges, ink cartridges, end-of-life computers, and
other electronic devices are recycled. The Group also
collects data on non-hazardous waste generated by its
offices. During the Year, the amount of hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste generation
incorporated to this ESG Report was 0.80 metric ton
and 1.60 metric tons, respectively, and the amount of
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste generated
per employee was 0.003 metric ton and 0.006 metric
ton, respectively. In addition, no packaging materials
were produced during operations.

With effect from 1 June 2020, new submissions of the
credit extension business at the headquarters proceed
with paper-free approval procedures, and the offline
paper form of approval is no longer accepted in terms
of the paper-free approval for lending, returning and
cancellation of financial guarantee business.
Furthermore, the offline paper form of the “Approval
of the Credit Extension Business ((J% {5 BBIHEKE
)" is replaced by the information system online
approval, thereby minimising the consumption of

paper.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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5.6 Climate Changes

Considering climate actions prevail across the globe,
the Group has taken energy-efficient measures to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. During the Year, the
Group identified risks associated with climate changes,
including physical risks such as flooding, super
typhoons, and more. Generally speaking, climate
changes will rarely have any significant impact on the
Group’s operations.

Climate-related risks

. 16 16 A . B
Physical risk

ERRER

Transition risk

iR R

Impacts on the Group
HARBZHE

Extreme weather conditions, such as
rainstorms and floods, are likely to
cause temporary closure of office
premises

BHER - MR K AREEH
0 23 0 36T B 8 S

Extreme weather conditions create
safety concerns for employees

BmARIENE T L ERE

If the Group fails to meet the ESG
expectation from society, our
reputation will suffer from negative
impacts
fARETAHEHAREBEESGHHAE -
RN RMBEELaRTE

e RERRE (B

56 miE#Et

EERRETHRTHERT - K
SEERIIEREARETR - AR
BEREBHN - AFE - NEEH
AIERERZCEBNER  BREE
BER KR BRERE - —
R s RIERECRIEE EHA
SENEEENERTE -

Mitigation measures
fRARIENE

e When the government department
releases relevant extreme weather
conditions, the Group will
implement measures to ensure the
safety of our employees based on
the situation, including early leave
at workplace or remote work;

o B IRATERPT I AR R R uh K SRS
AEEERBEEAEBREE LR
ZHE I - tE NGB AR AT N IESKE
EX /N3

e The Group’s environmental
protection measures will be
reviewed, the effectiveness of
which will be reviewed.

o BIEEMNRRERE  WEREK
R e

e ESG matters are disclosed in an
annual ESG report

o BBFERESGREWEESGER
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6. GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to creating a positive impact and
building the communities in which it operates, and is
committed to creating a sustainable future for the local
people and society. During the Year, the Group’s
community investment amounted to RMB116,320, which
focused on two aspects: party building and co-building, and
joint pandemic fight.

6.1 Fighting Against Pandemic with United
Efforts

On 1 June 2021, the members of the Communist
party Committee (the “CPC") of Guangdong Join-Share
actively participated in the “I Do Practical Things for
the Public” volunteering campaign at Ligui
Community, Dali Town, Nanhai District. Despite the
high-temperature conditions on site, the CPC
members withstood the heat, wore protective suits
and goggles, and assisted the on-site medical staff to
their best ability in the nucleic acid testing in an
orderly manner. The CPC members delivered their
original mission through their practical actions, and
brought the honour to the party flag by fulfilling their
responsibility, which would help people resolutely win
the pandemic battle in Foshan and even across the
country.

» T

6. EIEHE

AREBHNPAIGETEMFEETZRE
BTG - AR AE AR
GRENFENARK - AFERAEER KT
RIREFEEARK116,32070 ° EFAEM
FH: EERERTLE -

6.1 Bk

2021F6 A1 ERPEKREHR
EE([E]) EXFHEERAXEE
EELR  BHR2HE[R AR
FEEIEHEERIY BERSES
BAE BEESMIAEHE2 BF
[Hrghk - TEZEBHE 02N
MRS EBAB T FRAEZERE
Tt EEBMEAERITSHEITY
DME - AIEE B AL EESER
%o BABIL - 2RERITEEE
PrizpREs; -
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During the period of the epidemic prevention and
control, the Group actively responded to the
government’s call and devoted itself to fighting
against the COVID-19 pandemic together. On
28 June 2021, the Company's CPC Branch was
notified by the Youth League Committee of Shiwan
Sub-district Office of urgent assistance and support for
a third mass nucleic acid testing in the community.
Upon such a short notice, the CPC Branch took swift
actions to rally a team as soon as practicable. The
CPC members of the Group were the first to join the
team, encouraging other employees to sign up. As a
result, a volunteer team of 20 persons was instantly
built.

ERIEH e NEEREGERE
BEREA  BEER - BEELT
E HEEANELZE - BMELI
20216 A28 A B AEHENE
ZWKE]  2EEEEIXEERE
B ARBRBRE T 8%
HEMELRERE  UIRRRER
M hEs  EEETHRER - K&
EEFAREBRBSIN BETK
20 N\ ERRE B MARE -

Mr. Ou Weiming, Managing Director of Foshan Micro
Credit, together with Deputy General Managers
Mr. Ouyang Yuan and Xia Yufeng and Deputy General
Manager Mr. Chen Lin of General Management
Department, donated pandemic materials as
expression of solicitude to Shiwan Sub-district Office
on behalf of the Company, which would help the
front-line pandemic prevention in the streets and
communities. At the same time, the Group’s donation
was meant to express its gratitude to the sub-district
leaders and staff for their hard and high-intensity
work for communities, enterprises and the public.
Guangdong Join-share wishes this modest effort
would serve as a message of respect to the front-line
workers in the pandemic fight. To support the
COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control, it gathers
the positive energy of love and unity to overcome the
difficulties together at times of challenges.

BLUNEERESREERERE
BRKERBR ENENGEE
A B IR R A - KRRBAA
BHEERE - REHYE - B
NEBMEER R R TERR
B’ RASRHHEEASNIIEAR
REREER  BHRHERSBETF
MFEML BERTERES L8
BENEEZ  ME—KRIE
FBIHA | B RTE I AR B
BT REERERMN  Hri
FHEOIERE -
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6.2 Party building and Co-building

On the afternoon of 22 March 2021, Mr. Wu Liejin,
Chairman of the Board, was invited to introduce the
major takeaways at the National People’s Congress and
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference to
all officers at the People’s Procuratorate of Shunde.
Mr. Wu Liejin introduced in depth General Secretary
Xi Jinping’s important speech, the government work
report, the work report of the Supreme People’s Court,
the work report of the Supreme People’s Procuratorate,
and the decision on improving the electoral system of
the HKSAR, and shared his own interpretation based
on his own work practice and personal experience.
This learning experience enabled everyone to develop
a deeper and clearer understanding and impression
of the National People’s Congress and Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, which
is conducive to improving the political judgment,
political comprehension and political execution of CPC
members and cadres and procuratorial officers, as well
as to integrating the education and rectification of
the procuratorial team with our business and work,
and promoting such integration. This provides a solid
theoretical foundation for presenting the centenary
gift to the founding of the CCP with outstanding
procuratorial achievements.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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On 1 July 2021, the 100th anniversary of the
Communist Party of China was celebrated in
Tiananmen Square in Beijing, where Comrade Xi
Jinping, General Secretary of the CPC, President of the
PRC, and Chairman of the Central Military
Commission, delivered a keynote speech. The CPC of
Guangdong Join-Share conscientiously implemented
the work arranged by the higher-level Communist
Party Committee, and organised approximately 400
people including all CPC members and employees of
the Company to observe the live broadcast of the
celebration. Taking into account the fact that branches
and subsidiaries are scattered in various places, in
addition to setting up the main venue in the
Sino-European Service Center of the headquarters, all
branches and subsidiaries of Guangdong Join-Share
also set up branch venues for simultaneous reception
of the live broadcast to ensure that the spirit of the
celebration is conveyed to each CPC member and
employee.

ol

e

H2021F7A1H BOPR R & E
EXZ100AFREEILRKREL
EiGEERT  pHEPRAEER
BRER HREZFFERFH
REDRF EREPAREEZTR
HEBLIREZITIERE  HEBT
NAEIEEES BT 4400 AU
BERETREEE -HE6n T2
RN MHESHANER  BEEB AR
ERTHEATFEFLREETZH
G FH D FRARRKRYLS €
HRFPWE  BREERBGEED
B—ZEBE BT
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In order to conscientiously implement Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for
a New Era and the spirit of the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China, with the
party building and co-building of the CPC branch as
the driving force, the Group further promotes the
normalisation and institutionalisation of “two learning
and one doing” program, strengthen the development
of the ideological style, and improve the overall level
of party building. On 3 December 2021, the Second
CPC Branch Committee of Guangdong Join-Share, the
CPC Branch Committee of the Foshan Lingnan Notary
Office, and the CPC Branch Committee of Guangdong
Kedong Law Firm held a party building and
co-building activity.

First of all, Huang Yuzhen, Secretary of the Second
CPC Branch Committee of Join-Share, accompanied
the guests to the Company’s exhibition hall,
development and history wall, and workplaces, and
explained our development history, business segments
and the essence of corporate culture and the
“shared” culture. Through this party building and
co-building activity, the three CPC Branches were
paired as the joint CPC branch building unit on the
basis of equal cooperation, mutual benefit, and
pursuit of mutually beneficial results. By taking
advantage of the co-building of the CPC branch, as
well as in combination with our own business
features, parties realised the advancement of the party
building and the business development, creating the
effect of the party building brand activity.

ARABREE T O TFHEATEH
BFedersBRNENT AR
e AT HEEXEAS N AE
EFRAME MBI E2BHEE
sefbHIE L - noe BABERER
IR ERITIFEREKFE - 20214F12
A3H HFHERTAREF X
Bz g gmep L ILTHER A BE
THEEE  PHERBIEFZAME
B HEE g RITEELEE -

B FRERELE_EXHELE
BMEERAXBEL2EARRE R
BERRE MR ARG  BRARRRE
Eig - ZBRB R EEEEERE
B I3E - Bt R B A EE
B ZHEXHEFSEAE BE
BN BRAROER LEH A
MERHEEMN - AXHHERR
o HEeEEEBEe BERER
HESREGRER  TREER
fE R ENIRE -
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In order to actively implement the Company’s CPC’s
arrangement of strengthening the learning of the CPC
history, and improve CPC members’ enthusiasm for
learning and their understanding of the CPC history,
the third CPC branch of Guangdong Join-Share played
a movie headed “Remember History and Inherit the
Red Gene” on 26 November. All CPC members and
prospective applicants watched the movie “The Battle
at Lake Changjin”, a major epic war movie. The CPC
members relived the magnificent history together over
the movie, and deeply appreciated the great spirit of
the war to resist US aggression and aid Korea. After
the movie, a meeting focused on performance
criticism was organised, wherein the CPC members
shared their impression of the movie, and discussed
how to hold firm in their own position and play
better their vanguard and exemplary role as a CPC
members based on their work and their own life
experiences.

AEGEREEARNEZBR NG
ELBENTIELSS RaEEESZ
BREGBMERELEE - 11H26R8 -
BRAPRREF=-ELFBEEAR
T8 FEsS ERAEHER B
EE RRBEBRERS FERE
%TEXF_E%M R (RER) -

BMESZH T —RER T IR
f?fﬁﬂiﬁ'ﬁﬁ’]rﬂi FRA R IBE R A
ERFAG o ?éﬁ BB AR T X
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA STATEMENTS [fi¢fk— : TJiS BB ESEEE

The summary of the environmental sustainability data for the Year LA TRAFERIRZHEIFELZRERNBE

is as follow:

Environmental Unit 2021
IRIZEEE B {u 20215 &
Air emission?

ZR R

Nitrogen oxide (NO,) kilogram (kg) 2.21
REALHNO) Fi

Sulfur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.05
e (so,) F

Particulate matters (PM) kg 0.16
FERLY) (PM) Tr

GHG emissions

mERBHME

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tonnes CO, equivalent (tCO,e) 8.29
BEEAERBHR(BE1) RE_EHRES

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 23.75
MEAEREY M (HE2) AE—AtiEE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, & 2) tCO,e 32.04
BERBHNASE (FE1K&2) AE—f b E =

GHG emission intensity per square meter (Scope 1 & 2) | tCO,e/m? 0.004
BYFAANBRERBHRTE (8E1K%2) RE—_ghiE e FFHK

Waste generation

BERMEL

Hazardous waste tonne 0.80
BEREREY N

Hazardous waste intensity (per employee) tonne/employee 0.003
EEEEYDTE(BELETI) AW/ BT

Scrapped computers unit 20
REEE =

Total non-hazardous waste tonne 1.6
BREEZEVHESE NI

Non-hazardous waste intensity (per employee) tonne/employee 0.006
BREEEVTE(BEETI) AWE/ BT

2. Vehicle emissions
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Environmental 2021
RIEEIE 20215
Paper consumption

HORIHFE

Total paper consumption (A4) pcs 398,967.00
IR A2 (AD) 9

Total paper consumption (A3) pcs 1,936.00
R A E(A3) S

Energy consumption

Total electricity consumption kWh 38,923.00
BwHEES T BB

Total electricity consumption intensity (per square meter) | kWh/m? 5.17
mREETE (BFHK) FREEFHK

Total electricity consumption intensity (per employee) kWh/employee 136.57
BEBEEZE(BREI) FTERE BT

Vehicle gasoline liter 3,062
BEETUME nF

Water Consumption

KERHEFE

Total water consumption tonne 122
BFEKE 7]

Total water consumption intensity (per m?) tonne/square meter 0.02
BREKEE (BT TTK) g, 75 oK
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The summary of the social sustainability data of the Group for the

Year is as follow:

»

NTRAFEAERENHEBBAKEERE
HE

Social Unit 2021
HELE B {i 202155
Number of employees
BETAHY
Total number of employees Number of people 309
BTHEH AE
Total number of employees by gender
BSTHY (RHERES)
Female Number of people 132
el A
Male Number of people 177
S A
Total number of employees by employment type
ET@AY(ZRESHERES)
Full-time junior staff Number of people 226
PRBYRET AE
Full-time middle management Number of people 78
PHAREERE AE
Full time senior management Number of people 5
rHBEREERE AE
Total number of employees by age groups
ETHE (REHRERES)
Below 30 years old Number of people 64
305R AT N ¢
30-50 years old Number of people 227
30-505% AE
Above 50 years old Number of people 18
5058 A £ AE
Total number of employees by geographical region
SETHAY(RBESS)
Eastern China Number of people 24
ERER AL
Southern China Number of people 285
23 AE
Employee turnover rate
BTIfKkb®
Total number of employees % 12.30
8 TR %
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HEEHIS

Employee turnover rate (by gender)
BTREAE(RHERNES)

Female

g

Male

B

Employee turnover rate (by age groups)
BTRKE(REHARE5)

Below 30 years old

30 AR

30-50 years old

30-505%

Above 50 years old

507 A =

Employee turnover rate (by geographical region)

BTRAE(ZBEES)

Eastern China

ERERE

Southern China

77 &

Occupational health and safety

BERRERZ

Number of work-related fatalities (2019, 2020 and
2021)

EIT AZ(2019 - 2020 % 20215 [F)

Lost days due to work injury

EIEERXTHERR

Development and training

2% R B s gl

Percentage of employees trained by gender

RS EIEET S

Female

gegid

Male

By

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINU

%
%
%
%

%
%
%
%
%
%

%
%
%
%

Number of people

A

Day
HE

%
%
%
%

B5 e kEhams (8

2021
202146 &

15.90

9.60

26.60%

7.50%

22.20%

8.30

12.60

100

100
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Social

HEHIS

Percentage of employees trained by employee
category

REIEMNISHRINIEESTSEL

General staff

EEET

Management member

EBAR

Training hours received by employees by gender

214 Bl & 53 1Y 8 TI& Il B 8

Female

egid

Male

B

Training hours received by employees by
employment category

24 1% 5 51 21 53 89 & TIEall B 8

General staff

E@ET

Management member

EIBAR

%
%
%
%

Hour
N

Hour
N

Hour
N

Hour
/NBE

2021
20215

100

100

32

38

29

36
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APPENDIX Il: INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL [fi$%k= : FEBESXSHHIRIE HE
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF HONG R&E&iR&iEs|) &S|
KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

Index Relevant section
EREAT HFA= &
A. Environmental
ARG
A1: Emissions General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant | Promoting Environmental
Disclosure laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Operations
issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non- hazardous waste.
A1 BERRY) —RRE BRERAERBYN  RKRIHEHS AEREEEY | #TRRES
MELSH : QEE  RO)ETHERTAREAZENRBE
BRAROINER o
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Appendix |: Sustainability
Data Statement
A1 PR R KRB H R BsE— - A RERREE
EE
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Greenhouse Gas
emissions and intensity. Management
Appendix I: Sustainability
Data Statement
A12 B (8E) REEREE (BE) RERBAHREREE AEREER
Bisk— : ATRAAE %R 2R
W
A13 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. Appendix I: Sustainability
Data Statement
A13 MELREBEENBEEREE - Wisk— : ATRAE B R SR
meE
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. Appendix |: Sustainability
Data Statement
Al.4 PMELEEEZNBEREE - Bisk— : AT AR E R EE
HE
A15 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | Energy Conservation and
them. Consumption Reduction
A1.5 WU E R RRAEINELBERARRN TSR - R BEfE #E
Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Energy Conservation and
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps Consumption Reduction
taken to achieve them. Reduction of Resource
Waste
A1.6 HEBRAEERESEREYNAE  REGLMTVMRER SRR | Sk
REDEL B RARRE TR o B ERRE

w1 EEBE RETRBESHARRRARGERASS ]2
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE e hERRE (B

Index

EEAE

A2 : Use of Resources

A2 BRER

General
Disclosure
—R =
A2.1

A2.1

A2.2

A2.2

A23

A2.3
A2.4

A2.4

A2.5

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIEER  KREMRME) BBEE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total and intensity.

REMEIDNBERE R/ REELR(NE - fsihn) BREREE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKEREE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

TR SZ AR IRGE A A Es B R R A BB L B AR AT SRR PR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

R SKEVE AR LAl B ERRRE - LRAET SRR EE &
LREDE L B R R S8 o

Total packaging material used for finished products and with
reference to per unit produced.

HARRAABEMNHNBERGEESRMIAS -

CRallN

Relevant section
HHEAE AN

Promoting Environmental

Operations

BTRREY

Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction

Appendix |: Sustainability
Data Statement

£ e F 7

Wisk— : AIRERREUE
HE

Water Resource
Management

Appendix I: Sustainability
Data Statement

KERE R

gk — : ATREER IR
HE

Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction

£ B F 7

Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction

Water Resource
Management

B Bl 2 7%

KEREH

Not applicable as the
Group's business does
not involve packaging
materials

NER  AEERBNS
RBENH
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Index

EERE

A3: The Environment and

Natural Resources
A3 RIBRAARER

A4 : Climate Change

A R

B. Social
B.iE&IE
B1: Employment

General
Disclosure
—REE
A3.1

A3.1

General
Disclosure

—RIKE

A4

A4

General
Disclosure

—RIKE

B1.2

B1.2

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CON

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

HEZETAHRERRAEREKXERNTENHOE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

M EBEHRERRABERNEATERERNEREHY
260778 -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

BRI REHEE RIS HETAEEYENEARGHEBEE
HERR o

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

B SR EHETAEEYENEARGHEBAZE - RE
H178) -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRIk EE BEREA TERKE RE FE#E %
TeE » RIRARA R E 538 AR AR + (@)BR ¢ Ru(b)B<r %3
TABBERZENHEBEERROINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.

IR REAY  FRANMEREDHEE A -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

RIEH - FRARNIEEIDNEERRLE -

B5 e kEhams (8

Relevant section
HHEAE AN

Promoting Environmental

Operations
BTRREY
Promoting Environmental

Operations

ETRRIEE

Climate Change

AREI

Climate change

RRR(

Employee Care

Promoting Talent
Development

Appendix |: Sustainability
Data Statements

REATEE

Wisk— : ATRAE B R SR
meE

Appendix |: Sustainability
Data Statements

BsE— - AIRERREUE
e

221 EEHE BERPEREMNAEFRREROBARAS

123
-



124
-

LRl

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE e hERRE (B

Index Relevant section

EREAT 1A= A

B2 : Health and Safety General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant | Occupational Health and
Disclosure laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Safety

issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

B2: @REAZS —REKE BHRHZ2THEREIRBESBEBENEEN : @BK: | BERRL2
RO EFTHETABEAZENHBEZRZLROINEH -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of Appendix I: Sustainability
the past three years including the reporting year. Data Statements
B2.1 BE=F (BREERFE)SFRITHOARRLE - ffse— : ATEEE B R EE
HE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Appendix |: Sustainability
Data Statements
B2.2 FAIGEATIIERE - Pitgk— - AT R AR R B
mE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, | Occupational Health and
and how they are implemented and monitored. Safety
B2.3 HRPRMNBERRELT 2R  ARBERTRERSE . | BERERS
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Index

EERE

Relevant section

A=

B3 : Development and General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Promoting Talent
Training Disclosure discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Development
B3 : #E [IET —REE BBERIEE BT IIERME MM R RAENIRE - #HlEIES - | REATBR
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Appendix |: Sustainability
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Data Statements
B3.1 RIERIREESRN (NEREEE TREEES)EAHNTIE | MEk—: IHEERIE
Bank e mE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender Appendix |: Sustainability
and employee category. Data Statements
B3.2 BRI NESERNE S BREETAXINNFHEY - Bisg— : ATRAE B R 2R
iES
B4 : Labour Standards General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant | Employee Care
Disclosure laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
4 T —RRE BRMILETSRGSTH  QBCR : RO)ETHETAREN | BEEIARA
%&%ﬂ]*ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ&&%ﬁfﬂﬂ@éﬂ
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid | Employee Care
child and forced labour.
B4.1 i R E OB RARRETI RS T MEBTIARL
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Employee Care
discovered.
B4.2 HAAEERERERNT ERE BB R RIA A5 - BEBIAXN
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE e hERRE (B

Index

EERE
B5 : Supply Chain

Management
B5 : g E 12

General
Disclosure
—R =
B5.1

B5.1
B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.
ERHERARIE R @ BBECK -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BE B DN EEHE o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

MBS BHERNEDN  mERTEBEMNNHREDHE -
AR AEBEHMBTRERE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

i A BRI RS ERGNRE LSRR aE R - bARE
BRITREERE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

HREREHERRRESARRERRRBOED - LAKAEHE
WITRERRE -

» T

Relevant section
HHEAE AN
Supply Chain

Management
HEEEER
Supply Chain

Management

HEEER

Supply Chain
Management

e e E e

Supply Chain
Management

HERER

Supply Chain
Management

HEEER
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Index

EREAT
B6 :© Product Responsibility

B6 - EmATE

General
Disclosure

—REE

B6.2

B6.2
B6.3

B6.3
B6.4

B6.4

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

BRMRHEERNBBNRERZ2 B BEIMEEEN
BRI ER : @QBUR - RO)EFTHETAREAY EHIER
ERRBAGINEH -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

EERCEZREMBHTRLEEREREMMARKNE DL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BREBRERKRENRFHEAREETX

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

fl B R ARIE AR A B -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

L E BT BERER YIRS o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

HiE B E BB RERALBECE - URBEATREERE -

e >

Relevant section
HHEAE AN

Compliant Operations

Not applicable as the
Group's business does
not involve the sale or
delivery of products

TEA - AEEEB NS
RHESREXEM

Satisfying Customer
Demands

WERF®K

Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights

MBS EE

Not applicable as the
Group's business does
not involve the sale or
delivery of products

TER  ARBEBTS
REESEXER

Protection of Information

Security
REESEZE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE e hERRE (B

Index

EEAE

B7 : Anti-corruption

B7 : REE

B8 : Community
Investment

B8 : HEIE

General
Disclosure

—RIE

B7.1

B7.1

B7.2

B7.2
B7.3

B7.3

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B8.1

B8.1

B8.2

B8.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRAM LR BR  BEFRAREN : @QBE  R(b)ETH 3
TABBRFZENHBEELROIOER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

RESBANHETASEEEREVEBENBETHAREMNE
B REFRER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

A R BREF - A RBARITRERG A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.

HRmMEERE TRANREFHE -

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BRAER2ERTREENEHETENRREAXBEDEE
B RFEBR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

EIEHEE(WHE  REEE SIFK - BR L8

B)e

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEIRBERHHBER -

Relevant section
1A= A
Upholding Anti-corruption

and Integrity

RERBIER

Upholding Anti-corruption
and Integrity

RERBIER

Upholding Anti-corruption
and Integrity

FRREER

Upholding Anti-corruption
and Integrity

FRREER

Giving Back to The
Community

ot

Giving Back to The
Community
CIEpad-

Giving Back to The
Community
mIfE S
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a leading financing guarantee services provider in
Guangdong province, focusing on providing credit-based financing
solutions to SMEs to satisfy their financing and business needs.
The Group primarily provides guarantees on behalf of, and
entrusted loans to, SMEs and individual business proprietors. It
also provides micro-lending to SMEs, individual business
proprietors and individuals in Foshan since July 2011 through
Foshan Micro Credit, which was consolidated into the Group in
June 2014.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out on pages 163 to 320 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Business Review"”, “Prospects
and Future Developments in the Business of the Group” and
“Events after Reporting Period” under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
respectively. Descriptions of principal risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are provided in this Report of the Board
of Directors on page 151. An analysis of the Group's performance
during the year ended 31 December 2021 using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the sections headed “Financial
Summary” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report. Discussions on the environmental policies and
performance, the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and the account of the key relationships of the Group
with its stakeholders are contained in this Report of the Board of
Directors and the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
in this annual report. The above discussions constitute part of this
Report of the Board of Directors. Discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance and an explanation of the basis on which
the Company generates or preserves value over the longer term
and the strategy for delivery of the Company’s objectives are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report.

ESTHRE

EEOENMMBRRREERNEEHE2021F12A4
BTALFEFRUAREEZEATBERE -

FEEH
ARBIREREBLOBEERRGHER
HEIRAFNIEREHRAEARERNRE
AT - mEPNMACENRERETS
R AKETENPIMIECERERTEHL A
FRHEREAP/PNAEERER TEPREM
ZEER - HB2011F7ABBHLNEER
LR R /MR - E TP kE
ARB/NEER - WHR2014F6 AILZAAE
HAKREE -

E 3

AEBEZE2021F12 831 HIEFENEESH N
RERFE163E E320H o

KX mEA

HZE2021F12A31B L FEARAEEMNEKRE
B AEERREFERIMEBTRFER
FEAREBBEAZTENAB D HERAERIE
BEMNwEASN | —SP [ ¥50E]  [BER
AREBRREBER| UL [REREBETE]S
B AEEREEMY M EZER KT T REZE
AN AEEERELIS1H - HZE20214F
12 A31 B L FEARB S BRERIEZAAR
EERBEIMBINRAFERIAEHME] R[E
EENMESTISH BHEREBRNEER
2 AEBETHEBEEREENBERA R
ANEBEEFNFMAE A 2 EZHERMIFHHA
EEERERAFRIER LT RERR
E o U EFmBRAZEESHREN—ID - 4
RAEBMERMTHRED>TARBRARRR
HIEASREEENERULBTEAQNFBEZ
MREMSRE SR AFRIEEENHED
Mrl—gme
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEEHE E)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board will determine the level of dividends after considering
the factors of the Company including (i) the results of operations;
(i) cash flows; (iii) financial condition; (iv) statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends; and (v) other factors that
the Board deems relevant.

Under normal circumstances, the Board would consider to declare
interim and special dividends when announcing the Company’s
interim and final results. The Board may also recommend a final
dividend for approval by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), the Company may distribute dividends
in the manners of (i) cash; (i) shares; and (iii) other means
permitted by laws, administrative rules, regulations of competent
authorities and regulatory provisions in the place where the
Shares are listed.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
determined under PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
or Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards according to the
Articles of Association. The Company may distribute not less than
30% of the Company’s distributable profits (excluding the impact
of related deferred tax) to Shareholders for each financial year,
subject to the Company’s dividend payment criteria stated above.

The Board has the absolute discretion to decide whether to
declare or distribute dividends in any year. There is no assurance
that dividends of such amount or any amount will be declared or
distributed each year or in any year.

The Board will review the dividend policy annually, as appropriate,
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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EZeARBRUNBRAESEEEN —FEIK
HIRBEBE - BEARESFIARNEMFERT
SRFEDEKNZEF SRR MBS -

EZeKBBEFRTBEEE  UEERER
BEMIL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021




FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of
RMBO0.05 (before considering any tax effect) per each Domestic
Share and H Share for the year ended 31 December 2021,
amounting to, in aggregate, RMB78,039,634.35 (the “2021 Final
Dividend”). No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive the
2021 Final Dividend.

According to the Articles of Association, dividend payable to
holders of Domestic Shares will be paid in Renminbi, whereas
dividend payable to holders of the H Shares will be declared in
Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate of
which will be calculated in accordance with the related national
regulations on foreign exchange control. The 2021 Final Dividend
will be subject to approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming
2021 annual general meeting (the “AGM") and is expected to be
paid on or about Thursday, 28 July 2022.

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ({FZEA R FEH
B AFT1S8%)), the Implementation Regulations of the PRC
Individual Income Tax Law ({7 & A R M BIEAFTEHEE M 15
f71)), the Administrative Measures of the State Administration of
Taxation on Tax Convention Treatment for Non-resident Taxpayers
(No. 35 of the Announcement of the State Administration of
Taxation for 2019) KEIRBKERIEERAMAZZHERFBE
BHSEY)) (XM BER AE2019FE5355F), the Notice of the
State Administration of Taxation on the Questions Concerning the
Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After the Repeal
of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348)
(KE R4 DR BT 81993104558 S EE 1L 12 B B E A PRS
THEE BBRBA) (B EK[2011]3485%)), other relevant laws and
regulations and other regulatory documents, the Company shall,
as a withholding agent, withhold and pay individual income tax
for the individual holders of H Shares in respect of the dividend
to be distributed to them. However, the individual holders of H
Shares may be entitled to certain tax preferential treatments
pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the countries
(regions) in which the individual holders of H Shares are domiciled
and the tax arrangements between Mainland China, Hong Kong
or Macau. For individual holders of H Shares in general, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate
of 10% on behalf of the individual holders of H Shares in the
distribution of the dividend. However, the tax rates applicable to
individual holders of H Shares overseas may vary depending on
the tax treaties between the PRC and the countries (regions) in
which the individual holders of H Shares are domiciled, and the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of
the individual holders of H Shares in the distribution of the
dividend accordingly.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Exens (@)

R E

BEeRSREEE2021F12A31BIEFER
HIRR BB A E R EHEARE0.057C (REE
FRMBEE) 55 AR%78,039,634.357TC
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FHI2Q1FERHKE -
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEEHE E)

For non-resident enterprise holders of H Shares, i.e., any
Shareholders who hold the Shares in the name of non-individual
Shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC Nominee
Limited, other nominees, trustees, or holders of H Shares
registered in the name of other groups and organisations, the
Company will withhold and pay the enterprise income tax at the
tax rate of 10% for such holders of H Shares pursuant to the
Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on the Issues
Concerning Withholding the Enterprises Income Tax on the
Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H Share Holders
Who Are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008]
No. 897) (R B K@ BEAN P EERPEMFEIIHKRIFEREE
BRRERERITIKBEEMSHE BB E M) (E K
[2008]897%5%)). Non-resident enterprise Shareholders who has
received dividends may apply for tax refunds (if any) in
accordance with the relevant provisions such as the tax treaty
(arrangement).

Should the holders of H Shares have any doubt in relation to the
aforesaid arrangements, they are recommended to consult their
tax advisors for relevant tax impact in the PRC, Hong Kong and
other countries (regions) on the possession and disposal of H
Shares.

The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all liabilities
whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment of the
individual holders of H Shares and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax
treatment of the individual holders of H Shares or any disputes
over the withholding mechanism or arrangements.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend the
AGM to be held on Wednesday, 22 June 2022, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 17 June
2022 to Wednesday, 22 June 2022, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of Shares will be registered. Only Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Wednesday, 22 June 2022 or their proxies or duly authorised
corporate representatives are entitled to attend the AGM. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all properly
completed transfer documents accompanied with relevant Share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (for holders of H Shares), or the Company’s
office in the PRC at Room 4101-4110, Block 1, Join-Share
International Financing Center, No. 31 Fuhua Road, Dongping
Community, Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (for holders of Domestic Shares) not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 June 2022.

In order to determine the Shareholders entitled to the 2021 Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 28 June 2022 to Sunday, 3 July 2022, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of Shares will be registered.
Only Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Sunday, 3 July 2022 are entitled to
the 2021 Final Dividend. In order to qualify for receiving the
2021 Final Dividend which is still subject to approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM, all properly completed transfer
documents accompanied with relevant Share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’'s H share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (for holders of H Shares), or the Company's office in the
PRC at Room 4101-4110, Block 1, Join-Share International
Financing Center, No. 31 Fuhua Road, Dongping Community,
Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, the
PRC (for holders of Domestic Shares) not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 27 June 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out in the section headed “Financial
Highlights” in this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING, PROCEEDS FROM
ISSUE OF INVESTORS SUBSCRIPTION SHARES AND
PLACING OF NEW H SHARES

() Proceeds from the Listing

The actual net proceeds from the Listing of the H Shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 23 December
2015 (after deducting underwriting fees and commissions
and listing related expenses, and excluding the amount
remitted to the National Council for Social Security Fund of
the PRC (REIMH BRFEESIEEE) in accordance with the
relevant PRC regulations regarding the reduction of state-
owned shares) amounted to approximately HK$340.3
million.

Following the Listing, in response to changing business
environment and the business development requirement of
the Group, the Board resolved to revise and fine tune its
proposed use and the expected time of utilisation of
proceeds from the Listing. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 May 2016, 26
September 2016 and 8 February 2021 and subparagraphs
headed “(lll) Further change in expected time of utilisation
of proceeds” below for further details.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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R20215F 128318 » FHFRERIEN
AR

As at 31 December 2021, details of use of proceeds from
the Listing are as follows:

Amount of
proceeds brought
forward to the
current financial

Amount of the Expected

Intended use of the time of

Net proceeds
allocation

FRaE
FHEOE

(i) HK$120.00
million

(i) 120.00
BEAT

(i) HK$74.90
million

(i) 74.90
BEET

proceeds

iR SE R

Develop financing guarantee
business, establish new
subsidiaries and branches
(including those in Dongguan,
Yunfu and Zhuhai, Guangdong
Province) and increase the
capital base for financing
guarantee and expand the
Group's business in order to
enhance competitive advantage
in the financing guarantee
market.

ERREEREH KU

FRARA XK (BEANE 7

RERZ TERHE) - AR
ENBARREBMELER
RERASKEXBRE R
NERARRTE LOESE
3o

Develop SMEs lending business,
establish new subsidiaries and
increase capital base in order to
expand the Group's SME
lending business and improve
its status in the market.
RERIMIAEETES 5K
UMHFAR EMERE
B UARAREER IR
EREBRRETSIM -

Actual use of the proceeds as at 31 December 2021

1202151231 BB RENER &

Approximately HK$23.86 million and HK$47.56 million had been
utilised to establish Yunfu Yuecai Puhui Financing Guarantee Co.,
Ltd* (EFMEH ERMAERRDERAR), the name of which
was changed to Yunfu Puhui Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (Z3%7
ERREERRGHERAF) afterwards, with Guangdong Financing
Re-Guarantee Company Limited* (ER&BEBERBRAR), Yunfu
Rongda Asset Operations Company Limited* (EF g2 EES4LA
B72F) and Guangdong Wenshi Investment Company Limited* (&R
BEEEFBAE) and to increase the registered capital of Yunfu
Puhui Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. after Guangdong Financing Re-
Guarantee Company Limited ceased to be a shareholder thereof.
Upon the completion of capital contribution, the shareholding of the
Group in Yunfu Puhui Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. increased to
53.85%. And approximately HK$48.58 million had been used to
contribute to the registered capital of Anhui Join-Share Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd* (REFRZERELRERAT) (“Anhui
Join-Share”), following which the Group's shareholding in Anhui
Join-Share increased from 51% to approximately 63.05%"¢ 7.
N3BABETRAISOAEETAREERARABEREARA
EETREEELEARARRERARREERAALRRL
BT e EEREERRAARAR (AR EAZETEERE
EREAERAR) UTREREREBRRGERAANFHRERR
& BRENEETERRAERRAGRARANIMER iR
THE A% TEEREERROERAEAFHRLL LM
£5385% o K48 S8EEBTANEARAT RAEREARRERD
A (RBPREE]) OIMER TETKE  ARERZHPRR
SEMH IR BI51 %2 ME463.05% 47 o

Approximately HK$28.79 million and HK$32.39 million had been used
to contribute to the registered capital of Foshan Micro Credit and the
acquisition of shares in Foshan Micro Credit from its existing
shareholders, respectively. Following the acquisition of shares in
Foshan Micro Credit, the Group’s shareholding in Foshan Micro Credit
increased from 30% to approximately 55.247%.4¢2

#128.79B 8B L R3239BEBLARRRNEABILNEE R
EARABLNEERORARRLERN - NRRHLNEERH
R % RS BRI NEE KR 4E30%EMELD
55.247% ° 42

year

&8z
KB EEN
FEREEH

Nil

Approximately
HK$13.72
million

H3NEERT

remaining proceeds as

at 31 December 2021 utilisation

12021%12A3182 ikl
FRMARELE {E AES R

Nil N/A

Approximately 30-06-2022

HK$13.72 million

H3NEEET  202246A30R
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Amount of
proceeds brought
forward to the Amount of the Expected
Net proceeds  Intended use of the current financial  remaining proceeds as time of

allocation proceeds Actual use of the proceeds as at 31 December 2021 year at 31 December 2021 utilisation
gHE

FENE FUMBEEN  R021E12A3182 b

FESE FERENRERSE R20211E12A31 B iBRENER R FERESE HBFRERELE EREE

(i) HK$57.90  Develop finance lease business, N Approximately Approximately 31-12-2022
million establish new finance lease HK$57.90 million HK$57.90 million
subsidiaries and explore and
optimise related industries and
establish a finance lease
company in 2016.
(i) 57.90 FREEESEE RIMN & H51.908EET H5790EERT  202412831R
BEET REMETAR RAURE
AEEZRUR2016F KL~
FREREDNT

(iv) HK$63.70  Contribution to the registered ~Approximately HK$63.70 million had been used to contribute to the Nil Nil N/A
milion  capital of a new wholly-owned registered capital of Guangdong Join-Share Capital Management
subsidiary to provide capital Limited* (“Guangdong Capital Investment’) (ER+ REEEAE

management services. BEBAR).
(i) 63.70 AAN2EFAREAEME N3 0ERATANEARRPEREEAERERAA ((ERE & & T@m
BEAL A DREEAEERK.  FEB)MIRELR-
(v) HK$23.80  Supplement operating capital Approximately HK$23.80 million had been utilised for supplementing Nil Nil N/A
milion  and other business expenses.  operating capital and other business expenses.
(v) 2380 BREBESHAMERFY - ABEEETARBREEESNEMERRAR - i & i@
BEAL
Notes: B
(1) On 14 September 2018, the Group resolved to acquire further (1) R2018F9A14H + KEBREULHA
shares of Anhui Join-Share in an amount of approximately R¥s 76 ELE—SWELZHP AR
RMB5.76 million. Following completion of the equity transfer, ERRKE - STARREERE  AEER
the equity interest held by the Group increased from AR EHR60.55% 1 MNZE|63.05% °

60.55% to 63.05%.

(2)  On 15 December 2020, Guangdong Capital Investment (2) 2020128150 ' EREREER
resolved to increase its capital contribution in Foshan Micro E ML NEEFIEE ARKE20.008
Credit by RMB20.00 million, and the equity interest held by BT MAEEFEHIRESRL50.4%
the Group increased from approximately 50.4% to 8 INZE #)55.247%

approximately 55.247%.
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Proceeds from Investor Subscription Shares and
Placing of new H Shares

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 May 2017, 25 May 2017, 29 June 2017, 18 July
2017, 26 July 2017, 28 September 2017, 29 December
2017, 27 March 2018, 28 March 2018, 29 March 2018, 18
April 2018, 22 February 2019, 8 May 2020 and 8 February
2021, respectively; the circulars of the Company dated 30
September 2017 (the “2017 Circular”), 9 May 2019 and 15
May 2020 (the *“2020 Circular”), respectively; and
subparagraphs headed “(lll) Further change in expected time
of utilisation of proceeds” below in relation to, among
other things, (i) the Investor Subscription; (i) the Placing; (iii)
the connected and discloseable transaction in relation to the
Capital Injection into Guangdong Yaoda Financial Leasing
Company Limited* (EXRRBEREMEBR 2 A)
(“Guangdong Yaoda”); and (iv) the change in use and
expected time of utilisation of such proceeds. Unless
otherwise specified, capitalised terms used in this
subparagraph shall have the same meanings as those
defined in the 2020 Circular.

The Company has allotted and issued and Foshan Financial
(the Subscriber) has subscribed for the Investor Subscription
Shares comprising, in aggregate, (i) 233,096,020 new
Domestic Shares at an issue price of RMB1.264
(approximately HK$1.428 at the exchange rate of HK$1:
RMB0.88507) per Domestic Share, equal to the net price per
Domestic Share; and (ii) 74,364,000 new H Shares at an
issue price of HK$1.42 per H Share, equal to the net price
per H Share on 18 April 2018. The Subscriber has
nominated Fojin Hongkong Limited (& &BAR QA
(“Fojin HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Subscriber,
to take up the Investor Subscription H Shares. The average
market price and closing market price of H Share on 15
May 2017, being which the date of the Investor
Subscription Agreement entered into between the Company
and Subscriber was HK$1.51 per H Share and HK$1.42 per
H Share, respectively.

For the reasons and benefits of issue of Investor
Subscription Shares, please refer to the 2017 Circular.

The net proceeds from the Investor Subscription is
approximately RMB375.45 million (approximately HK$424.21
million at the exchange rate of HK$1:RMB0.88507).

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Exgas (B

(Z) EERBRY RE SHHIRFER

I8

IR AT HE DB A2017F5815
H -2017%5H25H 201796 A29
< 2017%F7H18H ~2017%F7 826
+ 20179 9H28H ~2017F 12 A29
+ 201843 A27H - 201843 A28
+ 201843 H29H - 201854718
H 201992 A22H 202055 A8H &
20212 ASHMAELARARNA S BIB
152017469 H308 ([20178@ &) -
201945 H9H &202045 A 158 #3# K
(1202038 ) : T XT(I)E— =B
BREZEHRFERAREI R RAAH
(EFBRE)(WREERESIE: (NRES
H: (VBB RMERBEMEHERRA
A ((EREE I ENEERATHRSR
R RvTBHRIBRGR RTEHRERR
B2 2g - REERAIN  XOBRFTAH
FEH2020BEHAMTRTEEERARAE °

IO I o m

R2018F 48188 » &N A B & K %
7 RARBARLSEECRBEREERE
B aEBEONZERAERARE
1.26470 (3L 178 70 5 A R #0.88507 7L &9
ERAAE1.4288L  EREFRAERD
FE) M BT E KR IE233,096,020 3% #
NER  RG)ESRHR1.428 T 31T
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As at 31 December 2021, details of the use of proceeds
from the Investors Subscription are as follows:

Net proceeds allocation

FBREFENE
(i) Approximately 60% (i.e.

(

approximately RMB225.27 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$254.52 million) of the
proceeds)

) #£60% (EFAE BN AR 225.27

BERT(HERM254528E
)]

(ii) Approximately 40% (i.e.

approximately RMB150.18 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$169.68 million)

of the proceeds)

(i) #940% (RFTSFIER AR 150.18

BET(HERL16968EE
BTL))

Notes:

The proceeds from the investor subscription domestic shares

were issued

Intended use of the proceeds

FERERERSE

Pursuing acquisition and merger
opportunities when suitable target
becomes available, in order to expand
the Group's service mix and further
consolidate the market position of the
Group in Guangdong Province or Pearl
River Delta region, among which:

REEHERERRSHOABRE I
BAREENRBARRE-FEER
%;ﬁfi%%ﬁkzﬁtﬂlﬁmﬁ%m
o AR

(a) Approximately RMB50.00 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$56.49 million) will be used for
establishing @ new micro-finance
company in Zhongshan, PRC.

(@) AARES0.00EET(HERL
56.49A BB TT) K ARETED I
RUFONEEERE o

(b) Approximately RMB40.27 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$45.50 million) will be used for
capital injection in Zhongshan Join-
Share.

b) HARBLW027EET(BERY
45508 BB TT) BRRAP TR

Capital injection into Guangdong Yaoda
and/or development of other financial-
related services business that comply
with the relevant regulations and
policies, whereby:

AEREETAR/FLERERER
@&ﬁ%ﬁ’\]ﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ -

(@) Following disposal of Guangdong
Yaoda, approximately RMB37.61
million (equivalent to approximately
HK$36.84 million) will be used to
establish a new finance leasing
company which will be a subsidiary
of the Company. o2
REEEREER - HARE3761
BETURERA3684R 8% T)
BRARKIAREBERR AR
ARRAARRN T AR @

=

MR2021F12 8310 REERES=EMN

SRENFAREET

Actual use of the proceeds
as at 31 December 2021

1202151231 B BRENER &

RMB45.00 million and RMB90.00 million
have been used for the capital
contribution of establishment of
Shenzhen Join-Share Commercial
Factoring Co., Ltd.* (RYIPRBEREE
REERAR) and capital contribution
of establishment of Shenzhen Join-Share
Engineering Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (3
MHRRFETRERFRAF), which
was held as to 90% by the Company.
ARB40EETRARKN0EE
TEARIBRLE R R R R ES
EREERARRMEX LA TRE
BETRERBRAR (AARAREE
90%)

Nil

Nil

RMB112.57 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$132.84 million) has
been used for capital injection into
Guangdong Yaoda.

ARB1257E B (8 1R 4132.84
BEBT)EREREREETE -

Nil

in  RMB currency (which HK dollar were

estimated amount), the actual amount might be varied

according to exchange rate fluctuation.

The disposal of Guangdong Yaoda was completed on 9

December 2020.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

Amount of the
remaining
proceeds as at

31 December 2021
R2021512A318
ZHBRENE
&8

Amount of proceeds
brought forward to
the current financial
year

1 LE

FHBEEN
FERELS

Expected
time of
utilisation

B
R

Approximately Approximately 31-12-2022
RMB50.00 million  RMB50.00 million
(equivalent to
approximately
HK$56.49 million)

HARES0.005EL HARES00058 2025124318
T (RER 5649
BEET)

Approximately Approximately 31-12-2022
RMB40.27 million  RMBA40.27 million
(equivalent to
approximately
HK$45.50 million)

PWARBA02EET HARB4027E5E  202F12A318
L (144550
BEAT)

Approximately Approximately 31-12-2022
RMB37.61 million  RMB37.61 million

WAREIINBEET WARE3761  2022%12A318
BET

(1) REERBRNEROAEREAARE
(TEMEBETAEREERNGHEE) M
ERARENS TS EEEXRNE
i AE -

(2) ANEEDTRN2020FE12 898 EREERE
HREEH -
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Upon the completion of the Investor Subscription, the
conditions precedent to both of the First Tranche Placing
and Second Tranche Placing have been satisfied and the
Placing was completed on 18 April 2018. A total of
186,666,000 Placing Shares (new H Shares) have been
placed to nine Placees at a Placing Price of HK$1.42 per
Placing Share (with an net price of approximately HK$1.41
per Placing Share). The average market price and closing
price of H Share on 17 July 2017, being which the Placing
Agreement was entered into between the Company and the
Placing Agent in relation to the Placing, was HK$1.36 per H
Share and HK$1.37 per H Share, respectively. The Placing
Shares were placed to cover the Initial Public Float Shortfall
upon the completion of the Investor Subscription and the
Possible Further Public Float Shortfall upon the completion
of the Possible Shareholders’ Transaction, with a view to
maintaining the Public Float Requirement at all times. Please
refer to the 2017 Circular for further details regarding the
reasons and benefits of issue of Placing Shares.

The net proceeds (after deducting the placing commission
and relevant expenses) from the Placing (comprising the First
Tranche Placing and the Second Tranche Placing) are
approximately HK$262.4 million.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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As at 31 December 2021, actual use of proceeds from M2021F12 4318 B EFEAMEHIE
Placing are as follows: MERABGBRIT :
Amount of
proceeds brought ~ Amount of the
forward to the remaining
Actual use of the proceeds as current financial proceeds as at  Expected time of
Net proceeds allocation Intended use of the proceeds at 31 December 2021 year 31 December 2021 utilisation
%8BT PM01E12A318
AMBEEN  ZHBHARE i
FBREFENE FARIERERE #2021 1231 B BRENERAR FRRELE &8 il
(i) Approximately 55% (i.e. (a) Approximately RMB60.00 million (a) Approximately RMB60.00 million Nil Nil N/A
approximately HK$144.32 million (equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately
of the proceeds) HK$67.79 million) will be used for HK$67.79 million) has been used for
capital injection in Guangdong Capital capital injection in Guangdong Capital
Investment. Investment.
() #55% (ETEHEN144.32BE () HARK60.008ET (HERN67.79 () HARE60.00EET (HERA67.79 & & TER
) 2%%%)%%%@%%%1‘%@% zﬁiﬁﬁ)%ﬁﬁérﬂ}gﬁﬁﬂi%f?‘é
(b) Approximately RMB50.00 million Nil Approximately Approximately 31-12-2022
(equivalent to approximately HK56.49 million  RMB50.00 million
HK$56.49 million) will be used to (equivalent to
establish a new asset management approximately
company. HK$56.49 million)
b HAEBS0.00BBLT(RERD & H569BBRT MARB000EE  202512A318
S6.49BEAT) RARKIANEE 7T (ER456.49
N BE#HT)
(c) Approximately RMB17.73 million (c) Approximately RMB17.73 million Nil Nil N/A
(equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately
HK$20.04 million) will be used for HK$20.04 million) has been used for
general working capital and general general working capital and general
corporate purposes of the Group. corporate purposes of the Group.
(0 BARE17BEETEERN2004 () DARKI17.73BST(ER12004 & & AR
BEAT) BREASEN—R=EE BEAT) BREASEN-REEE
ER-RAFAE - ER-RAGME -
(i) Approximately 35% (i.e. Funding the geographical expansion of the  Nil Approximately Approximately 30-06-2022
approximately HK$91.84 million ~ Group's financing guarantee business to HK91.84 million  HK$91.84 million
of the proceeds) Guangzhou city of Guangdong Province,

which is planned to be achieved through
establishing a new subsidiary or (if
desirable) acquiring an equity interest in an
entity which is providing financing
guarantee services in that district.

(i) #35% (REEHENNSEE BRETSENBERREBREREEN & HIBAEBATL H984EEET  2022%6A308
o) MR EE - SHEERR -BHTA

A5 (AR E) WE—-REZDERER
RERRBHERORENES o

(iii) Approximately 10% (i.e. General working capital purposes, of HK$15.744 million has been used for the Nil Nil N/A
approximately HK$26.24 million ~ which approximately 6% will be used for renovation of existing office premises of
of the proceeds) the renovation of existing office premises the Group and the setting up of new

of the Group and the setting up of new offices by the Group in Foshan to enhance
offices by the Group in Foshan to enhance its business network in the city and
its business network in the city and HK$10.496 million has been used for
approximately 4% will be used for purchasing office equipment including
purchasing office equipment including computers and for upgrading the
computers and for upgrading the computer software.

computer software.

(ii) 910% DAEHEN0.24EE —REELALAE APH6%RANAE 1574BZETERANAEERERA & & AER
BT ERERDSHBMARERLRULAS SHEMARERLRIFHERAER

ERIVERASBEELTOXBEE 4 AREEZDOXHBL 10498872
ARARBERARE (BRER) R nTERANBEERARG (REEK) R

REREM - REWEM -
The actual and proposed use of net proceeds from the L EH REEREFEREEEEYN
Listing, the Investor Subscription and the Placing FERIEFENER BT REEAR
aforementioned are consistent with the intended use of the AIHHI /201659 H26H k202142 H8
proceeds disclosed in the announcements of the Company HOREMEENFTSERTER SR —
dated 26 September 2016 and 8 February 2021. 2o
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() Further change in expected time of utilisation of

proceeds

In view of the continual stringent regulatory measures
imposed on companies engaging in the financial industry in
the PRC, certain proceeds from the Listing, the Investor
Subscription and the Placing (collectively, the “Proceeds”)
have not been used up according to the expected time of
utilisation as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 8 February 2021.

The Board noted that, the PRC government and regulatory
authorities remained stringent in the regulation and control
over the financial industry to prevent systemic financial risks,
and the approval procedures for investments in the financial
industry continued to be strictly scrutinised and complicated.
The establishment of, or investments in certain businesses, in
particular finance leasing, factoring and asset management
companies, are subject to prior-approval by relevant
government authorities. Such industries are currently
undergoing the stage of regulatory compliance
enhancement and reification, resulting in delay or
suspension in certain approval process. Accordingly, during
2021, the Board remained having the view that it was no
wise timing to deploy its resources to identify and execute
its expansion or investments in the PRC financial industry.

As the development of the current regulatory regime
remains uncertain, to optimise the Group’s financial
resources and enhance the cost efficiency of using the
remaining proceeds, the Board has further revised the
expected time of utilisation of the remaining proceeds as
illustrated in the tables set out in sub-paragraphs headed
“(I) Proceeds from the Listing” and “(ll) Proceeds from
investor subscription shares and placing of new H Shares”
above. The Board will closely monitor the development of
the regulatory regime and the market conditions of the PRC
financial industry and actively explore suitable opportunities
to archive its expansion goal.
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MAJOR BANKING PARTNERS

Cooperation with commercial banks are essential to the Group's
financing guarantee business, as the Group depends on its
relationships with commercial banks for acceptance of guarantees
and for customer referrals. Most of these commercial banks are
state-owned commercial banks or major joint-stock commercial
banks. The relevant member of the Group generally enters into
cooperative agreement with these banks which sets out the term
of cooperation, the maximum amount of liability in respect of
which the relevant member of the Group could guarantee, the
requirement for the relevant member of the Group making
security deposits with these banks, various operative covenants
the relevant member of the Group may need to comply with and
the default payment arrangements. In 2021, the five largest
cooperative banks of the Group accounted for approximately
47.38% of its outstanding guarantees, while the largest
cooperative bank accounted for approximately 16.76% of its
outstanding guarantees. As of 31 December 2021, the Group
guaranteed a total financing of approximately RMB1,912.45
million provided by the Group’s top five cooperative banks. In
addition to banks, various other stakeholders may be involved in
the provision of different products and services by the Group,
including re-guarantee institutions, other guarantee companies,
trust companies, securities companies, finance lease companies
and local governments. The relevant member of the Group has
entered into re-guarantee arrangements with several re-guarantee
institutions, which will pay the default amount for the relevant
member of the Group to settle with the lenders in the event that
such member of the Group is insolvent and cannot settle such
default amount for the customers. The relevant member of the
Group has entered into joint-guarantee arrangements with other
guarantee institutions, which will pay a certain portion of the
default amount to such member of the Group in the event that
such member of the Group settles the full default amount for the
customers. The relevant member of the Group has also entered
into cooperative agreements with several local governments to
better manage the Group’s credit risks through allocating the risks
between the local government and the Group.

Due to the Group's business nature, the Group does not have
major suppliers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Group’s customers primarily include SMEs and individual
business proprietors. The Group charges mainly guarantee fee and
interest fee in return for the guarantee and lending services
provided by it, respectively, to its customers. For the year ended
31 December 2021, revenue derived from the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 10.92% of its total
income and revenue derived from the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 8.28% of its total income.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates or any Shareholders, which to the
best knowledge of the Company own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any interests in the Group’s
five largest customers for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 20 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 31 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DEBENTURES

On 18 March 2021, the Company issued RMB260 million
Corporate Bonds (Tranche 1) to Professional Investors with a
coupon rate of 4.60% on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. For
definition of the aforesaid terms and details, please refer to the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 31 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report,
and details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law of the PRC, amounted to approximately
RMB107.33 million. Please refer to note 31 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report for
calculation of reserves available.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of interest-bearing borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 23 to audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into several guarantee service
agreements with connected persons during the year ended 31
December 2021 which constituted connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Listing Rules”):

(1) the guarantee service agreement with Foshan Lianyi
Construction Materials Co., Ltd.* (U iz 2R AR
A ®]) (“Lianyi Construction”) (as warrantee) dated 8
September 2021, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide guarantee (the “Lianyi Construction Guarantee”)
in favour of the various entities and financial institutions
from which Lianyi Construction obtained or intend to obtain
facilities of up to RMB20 million. The term of guarantee
service is 11 August 2021 to 10 August 2024. Lianyi
Construction shall pay an annual service fee to the
Company calculated at 4% per annum based on the actual
principal of the facilities obtained by it. In respect of the
Lianyi Construction Guarantee, Mr. Zhang Minming, a non-
executive Director of the Company (“Mr. Zhang”),
Guangdong Formanda Group Co., Ltd.* (ERFIFREEEH
R 72 7)) (“Formanda”) and its two subsidiaries have jointly
provided counter-guarantee to the Company. Lianyi
Construction is held as to 96% by Formanda and 4% by
Ms. Liang Wangkai, mother of Mr. Zhang (“Ms. Liang").
Formanda is held as to 95% by Mr. Zhang and 5% by Ms.
Liang;
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the guarantee service agreement with Foshan Gaoji Real
Estate Consulting Co., Ltd.* (flLTT & EHEZAERE L
Al) (“Foshan Gaoji”) (as warrantee) dated 8 September
2021, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
guarantee (the “Foshan Gaoji Guarantee”) in favour of the
various entities and financial institutions from which Foshan
Gaoji obtained or intend to obtain facilities of up to RMB20
million. The term of guarantee service is 20 August 2021 to
19 August 2024. Foshan Gaoji shall pay an annual service
fee to the Company calculated at 4% per annum based on
the actual principal of the facilities obtained by it. In respect
of the Foshan Gaoji Guarantee, Mr. Zhang, Mr. He Qiwen
(“Mr. He”), Mr. Liang Wei ("Mr. Liang”), Formanda,
Guangdong Gaoji Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* (E®
BELEEE AR AF) ("Guangdong Gaoji”), Huizhou
Gaoji (defined below) and Guangzhou Fangjia (defined
below) have jointly provided counter-guarantee to the
Company. Foshan Gaoji is wholly-owned by Guangdong
Gaoji, which is in turn held as to 60% by Mr. Zhang, 39%
by Mr. He and 1% by Foshan Gaoji;

the guarantee service agreement with Huizhou Gaoji Network
Technology Co., Ltd* (EMESTH/EREERQA)
("Huizhou Gaoji”) (as warrantee) dated 8 September 2021,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
guarantee (the “Huizhou Gaoji Guarantee”) in favour of
the various entities and financial institutions from which
Huizhou Gaoji obtained or intend to obtain facilities of up
to RMB20 million. The term of guarantee service is 20
August 2021 to 19 August 2024. Huizhou Gaoji shall pay
an annual service fee to the Company calculated at 4% per
annum based on the actual principal of the facilities
obtained by it. In respect of the Huizhou Gaoji Guarantee,
Mr. Zhang, Mr. He, Mr. Liang, Formanda, Guangdong Gaoji,
Foshan Gaoji and Guangzhou Fangjia have jointly provided
counter-guarantee to the Company. Huizhou Gaoji is held as
to 60% by Guangdong Gaoji and 40% by Mr. Han
Yonggang;
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the guarantee service agreement with Guangzhou Fangjia
Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (EMTERMBEFHERA
Al) (“Guangzhou Fangjia”) (as warrantee) dated 8
September 2021, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide guarantee (the “Guangzhou Fangjia Guarantee”)
in favour of the various entities and financial institutions
from which Guangzhou Fangjia obtained or intend to obtain
facilities of up to RMB20 million. The term of guarantee
service is 20 August 2021 to 19 August 2024. Guangzhou
Fangjia shall pay an annual service fee to the Company
calculated at 4% per annum based on the actual principal
of the facilities obtained by it. In respect of the Guangzhou
Fangjia Guarantee, Mr. Zhang, Mr. He, Mr. Liang,
Formanda, Guangdong Gaoji, Huizhou Gaoji and Foshan
Gaoji have jointly provided counter-guarantee to the
Company. Guangzhou Fangjia is wholly-owned by
Guangdong Gaoji; and

(the Lianyi Construction Guarantee, the Foshan Gaoji
Guarantee, the Huizhou Gaoji Guarantee and the
Guangzhou Fangjia Guarantee are collectively referred to as
the “2021 September Guarantees”)

the guarantee service agreement with Huanai Construction
Materials Co., Ltd.* (EMILREMBRAF) (“Huanai
Construction Materials”) (as warrantee) dated 29 October
2021, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
guarantee (the “Huanai Construction Materials
Guarantee”) in favour of the various entities and financial
institutions from which Huanai Construction Materials
obtained or intend to obtain facilities of up to RMB70
million. The term of guarantee service is 29 September
2021 to 28 September 2024. Huanai Construction Materials
shall pay an annual service fee to the Company calculated
at 4% per annum based on the actual principal of the
facilities obtained by it. In respect of the Huanai
Construction Materials Guarantee, six individuals including
Mr. Jia Feng and his wife, Mr. Li Qi (“Mr. Li"), a Supervisor
and his wife and two other indirect shareholders of Huanai
Construction Materials and four companies including Huanai
Home Furnishing Co., Ltd.* (EMXRFEABR2AA]), Huanai
Home Furnishing Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (ZEMNZRE K
ZEEABMRAR) and two other companies have provided
counter-guarantees to the Company. Huanai Construction
Materials has only appointed one executive Director who is
Mr. Li.
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The provision of the 2021 September Guarantees and the Huanai
Construction Materials Guarantee fell within the scope of the
Group’s primary business which will generate operating revenue to
the Group, as well as provide continuous support to the business
development of the respective warrantees.

Mr. Zhang is a non-executive Director and accordingly a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the
Listing Rules. Each of Formanda and Guangdong Gaoji is an
associate of Mr. Zhang. Lianyi Construction, being a subsidiary of
Formanda, Foshan Gaoji, Huizhou Gaoji and
Guangzhou Fangjia, each being a subsidiary of Guangdong Gaoji,
are also associates of Mr. Zhang under Rules 14A.07(4) and
14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules. Hence, each of Lianyi
Construction, Formanda, Foshan Gaoji, Huizhou Gaoji, Guangzhou
Fangjia and Guangdong Gaoji is a connected person of the
Company. Therefore, the provision of the 2021 September
Guarantees constitutes a financial assistance and is a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, the 2021
September Guarantees shall be aggregated given the
corresponding guarantee service agreements are (i) entered into by
associates of Mr. Zhang and (i) entered into within a 12-month
period. As all the applicable ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules) of the provision of the 2021 September
Guarantees are below 5%, such connected transaction is subject
to reporting and announcement requirements only but exempted
from circular and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.76(2)(a) of the Listing Rules.

as well as

Mr. Li is a Supervisor and accordingly a connected person of the
Company. Huanai Construction Materials is an associate of Mr. Li
and hence a connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the provision of
the Huanai Construction Materials Guarantee constitutes a
financial assistance and is a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As all the
applicable ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) of
the provision of the Huanai Construction Materials Guarantee are
below 5%, such connected transaction is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but exempted from circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.76(2)(a) of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 8 September 2021 and 29 October 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company are set out in note 34 to the audited consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. Save as disclosed in the
paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions” in this Report of the
Board of Directors, the related party transactions did no fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors and the supervisors of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Director

Mr. Wu Liejin (Chairman and President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Minming

Mr. Li Shen Hua (appointed on 29 January 2021)

Mr. Luo Zhenging (retired on 5 June 2021 and
re-elected on 13 January 2022)

Mr. Zhao Wei (appointed on 29 January 2021)

Mr. Ou Weiming (appointed on 6 June 2021)

Ms. Gu Lidan (resigned on 5 January 2021)

Mr. Zhang Deben (retired on 5 June 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Xiangneng

Mr. Leung Hon Man

Mr. Wang Bo (appointed on 6 June 2021)
Mr. Liu Heng (retired on 5 June 2021)

Supervisors

Mr. Li Qi (Chairman)

Ms. Li Wanmin (appointed on 13 January 2022)

Mr. Liu Shu (appointed on 6 June 2021 and
resigned on 13 January 2022)

Mr. Chen Xin (appointed on 6 June 2021)

Ms. Feng Qunying (retired on 5 June 2021)

Mr. Liao Zhenliang (retired on 5 June 2021)

Mr. Zhong Jian

Mr. Huang Shaoxiong (appointed on 20 December 2021)

Mr. Liang Yi (resigned on 20 December 2021)

Ms. Huang Yuzhen
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Ms. Gu Lidan tendered her resignation as a non-executive Director
with effect from 5 January 2021 due to job transfer. Mr. Zhang
Deben and Mr. Liu Heng did not offer himself for re-election as
Director due to other work arrangements and retired from office
as a non-executive Director and an independent non-executive
Director, respectively on 5 June 2021. Each of Ms. Gu, Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Liu confirmed that they have no disagreement with the
Board and there are no other matters regarding their resignation
that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or
the Stock Exchange.

Details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received the annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence, and considered all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered a service
contract with the Company with a term commencing on 6 June
2021 or his/her respective appointment dates (whichever is later)
to the date of expiry of the fifth session of the Board or the
board of supervisors of the Company (as the case may be), which
is expected to be 5 June 2024.

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the connected transactions as set out in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transactions” in the Report of the Board of
Directors and the material related party transactions entered into
by the Company and the relevant related parties as set out in
note 34 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, no material transactions, arrangements or contract
of significance to the Group's business to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Supervisor has any material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may cause
any significant competition with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was set up for,
among others, reviewing and making recommendations on
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of the
Company, taking into account salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group.

For general emolument policy, please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Human Resources” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Other than the
general emolument policy, currently the Group does not have
long-term incentive schemes. For remuneration of the Group’s
management, please refer to paragraphs headed
“Remuneration and Appraisal Committee” in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

senior
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As a financing services provider, the Company’s principal risks
include credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group has
put in place a series of risk management procedures for
guarantee business since its establishment in 2003. It reviews and
enhances such procedures annually and when necessary to cater
to the on-going development and evolution of its business and
products as well as any changes in the regulatory and industry
environment, and supplements its risk management procedures
when it starts new business lines or introduces new products.

The Group aims to manage risks through internal mechanisms
that carefully and systematically manage the risks via a series of
standardised risk management procedures, and external
mechanisms that allocate risks among itself and other parties,
including counter-guarantees from customers or their affiliates,
and joint-guarantee arrangements with certain guarantee
companies and local governments. It is also trying to develop and
maintain a diversified customer base to reduce the risks of any
downturn in any of its customers’ industries causing a material
adverse effect on its business, and to cautiously select its
customers. In addition, it continuously manages its project
portfolio to avoid concentration of its guarantee obligations and
loans maturing in a particular period. It tailors its risk
management procedures according to the characteristics of each
business segments, focusing on implementing a systematic and
thorough review of its potential risks at multiple levels, and
covering every key stage of its business operations, from pre-
transaction assessment, customer due diligence, multiple-level
review and approval processes and counter-guarantee
arrangement to post- transaction monitoring. It also continuously
monitors the strengths and weaknesses of its risk management
system, aiming to minimise risk and adapt to changes in the
markets in which it operates.

For details of financial risk management, please refer to note 32
to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

For the vyear ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
purchased liability insurance for the Directors and Supervisors
which provides proper insurance for the Directors and Supervisors
in respect of liabilities from legal actions against them arising
from corporate activities.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes organised
by the respective municipal governments of the PRC whereby the
Group is required to pay annual contributions for PRC based
employees at certain rate of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not use the
forfeited pension to reduce its existing level of contribution. The
Group has no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits to the PRC based employees beyond the annual
contributions described above. Please refer to notes 1(o) and 4(b)
to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual
report for details of the Group's retirement benefits scheme.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, there was no
change to any of the information required to be disclosed in
relation to any Director and Supervisor pursuant to paragraphs (a)
to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors, or the chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”")) which were
required, (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO, or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Interest in Shares of the Company REATR GRS

Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of  shareholding in
shareholding the total share

Number and in the relevant capital of the
Name of Shareholder  Position Nature of Interest class of Shares™ class of Shares® Company®
ERARRERNZ (EEATRFEY
KRR &E Bk fur BHBERERN HRELESLD ZRHREBHESHLS
Mr. Wu Ligjin Director Beneficial owner 32,110,351 3.19% 2.06%
Domestic Shares (L)
RIE R E - EnBEAA 32,110,351 R & A% (L)
Mr. Li Shen Hua Director Beneficial owner 35,000,000 6.31% 2.24%
H Shares (L)
77,720,000 7.72% 4.98%

Domestic Shares (L)

FRERE - EnEAA 35,000,000 A% HA% (L)
77,720,000 A& A% (L)
Ms. Huang Yuzhen Supervisor  Beneficial owner 50,000 0.01% 0.01%
Domestic Shares (L)
ERY XL Ex EnEEA 50,000/ A& Bz (L)
Notes: Pt EE -
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. (1) FEILEZATIRABROOTE -

(2)  As at 31 December 2021, the issued Domestic Shares and the H  (2)  #2021%12A318  AAR 2 BEITRNER L
Shares of the Company were 1,006,429,353 Shares and HEE & B » Bl &£1,006,429,3531 &
554,363,334 Shares, respectively. 554,363,334 °

(3)  As at 31 December 2021, there were a total of 1,560,792,687 (3) 20214128318 + AR T FHITEING G
Shares of the Company in issue. #HHA*A1,560,792,687 % °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, Supervisors, or the chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which are
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO, or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in associated corporations

None of the Directors, Supervisors, or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or Supervisors or any of their respective
associates was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, or had exercised any such right.

2021 5 &
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BEFg®RE (B

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FTERFRKRG ZBEFEKD ZER R
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING %2
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the persons, (not being the Directors, 7202112 H318 * RAR A2 D B
Supervisors or the chief executive of the Company) or MHEAREZESFRPEEFIEXVEEE2R3IND
corporations having short positions in the Shares or underlying #3ZERIARAT RBZHIKEZ AR @ 8L AR
Shares of the Company which are required to be notified to the 1EZE5REEIEFIE36EBEFE 2 ELMA
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part 2 %X& - B ER K AR AT R IAISE R T
XV of the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept HEAARRRASHRE Z TAERIKEAZ HE
under section 336 of the SFO and who were directly and/or HEEN SMEHEES%SNA EZERZZ A
indirectly deem to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal =+ (WHARARIEE EEZNRFBITHAE) sk
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all R FIZIELT :

circumstances at general meetings of the Company are listed as

follows:

Approximate

Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding
shareholding R GERGIE]
Number and in the relevant share capital of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest class of Shares™ class of Shares? the Company®
S AR ER EEATREFEH
REEH Bang BRHERERNY ZBORREMN? ZBORRESLe
Fojin Hongkong Limited Beneficial owner 164,164,000 H Shares (L) 29.61% 10.52%
(“Fojin HK")®
FEEAERDA((HEFE)Y BEZHEEA 164,164,000B% HA% (L)
Foshan Financial Investment Holding Interest of controlled 164,164,000 H Shares (L) 29.61% 10.52%
Co., Ltd.* (“Foshan Financial”)®  corporation®
FILTEmEEZERERAF R EEERRY 164,164,000f HA (L)
([#ltz])o
Beneficial owner 239,854,838 23.83% 15.37%
Domestic Shares (L)
ERBEBA 239,854,838 WA R (L)
Interest of controlled 33,002,680 3.28% 2.11%
corporation® Domestic Shares (L)
WAL ERO 33,002,680 & A& (L)
Hong Kong Wellknown Development Beneficial owner 87,872,000 H Shares (L) 15.85% 5.63%
Limited (“"Hong Kong
Wellknown")?”
BEELERARAA ERBEBA 87,872,000 B HAR (L)
([FHEELE])D
Dragon Pearl Hong Kong Investment ~ Beneficial owner 94,066,000 H Shares (L) 16.97% 6.03%
Development Limited (“Dragon
Pearl”)”
ERAAREBRBRADA ExBEAA 94,066,000 & HAR (L)
([8E% )"
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Name of Shareholders

R
Wu Zhi Jian?

7\% =+ ER()

IV ==

Lo Kai Bong®
EfTa?

True Faith International Enterprise
Limited ("True Faith
International")®

ERERCEERAA
(THHER])®

True Faith Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited (“True Faith HK")®

EREE(FE)ERAR
((EHRE(EFE)])®

Real Faith Enterprise (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
(“Real Faith”)®
BELE(FE)ERRA
(THfE1)®

Guangdong Zhaoxin Group

Nature of Interest

BaEtE

Interest of controlled

corporation
NRZEEER

Beneficial owner

EGAA

Beneficial owner

it

REEA

\

Interest of controlled
corporation

REEEE R
Interest of controlled
corporation

REEEE RS

Interest of controlled

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Number and
class of Shares®

kB3 E REH

110,712,000 H Shares (L)

110,712,000 HAZ (L)
30,368,000 H Shares (L)
30,368,000 H A% (L)
30,414,000 H Shares (L)

30,414,000 HAR (L)

30,414,000 H Shares (L)

30,414,000 HE% (L)

30,414,000 H Shares (L)

30,414,000 HAR (L)

30,414,000 H Shares (L)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the relevant
class of Shares®

155 Rk 3 2 5l
ZBOBRE S

19.97%

5.48%

5.49%

5.49%

5.49%

5.49%

Exgas (B

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
RGERGIE]

share capital of
the Company®
ERATREBY
ZBHBRE LS

7.09%

1.95%

1.95%

1.95%

1.95%

1.95%

Holdings Co. Ltd.* corporation
("Guangdong Zhaoxin")®
ERBEEERNERAT NEREAE: £ 30,414,000ARHAR (L)
([ EREBIE )
Notes: Mzr -
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1) FELIEZATRIBEHRIFA -

(2)  As at 31 December 2021, the issued Domestic Shares and the H ()
Shares of the Company were 1,006,429,353 Shares and
554,363,334 Shares, respectively.

R2021F12A318 » ARFEBITRER K
HEX 8B 2 5 21,006,429,353 /% &
554,363,334/ °

(3) As at 31 December 2021, there were 1,560,792,687 Shares of the 3)
Company in issue.

R2021F 128318 » RARFEITEING D
# B 51,560,792,687f% °
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(4)  Based on the disclosure of interests form submitted by Mr. Lo Kai
Bong on 24 December 2021, Mr. Lo Kai Bong held 30,368,000 H
Shares as beneficial owner.

(5) Foshan Financial holds 100% of Fojin HK and is deemed to be
interested in 164,164,000 H Shares of the Company held by the
latter.

(6)  Foshan Fuside Im‘rastructure Investment Co., Ltd.* (#ElLTh=E BEE
RRIEREBRAD ("Fuside”) is wholly owned by Foshan
Financial. Therefore, Foshan Financial was deemed to be interested
in the 33,002,680 Domestic Shares held by Fuside. Taking into
account the 239,854,838 Domestic Shares held by Foshan Financial,
Foshan Financial was deemed to be interested in 272,857,518
Domestic Shares in total.

(7) Based on the disclosure of interests form submitted by Hong Kong
Wellknown on 9 November 2021, Hong Kong Wellknown, which is
wholly owned by Dragon Pearl and in turn wholly owned by Mr.
Wu Zhi Jian, was interested in 87,872,000 H Shares. Based on the
disclosure of interests form submitted by Dragon Pearl on 9
November 2021, Dragon Pearl, which is wholly owned by Mr. Wu
Zhi Jian, was interested in 94,066,000 H Shares. Based on the
disclosure of interests form submitted by Mr. Wu Zhi Jian on 9
November 2021, Mr. Wu Zhi Jian was interested in 110,712,000 H
Shares in aggregate through corporations controlled by him

(8)  Based on the disclosure of interests form submitted by Guangdong
Zhaoxin on 11 April 2019, True Faith International is wholly-owned
by True Faith HK, which is in turn wholly-owned by Real Faith,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Guangdong Zhaoxin. Therefore,
True Faith HK, Real Faith and Guangdong Zhaoxin are all deemed
to be interested in the 30,414,000 H Shares held by True Faith
International.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
is not aware of any other persons (not being the Directors,
Supervisors or the chief executive of the Company) or
corporations having interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or who were
directly and/or indirectly deemed to be interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the vyear ended 31 December 2021, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption of any listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the relevant laws of the PRC that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Non-adjusting post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 39
to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021. During the meetings, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s internal controls
and financial reporting matters with the management.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group carries out internal recycling measures in terms of its
consumables (e.g. toner cartridge and paper) in order to lessen its
impact on consumption of resources and impact on environment
resulting from the operating activities. The Group implements
energy saving measures in the offices and branches and
encourages its employees to reduce unnecessary use of light and
air-conditioning. Further details on the environmental policies
adopted by the Group and the implementation related thereto are
set out under “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of
this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEFg®RE (B

COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is able to comply with relevant requirements of laws,
regulations, rules and provisions of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and
the SFO in Hong Kong, the Company Law of the PRC {(FZE AR
HHMBE 2 FE)), the Basic Norms of Enterprise Internal Control
QEREESEAREE)), Interim Measures for the
Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies (& & 14 ¥ %
NAEBEITHE)), Guiding opinions of China Banking
Regulatory Commission and People’s Bank of China on Pilot
Projects of Small Loan Companies {(FEIIRITEEBEHREZES -
FEARRITENNEERRAAMNIEZER)) in China etc,,
including information disclosure, corporate governance and
standard industry operation, etc. Further details on the Group’s
compliance with relevant laws and regulations are set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high level of corporate
governance. The Board currently comprises one executive Director,
five non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has adopted the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, except that Mr. Wu
Liejin, an executive Director, has been performing the roles as the
Chairman and the President, which deviates from provision A.2.1
of the CG Code (which has been renumbered as code provision
C.2.1 since 1 January 2022), the Company has complied with all
the code provisions under the CG Code. Details on the corporate
governance practice of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report. The Board will continue to review and improve
the Company’s corporate governance system to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report and based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by KPMG. There has been no
change in the auditor of the Company in the preceding three
years. KPMG shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board of
Guangdong Join-Share Financing
Guarantee Investment Co., Ltd.*

Wu Liejin

Chairman of the Board

25 March 2022

*

For identification purposes only
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BREEHRE

The board (the “Board of Supervisors”) of Supervisors has
executed its duties earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests
of the Company and its Shareholders, complied with the principle
of good faith and carried out its work in a diligent and proactive
manner pursuant to the provisions of the Company Law of the
PRC, other relevant laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company (the "Articles of Association”).

During the vyear ended 31 December 2021, the Board of
Supervisors reviewed cautiously the operation and development
plans of the Company and put forward reasonable suggestions
and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively
monitored and supervised the significant policies and specific
decisions made by the management of the Company to ensure
that they were in compliance with the laws and regulations of the
PRC and the Articles of Association, and in the interests of the
Shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors have reviewed earnestly and approved
the report of the Board of Directors, audited financial statements
and the dividend payment proposal to be presented by the Board
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. We are of the
opinion that the Board, chief executive and other
management of the Company have strictly complied with the
principle of good faith, and have worked diligently, exercised their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company, and
executed various tasks pursuant to the Articles of Association. Up
till now, none of the Directors, chief executive nor senior
management of the Company has been found to have been in
breach of any laws or regulations or the Articles of Association
and damaged the interests of the Company or the Shareholders.

senior

The Board of Supervisors is satisfied with the various tasks carried
out by the Company in 2021 and the economic benefits
generated therefrom. It has full confidence in the future
development outlook of the Company.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Li Qi
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
25 March 2022

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

lcRnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Guangdong Join-Share Financing Guarantee Investment Co.,
Ltd.

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Guangdong Join-Share Financing Guarantee Investment Co., Ltd.
("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on
pages 174 to 320, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BEn S ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES AND PROVISIONS

FOR GUARANTEE LOSSES

Refer to Notes 12,

The Key Audit Matter
FAgE SR

The Group has applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard No. 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9")
since 1 January 2018 and developed a new impairment
model for financial assets.

EEERH2018F1 A1 BRERTEYEMEELE IR
— eRIA(BEENBHRESEAZSR) IReREE
il T FTEVRER R o

The determination of loss allowances using the expected
credit loss model (“ECL model”) is subject to a number
of key parameters and assumptions, including the
identification of credit-impaired stage, estimates of
probability of default, loss given default, exposures at
default and discount rate, adjustments for forward-
looking information and other adjustment factors.
Management judgment is involved in the selection of
those parameters and the application of the
assumptions.

KARBACEEEEEX ((RHEEEERX ) ETEE
BHEXBENZETIEZZHLRER  BREAEERER
B ETEARME  BHBXL  EORER RERE
AIEMENFAEREMHAERER - BEZE2HRER
RS B TR E I -

In particular, the determination of the loss allowances
and provisions for guarantee losses is heavily dependent
on the external macro environment and the Group's
internal credit risk management strategy. The Group's
expected credit losses and provisions for guarantee
losses are derived from estimates including the Group’s
historical losses, internal and external credit grading and
other adjustment factors.

LHEHR BErBERBEHELERBEEFSRAREE LI
/kﬁﬁl\ﬁf&ﬁfatstﬁzliglﬁ’ﬁﬂ*ﬁf:f % B R
o & lE’Ji‘ﬁiﬁﬂﬁiéﬁéﬂ%&%ﬂ%ﬁa’tﬁ-ﬁiﬂﬁEE
it B ESENBEBRE - ABRINEERTRR
HibHREE -

13, 14 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Notes 1(j) and (r).

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB S ()
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAEBRPNAEEZER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
receivables and provisions for guarantee losses included
the following:

B EERRFIERERERFELEBENETIEFE
e
o understanding and assessing the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of financial reporting over the
approval, recording and monitoring of receivables
and financial guarantees issued, the identification
of the three stages of ECL model and the
measurement of impairment losses for receivables
and provisions for financial guarantees issued.

o  HRNEH EHEEZEEWFELREELORMERE
REOM G REBRABESEROR - BRELE
THR BRHEEBEEX=Z[ERRNER  BK
FENREEEAEREELNORERREL ST
e

. with the assistance of our internal specialists,
assessing the reliability of the expected credit loss
model used by management in determining loss
allowances, including assessing the appropriateness
of the key parameters and assumptions in the
expected credit loss model, including the
identification of loss stages, probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information
and other management adjustments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BEn S ()

Refer to Notes 12, 13, 14 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Notes 1(j) and (r).

The Key Audit Matter
F#EEstEIE

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the debtors, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and the
existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.
ERETECENBEAEXNeERTIEREZEAEE
i FIEr o ELEE =B E R ERIBER ] BRRUEE - BB
AT BHR BRI RE2E  REZEIEF R
HEHMEREARSFERHEGERERSE

Whilst the Group appoints external valuers for the
valuation of certain properties and other illiquid
collateral, the enforceability, timing and means of
realisation of collateral can also have an impact on the
recoverable amount of collateral and, therefore, the
amount of impairment losses and provisions for
guarantee losses as at the end of the reporting period.
BE BEXEEZEIIEMGERMTGEE TYWEREMIER
eEFR  BEFRERROATRTE BEERFATE
HEAmrI KOS BEESZE  WELHREHRER
BROBEBESERBREELRXE -

We identified the impairment of receivables and
provisions for guarantee losses as a key audit matter
because of the inherent uncertainty and management
judgment involved and because of their significance to
the financial results and capital of the Group.

B EEFIEREREREEEEHE R ABARET
FIH - DERFIPENEETHAREZREEE H A
k¥ SEEENBEERERANEZESR -

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETBEPNEREZER

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data
used for the key parameters in the expected credit
loss model. For key parameters derived from
internal data relating to original receivables or
guarantees agreements, we compared the total
balance of the receivables grading report and
guarantee list, which contain information used by
management to assess impairment losses and
provisions for guarantee losses with the general
ledger, selecting samples and comparing individual
receivables and guarantee information with the
underlying receivables and guarantee agreements
and other related documentation to assess the
accuracy of compilation of the receivables grading
report and of the guarantee list. For key
parameters derived from external data, we selected
samples to inspect the accuracy of such data by
comparing them with public resources.
TEERAEEERRAT I 22 MBHEBENTE
MR EEN - R ERERFIASERBER BN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB S ()

Refer to Notes 12, 13, 14 and 17 to the consolidated financial — FER[#EBERENL12 - 13~ 145174 %

statements and the accounting policies in Notes 1(j) and (r). BIaE10) R (B S B -
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
FAgEET EIE BMEtAEPINAREZEER

o for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the
Group's internal records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part of these
procedures, we challenged management’s revisions
to estimates and input parameters compared with
prior period and on transition to the new
accounting standard and considered the consistency
of judgement. We compared the economic factors
used in the models with market information to
assess whether they were aligned with market and
economic development.

e HMIRHABNEIEZEZHME - BBEBINBRIRSR
EERER ERENABLH(BEATERERE
RIER @R SR AT A B AL E - (ERZFIR
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B WERAEB S B - RABERPTALE
HRETIHESETLER AT EERTET SR
RBER -

J evaluating the validity of management’s assessment
on whether the credit risk of the receivables and
guarantees have, or have not, increased
significantly since initial recognition and whether
the receivables and guarantees are credit-impaired
by selecting samples in industries more vulnerable
to the current economic situation with reference to
other debtors with potential credit risk. We
checked the overdue information, making enquiries
of the credit managers about the debtors’ business
operations, checking debtors’ financial information
and researching market information about debtors’
businesses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BEn S ()

Refer to Notes 12, 13, 14 and 17 to the consolidated financial AR #FEERENZL12 13~ 14174 %

statements and the accounting policies in Notes 1(j) and (r). Brat10) R (e & 5B o
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
g EstEIE MBSt BEP A REEZSEE

o for receivables that are credit-impaired, evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of any
property collateral held by comparison with market
prices based on the location and use of the
property and the prices of neighbouring properties.
We also evaluated the timing and means of
realisation of collateral, evaluated the forecast cash
flows, challenged the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans and evaluated other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contract
terms.

o FEERENEBKFKIENES  BRLBERYMEME
VENBGREENTEELIMENERIEERE
&8 AT E Y E B mEENT(E - HIRTME
SRAARAOKREIRX FAHBARSRE &
B ESEEWEE SR AT REHEE S D RRD
ARNESE TR -

o recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance for
12-month and life time credit losses using the
expected credit loss model based on the above
parameters and assumptions for receivables and
guarantees where the credit risk of receivables and
guarantees has not, or has, increased significantly
since initial recognition, respectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB S ()

Refer to Notes 12, 13, 14 and 17 to the consolidated financial B E#EFERZEMNF12 13~ 148174 %
statements and the accounting policies in Notes 1(j) and (r). BIaE10) R (B S B -

The Key Audit Matter
FEEEstEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETBEPNEREEZER

° assessing the completeness and accuracy of
outstanding financial guarantees by inspecting
contracts, on a sample basis, and obtaining
confirmations from the beneficiaries of all financial
guarantees issued.

U AR —TEORMEEERES SN REE R HONM AR
BREROZHAETRE  TERKEEREERE
R STRR I I R M o

o evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment of
receivables and provisions for guarantee losses meet
the disclosure requirements in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard No. 7 — Financial Instruments:
Disclosures (“HKFRS 7").

o  HMEABERUFIEREMEFREEEGSHNEKER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BEn S ()

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BEn S ()

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Choi Ching Hin.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEmAEEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB’000) / EZ20215612 A31HIEFE AARBFLIIR)

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETR

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR¥F T

Guarantee fee income FERE WA 231,420 216,246
Guarantee cost ERK AR (38,254) (39,684)
_Net guarantee fee income BREMOAF® 193166 176,562
Interest income FEU A 104,901 95,300
Interest expenses B (26,154) (16,617)
_Net interest income LN O o 78747 78,683
_Semvice fee from consulting services  sEwfR&®E 38159 . 29,202
Revenue Wz 2(a) 310,072 284,447
Other revenue E fth Uk 25 3 8,631 22,240

Share of (losses)/gains of associates FE{GEEE N A (B518)/
e (3,022) 15,108
Provisions charged for FHREREEEES
guarantee losses 24(a) (10,249) (2,811)
Impairment losses BEMEEX 4(a) (42,937) (50,595)
Operating expenses BIEMEZ 4(b)(c) (125,245) (114,095)
Profit before taxation i w0 FHE 4 137,250 154,294
Income tax Frig i 5 (40,897) (36,217)
Profit for the year 5 R FH 96,353 118,077

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial 2 183H %320
aN o

statements.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

FeRERkAtEERER (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB'000) / #Z2021512 A318ILFE AAREFTIIR)

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of

mBR
AR EHERE A

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARET

the Company 81,987 106,577
Non-controlling interests JEIE RIS 14,366 11,500
Profit for the year FERFIE 96,353 118,077
Earnings per share =T g
Basic and diluted (RMB per share) EARRWEE
(AR# T/ I&) 9a) 0.05 0.07

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit of the year are set out in
Note 31(b).

F183EE320E MM B I ETBREKNH—
o o BRFRFEREMADTRESE AR
ERFBHIERKIEE31(b) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

FRERkAtEERER (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB’000) / EZ20215612 A31HIEFE AARBFLIIR)

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETR

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARETF T

Profit for the year ERFH 96,353 118,077
Other comprehensive income FhEpE2mEmkE
for the year 8
ltems that will not be reclassified to & EFEAEEN
profit or loss: HH
Equity investment at fair value BARBETTAHM
through other comprehensive FHEHRFFTTENR
income-net movement in fair TEE — ARnE
value reserve (non-recycling) BREEZEFHE
(AT ) 6,903 (19,960)
Income tax arises from financial BRRAREEGTAHM
assets measured at FVOCI 2EWREFTEN
CREEEEN
PS5 (1,726) 4,990
Other comprehensive income FAEMEEKE
for the year 5,177 (14,970)
Total comprehensive income FERE2EWEEE
for the year 101,530 103,107
Attributable to: BEER:
Equity shareholders of RRARREREE A
the Company 87,164 91,607
Non-controlling interests FEE I M i 14,366 11,500
Total comprehensive income FREENESEE
for the year 101,530 103,107

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial

statements.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

G EMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB’000) / 12021412 4318 UAA R T TIIR)

At 31 December

At 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTX ARBEF T
Assets BE
Cash and bank deposits Be MIBITER 10 1,084,457 1,058,266
Pledged deposits FHREBES 11 561,557 524,130
Trade and other receivables i A e H At AR TR 2 734,595 589,114
Loans and advances to customers LHERRBR 13 618,342 504,937
Factoring receivables B W (R IE FRIE 14 174,408 180,700
Financial assets measured at FVOC BERAnBERAEM
2HEABRETENESE
BE 15 73,002 41,050
Financial assets measured at FVPL ERAREBEERABE
ATERNEREE 16 31,094 90,905
Receivable investments B GRIESEIEE 17 28,512 77,972
Interests in associates NI 19 37,889 34,023
Fixed assets EE&E 20(ay(b) 20,866 15,478
Investment property WEMEREHE 6,637 7,767
Intangible assets |V EE 21 4,238 2,403
Goodwill EES 22 419 419
Deferred tax assets RIAEFTSHEE 30(c) 69,049 61,344
Total assets EEMES 3,445,065 3,188,508
Liabilities BfE
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEEK 23 69,415 137,793
Liabilities from guarantees EREE 24 240,169 194,822
Customer pledged deposits FARZES 25(a) 250,934 271,725
Accruals and other payables JE ST K Eo A A< FOE 25(b) 104,215 102,451
Debt securities issued JERHE S 26 268,710 —
Other financial instruments HEHibem T H 27 111,332 59,364
Financial liabilities measured at FVPL R AR EEFAEZ
TERNERAR 28 16,384 —
Lease liabilities HEARE 29 15,046 8,150
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFMESHaE 30(c) 74 140
Total liabilities BfEEst 1,076,279 774,445
NET ASSETS FEE 2,368,786 2,414,063

F183AE320 AWM BRI F M B IRKR M —

;o e

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
Ra Bz (8)

As at 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB’000) / 72021612 A318 AAREFLHI7R)

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
®20214 R 20204
12H831H 128318
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AREFT ARBFIT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR GG 31
Share capital IR 1,560,793 1,560,793
Reserves 1 540,902 529,749

Total equity attributable to equity A A SIREFH AEN

shareholders of the Company EEEs 2,101,695 2,090,542
Non-controlling interests FEEHIEER 267,091 323,521
TOTAL EQUITY Rt 2,368,786 2,414,063

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on T E&R202243 8258 #b/fE K IREZE M
25 March 2022.

Wu Liejin Company Stamp
RI|E ATENE
Executive Director and Chairman
BITEFREFR

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial 55183HZ3208 M@k It SH KRR —
statements. %)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EERPER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB'000) / & Z=2021512 A31HIEFE (AARETTHIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BEREATREREA

Other financial
instrument- Non-
Share Share Fair value Surplus General equity Retained controlling

capital premium  Capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  component eamings Total interests  Total equity

H2HIA
2 2y ] BAAE  AABEAR BRAR -BERER - RABs ok B FENES Raadt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AREFT  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note 31(c)  Note 31(a)fi) ~ Note 31(a)fii) Note 31(a)fii) Note 31(d)fiv) Note 31(c)fy) Note 31(d)(v))
K#sng K - Kisndi)  MEswi) Kl  KENY) K1)

Balance at 31 December 2020 2005128318058 1,560,793 133713 (1,741) (4,050) 128,064 139,807 2310 131,526 2,090,542 33,52 2,414,063
Changes in equity for 2021: WNENERLD:
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - - - - 81,987 81,987 14,366 96,353
Other comprehensive income A2 Eds = = = 5171 = = = = 5171 = 5171
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE = = = 5177 - - - 81,987 87,164 14,366 101,530
Purchase equity interest from ARSI ERRERE

non-controlling interest = = 11 = = = = = 11 (5,571) (4,400)
Madification of other financial instrument ERED L REEEEN

related to Zhongshan Join-Share EHIA = = 451 = = = (2310) 14,446 16,648 (52,518) (35,870)
Appropriation to surplus reserve N = = = = 8,049 = = (8,049) = = =
Appropriation to general reserve RR-RAE F»ﬁﬁ = = = = = 10,110 = (10,110) - - -
Dividends approved in respect -EERHENRE

of the previous year = = = = = = = (93,830) (93,830) (12,707) (106,0.37)
Balance at 31 December 2021 015128318 HBE 1,560,793 133713 4,002 1121 136,113 149,917 - 115,970 2,101,695 267,091 2,368,786

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of this financial report. 25183 B £ 320 8 MW it A It E M 53R &x A —

D e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mAaEsEEER (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB’000) / EZ20215612 A31HIEFE AARBFLIIR)

Attributable to eq olders of the Company

Other financial
instrument-
Share Fair value equity

capital  Share premium  Capital reserve reserve  Surplus reserve  General reserve component

Non-controlling

nterests

Total equity

Balance at 31 December 2019 019E 12831 BNEE 1,560,793 133773 (1,741) 10,920 118,607 130,590 2370 132,91 2,088,273 318,623 2,406,8%
Changes in equity for 2020: W0ENERED:
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - - - - 106,577 106,577 11,500 118,077
Other comprehensive income Eb2ENE - - - (14,970 - - - - (14,970 - (14,970
Total comprehensive income - - - (14,970) - - - 106,577 91,607 11,500 103,107
Appropriation to surplus reserve RORHLR - - - - 9457 - - (9.457) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve RO-BEREE - - - - - 9217 - (9217) - - -
Dividends approved in respect of -EEEHERRE

the previous year = = = = = = = (93,660) (93,660) (6,602) (100,262)
Others Efh - - - - - - - 430 430 - 430
Balance at 31 December 2020 WNENANRHEE 1,560,793 133773 (1,741) (4,050) 128,064 139,807 2370 1315526 2,090,542 323521 2,414,063

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial 25183EH = 3208 M@ SIS RE N —

statements. 2B o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB'000) / #Z2021512 A318ILFE AAREFTIIR)

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETR

Operating activities EEEE)
Cash (used in)/generated from KESEE) (BT BTE
operations E£HIE S 10(b) (114,411) 24,980
PRC income tax paid SATH P BIATE R 30(a) (41,763) (47,614)
Net cash used in operating HEEBFARSESHE
activities (156,174) (22,634)
Investing activities BEEE
Decrease/(increase) in term deposits  $R17E HFFUR D
with banks (4B hn) 142,389 (121,350)
Proceeds from disposal of financial RECREEMESDN
assets i 114,971 156,187
Investment income RE&E W 10,245 20,412
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets EEBETEEMEEN
R 155 —
Proceeds from disposal of associates & & B % A &) Fr
EXNEE = 114,341
Payments for the purchase of fixed BEETEERHEM
assets and other non-current FEMEEEZTH
assets " (4,698) (2,527)
Payments on acquisition of WEREST RS
investments (42,131) (80,000)
Net cash generated from BETSMELENRE
investing activities B 220,891 87,063
Financing activities Rl & & E)
Proceeds from disposal of BRE—MEFAT
shareholding in a subsidiary RIBRAEFTE LR
He 10,702 —
Proceeds from new borrowings XS #18 SR FT EE £ Y
R 10(c) 90,300 171,500
Proceeds from issuance of debt BITRNEFMEER
securities issued B 10(c) 258,960 —
Fixed return of other financial Hih&m T BB FE RS
instruments 10(c) (3,960) (3,960)
Repayment of borrowings EEEX 10(c) (158,500) (208,800)
Interest paid BEAFE 10(c) (7,753) (9,204)
Dividends paid ERRE (108,508) (98,692)
Purchase of equity interests of a B IEE b R 2 U
subsidiary from non-controlling F AR
interests (4,400) —
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEfNHESEMHE &K
=55 10(d)) (3.764) (5,333)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEfHAEHEESZF 8
7B 10(d) (398) (498)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FeaBenEx (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in RMB’000) / EZ2021F12 A31HIEFE AARBFLIIR)

2021
20214

Note RMB’000

ik AREFT
Net cash generated from/(used BLEEENFTEL (FR

in) financing activities ANREFE 72,679 (154,987)
Net increase/(decrease) in EEsEm  (BD)

cash and cash equivalents ok ] 137,396 (90,558)
Cash and cash equivalents 1A1BEBES

at 1 January 649,365 744,996
Effect of foreign exchange MEEEEEIFEN FREER

rate changes -3 (4,320) (5,073)
Cash and cash equivalents 12A31HE¥&&

at 31 December 10(a) 782,441 649,365

The notes on pages 183 to 320 form part of these financial 251838 %3208 &ML F M %ERET A —
= o

statements. 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMERRME

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
and the Group's interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
for financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI), financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) (see Note 1(j)) that are stated at their fair
value.

2021 5 &

1
(a)

(b)

X WK
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(A ER]) k2 FEA
REFHRAIREE R BRGI 80 EH
BEAREHRE ZEHBEHRRTE
BREMEXZMAERARESZL
MHRAEE R E G - AREK
MNBASHBREERTX

ERESHIMASEBEME TH L
i“%lKaTZ%/%E?ﬁk#&%ﬁg/ﬁ'J £
HEARAEEBZ BRIt HBEER
AR AT IRATER AN - FEERAEE A
2 HBE AR ER XS L
BEI 2 ERFTSIE R RIAT &5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (CONTINUED)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 37.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

. Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (CONTINUED)

None of these amendments has had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in this financial report.

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, The Group
has not applied any new standard of interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended
HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate
whether certain qualifying rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
("COVID-19-related rent concessions”) are lease
modifications and, instead, account for those rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

The Group elected to early adopt the amendments
and applies the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions granted to the
Group during the year ending 31 December 2020.
Consequently, rent concessions received have been
accounted for as negative variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers those payments
occurred (see Note 20(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EXEBR@®
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) FATRIFEHMEDR

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can
elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.

FREABAREZGNER - A&
BHEREITHE  SHEAKER
SEZERNEEMESHAARES
FEUZE®R WM EREHE
BOENFE DR - FFERE
BEEAENE EZEHAKE
REMHAFENEEER -

RTARINEE QI HIER G A 1
HEEGEZIAHFAGENE
BRA - KENFPERMBER X
ZFRBEREANREBNRNER S
EENTARERKREERHEGE
MHHKRE RN -  KREAER
FELNARERBRNEIE 7 HE
ARERWmm BT AR - BE
BRPEBRET R BER -

FEBIMERSIEFER KRR RE
RARBIN T AREZ  BAKH
BRULIY S B FE T A A E(E
AIBEIMASR - BUE AR E R ZATL
ZENATRABEROERAE
BHEE - MEEBAMME - A
SEMEREAABEIRETA
BRI F B E R SRR B AR b
I &t & AR JEHR ) A S

FEFIERER &AM BN R
BEAZ - BIRARBBER
BARMGEOED -  AREXENFE
ZHIERE DN EE R R MRS
BELEME2ERERINERRF
FEFUERSELBSFEAZRF
P E B Sk B IR AR R K 2 T M et 4R
BHORER -

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

186
-



1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 1(j)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(n)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and
any direct investment into the associate that forms
part of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (Note
1(n)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate (after applying
the ECL model to such other long-term interests
where applicable (see Note 1(j)ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

0]

Associates (CONTINUED)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 1()).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(n)), unless classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(CONTINUED)

(f) Goodwill (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 1(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Fixed assets

(9)

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1(n)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
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Leasehold improvements
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Buildings held for own use
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Other properties leased for own use

HEmHEEEE

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 1(n)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

lives.

Softwa re

B

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leased assets (CONTINUED)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leased assets (CONTINUED)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 1(g)
and 1(n)), except for the following types of
right-of-use asset:

—  right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value;
and

—  right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered
owner of the leasehold interest are carried at
fair value in accordance with Note 1(g);

—  right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold
land where the interest in the land is held as
inventory are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

()

Leased assets (CONTINUED)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the
change in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

lease

Financial instruments

(i)  Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is
recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at
FVPL for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of
how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see Note 32. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(i)

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

o amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see Note 1(t)
(ii)).

o fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if
the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling. Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M A (48)

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(iij) Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following

items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, loans
and advances to customers, factoring
receivables and receivable investments,

trade receivables and other

including loans to associates, which are
held for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of

principal and interest);

—  receivables from guarantee customers;

—  receivables for default guarantee payments;

and

— financial guarantee contracts issued (see

Note 1(q)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including financial assets measured at FVPL and
equity investments designated at FVOCI, are not

subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j)) Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(CONTINUED)

Measurement of ECLs (CONTINUED)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial
effective interest rate;

assets: current

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs:these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES KEEBR @)
(CONTINUED)
(j) Financial instruments (CONTINUED) () =BIR®@
(i)  Credit losses from financial assets (i) EHEEEEES (&)

(CONTINUED)

Measurement of ECLs (CONTINUED)

BHEEERAE (&)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always FEHSZ RIE 2 S BE — IR
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. EREEFEBNEHRE

ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
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in credit risk of the financial instrument since B BRIEB VIR TERIEZ %
initial recognition, in which case the loss R TANERRRKE L
allowance is measured at an amount equal to FoERBERT  BEEE

lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
micro-lending to customers are over 7 days past
due, and entrusted loans and other financial
assets are past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
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reasonable and supportable, including historical AT EFNLERZK
experience and forward-looking information that LS ) BRI S Y RTRE 1
is available without undue cost or effort. R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j)) Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(CONTINUED)

Significant increases in credit risk (CONTINUED)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

@ii)

Credit losses from financial assets
(CONTINUED)

Significant increases in credit risk (CONTINUED)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 1(t)(ii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j)) Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(CONTINUED)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(CONTINUED)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4= A

R A B 5 AR I AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(iii) Fair value measurement

If there is an active market for a financial asset
or financial liability, the quoted price in the
active market without adjusting for transaction
costs that may be incurred upon future disposal
or settlement is used to establish the fair value
of the financial asset or financial liability.

If no active market exists for a financial
instrument, a valuation technique is used to
establish the fair value. Valuation techniques
include using recent arm’s length market
transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties; reference to the current fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. Where discounted cash flow technique
is used, future cash flows are estimated based
on management’'s best estimates and the
discount rate used is the prevailing market rate
applicable for instrument with similar terms and
conditions at the end of each reporting period.
Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the end of each
reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset
and financial liability, the Group considers all
factors including, but not limited to, risk-free
interest rate, credit risk, foreign exchange rate
and market volatility, that are likely to affect the
fair value of the financial asset and financial
liability.

The Group obtains market data from the same
market where the financial instrument was
originated or purchased.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities

Financial assets (or a part of a financial asset or
group of financial assets) are derecognised when
the financial assets meet one of the following
conditions:

—  the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire; or

— the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets or where substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a
financial asset are neither retained nor
transferred, the control over that asset is
relinquished.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, but retains
control, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and relevant liability to the extent
of its continuing involvement in the financial
asset.

The financial liability (or part of it) s
derecognised only when the underlying present
obligation (or part of it) specified in the
contracts is discharged, cancelled or expired. An
agreement between the Group and an existing
lender to replace the original financial liability
with a new financial liability with substantially
different terms, or a substantial modification of
the terms of an existing financial liability is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and recognition of a
new financial liability. The difference between
the carrying amount of the derecognised
financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss. (Except for the
modification of the other financial instruments in
Note 27).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EXEFBR@®
(CONTINUED)
(j) Financial instruments (CONTINUED) () =BIR®@

(v) Offsetting (v) 7#H#H
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset WASEAERKEERASRE
and the net amount is reported in the BEERER - BARE B &
consolidated statement of financial position LOFREE SRR ZHEZ
when the Group has a legally enforceable right TREEMFEZAE  Z
to set off the recognised amounts and the TREENERAERELR
transactions are intended to be settled on a net B BMRAXANEREHIT
basis, or by realizing the asset and settling the LAYEFREYITR ©
liability simultaneously.

(vi) Derivative financial instruments (vi) #TE2MTA
Derivative financial instruments are recognised MESBHITAENAABEE
initially at fair value. At the end of each THEER AR EESRE
reporting period the fair value is remeasured. BEmEARENE o
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value AREEZSHmEENNE
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, SBEX FHFAZHEBEZ A
except where the derivatives qualify for cash - WmTERBTAFEIR
flow hedge accounting or hedges of the net ©mEH PG S S R
investment in a foreign operation, in which case XBFRE BAAMGRE
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends AIFUAR S R IE B R 1EE o
on the nature of the item being hedged.

(vii) Convertible financial instrument (vii) TJHBELHT A
Convertible financial instrument that can be ERFBANEERIBRKLTE
converted to ordinary shares at the option of the KROATHBEBMT A Wi
holder, where the number of shares to be issued BITHROHEERE  Alg
is fixed, are accounted for as compound BIEEAemITAE(IEAEE
financial instrument, i.e. they contain both a BEE D RiERED) ARK -
liability component and an equity component.
At initial recognition the liability component of MsERA A BReRmT AR
the convertible financial instrument is measured BEBSEF  ERKREKFE
at fair value based on the future interest and ERE N REQIREEE
principal payments, discounted at the prevailing B WEENUAT LRI A
market rate of interest for similar IR AT 5 FI R BLER - %
non-convertible instruments. The equity o a2HAIBRIRERTSR
component is the difference between the initial ARBEEEEHSTHER
fair value of the convertible notes as a whole nRBEMNERE - BHEZEITE
and the initial fair value of the liability EeRMIAENR M AT I
component. Transaction costs that relate to the FRIERIEN DL E
issue of a compound financial instrument are BERERNS -
allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

()

(m)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
(vii) Convertible financial instrument (CONTINUED)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.
The equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the note is converted
or redeemed. If the notes are converted, the
capital reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the notes are redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with Note 1(q), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 1(j)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ve

R A B 5 AR I AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  Fixed assets;
— Intangible assets;
—  Goodwill; and

— Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the
Group’s and the Company's statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

1 EXEBR@

(n) FEMEERE
SREWE PR A RINEEE R
HETEZ USRI R NEER
BEHBERE  RENCHRZEE
WEBRTEFEXRD B

— EEEE:
— mmEE:
— ®ER

— AKERARRBDFBHRRE
AR FRRREBERA MK

WEEEAZENE  AEHRE
BT E S B IEH b3t -

— AETKEIEREHE

BEMAKRODESBAEAR
BEREEERMEREE
MEPRSSBEA/LE - ERF
fBEREER SEMAHA
FTEREBR/FARKRSRE
FREEHEBRE  ARREA
BeREMNTSHERZE
ENBERR -HEEEL
HIR &R A KBRS B R
HWEEEENRERA -
QAR BT ELRERADN
RNEERA (RS ELE
i) K E T R & 5 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(CONTINUED)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units (or group of units) are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of wunits) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EXEFBR@®

(CONTINUED)

(o) Employee benefits (o) BEE T %riM
Employee benefits include short-term employee BRIFMEEE BB IHFMEARE
benefits and contributions to defined contribution PR IRET BB K
retirement plans.
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and e FR8Be THEREAS
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans EREREEREERARERS
and the cost of non-monetary benefits (the Group FE 5T R TE S FUR ARG B 80 S50 K 3E
makes pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations R E@BABARE B EAEAER
of the PRC are accrued) in the year in which the WEERNE - BN REE
associated services are rendered by employees. Where WHERERATE  BlitEeEE A
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect REFER ©
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the BEBAARBEVEEZRER  NEHE
PRC, the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC have joined MARFREHFRARIABEITIMAT R
defined contributions for the employees, such as basic EHFR - PINEREESFE - F
pension scheme, housing fund, basic medical BERES ERNBERE - KFER
insurance, unemployment insurance, injury insurance %~ BIMGERERRER - NEE
and maternity insurance. The Group makes TR B 48 48 37 € 2 58 1% @ A L Bl
contributions to the above mentioned schemes at the | bt B o PR AR
applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by REREBam R NI o
the government organisation. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on an accrual basis.

(p) Income tax (p) FiE#H

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the vyear, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

FEMSHEREERREHMEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credit, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

reversal

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (CONTINUED)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
(based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.) Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group issues performance guarantee and litigation
guarantee contracts, in which the Group agrees to
provide guarantees to its customers who entered into
contracts with third parties for services to be
rendered, goods to be supplied or obligation to fulfil
within an agreed time period. The Group is required
to compensate the guarantee holder if a specified
uncertain future event adversely results in the
counterparties’ failure to delivery services and goods,
or to fulfil the obligation.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised as
deferred income within “Liabilities from guarantees” at
fair value, which is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or to
interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

()

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than the amount
carried in “Liabilities from guarantees” in respect
of the guarantees. (i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor
since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued, in
which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same
definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in
Note 1(j)(ii) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor
in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on
the expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount
that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or
any other party. The amount is then discounted
using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(CONTINUED)

(ii)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

existence will

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and
equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how
the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see Note 32(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ve

R A B 5 AR I AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (CONTINUED)

(i) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

1 EXEBR@

(s) REBREFAEHZHMBIRE

(%)
() RERESRIIRE

AEERFBENIERERED
BANTFERMNZ— -

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see Note 1(t)

(ii)).

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within
a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (CONTINUED)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 1(t).

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ve

R A B 5 AR I AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Revenue and other income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Guarantee fee income

Guarantee fee income is recognised when
guarantee contracts have been made whereby
the related guarantee obligation has been
accepted, the economic benefits associated with
the guarantee contracts will probably flow in,
and the amount of revenue associated with
guarantee contracts can be measured reliably.
Guarantee fee income is determined based on
the total agreed fee in the guarantee contracts
and is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of guarantee. Generally, the
Group receives guarantee fee income in full at
inception and records it as unearned income
before amortising it throughout the period of
guarantee.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
Note 1(j)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Revenue and other income (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving
the rendering of services can be estimated
reliably, revenue from the rendering of services
(e.g. financial consulting services) is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction based on the services performed to
date as a percentage of the total services to be
performed.

When the outcome of a transaction involving
the rendering of services cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to extent of
the costs incurred that it is probable be
recoverable.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for providing guarantee services and SME lending to
SMEs under certain criteria are recognised as revenue
in profit or loss upon receiving such grants. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the assets
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies and non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are physical assets or property
rights obtained by the Group from debtors, guarantors
or third parties following the enforcement of its
creditor’s rights. The initial cost of repossessed assets
is measured at the lower of the net carrying amount
of loans and advances and the fair value of the assets
less costs to sell on the acquisition date. Repossessed
assets are not depreciated or amortised. The
impairment losses of initial measurement and
subsequent revaluation are charged to the profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Related parties

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1)

()

3)

Has control or joint control over the Group;

Has significant influence over the Group; or

Is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(M

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (CONTINUED)

(i)  (CONTINUED)

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i);

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(8)  The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 1(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life, i.e. 20
years. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in Note 1(t)(iv).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 2

(a) Revenue

W 25 B 93 EB ¥R
(a) 4=

The principal activities of the Group are provision of
credit guarantee, loans and advances to customers,
provision of factoring services and related consulting
services in the PRC. Revenue represents net guarantee
fee income, net interest income and service fee from
consulting services. The amount of each significant
category of net fee and interest income recognised in

revenue is as follows:

AEBENEIEXBRETEAETP
RUEEER  BRERRBHR
TR LRI AR 75 S AR RE FE AR TS » WK
SBEREREFRA - FEFERA
REBHARBERA - SEBHEHT
MU S FERHFE &R RN B WA
SR -

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREETF T

RMB’000
ARETR

Guarantee fee income RBRBWA
Financing guarantee fee income BEERBRA 183,421 156,936
Performance guarantee fee income  JEHIHERE WA 47,999 59,310
_Subtotal A .. 23142 216246
Guarantee cost EHREA
Re-guarantee expenses BEREY (1,207) (1,045)
Risk management service expense Gl =g=s (37,047) (38,639)
Subtotal AL (8254) (39,684)
_Net guarantee fee income BREFEA 1937166 176,562
Interest income FEWBA
— Loans and advances — BHRERRBRK
to customers 60,619 61,526
— Factoring service — REBR 18,845 15,263
— Cash at banks and pledged — RITTFRRAFHIE
bank deposits RIRTE & 14,199 14,157
— Trade and other receivables — PRI E At FE U SRIA 11,238 4,354
Subtotal st . foa%01 95,300
Interest expenses FEMX
— Debt securities issued — ERES (9,750) —
— Interest-bearing borrowings — TEER (6,070) (12,283)
— Interest expenses from other — HEem T ANAE
financial instruments (353 (8,829) (3,158)
— Others — HAb (1,505) (1,176)
Subtotal EALO S (26154) (16,617)
_Net interest income RRBBA 78747 78,683
Service fee from consulting BHRBEBRA
L SEIVICeS 38159 29,202
Revenue Wy = 310,072 284,447
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (CONTINUED)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and has no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s net guarantee fee, interest income and
service fee from consulting services during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Details of
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note 32(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by business lines.
Consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
defines reporting segments based on the following
operating segments:

Guarantee business

This segment represents the provision of a range of
guarantee services and related consulting service to
customers. These guarantee services include financing
guarantee, performance guarantee and litigation
guarantee. The consulting services include debt
financing, internal control and risk management
related consulting services to the guarantee
customers.

SME lending

This segment represents the provision of a range of
loan and related financing consulting services to the
small and medium sized and micro enterprises (“SME
enterprises”) or the owners of SME enterprises.

Others

This segment represents the aggregation of other
non-significant business lines and the operational
results of the headquarters.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MR M A (48)

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

2

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (CONTINUED)
Others (CONTINUED)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing

performance and allocating resources between

segments, the Group’s senior
management monitors the results,

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment

on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,

assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities include all
liabilities managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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2

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (CONTINUED)

Others (CONTINUED)

(1)

2

Segment results, assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are set out below:

e 2= B 53 EP 4R & (@)

(b) SEHRE @
Hifth (&)

(1)

ZECFIE - BERE B (&)

STEE ZE 20214 52020412
A31BILEFE N &R KT
BAHKRE REFAEE
ERTREEEMNA RED

EBAERAE BE ST

2021
20214
Guarantee SME lending
business and others
N
EXRRHEM
RIRER E3 ] &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
Guarantee fee income EREBRA 231,420 — 231,420
Guarantee cost EREA (38,254) — (38,254)
Interest income FE WA 10,666 94,235 104,901
Interest expenses FERKZ (6,690) (19,464) (26,154)
Service fee from consulting services & ARTE B WA 30,309 7,850 38,159
Reportable segment revenue AR E D B 227,451 82,621 310,072
Other revenue H ez 5,460 3,171 8,631
Share of gains/(losses) of associates — JE{5HE & A A)
W, (E518) 3,770 (6,792) (3,022)
Provisions charge for guarantees FHREREEE
issued EHEE (10,249) = (10,249)
Impairment losses BERMEBXKX (34,346) (8.591) (42,937)
Operating expenses EiEMY (91,825) (33,420) (125,245)
Reportable segment profit AR & o E R AT
before taxation FIHE 100,261 36,989 137,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (CONTINUED)

Others (CONTINUED)

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

W ix B 53 EPER 2 (@)

(b) SEPIRE (@)
Hifth (45)
() FEFE - BEREE &)

At 31 December 2021

#2021512A31H

Guarantee SME lending

business and others

R & %

ERRHM
BRER EX: &5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREBTR AREBTR
Segment assets nEPEE 2,866,188 1,144,580 4,010,768
Segment liabilities DEBE 1,180,366 527,977 1,708,343

2020
20204
SME lending
and others

Guarantee
business

N G
Bk E A
EY
RMB’'000
AREFT

RRES
RMB’000
ARET T

o
RMB'000
ARET R

Guarantee fee income ERERA 216,246 — 216,246
Guarantee cost BRI (39,684) — (39,684)
Interest income FEHA 14,576 80,724 95,300
Interest expenses M BFZ (157) (16,460) (16,617)
Service fee from consulting services R HRIS E WA 16,865 12,337 29,202
Reportable segment revenue Al RS D E = 207,846 76,601 284,447
Other revenue H bz 14,958 7,282 22,240
Share of gains of associates FE(REEE N E 15,108 — 15,108
Provisions charge for guarantees TR EREE(E

issued Eae (2,811) — (2,811)
Impairment losses BERERERX (26,001) (24,594) (50,595)
Operating expenses BIEMY (84,749) (29,346) (114,095)
Reportable segment profit AR E D B BLAT

before taxation AE 124,351 29,943 154,294
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (CONTINUED)

Others (CONTINUED)

(1)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

2

e 2= B 53 EP 4R & (@)

(b) SEHRE @
Hifth (&)
BEFYE - BEREE (&)

At 31 December 2020

(1)

Guarantee

business

ERF
RMB’000
AR®ETT

7202012 A31H
SME lending
and others
RN 2
B R EH A
7%
RMB’000
ARBTT

At
RMB‘000
AREF T

Segment assets NEEE 2,604,806 1,045,851 3,650,657
Segment liabilities HEEE 849,704 451,306 1,301,010

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets and

liabilities

(i)

A& D BN EER R B

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 20204
12A318 12H31H8
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k23 ARETX ARBEFIT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIRED I EE 4,010,768 3,650,657
Deferred tax assets RIS EE 30(c) 69,049 61,344
Elimination of inter-segment 1 %> &6 5 F& U 3%
receivables (634,752) (523,493)
Consolidated total assets REBESRF 3,445,065 3,188,508
Liabilities Bf&
Reportable segment liabilities  AI$R&E D 2EE 1,708,343 1,301,010
Deferred tax liabilities RIEAMSHEE 30(c) 74 140
Elimination of inter-segment 1 8% 3 [ FE 1~ 3¢
payables (632,138) (526,705)
Consolidated total liabilities LEBEAR 1,076,279 774,445
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

3 OTHER REVENUE 3 Hapigs

228
-

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETR

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBEFIT

Government grant BT B & 15,311 19,006
Investment income from financial BARBEABRTE

assets measured at FVPL MEeRMEEZIRERA 6,554 14,808
Investment income of receivable JERGRIBER B 218 &

investments A 3,481 5,132
Foreign exchange losses M i &8 (4,320) (5,073)
Profit and loss from fair value NABEEEEER

changes (13,835) (1,103)
Investment income from financial BEAREEFAEMETR

assets measured at FVOCI WEHFTENSREE 2

KEWA — 472

Investment losses from disposal of EEBMEATIKRESE

associates = (15,624)
Others H A, 1,440 4,622
Total CE 8,631 22,240

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@) Impairment and provision charged

Receivables for default

4 HBiwEiFIE

RMB’000
ARETR

JE WO K PE R 3R

BATFBE MG, (GTA)

(a) BER#HE — SHOKR

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR®FIT

guarantee payments 12(b)(i) 22,332 24,326
Receivables from guarantee FEWIEIRE P 3R
customers 12(b)(ii) (2,928) 1,674
Loans and advances to BRERRBR
customers 13(f) 20,376 13,445
Factoring receivables JFE R (R 3B FRIE 14(b) 9,531 1,326
Receivable investments JEU RIBFAIR & — 6,076
Others HAth (6,374) 3,748
42,937 50,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Staff costs

(c)

Salaries, wages, bonuses and

4 HBaFBH@
(b) EIRE

2021
20214

¥e I& Rk

2020
20204F
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBTRE

other benefits Hib g 73,379 70,186

Contributions to retirement RRETEI R
schemes 6,750 264
80,129 70,450

The Group is required to participate in pension
schemes organized by the respective local
governments of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") whereby the Group is required to pay annual
contributions for PRC based employees at certain rate
of the standard wages determined by the relevant
authorities in the PRC during the year. The Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits to the PRC based employees beyond the
annual contributions described above.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
was entitled to the policies of Temporary Relief of
Social Insurance Contributions for enterprises issued by
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security,
which expired from 1 January 2021.

Other items

Depreciation and amortization e R
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN BN &
— annual audit — FEER
— others — HAb

(c)

AEBEAZEBPEARLME ([H
B 1) & o B AR A0 B AR B AT
g EPAKEASFRATEIES
BNEEZRE  BERBRIZTEM
BAESMAEFABEENRETENE
T B8 - By Bl 0 B ER R
oh - P EER X RKEN T E
AEBEALMERAME-

HE2020F12A31BLLFE &
EBZEEANERRM S REE
BN ELSRBE BRI R K
% ZBER2021FE1 A1 BRI -

HMIER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®EFTT
9,751 10,991
2,130 1,900
683 650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 HGeEEBRPHAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZHREBEERPHIE:

profit or loss:

Note
B it

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR®F T

RMB’000
ARBTR

Current tax EHIFEH
Provision for PRC income tax FREHER

for the year EREy 30(a) 50,394 62,254
Deferred tax RERTBH
Origination and reversal of TRMEEENES

temporary differences & B m 30(b) (9,497) (26,037)
Income tax expense Ziget Nk 40,897 36,217

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Note
k23

(b) RERBEFHMAFBMAX
HEEc R HER

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETR

Profit before taxation 75 A1 A 137,250 154,294
Notional tax on profit before — 1ZRR25% K&
taxation, calculated at 25% B ¢ B AR Y
BEIEMH (Vi) 34,313 38,574
Tax effect of non-deductible TR N
expenses MIATE 4,295 5,127
Tax effect of unused tax RIERHARE A
losses not recognised THIBESE IR
2 — (2,800)
Others Hity 2,289 (4,684)
Actual income tax expense i8R &5t 40,897 36,217
(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been (i) MRBEBHHREE(EB)HE
made for Join-Share (Hong Kong) Supply-Chain BRBERARRTERESH
Service Co., Limited and Join-Share Financial ERABR A B REEBFIGHET
Holdings Co., Limited located in Hong Kong as A REF NI EE S ER
they had not derived any income subject to R EENFHEA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year.
(i)  According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (i) 1RIEMR2008F1 18 £
("CIT") Law that took effect on 1 January 2008, BEMER(EEMGEH]D
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC 52021 EAREE R BB A
income tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% AIZBYRETE MR 25% B B A
during 2021. (SR
GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.  ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 6
EMOLUMENTS

EERESEHM

RIBFF B D BERPIFE383(1) &R A A (#
BEEMNDER)RPE_n  EFR
EFEFMEENT

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
Directors' and allowances Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits in  Discretionary Scheme
fees kind bonuses contributions
EERES M BHRE B
Lk i # B sHEIER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETn ARBTR ARETR
Chairman BEER
Wu Liejin R 95 497 2,280 9 2,881
Non-executive directors EBITES
Ou Weiming (appointed on BUE B8 (20214
6 June 2021) 6A6EEZRT) 27 261 829 37 1,154
Gu Lidan (resigned on B (RR20214
5 January 2021) 1ASEEHT) = = = = =
Zhang Minming KA 30 = = = 30
Luo Zhenging (resigned on BIRE (R20215
5 June 2021) 6 A5HBHE) — — — — —
Zhang Deben (resigned on SRIBAR (20214
5 June 2021) 6ASHEEMT) 77 300 1,446 31 1,854
Zhao Wei (appointed on HIE (R2021F
29 January 2021) 1H29BERMT) — = = = =
Li Shenhua (appointed on ZIRE (20215
29 January 2021) 1A29BEZT) 28 — — — 28
Independent non-executive BUKRTES
directors
Wu Xiangneng KW 80 = = = 80
Leung Hon Man ZEX 80 = = = 80
Liu Heng (resigned on 28 (20214
5 June 2021) 6 A5H &) 34 = = = 34
Wang Bo (appointed on TE (R2021F
6 June 2021) 6H6HEZ) 46 = = = 46
Supervisor BE
Li Qi 35 20 = = = 20
Feng Qunying (resigned on IHEE (PA202146
5 June 2021) 6 A5H &) 9 = = = 9
Liang Yi (resigned on 2% (120216
20 December 2021) 12 20 A BHE) 20 183 192 37 432
Liao Zhenliang (resigned on Bixz (1220214
5 June 2021) 6 A5 H ) 13 = = = 13
Zhong Jian B 30 = = = 30
Huang Yuzhen EWY 20 155 146 37 358
Liu Shu (appointed on 28 (R 20215
6 June 2021) 6A6REZME) 1" = = = 1
Chen Xin (appointed on B (720214
6 June 2021) 6A6REZEE) 17 = = = 17
Huang Shaoxiong (appointed B0 (20214
on 20 December 2021) 128200 %) — — — — —
637 1,396 4,893 151 7,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X3 BHETIEIN HUARE FILIIR)

6 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 6 Z=EREEHMN@
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and Salaries, Retirement
supervisors' allowances and  Discretionary Scheme
fees benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Total
B=RESE HMORMEK
e BEWEH MERE RINGHEIHEN &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000
ARETT AR%®TT ARBTT ARETT AR%TR
Chairman EER
Wu Liejin R 93 515 2,055 3 2,666
Non-executive directors FHBITES
Huang Guoshen (resigned HBUR
on 17 August 2020) (720205
8A17THER) 20 — — — 20
Gu Lidan BE — — — — —
Zhang Minming R A 27 — - — 27
Luo Zhenging EiRE - - - - -
Zhang Deben RIER 73 300 1,402 3 1,778

Independent non-executive B EHITES

directors
Wu Xiangneng RmgE 66 — — — 66
Leung Hon Man ZEN 57 — — — 57
Liu Heng ELE] 66 — — — 66
Supervisors BEE
Li Qi FH 17 — - - 17
Feng Qunying g 18 — — — 18
Liang Yi 235 20 179 180 3 382
Liao Zhenliang Bix5E 27 — — — 27
Zhong Jian B 27 — — — 27
Huang Yuzhen BBy 20 150 132 2 304
531 1,144 3,769 11 5,455
There were no amounts paid during the years ended BHZE2021F K2020F 12 A3 HIEFE -
31 December 2021 and 2020 to the directors or supervisors MERE SN E N A S E R IR B
in connection with their retirement from employment or HEIMBERMESZINRIE - #E
compensation for loss of office with the Group, or 2021F 202012 A31HILEFE - BE
inducement to join the Group. During the years ended ZRREEIN  BRESNEENELR
31 December 2021 and 2020, except for Gu Lidan and EMEAMNEFWNOZH - BE2021F K&
Zhao Wei, there was no arrangement under which a 2020F12A31HIEFE - AARIBEABR
director or supervisor waived or agreed to waive any HRERERENHSERBEZN -

remuneration. During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the emolument of Luo Zhenging, representative
of the Company’s state-owned shareholder, has been paid
by the latter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 7

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 2021:
two (2020: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in Note 6.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other
2021: three (2020: three) individuals are as follows:

=3-F 1 PN

221 FN A EESFMALTH  HFAR
H(2020%F B BARAIESE  KE
RN E R L6 FE o

20214 » Hfth =4 (2020%F : =4) A
ABFBBES R

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFTT AEREF T

Salaries, allowance and benefits e SRR R EYER
in kind 762 748
Discretionary bonuses M5 e 2,340 1,987
Retirement scheme contributions IRREF B3R 74 5
Total &&F 3,176 2,740

The emoluments of the 2021: three (2020: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are all within the following
band:

HKD BT
Nil — 1,000,000 Z 1,000,000
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000

20214 =4 (20204 : =&) &= 5 0
ATHHHEBIATRA :

2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AS AE

1 3

2 J—

There were no amounts paid during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 to the individuals in
connection with their retirement from employment or
compensation for loss of office with the Group, or
inducement to join the Group.

AEEEZE2021FN2020F12 A3181E
FERERMEZE AT SRR BB E
ok pn B2 42 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iRA B ERR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

8 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

8 HthEmKE

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (a) HtvzmlmnS&EBZHBR
other comprehensive income is as follows: 2mT :
2021 2020
20215 20205
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
ENTEE BIEMR: NkRHEHE T AIEEE HERAY MRHESE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSI ARMTRE ARMTR ARKTR ARETL ARETR
Net movement in fair value DABELES
reserve: B
Financial assets measured BLREE
at FvoCl HAEM
2ENE
HTENE
MEE 6,903 (1,726) 5.177 (19,960) 4,990 (14,970)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) BEEHSEAEVHMGEZE

including reclassification adjustments

Changes in fair value recognised

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETR

RAFERNERZ AR

W 25 B9 48 R BB 53

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBF T

during the year: BEZ:
Financial assets measured at EARBEFTAEM
FVOCI 2HEHKRAENS
BEE 6,903 (19,960)
Net deferred tax credited to AR A
other comprehensive income R FE B 18 F FR (1,726) 4,990
Net movement in the fair value FARAEMEERERA
reserve during the year R AR BERE
recognised in other SE)FE
comprehensive income 5,177 (14,970)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 Bz

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) EFEUis
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on AERNGRNERIBFAFEBENAR
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders Al AR RE R A ARTE & B #
of the Company and the weighted average of ordinary TERREMEFDEGENT

shares in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
Profit attributable to the equity BN AR AR
shareholders of the Company B AT E
(RMB’000) (AR®TT) 81,987 106,577
Weighted average number of REStEER GRS
ordinary shares in issue for the BB BT AR g
purpose of basic earnings per FHE(FR)
share ('000) 1,560,793 1,560,793
Basic earnings per share ARG R =
(RMB per share) (BRRARMT) 0.05 0.07
(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (b) TiEREYINEFHEH
2021 2020
20214 20204
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MR1A1BEBE{TEBR
('000) (F ) 1,560,793 1,560,793
Weighted average number of BATE IR ANAE 19
new issue ("000) (F ) — —
Weighted average number of W12 A31 B @Y
ordinary shares at 31 December ANHE ¥ 19 B (F %)
('000) 1,560,793 1,560,793
(c) Diluted earnings per share (0 SRHEEKZE
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during B E£20214 K2020F 12318 1E
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, and FEAN BEREERESTER W
therefore, diluted earnings per share are the same as wmEgRERZERENT KK

the basic earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)
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10 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 10 RERBPITER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) EXELBIE:
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
20214 MN20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T
Cash in hand BFRE 24 31
Cash at banks RITER 782,417 649,334

Cash and cash equivalents

BRHGRARERERD

in the condensed consolidated E¥Ee
cash flow statement 782,441 649,365
Term deposits with banks SRITEBER 82,242 224,631
Restricted bank deposits A REIRITER 217,352 180,412
1,082,035 1,054,408
Accrued interest JEET B 2,422 3,858
1,084,457 1,058,266

The Group’s operation of guarantees and loans to
customers services in the PRC are conducted in RMB.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of RMB out of the PRC is subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
Restricted bank deposits mainly represent secured
deposits received for loans to customers through
deposit certificate pledge.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the Group's restricted bank deposits and
term deposits with banks have been excluded from
cash and cash equivalents.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

10 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

10 BRERBITER@

(b) HAFHREEFIREED

cash generated from operating activities:

ek -

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETR

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREFIT

Profit before taxation TR R 137,250 154,294
Adjustments for: FE
Impairment losses BEERBEBK 42,937 50,595
Interest expenses AMEZH 26,154 16,617
Amortisation of lease HER S
rentals 398 498
Depreciation and i1t
amortisation 4(c) 9,751 10,991
Amortisation of guarantee EREHFRET
fee expense for debt BREZN
securities issued s 2,246 —
(Gains)/losses on disposal of HEBRTEEM
fixed assets and other EMIEREE
non-current assets Er k),
=S (33) 3
Investment income & W= 3 (10,035) (4,788)
Profit and loss from fair NREEE
value changes B 3 13,835 1,103
Provisions charged for FTIRIEIRESE
guarantee losses P 24(a) 10,249 2,811
Foreign exchange losses b H 518 3 4,320 5,073
Share of losses/(gains) of FEAG L& A A
associates B8 (U zs) 3,022 (15,108)
Changes in working EEZS®E:
capitals:
Increase from restricted banks SR HIRTER K
deposits and pledged bank FHERRER
deposits 30 (73,429) (140,101)
(Increase)/decrease in loans BB R LB
and advances to customers (&), SE (133,494) 37,795
Increase in trade and other JE LS R L A JE MR
receivables TE 120 (135,181) (116,178)
(Decrease)/increase in TFARZS®
customer pledged deposits G A,/ i (20,791) 16,219
Increase in accruals and other — fE&T K2 E i g 1+ 7k
payables TN 8,390 5,156
Cash (used in)/generated mEEe (M)
from operations MEEMIRS (114,411) 24,980
221 FEHE BEIERBERARERIRBERSL 237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

10 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

10

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash

and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from

financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows

were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash

flows from financing activities.

(c)

Fixed return

R RBITHER @

MESHMES 8 RHEER

TRIRAEEREEHAELR
BEESH HE BRASRERE
28 @METPMELTRBEBE
RERZESREDIERSBRE RS
ELARERERBEAEERE

HAERER °

Interest- Debt  payable for
bearing securities  other financial Other financial
borrowings issued instruments instruments Lease liabilities Others Total
R SMIAY
TEER Eftfk% EBHETEH HpLHIR HEAR 0] EL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR
Note 23 Note 26 Note 27 Note 27 Note 29
M2z 7 724 724 7
At 1 January 2021 #2021%1R818 137,500 - 3,960 55,404 8,150 4,999 210,013
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSREZEE:
Proceeds from disposal of shareholding in RE-ETRANREREE
a subsidiary igheka = = = = = 10,702 10,702
Proceeds from new borrowings DEHERFELNRS 90,300 = = = = = 90,300
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities TRAEFMEENRE = 258,960 = = = = 258,960
Repayment of borrowings EEER (158,500) - - - - - (158,500)
Fixed retun of other financial instruments ~ E44RIAMETER - - (3,960) - - - (3,960)
Interest paid BRHE (6,070) - = = = (1,683) (7,753)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BRESHERHS - - - - (3,764) - (3,764)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERESHHEHS - - - - (398) - (398)
Total changes from financing cash flows (74,270) 258,960 (3.960) = (4,162) 9,019 185,587
Other changes: HibgE:
Interest expenses HMEXi 6,070 9,750 5,484 3,345 = 1,505 26,154
Modification of other financial instrument ERERSBIA = = = 47,099 = = 47,09
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ARNAEENELNAEREE
into new leases during the year BEREN = = = = 10,660 = 10,660
Amortisation of lease rentals HERSEH = = = = 398 = 398
Total other changes #igHzaE 6,070 9,750 5,484 50,444 11,058 1,505 84,311
At 31 December 2021 #2021 128318 69,300 268,710 5484 105,848 15,046 15,523 479911
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10 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

1

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities (CONTINUED)

(c)

Fixed return
payable for
Interest-bearing  other financial

borrowings

HER

Ht2BIA

10 BRERBITER@

METHMESABHER @

Other financial
instruments

Lease liabilities Others el

HEARE
RVB‘000

At
RMB'000
AREFTL

Note 27
fiit27

At 1 January 2020 #2020F1R18 174,800 3,960 56,950 10,689 — 246,399
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSREZES:
Proceeds from new borrowings MEHERMETE 171,500 — — — — 171,500
Repayment of borrowings BEER (208,800) — — — — (208,800)
Fixed return of other financial Hp BT AETER

instruments — (3,960) — — — (3,960)
Interest paid BRFE (12,283) — (744) — 3,823 (9,204)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BREENERHH - - - (5.333) - (5,333)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEfffsNAERS — — — (498) — (498)
Total changes from financing cash HERLREZEBEE

flows (49,583) (3,960) (744) (5,831) 3,823 (56,295)
Other changes: Hip2E:
Interest expenses Flexi 12,283 3,960 (802) - 1,176 16,617
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ~ ERFAEEAELNA

into new leases during the year EEHERERM — — — 2,79 — 2,79%
Amortisation of lease rentals HERSBH - - - 498 — 498
Total other changes Hih 282 85H 12,283 3,960 (802) 3,292 1,176 19,909
At 31 December 2020 12020412A318 137,500 3,960 55,404 8,150 4,999 210,013

(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERLSRHEE

2021
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT AR¥T T
Within financing cash flows ERmERERE (4,162) (5.831)
(4,162) (5,831)

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 11 HFHERRES

All pledged bank deposits represent the deposits at banks
and other financial institutions for the financing guarantees
that the Group provides to third parties in respect of their

borrowings from banks and other financial institutions.

EFLERRESEASERE=7
BIRITREMBSBREBIERAE =1
HENE B R M AT RN IRIT RE SR
HEOTERX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X3 BHETIEIN HUARE FILIIR)

FE Wir 2 H s IR W =R IE

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 12

Receivables for default guarantee

& W MO PEIR 15 3R

At 31 December
2021
20214

12A31H
RMB’000
ARBTR

At 31 December
2020

R 20204
12A31H
RMB’000
AREEFTT

payments V12@)0) 305,500 219,798
Less: Allowance for doubtful B REREE
debts 12(b)(i) (78,491) (65,149)
227,009 - 154,649
Receivables from guarantee EREREP A (iV/12(a)
customers (i) 195,844 209,606
Less: Allowance for doubtful B REREE
debts 12(b)(ii) (45,559) (55,600)
e 150.285 - 154,006
Interest receivables JEUZ F) B 9,428 9,863
Less: Allowance for interest B FEMCF B
receivables (2,280) (2,280)
b 1148 7,583
Prepayment to a related party ) A Sk 77 /O TR 3RIE 79,027 22,600
Loan to related parties BRY@EBATHNER (iv)/34(d) 71,060 86,500
Trade debtors Z 5 R 12(a)iii) 69,085 40,885
Receivables from debt purchased  JEUE BE(EE (iii) 51,454 48,334
Receivables from a related party — FE U BAES 5 7008 34(d) 10,000 11,606
Other receivables H fth e U 5k I8 13,547 14,949
... 294773 224,874
Deposits and prepayments e RFEMNFKIE 26,712 22,542
Repossessed assets BEEE 29,268 25,460
e 55980 48,002
734,595 589,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, receivables from other receivables,
deposits and prepayments and repossessed assets expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense after more than
one year is RMB32.30 million (31 December 2020:
RMB54.77 million). All of the remaining trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2021 the Group
disposed of receivables for default guarantee payments
amounted to RMB2,000,000 (2020: RMB3,202,300)
with no allowances for doubtful debts (2020: RMB
nil), without recourse to other parties at
considerations (including considerations of overdue
interests and penalty interests) amounted to
RMB2,200,000 (2020: RMB3,202,300).

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of receivables from guarantee customers
amounted to RMB6,195,000 (2020: nil) with no
allowances for doubtful debts (2020: RMB nil),
without recourse to other parties at considerations
(including considerations of overdue interests and
penalty interests) amounted to RMB6,197,000 (2020:
RMB: nil).

(iii)  On 28 December 2018, the Group entered into a debt
purchase contract with Guangdong Join-Share Holding
Co., Ltd. such that the Group purchased the creditor’s
right and relevant interests, amounting to
RMB41,874,000, of Foshan Zhongsheng Properties
Co., Ltd. at a price of RMB42,094,000. The Group is
entitled to receive interest on the principal of
RMB26,000,000 at a fixed interest rate of 12% per
annum.

(iv)  The interest on the loan to related parties is 8% per
annum.

12

JFE WSy e EL 4th FE W SR IE ()

R2021F12 8318 > BEBR —FZ A
& 1Y o] Sk I RR 4 7 S A EL i FE LR R -
e MBENRBEURBEEEASARE
3230B &L (20201283180 : AR
54.77EETT) ° FTE & T & U K E b e Uk
FRIBTEER#E B — F R UK [B] 3k FE 3R /5 B
§ °

() MREZE2021F12A318BLFE
A AEEHESBEAARE
2,000,0007C (20204 : AR
3,202,3007T) HYMEE =M B BRAR
B (20209F : ARMBZ L) EUGE
WERNZKRTFEMS T  RE (B
FRHNERIENRE) BAR
#2,200,0007T (20204 : AR
3,202,3007T) ©

(i) MEZE2021F12831HIEFE
N AEBLESHEAAREK
6,195,0007T (20204 : &) Ky & 3B
REABREREE 20206 : AR
BTT) BREREPRIATEAM
g7 RE (BRABFERIEE
mARE) BARY6,197,0007T
(2020F : ARM®EZ L) ©

(i) F2018%F12A28H A& FHHEE
B ARETRBROARAAG
EXBESY AU AEEREAMR
I EREXEFRAFRBEARE
41,874,000 T HY (B #E AR F K 48
Wz BB AR #42,094,0007T °
AEBBERBBEIAS AR
26,000,0007T & F12% &) & £ F
H o

(v, BETEBINERFMNELREY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 12 FEMR R H fth FE U FRIE (@)

(a) Ageing analysis: (a) RARESDHT :
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing RB|EIR - BIER S BB RN
analysis of receivables for default guarantee payments RIEBEENELGEDERTR R
and receivables from guarantee customers, based on FEUHEIRE P IR BRER D ATLA T -

the transaction date and net of allowance for doubtful
debts, is as follows:

(i)  Receivables for default guarantee payments (i) [EWELIIERS R
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARMT T
Within 1 year —FUAR 108,262 55,625
Over 1 year but less than —E2=
2 years 54,320 94,013
Over 2 years but less than TE=F
3 years 91,117 10,389
Over 3 years but less than —ERF
5 years 10,573 25,792
Over 5 years HFU 41,228 33,979
Subtotal INE 305,500 219,798
Less: Allowance for doubtful W RIREME
debts (78,491) (65,149)
227,009 154,649
Receivables for default guarantee payments are FEUUE BRI RS KA
due from the date of payment. Further details HEH - AEEEEREKE
on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note — BRI EF M FE32(a) °
32(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis: (CONTINUED)

(ii) Receivables from guarantee customers

FE Wz % L 1t R WSy 3R T o)
(a) RRESSHT @ (80
(i) EHMEREFZE
At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
20214 #20204F
12A31H 12H31H8
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR AR®ET T
Within 1 year —F AR 26,942 53,699
Over 1 year but less than — 2=
2 years 52,198 19,848
Over 2 years but less than R
3 years 9,288 36,839
Over 3 years but less than —ERF
5 years 66,424 89,495
Over 5 years HEFU 40,992 9,725
Subtotal NE 195,844 209,606
Less: Allowance for doubtful W RAREE
debts (45,559) (55,600)
150,285 154,006

The ageing of receivables from guarantee
customers is from the date of payment. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in Note 32(a).

FBREREP RIENKE S
NREEBREE - NEBEE
SR 3 — 25 B R E B PR BT 5
32(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 12 FEMR R H fth FE U FRIE (@)

(a) Ageing analysis: (CONTINUED) (a) HREES T : (@
(iii) Trade debtors Giii) EWE SR
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Within 1 year —F IR 66,746 39,338
Over 1 year but less than —EZF
2 years 982 1,547
Over 2 years but less than —E=F
3 years 1,357 —
Subtotal INE 69,085 40,885

Less: Allowance for doubtful o REREE

debts — —
69,085 40,885
The ageing of receivables from guarantee ERERESRBENERRB
customers is from the date of payment. Further N B - AEBEE
details on the Group's credit policy and credit B M B E 5 0R 5K & B
risk arising from trade debtors and bills EREANEERRNE—
receivable are set out in note 32(a). FFBEH IR TE32() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of receivables for default guarantee
payments and receivables from guarantee customers:

Impairment losses in respect of receivables for default
guarantee payments and receivables from guarantee
customers are recorded using an allowance unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against receivables for default guarantee payments
and receivables from guarantee customers (see Note

1G)(0)).

The movement in the allowance for receivables for
default guarantee payments and receivables from
guarantee customers during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, are as follows:

(i)  Receivables for default guarantee payments

12

JFE WSy e EL 4th FE W SR IE ()

(b) EUEDERNRREREREP
IR RL(E -

FEUGE KRR KR RIERE P
RIEMEERERKABBRT
8% BRIFAEER S KEH BFIR
MEEEN  EZBERLT  BER
ERRG R E O ERM R
W HE R & P 3R (R EE1G)(30) =
8 °

B Z20214 2020912 A31H 1k
FE - EUGE QP& IR 3k M e Wi
REFPRIEBMEFBEESHWNT

() [EWELERZ

At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204

12A318 12A31R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ETT

As at 1 January ®1A1H 65,149 55,640
Impairment losses NERE Bk i

recognised in the RE R EE B

consolidated statement

of profit or loss 4(a) 22,332 24,326
Amounts written off ZiH e (10,697) (17,927)
Amounts recovered W el B AZH ¢ 5 1,707 3,110
As at 31 December M®12A31H 78,491 65,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 12 FEMR R H fth FE U FRIE (@)

(b) Impairment of receivables for default guarantee (b) EWELERNZAKREURIERES
payments and receivables from guarantee customers: HIBRVRE - (B)
(CONTINUED)
(ii) Receivables from guarantee customers (i) [EKIEREFIE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired

BERREN FEEREERN
REARY 4£HENFEY 4LHEHFY

H-{ i HE 3 H-1 i 8%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR AR%Txn
As at 1 January 2021 R2021E1A1H8 = 9,277 46,323 55,600
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit- BEEFEEERENE
impaired mEHRREERE — (3,980) 3,980 =
Net re-measurement of loss BEEEENT2FE
allowance = (895) (6,575) (7,470)
Receivables from guarantee REMEREPERNOE
customers newly originated e e = 3,865 677 4,542
Uncollectible amounts write-off BERENERESE = = (7.113) (7,113)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021512 4318 = 8,267 37,292 45,559

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
1218 A 78
FEBE FEEE 518 A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥ETR ARETT AR%Tn
As at 1 January 2020 7202061 718 - 11,878 46,005 57,883
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit- BREFECERENE
impaired wEREREERE - (1,309) 1,309 —
Net re-measurement of loss BEERENETE
allowance — (9,497) 2,936 (6,561)
Receivables from guarantee REFERE P ERA
customers newly originated JEW IR — 8,205 30 8,235
Uncollectible amounts write-off EEREMERESE — - (3,957) (3,957)
As at 31 December 2020 2020612 /318 — 9,277 46,323 55,600
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13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(@) Analysed by nature

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

13

BHERRER
() HEHEESH

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020

20214 R 20204

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREF T

Entrusted loans ZEER 234,918 158,568

Micro-lending NEEE 434,654 379,510
Gross loans and advances BRERRBREE

to customers 669,572 538,078

Accrued interest JESTH B 5,232 4,945

Total allowances for BB KR EEER

impairment losses (56,462) (38,086)
Net loans and advances to BEHERRBFFE

customers 618,342 504,937

(b) Analysed by industry sector

At 31 December 2021
#2021%£12A31H

RMB’000
ARETR

(b) HITESH
At 3

%
%

RM

ARETT

1 December 2020

72020412 A31H

%
%

B'000

Service sector AR 7% 3 296,293 44% 405,010 75%
Wholesale and retail BEMTEZE 267,229 40% 85,754 16%
Manufacturing BUEZ 103,050 15% 44,314 8%
Others Hi 3,000 1% 3,000 1%

Gross loans and advances M E R KB
to customers 48 =E 669,572 100% 538,078 100%
2211 EERE ERPERENSRERERGBARAS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

13 BREFRRBR @

RERAXSH

At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020

20214 R 20204F
12H31H
RMB’000
ARBFTT

(c) Analysed by type of collateral (c)

12A31H
RMB’000
ARETR

Secured loans EIBE X 222,902 176,122
Unsecured loans ERER 78,112 4,373
Others HMER 368,558 357,583
Gross loans and advances to EHERRBERRATE

customers 669,572 538,078

—  Secured loans: Secured loans refer to the loan —  HHER:RERERTS

248
-

and advances which are secured by collateral
that meets the following standards: (i) such
collateral has been registered with the relevant
governmental authorities; (ii) the market value of
such collateral can be easily observed; and (iii)
the Group has priorities over other beneficiaries
on such collateral. Such collateral mainly includes
real estates and land use rights.

Unsecured loans: Unsecured loans refer to the
loan and advances which are not secured by
collateral or counter-guaranteed.

Others: Others refer to loans and advances
guaranteed by guarantors, or secured by
collateral, the market value of which may be
subject to depreciation or cannot be easily
observed, or on which the Group does not have
priorities over other beneficiaries. Such collateral
includes unregistrable real properties, land use
rights, and registrable account receivables,
vehicles, machineries, inventories and equity
interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 13 BHERREBER@
(CONTINUED)
(d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue period (d) ZHEHSHTHWEBRHER
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
20214 R20204F
12A31H 12H31H8
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETTT
Overdue within 3 months BWEA=EANUA
(inclusive) (5=/@A) 50,746 2,172
Overdue more than 3 months to BE=EANLERE
6 months (inclusive) ~MEA(EREA) — 4,247
Overdue more than 6 months to BEANEAN EE—F
one year (inclusive) (5—F) 1,686 3,307
Overdue more than one year BmE—F MU 114,250 115,238
166,682 124,964
(e) Analysed by methods for assessing (e) WMBEEBEXEHTIHEHAXSH

allowances for impairment losses

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired

BiEEREN FEEERED
12EATRY 4£SANRAYN L£HAHREY

EEEBE EEEBE EEEE =E]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETRT
Entrusted loans ZAER 122,500 = 112,418 234,918
Micro-lending NEER 415,923 = 18,731 434,654
Gross loans and advances to EHEFRRBFBE
customers 538,423 = 131,149 669,572
Less: Allowances for B REBKERE
impairment losses (19,133) = (37,329) (56,462)
Net loans and advances to BERERRBTFE
customers (excluding (T RERETHE)
accrued interest) 519,290 — 93,820 613,110
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X3 BHETIEIN HUARE FILIIR)

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 13 BERERRBIR@
(CONTINUED)
(e) Analysed by methods for assessing (e) WMBEBEXEHFTHEAXSTH
allowances for impairment losses (CONTINUED) (4&)

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
impaired impaired
1218 AT 5 H
=EE#E EEER { Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Entrusted loans ZEER 43,400 — 115,168 158,568
Micro-lending NEER 362,063 850 16,597 379,510
Gross loans and advances to EWERRBTEE
customers 405,463 850 131,765 538,078
Less: Allowances for B REE K EE
impairment losses (13,755) (55) (24,276) (38,086)
Net loans and advances to BRERRBRFE
customers (excluding (T BEEAFE)
accrued interest) 391,708 795 107,489 499,992
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Movements of allowances for impairment

losses

13 BRERBRBR@

12-month
ECL

12{8 A B &

(f)

Lifetime ECL
not credit-
impaired

BERKERES

Lifetime
ECL credit-
impaired

BiEEREN FEEERED
AHENEY 4S£HEMNEY

EE8EKE B85S EEEKE A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARE®TRT ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 2021F1A1H 13,755 55 24,276 38,086
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREEEERENE
credit-impaired miRBEREEER = = = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREGFEEEREN
credit-impaired EnBERESREE
BB (67) (55) 122 —
Net re-measurement of loss BREFENEFE
allowance (13,248) = 8,901 (4,347)
Loans and advances newly MEMERRER
originated 18,693 D 6,030 24,723
Write-offs B — — (2,000) (2,000)
As at 31 December 2021 1202146128318 19,133 — 37,329 56,462

12-month
ECL

128 AT
B
RMB’'000

AREBFT

Lifetime ECL
not credit-
impaired

RE 17

RMB'000
AREFT

ARETT

Lifetime
ECL credit-
impaired

(EH)

SE R At

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT

As at 1 January 2020 MW2020F1A1H 16,597 556 19,404 36,557
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREEEERENE

credit-impaired mEMEREERE (74) 74 — —
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREFEEEREN

credit-impaired EHBERESREE

BB (262) (181) 443 —

Net re-measurement of loss BREFENIEFHE

allowance (16,090) 1,606 9,791 (4,693)
Loans and advances newly MEMERRER

originated 13,688 — 4,450 18,138
Write-offs %38 (104) (2,000) (9,812) (11,916)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%12A31H 13,755 55 24,276 38,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

FEM (R EBFRIE

At 31 December
2021
20214

14 FACTORING RECEIVABLES 14

12A318H
RMB’000
AREFx

At 31 December
2020

20204
12H31H
RMB’'000
ARBET T

Factoring receivables JiE U (R 38 FE 187,242 184,003
Less: Allowances for factoring B EUURIE AR
receivables (12,834) (3,303)
174,408 180,700
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BR&EESH

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of receivables
for factoring business, based on the invoices date and
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

DHWT

At 31 December

R12A8318 » RIEBEKEWRIE
(0B RERIEE) L E B B ERIR

At 31 December

2021 2020
120214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARET T
Within 1 year —FR 122,292 145,103
Over 1 year but less than 2 years 1224 27,000 38,900
Over 2 years but less than 3 years 2ZE34F 37,950 —

Less: Allowances for factoring W EUBURIEFE RS
receivables (12,834) (3,303)
174,408 180,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

14 FACTORING RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of factoring receivables

Impairment losses in respects of receivables for
factoring business are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against receivables for factoring
business directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is as
follows:

14

FEWT R IBERIE ()
(b) FEUWIREFIERE

RIZF UGB R BEIR R E R
BEBRAR  RIEAKEEAKD
BRAKENA BEMERE - EER
T REBKERERREEBRER
AP

AN AE £2020F12 A31H I F
ERRRBEEES

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

not credit- credit-
12-month ECL impaired impaired
BESREN SECEREDY
NEAEY E£&HEYEY L£HEYEY
E8EKE B85S EEEKE 8%
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT ARSI ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 MW2021F1A18 1,397 1,903 3 3,303
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREEEERENE
credit-impaired mESMEREERE = = — —
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREFEEEREN
credit-impaired EHBERESREE
BB (219) (1,894) 2,113 —
Net re-measurement of loss BREFENEFE
allowance (905) (10) 8,069 7,154
Factoring receivables newly T ) R R IR B
originated 1,154 65 1,158 2,377
As at 31 December 2021 20216124318 1,427 64 11,343 12,834
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X3 BHETIEIN HUARE FILIIR)

14 FACTORING RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of factoring receivables
(CONTINUED)

14 FEUGIRIBRRIE (@)
(b) FEWRERIERE @)

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired

4
REAEY A£d B H H
51 =EBE 2 =H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFTT AR®EF T
As at 1 January 2020 72020F 1818 1,977 — — 1,977
Transfer to lifetime ECL not EREREENENE
credit-impaired mEBAEREERE (239) 239 — —
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREFEEENED
credit-impaired EamBARESREE
g — — — —
Net re-measurement of loss EREBENTEFE
allowance (1,569) 1,654 — 85
Factoring receivables newly HE £ ERIRERIE
originated 1,228 10 3 1,241
As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 1,397 1,903 3 3,303

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVOCI

15 RAREBEESAHMGEZEK G
EMEHMEE
At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
20214 MN20204

12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFRE ARBT T

Unlisted equity investments JEFmRERE 73,002 41,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

16 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVPL 16 BAAEEIANERIENSH

BE

At 31 December

At 31 December

2021 2020
120214 MR 20204
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETX AREF T

Convertible bonds A] B IR (E 25,024 90,905

Unlisted equity investments — 3E EHAERE 6,070 —

31,094 90,905

(i) The Group has waived its rights to convert the above bonds

for common stocks in the issuing companies.

17 RECEIVABLE INVESTMENTS

) AEREENELLABFERLSETA
A E B RER o

FEWRIEER R &

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020

720215 R 20204

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFx AREEF T

Bonds &% 25,000 25,000
Wealth management products B ER 1,460 50,680
Trust products ZFEEm 7,000 7,000
Subtotal NEF 33,460 82,680
Accrued interest FERTF B 1,215 1,455
Less: Allowances for impairment losses  J& : JB{E 18 45 (6,163) (6,163)
28,512 77,972
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 RFATIRE
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TRESFEFEASEHESE EELE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of B FRAIFE - RE AR - FIFEE
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless Z B R E AR

otherwise stated:

Proportion of ownership interest
As at 31 December 2021
R2021£ 12831 B AN BRI

Date and place of Group's
incorporation/ Registered effective Held by the  Held by a  Principal
Names of companies Place of business establishment capital  Paid-in capital interest  Company  subsidiary activities
MR/ RIAMR kS 1]
ATER ERH B EREX EQE% BERER FAEKF FATRE  XERR
Foshan Join-Share Investment and Financing Consultancy Foshan 11 November 2005 RMB RMB 100% = 100%  Investment and
Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Consultancy”) the PRC 10,000,000 10,000,000 Consulting
(BLhREERBEAAIRBERLA)
BLRBERRRARARBERAR il 20055118118 AR® ARE 100% = 100%  RERHH
(M REA ) TE 10,000,000 10,000,003
Foshan Join-Share Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. ("Foshan Foshan 29 September 2007 RMB RMB 100% = 100%  Investment and
Industrial Investment”) the PRC 5,100,000 5,100,000 Consulting
(BLhREEREERAR)
GlLRRRXREERAT(RUTEEZ]) G 2007%9£298 AR® ARE 100% = 100%  RERHH
HE 5,100,000 5,100,000
Anhui Join-Share Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. ("Anhui Hefei 31 August 2009 RMB RMB 63.05% 63.05% —  Guarantee
Join-Share”) the PRC 200,000,000 200,000,000
(RUREEBERRERAT)
THTREERERRERAT (ZHRAEE]) A 2009%8A318 AR® ARE 63.05% 63.05% - &R
HE 200,000,005 200,000,0007C
Hefei Join-Share Consultancy Service Co., Ltd. ("Hefei Hefei 8 May 2010 RMB RMB 63.05% = 100%  Consulting
Consltancy”) the PRC 1,000,000 1,000,000
(AR REZZARBERLT)
alrRREAARKARLA (GRFARE]) A 201055488 AR® ARE 63.05% = 100% 3
HE 1,000,000 1,000,000
Foshan Chancheng Join-Share Micro Credit Co., Ltd Foshan 30 May 2011 RMB RMB 55.25% = 55.25%  Microcredit
("Foshan Micro Credit”) the PRC 243,560,000 243,560,000
(BLBHHREENEEFERLR)
FlLBRTRREBERERLE il 2011%54308 AR® ARE 55.25% = 55.25%  MEER
(M MERSR) P 243,560,000 243,560,007
Zhongshan Join-Share Technology Financing Guarantee Zhongshan 8 July 2014 RMB RMB 100% 47% —  Guarantee
Investment Co., Ltd the PRC 200,000,000 200,000,000
("Zhongshan Join-Share")
(PR BRENRREARREBRAF)
PlhREENERABREAFRAR Pl 01457788 AR AR 100% 47% - ER
(Tl REE]) HE 200,000,000 200,000,0007C
Guangdong Join-Share Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Foshan 27 April 2016 RMB RMB 100% 100% —  Investment and
("Guangdong Capital Investment”) the PRC 170,000,000 170,000,000 Consulting
(BERPRRBERERERAA)
ERTREZALERARAA ((RRALER)) il 2016545278 AR AR 100% 100% —  RARHES
HE 170,000,000%%  170,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Names of companies

AEER

Guangdong Join-Share Supply Chain Services Co., Ltd.

("Guangdong Supply Chain”)
(BERTRABERERERERAR
RRTAREHERERERAT (RRHER))

Guangdong Join-Share Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd
("Guangdong Commercial Factoring”)
(RRTRBEEHFREERAA)

ERPREEHFREERLA (ERAHFRE))

Shenzhen Join-Share Engineering Guarantee Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen Engineering Guarantee”)
(RImHRAREIRARERAR)

AT REETRARERAT (RIITRER])

Yunfu Puhui Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.
("Yunfu Guarantee”)
BRERRAER

Joint-Share Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Financial Holdings")
(PEEEZLBARARLA)

PREESH

2RARDT ([2BE2R))

Guangdong Join-Share Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
("Digital Technology")
(BERTRBEFUTREERAR)

ERPRERUFHRARLA(HFHE)

Place of business

ERE

Foshan

il

Shenzhen

3

Shenzhen

3l

Yunfu

Hong Kong

&R

Foshan

il

Date and place of
incorporation/
establishment
#MAL/BRIARR
wE

14 April 2017
the PRC

2017845148
ik

17 November 2017
the PRC

20175118178
HE

31 May 2018
the PRC

2018%F5A318
ik

4 February 2016
the PRC

201652848
ik

12 November 2018
Hong Kong
the PRC

2018%F 117128
ik

14 May 2020
the PRC

2000557148
HE

18

Registered
capital

ghas

RMB
50,000,000

ARE
50,000,0003
RMB
50,000,000

ARE
50,000,0007C
RMB
200,000

ARE
20,0007
RMB
130,000,000

ARE
130,000,007
HKD
45,000.000

45,000.000
-3

RMB
20,000,000

ARE
20,000,000

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies
incorporated and operated in the PRC, except that Financial
Holdings was registered and operated in Hong Kong.

RFAT’E @

Proportion of ownership interest
As at 31 December 2021
R2021E 1231 BHBHEBLH

Group's
effective Held by the  Held by a  Principal
Paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary activities
x50
BHEX ER#S F48KF FATRE  IEER
RMB 85% = 85%  Supply Chain
50,000,000 Services
ARE 85% = 85%  HEERH
50,000,0007C
RMB 100% - 100%  Factoring
50,000,000
AR 100% = 00% RE
50,000,0007C
RMB 100%. 100%. —  Guarantee
200,000
ARE 100% 100% - ER
200,0007C
RMB 53.85% 53.85% —  Guarantee
130,000,000
AR 53.85% 53.85% - BER
130,000,0007
HKD 100%. 100%. —  Investment
45,000.000
45,000.000 100% 100% - RE
BT
RMB 90% = 90%  Digital technology
20,000,000
ARE 90% = 0% HFHE
20,000,0007C

e RN E B M REEN - AL
it F R B 2R 0 o B R I AR OZ M AR
BREFERAT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

18

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Establishment/acquisition of subsidiaries

(i)

Guangdong Capital Investment increased the
investment of Foshan Micro Credit by
RMB15,594,000 in 2020, with RMB13,560,000
increased in paid-in capital and RMB2,034,000
increased in capital reserve. After the capital
increase, the capital contribution of Guangdong
Capital Investment increased from
RMB130,012,800 to RMB145,606,800, and the
percentage of share held by Guangdong Capital
Investment was changed from 50.435% to
53.194%, the proportion of other shareholders’
equity changes accordingly. After the capital
increase, the registered capital of Foshan Micro
Credit increased from RMB230,000,000 to
RMB243,560,000, and the capital reserve
increased by RMB2,034,000. On 31 December
2020, Foshan Micro Credit completed the
registration of the registered capital change. By
the end of 2020, Guangdong Capital Investment
purchased additional 2.053% share of Foshan
Micro Credit from a minority interest at a cash
consideration of RMB 4,400,000. On 23 June
2021, Foshan Micro Credit completed the
registration of its registered capital change. After
the capital increase, the capital contribution of
Guangdong Capital Investment increased from
RMB 145,606,800 to RMB 150,006,800, and
the percentage of share held by Guangdong
Capital Investment increased from 53.194% to
55.247%.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

18 MNFATH®E @
(a) Wi WEFAS

(i)
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ERE A EER20204F 10
BILNEEREEARK
15,594,0007T - EF EHE
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FEARREEZNDARK
2,034,0007T - &% ER
BEREENLETERARKE
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At % 2R HE 2 L 51 O A E
o ERE - HBILNEER
WeaEfEARBE AR
230,000,000 L = A R
243,560,0007T * MEARRATE
# hn A R #2,034,0007T © 7
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200K EREARE
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EEFANRNDAE S H
53.194% 8 %55.247%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Establishment/acquisition of subsidiaries
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

In September 2021, the Company entered into a
series of shareholders’ agreements with the
nominal shareholders of Zhongshan Join-Share
(“2021 Shareholders’ Agreements”), which
stipulated equity transactions among the nominal
shareholders and enabled one of the non-
controlling nominal shareholders, i.e. Zhongshan
Health Science and Technology Industrial Base
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhongshan Health”), to
enjoy preferential rights related to its capital
contribution. Upon the completion of the equity
transactions, the Company holds 47% equity
interest of Zhongshan Join-Share. In the
meantime, the Company entered into a concert
party agreement with Zhongshan Health, who
holds 43% equity interest of Zhongshan Join-
Share. Pursuant to the concert party agreement,
Zhongshan Health agrees to follow the
instructions of the Company to act in concert
when casting their votes in the shareholders
meeting of Zhongshan Join-Share. As a result,
the Company retains power over Zhongshan
Join-Share such as appointment of directors and
senior management, making decisions about
material matters in daily operation, distribution
of dividends, business operation and asset
disposal.

According to the 2021 Shareholders’
Agreements, the capital contributions made by
the other nominal shareholders are regarded as
other financial instrument measured at amortised
cost, and the Company’s effective equity interest
in Zhongshan Join-Share increased to 100%.
Details are set out in Note 27.

18 MRFATRE @
(a) R WEEFAT (@

(ii)

MR202149 8 » KA &l &
IR AR ERNZERREL
—RYIR R (12021 F 8%
Hipel)  EFROEREREN
RIERZX S WEEFR—FIE
YRR ER (BNAR L R RHE
EXAMMERER AT ([F
Wil ZEHRETEHFH
B ERER - RFERRIER
5% ARBIHBER LT R
BX W47 % IR FE - Rl By -
AR LEE (EEET L
AR EMA3%ARE) FTAL
—BAITE W& o BIKE— BT
i  PILEER S EE
RNAQRIWIB R LS AR
EMRE AR ZER— W
BeEHit ARRRE YT
I BB ENE N WET
EENSRERE HEE
BEHPMEAEE RES
I  EBELNEEREM
IR -

RIFE2021F R R Ham - Ef
ZEBREMHEWE BRE
ERAENEMES BT
B ARQERPILFARE
MERIREEZ100% ° 5515
BAKIFE27 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 RFATRE @
(a) Establishment/acquisition of subsidiaries (@) MiL WeBBFAE @)

(CONTINUED)

(i) On 10 January 2020, the Company transferred (i) 2020918108 * KR A
100% of the equity of its wholly- owned HETHEEF 2RI
subsidiary Shenzhen Join-Share Commercial BREMEREBRAA
Factoring Co., Ltd. to Guangdong Capital 100% H) AR e S s 45 R PR & 7R
Investment. Subsequently, Shenzhen Join-Share B oPEE  AYIhREE
Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. was renamed BMEREERAGERBRE
Guangdong Join-Share Commercial Factoring RPREREREREERA
Co., Ltd. Al e
In view of business development, Foshan EREBER HBILEKEFHRE
Consultancy transferred the share of Guangdong HEREERENROEET
Supply Chain to Guangdong Capital investment. BRERER - A20205F 11
On 11 November 2020, Guangdong Supply A1 B - ERHEEETKR
Chain completed the shareholder change REHE EE - )R2020911A8
registration. On 18 November 2020, the 180 - ERHEEREA
shareholder meeting of Guangdong Supply EHEETMERBARE
Chain approved the increase of registered capital 10,000.0007T 3 &= A R #&
from RMB10,000.000 to RMB50,000,000 of 50,000,0007t - HHP ERE
which Guangdong Capital Investment completed REER2020%F 11 A26H T
the actual paid-in capital of RMB18,500,000 and K E & E X AR
the subscribed capital of RMB24,000,000 on 18,500,0007T K R B & 7R A
26 November 2020, with shareholding ratio as R #24,000,0007T @ #FH AL
85%. B %85% °

(iv)  On 6 July 2020, the board of directors of the (iv) H2020F7H6H  KRAE
Company approved the capital increase to EeHEBETEREANE
Guangdong Capital Investment. On 6 July 2020, - }A2020F7A6H - ER
Guangdong Capital Investment completed the BEAEBTKRARAEEZ
registration of capital change. After completing 50 ° 20206 8 A26 A 5T AL
the paid-in capital increase on 26 August 2020, EHEEE ERERER
the registered capital of Guangdong Capital WiEfETRBARKOES
Investment increased from RMB60 million to TIEARKI7088 T -
RMB170 million.

On 14 May 2020, Guangdong Capital 2020F5 3148 BERE
Investment and Zhou Suping jointly established NEREE R R E
Guangdong Join-Share Digital Technology Co., RARREHRTREARA
Ltd. with a registered capital of RMB20,000,000. Al a2l ERARE
Guangdong Capital Investment invested 20,000,0007C - ERE AR E
RMB18,000,000, with a capital contribution ratio EHREAR18,000,000
of 90.00%. 7T X E ER90.00% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 MRFATRE @

(b) Deregistration of subsidiary

(9]

On 3 December 2021, Join-Share (Hong Kong)
Supply-Chain Service Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

Carrying amount of investments in

(b) EESHFAFE

R2021F12 838 hAEKE (B
) HRESE AR5 A PR A Rl AL o

(0 ASEEMMBRRERPRF

subsidiaries in the company-level statement ATREZREEE
of financial position

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR¥ET T

Anhui Join-Share LR EKE 126,800 126,800
Zhongshan Join-Share Rl R RE 94,000 104,000
Yunfu Guarantee EFER 70,634 70,634
Guangdong Capital Investment BEREREIE 170,000 170,000
Financial Holdings ® RIEAR 39,638 39,638
Shenzhen Engineering Guarantee Y TR ER 200 200
501,272 511,272

221 EEHRE ERPEBREMARRRERBGERLS

261
-



262
-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

18

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18
(d) Material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to
Anhui Join-Share, Foshan Micro Credit, Zhongshan
Join-Share and Yunfu Guarantee, the four subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling
interests. The summarised financial statements
presented below represents the amounts before any
inter-company elimination.

(i) Anhui Join-Share

RFATHRE @)
(d) FXIEFEHIMERER

TREIBRELRTAEE bl
NEER IR BRERETE
RIUM AR ETEA B A%
WL FRAVZER - TX 2528t
BHREAMEB /AT REANRRREIE
HZ R e

() ZHRPEBE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215 20204F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT

NCI percentage IEEHIEERA ST 36.95% 36.95%

Gross amounts of FRAEBEE
the subsidiary:

— Non-current assets — ERBEE 30,272 29,162

— Current assets — nBEE 180,407 185,459

— Non-current liabilities — ERBEE (22,454) (27,116)

— Current liabilities — hRBEE (30) (18)

Net assets FEE 188,195 187,487
Carrying amount of NCI FEIE R L AR E

BB 70,227 69,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 RFATH/E W

(d) Material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) (d) BEXFEHM#EDRE

(i)  Anhui Join-Share (CONTINUED) () ZHRPEEEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETF T

Gross amounts of the FRAIEEE
subsidiary:

— Revenue — = 15,695 15,403
— Profit/(loss) for the year — FRFE(EE) 8,575 (2,861)
— Total comprehensive income — MW zSARE 8,575 (2,861)

Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI  SYECE IE I G E#ESs

BIFIH,(B518) 3,168 (1,057)
Cash flow from operating KRB PE S
activities ReEmE 10,329 (14,562)
Cash flow from investment HEEBEEN
activities ReEmeE (228) 1,865
Cash flow from financing BEEBMEERN
activities Behke (5,555) 6,445

Net increase/(decrease) in cash wEE L
and cash equivalents Cad) F58 4,546 (6,252)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 MFATRE @
(d) Material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) (d) EXIFEHITEER
(i)  Foshan Micro Credit (i) BLIPFEEF
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETX ARBET T
NCI percentage IR B D 44.75% 46.81%
Gross amounts of the FARIMRER
subsidiary:
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 6,857 5,984
— Current assets — REBEE 429,860 398,514
— Non-current liabilities — ERHBEE (90,001) (31
— Current liabilities — REaE (65,994) (125,239)
Net assets FEE 280,722 279,228
Carrying amount of NCI FEFEHI M S AR E
E{E 125,803 130,707
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETFTT
Gross amounts of FARIMREE
the subsidiary:
— Revenue — Wz 49,512 50,236
— Profit for the year — FRFE 18,055 15,121
— Total comprehensive income — & EWZH4A%E 18,055 15,121
Profit allocated to NCI S EEFEEHI MRS
By F1) ;H 8,080 7,078
Cash flow from operating R TEB P E AR
activities ReRheE (17,312) 40,465
Cash flow from investment WEEEFTEER
activities HeEmneE (927) (186)
Cash flow from financing BB EBTEER
activities Be&hs 1,967 (32,822)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash  E¥E4 (Ofd ),/
and cash equivalents HANFEER (16,272) 7,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 MFATH/E @
(d) Material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) (d) FXIEFEGIMERELRE @
(iiij) Zhongshan Join-Share (iii) U PEEEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AR®T T
NCI percentage FEIEHIEEEE S — 20.00%
Gross amounts of the FARIREE
subsidiary:
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 9,918 9,285
— Current assets — REBEE 244,367 240,510
— Non-current liabilities — ERFaE (4,980) (6,482)
— Current liabilities — hRBEaE (43,254) (39,714)
Net assets FEE 206,051 203,599
Carrying amount of NCI FEEERI M ERRE
R — 40,720
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
ARETx ARET T
Gross amounts of FRRIMBREE
the subsidiary:
— Revenue — Wa 29,042 24,379
— Profit for the year — FRFHE 14,937 8,533
— Total comprehensive income — ZEUWZE4A%E 10,407 2,914
Profit allocated to NCI SEEF EEGIEER
B F1) i 1,398 583
Cash flow from operating KRB PTE £/
activities Beahke 24,089 (72,402)
Cash flow from investment WEEBEEN
activities ReEmeE (816) 1,081
Cash flow from financing BB EBREAN
activities Rem= (13,500) (14,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ~ E#E £~
and cash equivalents CRi ) #58 9,773 (85,321)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the REZE2021F12A31 EIJt¢
Company’s effective equity interest in Zhongshan B ARRARRHF LR BREE
Join-share increased to 100%. Details are set out HERIREILE100% © %’i’lﬁ
in Note 27. AT FE27 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 RFATHRE®@
(d) Material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) (d) EXIFEHITEER
(iv) Yunfu Guarantee (iv) ZFIER
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETX AERET T
NCI percentage IR B D 46.15% 46.15%
Gross amounts of the FARIMRER
subsidiary:
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 695 1,190
— Current assets — REBEE 148,930 147,808
— Non-current liabilities — ERBEE (75) (258)
— Current liabilities — REaE (12,229) (10,407)
Net assets FEE 137,321 138,333
Carrying amount of NCI FEFEHI M S AR E
E{E 65,291 63,840
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETFTT
Gross amounts of FARIMREE
the subsidiary:
— Revenue — Wz 10,903 12,933
— Profit for the year — FRHHE 4,688 8,733
— Total comprehensive income — & EWZH4A%E 4,688 8,733
Profit allocated to NCI S EEFEEHI MRS
B F 2,164 4,030
Cash flow from operating R TEB P E AR
activities Ren= 4,823 17,152
Cash flow from investment WEEEFTEER
activities Rens 1,620 3,980
Cash flow from financing BB EBTEER
activities Be&hs (5,700) (4,600)

Net increase in cash and cash B E TR
equivalents 743 16,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group's interests in associates are as follows:

19 REBEA
7 55 1B A B

At 31 December

SIRYHE R
BATGEEMT :

At 31 December

2021 2020

120214 7220204

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR¥ET T

Foshan Zhongsheng BRIl AR 11,505 18,790

Shenzhen Bangli FNFBF 12,422 11,927

Yiliantong Supply Chain SEBtEE 2,170 1,599

Changtong Medical Examination BN mEs Sk 1,724 1,707
Kuiniudingsheng Company BASRPEEE(G)

Management(i) 5,661 —
Weicheng Network Technology(ii) BT A8 48 B G) 4,307 —
Tongchuangzhiyuan Business B B Bl 7 2 B HE (i)

Management(iii) 100 —
Chuangyuan Supply Chain(iv) 38 1Ly 8l 7T 44 FE 2 (iv) — —

37,889 34,023

(a) Establishment/acquisition of associates

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

During year ended 31 December 2021,
Guangdong Capital Investment purchased
38.12% share of Kuiniudingsheng Company
Management at a consideration of
RMB5,661,000 and held 38.12% equity interests
in Kuiniudingsheng Company Management.

On 8 April 2021, Guangdong Supply Chain
subscribed RMB5,000,000 of capital of
Weicheng Network Technology and held 20%
equity interests. By 31 December 2021, the
subscription money has been paid.

During year ended 31 December 2021, Foshan
Consultancy established Tongchuangzhiyuan
Business Management at a consideration of
RMB100,000 and held 20.00% equity interests
in Tongchuangzhiyuan Business Management.

As at 31 December 2021, the equity of
Chuangyuan Supply Chain Technology has been
reduced to nil after making the adjustments
necessary in applying the equity method (year
ended 31 December 2020: nil).

(@) R WeEEEHE AT

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

REZ=2021F12A31HLEF
B EREABTEIUARE
5,661,000 M EEE B4
BEMCEEE3I12%HA
HUHREBRFRREEE
7£38.12% I AL HE o

MN2021F4F8H  EEME
BEREBEHNAEBEHRER
AR #5,000,0007t WA
20% A% HE - 722021412 A 31
Bl B REIA -

REZE2021F12A318IEF
E-#HLUEREAARE
100,000 7T & ¥ {8 p 32 [7] Bl 2L
EHEETE O VHEAE
20.00% HI A% FE ©

R2021F12 8318 - #Lal
T4 FE S A A% 4 AAME A R
FELMBERABREZDHIRE
T (H 220206128318 1
FE:F)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19 REEATHER @
(a) Establishment/acquisition of associates (@) AL WaBBEEE AT (@)
(CONTINUED)
The following list contains the particulars of the TERHBIEEAR (RELZEST
associates, which are unlisted corporate entity whose EREMNIFEFLTRAAER) N
quoted market price are not available. The class of E-BREEZTHIN FIFEEZKRH
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated: HRE R

Proportion of ownership interest
As at 31 December 2021

R021E12A31 BERFREILH
Date and place of Group's
incorporation/ Registered effective Held by the  Held by a  Principal
Name of companies Place of business establishment capital  Paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  activities
ML/ RIBAR 3
ATER BENY L] HREX R4Ex AATRE  FAARE  ZERH
Foshan Zhongsheng Properties Co., Ltd. Foshan 1 June 2012 RMB RMB 20% = 20%  Real estate
(“Foshan Zhongsheng”) the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,000
(BUTRREXERAR)
BumREERERAF (LR il 201266A18 AR ARH 20% = W% EiE
A 30,000,0007% 30,000,0007
Shenzhen Bangli Internet Financial Services Co., Shenzhen 5 May 2015 RMB RMB 25% = 25%  Financial services
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Bangli”) the PRC 100,000,000 30,050,000
(RYIAERELRBBERLR)
AANERNERBHEERAR A 201555458 AR ARH 25% = 5% 2RERE
(TRAIAR) m 100,000,000 30,050,007
Guangzhou Yiliantong Supply Chain Guangzhou 27 November 2018 RMB RMB 48% = 48%  Supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. (“Yiliantong Supply the PRC 10,000,000 2,280,000 services
Chain")
(ENERARERERERAT)
ENERRREEERERAA A 20185114278 AR% AR 48% = 8%  REERE
(IEEAHESE]) S 10,000,0005% 2,280,000
Guangzhou Changtong Medical Examination Guangzhou 25 July 2016 RMB RMB 46% = 46%  Supply chain
Co., Ltd. (“Changtong Medical the PRC 5,000,000 2,242,500 services

Examination”)

(RMIGARSRRERAR)

EMRARSRRERARA B 2016574258 AR ARS 46% - 4%  RERRS
(EMeER2RR)) i 5,000,007 2,242,500

Foshan Chuangyuan Supply Chain Technology Foshan 20 December 2018 RMB RMB 46% = 46%  Supply chain
Co., Ltd. (“Chuangyuan Supply Chain") the PRC 20,000,000 2,700,000 services
(LT HERRRERAE)

BUTETHEENEERAR Bl 20185128208 AR ARS 46% - 4%  RERRS
(TR ILBI ot fese)) i 20,000,000 2,700,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19 MREZEATRER @
(a) Establishment/acquisition of associates (@) ML/ WEBEE AT (@
(CONTINUED)

Proportion of ownership interest
As at 31 December 2021
R2021%12A31 BERA R

Date and place of Group's
incorporation/ Registered effective Held by the  Held by a  Principal
Name of companies Place of business establishment capital  Paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary activities
AL/ RIBHR FREER
ATER BENE B 2REE £ B XATHE FAIRE  ZERE
Guangdong Weicheng Network Technology Co., Foshan 20 November 2018 RMB RMB 20% = 20%  Supply chain
Ltd. (“Weicheng Network Technology”) the PRC 25,000,000 23,115,000 services
(EREHBENRERLE)
ERENBANRBRLR (HRBAHR]) Bl 20185114208 AR% AR 2% = 0% HEBRE
HE 25,000,0007 23,115,0005C
Shenzhen Kuiniudingsheng Company Shenzhen 29 January 2018 RMB RMB 38% = 38%  Business services
Management LLP the PRC 1,000,000 1,000,000

("Kuiniudingsheng Company Management”)
(RIBFRROEEREBLE (BRA

#)
(RYBFSECEERABLE (BRAR) =il 2018%1A29A ARE AR 38% - 38%  HERE
(BESRE%ER]) HE 1,000,005 1,000,000
Foshan Tongchuangzhiyuan Business Foshan 28 January 2021 RMB RMB 20% = 20%  Business services
Management Co., Ltd. the PRC 3,000,000 500,000
(“Tongchuangzhiyuan Business
Management”)
(BUTRAZEREERERAT)
BUTREREE$ERERAR ((REIRE Il 2021%1A28H AR AR 20% - 0%  HERH
BEEE]) FE 3,000,005 500,000
i The English translation of the names of these * BNAIHNENEZLEHZRE - IF
companies is for reference only. The official names of NEEUAR L EZE -
these companies are in Chinese.
The associates are accounted for using the equity ZEMENTIRBERENG S
method in the consolidated financial statements. T AALR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19 REEATHER @
(a) Establishment/acquisition of associates (@) AL WaBBEEE AT (@)
(CONTINUED)
Aggregate information of individually immaterial ERIFEEREE N EINERE ER
associates:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 20204
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT
Aggregate carrying amount of e MBI E R
individually immaterial associates FEREE ARG
in the consolidated financial FREE
statements 37,889 34,023
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTTT
Aggregate amounts of the REEE G R
Group's share of profit of these N A N AR
associates:
(Loss)/profit from operation and &% (E518) /% &
total comprehensive income EEIRABEE (3,022) 15,108

Investment losses from disposal of & &N FHIEE
an associate 18 = (15,624)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

20 BEEEE
(a) BREEELER

20 FIXED ASSETS

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Other
Office and properties
Buildings held other Leasehold leased for own Total fixed
Motor vehicles ~ for own use equipment  improvements use assets
B
RMB'000
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2020 202051518 2,021 5,013 5,939 12,527 16,480 41,980
Additions &m - - 453 27 2,740 3,220
Disposals RE — — (33) — (880) 913)
At 31 December 2020 and 20205124318 &

1 January 2021 202151818 2,021 5,013 6,359 12,554 18,340 44,287

Additions Em - - 512 - 11,348 11,860
Transfer in BE — 947 — — — 947
Disposals K& — — (1,725) — (9,871) (11,596)
At 31 December 2021 #2021F12 4318 2,021 5,960 5,146 12,554 19,817 45,498
Accumulated depreciation: RiAE:
At 1 January 2020 #202051 7318 (1,159) (843) (3,520) (10,707) (5,519 (21,748)
Charge for the year FERER (235) (238) (787) (1,119) (5,165) (7,544)
Written back on disposals REEE - - 31 - 452 483
At 31 December 2020 and 12020512431 &

1 January 2021 202151818 (1,394) (1,081) (4,276) (11,826) (10,232) (28,809)
Charge for the year FREHR (253) (272) (885) (577) (4,445) (6,432)
Transfer in B — (217) — — — 217)
Written back on disposals EERE - — 1,526 - 9,300 10,826
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 (1,647) (1,570) (3,635) (12,403) (5,377) (24,632)
Net book value: IREFE:

At 31 December 2020 #2020512 A31H 627 3,932 2,083 728 8,108 15,478
At 31 December 2021 20215124318 374 4,390 1,511 151 14,440 20,866

REE2021F12A31BILFE -
—IREFEREEEHEEEEE
EBE KA A ARMI47,0005T
MEFHEARK217,0005T
(2020F - AREZ L) BRHET
BENEERERBAAREELA -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a building
was transferred from investment property to fixed
assets with a cost of RMB947,000 and an
accumulated depreciation of RMB217,000 (2020: RMB
nil), because it was no longer under lease and became
occupied by the Group.

HERX
HE2021F12H31BEFE - I
4 T 57 T ) 5% 4R (B 1B 2K (2020
F:ARBEERT) -

Impairment losses

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
impairment loss of equipment was recognised (2020:
RMB nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

20 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20
(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

BE&EE @

(b) {EHESE
REBEERRE D NEREEE
BEFESNET :

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204

12A318H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®ETT

Included in “fixed assets”: [BE&E]PE:
Ownership interests in leasehold REELRFIEA A
land and buildings held for own WEFHT B EER

use, carried at depreciated cost, (BT EKATYIE) -
with remaining lease term of: AT AHE - 14,135 8,003
— Under 10 years —105F R
Vehicle, carried at depreciated cost — H i (FRIT E KA FIE) 305 105
14,440 8,108

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

RIEZPERANEBHAEZRHY D
aR -

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use 1% A7 & & 48 Bl 21 5 &Y
assets by class of underlying FREEEZITE
asset: X :

Ownership interests in leasehold METEAEFH
land and buildings held for own PREREER

AREBTR ARBTT

use 4,308 4,924
Vehicle BHif 137 241
4,445 5,165

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNEB 398 498

During the year, the Group entered into a number of
lease agreements for use of offices, and therefore
recognized the additions to right-of-use assets of
RMB11,348,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

20 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b) Right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities together the future
cash outflows arising from leases are set out in Notes
10(d) and 29, respectively.

The Group leases production plant, machinery and
office equipment under leases expiring from 1 to 5
years. Some leases include an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated, while some
include an option to purchase the leased equipment at
the end of the lease term at a price deemed to be a
bargain purchase option. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount.

20
(b)

B % & = (4

EHESE®@®

ERBEENARERLMNEERE
H 2 HI A o ATE R S E A R R IR
BEmH 2152 B &R EE 10(d)
K29 -

AEERELERE  #ERBQ
i HEHR/IESF-ETHE
BEEENHEMEB GREERE
EmEERE mMETHERSNHE
ERRUABRESZEBERENER
BEHERENEERE -FAAHE
BB EHEENK -

21 EBREE
(a)

AR (R E ¥ AR

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Cost: R :

At the beginning of the year REA] 13,028 10,982
Additions A0 4,186 2,046
_Atthe end of the year R e 24 13,028

Accumulated amortisation: FatiEe
At the beginning of the year REH (10,625) (7,200)
Charge for the year FREHE (2,351) (3,425)
Attheend of theyear ... R e, (12976) . ... (10,625)
Net book value: REFE
At the end of the year RER 4,238 2,403
At the beginning of the year REY] 2,403 3,782
Impairment losses (b) B{EIER
During the year 2021, no impairment loss of 20214 - WERBEREMRTEE

intangible assets was recognized (2020: nil).

IIETE K (202046 : &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

22 GOODWILL

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

22

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGU) identified according to operating segment as follows:

Note
B it

Foshan Micro Credit I/ NEEER (1)

[
BAMEZREELS M ZBERR

BEDEEATRELE D MEHNA
SERSELBEU(REELEM]) :

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREEF T
419

RMB’000
ARBTR

419

(i) The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%) which is consistent
with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
growth rates used do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the
CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using a
discount rate of 10.56% (2020: 10.56%). The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant segments.

23

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 23

The Interest-bearing borrowings were due for repayment as
follows:

() BReELBMzAKESIEIIRE
FREBEZTEMET - sTEFEH
BEDEARBCEREIEZR
FUBEERECRESMETEN -
MR A F 2R e mE R INET
I REI%HES (2020F :3%) -
BITHWREMBSTER —2 - FTH
ZERENBIBECEEBMEE
E¥B s ERPFHEER - BERE
LABH 2R R 10.56% (20204
10.56% ) B3R o BT FA B IR & AT AT
BhIRE - WRIRERRE DB EE 2
TR -

stEfER

STEERBMERENT

At 31 December

At 31 December

2021 2020
720214 F20204F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTIT
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEMER
— Due for repayment within 1 year — —FRZ|HER 69,415 137,793
Total Gk 69,415 137,793
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

23 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 23 stREFR@

o\

The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings are analysed as REEMGEERONAT :
follows:

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A318
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETx AR¥T T
Bank loans RITER
— Unsecured — IR 69,300 117,500
Other loans HEE R — 20,000
69,300 137,500
Accrued interest payable JE 5T FE S T2 115 293
69,415 137,793
At 31 December 2021, loans bear interest at a range from MA20215F12A8318 ' st EEZI83.92%
3.92% to 7.50% (2020: 3.85% to 11.50%) per annum and £7.50% (20204F : 3.85% £ 11.50%) &Y
are guaranteed. FRNEFEEBER-
24 LIABILITIES FROM GUARANTEES 24 HEREE
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
20215 20204
12A31H 128318
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
ARETx AREFT T
Deferred income i FE W 2 164,875 129,777
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEES (a) 75,294 65,045
240,169 194,822
(a) Provisions for guarantee losses (a) BEREBEEES
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
120214 20204
12A31H 12HA318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AR¥ET T
As at 1 January M1 ATE 65,045 62,234
Charge for the year F kR 10,249 2,811
As at 31 December R12H31H 75,294 65,045
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

25 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(a)

Customer pledged deposits

Customer pledged deposits refer to deposits received
from customers as collateral security for the credit
guarantee issued by the Group. These deposits are
interest-free, and will be returned to customers after
the guarantee contracts expire.

According to Interim Measures for the Administration
of Financing Guarantee Companies ((&l& £ (R A 7
EILEITHHLR)), jointly formulated and issued by
China Banking Regulatory Commission (currently
known as China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission), the National Development and Reform
Commission, the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of
Commerce, the People’s Bank of China and the State
Administration for Industry and Commerce (currently
known as State Administration for Market Regulation)
on 8 March 2010, and the Notice of Inter-ministries
Joint Meeting of Financing Guarantee Business
Supervision Concerning the Regulation of the
Management of Customer Deposits by Financing
Guarantee Institutions (@& 1418 (RE 75 B & SRR Bt
SRANABREMEREBTFERRECEEN
#A)) promulgated by the Inter-ministerial Joint
Meeting of Financing Guarantee Business Supervision
on 15 April 2012, if a financing guarantee company
accepts customer pledged deposits from its guarantee
customers, the outstanding customer pledged deposits
should be kept in a restricted account under tripartite
custody. For those cooperated banks agreeing to
coordinate, the Group has kept part of the received
customer pledged deposits in a restricted bank
account under tripartite custody.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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25 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Accruals and other payables

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

25
I8 (&)

(b)

FAREE R BT R H MR

FEST R B fth FE fH FR1E
At 31 December

At 31 December
2020

20204
12H31H
RMB’000
ARETF T

2021
R20214

12A31H
RMB’000
ARETR

Accrued staff cost JRE AT B T 5 B 35,842 36,529
Accounts payable &~ FRIE () 9,058 8,294
Contract liabilities e ON=R (i) 9,928 8,833
Consulting service ERFE ARG E
expense payable 6,463 22,789
Notes payable e 2 (i) 6,000 —
Dividends payable BB 4,043 6,014
Income tax payable FERT RIS 10,394 1,763
Withholding income tax  FEHIFFSH 446 334
Payable to customers FERT R P RUA 3,677 236
Others Hh 18,364 17,659
Total CEll 104,215 102,451
(i)  As of 31 December 2021, the ageing of accounts (i) #HZE2021F12831H - Ef &
payable (based on the invoice date) amounting to HURBRZEHHAE) RRAAR
RMB4.52 million (31 December 2020 : RMB7.10 #4528 & T (2020612 A31
million) was within 1 year (inclusive), RMB3.46 million H: ARB7106887T)E—FA
(31 December 2020: RMB1.19 million) were over 1 E—F) AR¥346BHETT
year but within 3 years and the rest were over 3 (202012 A31H : ARE1.19
years. BETL)BIFANLEBEIFR
HHA3IFU L -
(i)  Contract liabilities (i) BHERE

At 31 December
2021
20214

At 31 December
2020

220204
12A31H
RMB’000

12A31H
RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Guarantee service and financing  ¥E{R R 2 &t
consultation service BB AR 9,928 8,833
9,928 8,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

25 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Accruals and other payables (CONTINUED)

(i)  Contract liabilities (CONTINUED)
Payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a prepayment before the
render of services of consulting service, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds
the amount of the prepayment. The amount of the
prepayment, if any, was negotiated on a case by case
basis with customers, where the Group generally
receives a 100% prepayment on the acceptance of
financing related consultation requests before work
commences.

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

(iii)  Notes payable

Notes payables are expected to be settled within one
year.

26 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

25 Ekﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
I8 ()

(b) FERHRH fhFEFHRIE (@)

(i) BHEEE)
FERANGHNABESENMNR
1&EIT

B ANER B A 4R 1 R A AR 7S A M B
BN HRE - ERESNRREE
ERMEE BEERBAEBRN
WABBENREE - BAKE
7 (A ) THZ{ER 15 R AR i
7 MAEE— RN TSGR
BEXERE A A 2RI
HR100% FA 3K

FBEEHNABERBAR —FARR
RN -

i) [EfTERE
ENERERN —FEH -

26 MEMREH

At 31 December
2021

At 31 December
2020
720204
12H31H
RMB’000
ARETTT

20214
12H831H
RMB’000
ARETT

Corporate Bonds — Par Value NEESH — HE 260,000
Corporate Bonds — Interest NElfERF — FEFAE
Adjustment (891) —
Corporate Bonds — Accrued Interest A AIEH — FEHFIA 9,601 —
268,710 —

Fixed rate corporate bonds with nominal value
RMB260,000,000 and a term of five years were issued on
18 March 2021. The coupon rate is 4.60% per annum. The
Group has an option to adjust the coupon rate for the
remaining duration at the end of the third year. After the
Group announces whether to adjust the coupon rate, the
investors have an option to redeem all or part of the debts
held at the nominal amounts.

As of 31 December 2021, the fair value of corporate bonds
amounted to RMB264,485,260.
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B2 A AESEN2021FE3 8188 17 -
H1E A AR #260,000,0007T ' AH A
F o ZMFEFREL60% - NEBAER
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SEESMERHEREAMNERE  KEES
BELZAEFENE IO ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

27 OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27 Hit:mMTI A

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
120214

20204
12A31H
RMB’000
AREF T

12A31H
RMB’000
ARETX

Other financial instruments HihomT A 111,332 55,404
Accrued interest JEETFI & — 3,960
111,332 59,364

Pursuant to a series of shareholders’ agreements entered
into by the Group with other third-party shareholders of
Zhongshan Join-Share in prior years, Zhongshan Health
Science and Technology Industrial Base Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhongshan Health”), one of the shareholders of
Zhongshan Join-Share, was entitled to a 6% fixed return of
its capital contribution during the period from 31 December
2015 to 31 December 2023. In addition, the Company was
obligated to repurchase part of Zhongshan Health’s capital
contribution based on an agreed repayment schedule during
the aforementioned period. On initial recognition, the
Company recognised the financial liability at the present
value of the redemption amount and recognised the
difference between the consideration received from
Zhongshan Health and the above liability as equity. Any
changes in the carrying amount of the financial liability was
recorded in interest expense.

RBEASEEARFEEF P RRE
MY EL A 55 =77 IRER 2R AT B — R DI IR R 153
& PR ERRENRR P IUm iR
BEEFEMERER AR ([FILRED
201512 A31H E202312 A31H
HEAREZEHERN6%EREE D
oo Ubsh - E EAERE - ARRBEBR
1% 7 TE O 2R SR B ) 3% (B B P L R R RO D
DHEE - RYBHERE - AARIKRERS
BHRERITREE - WP ILRE
WEHHEE B E MW ERmER
REx - TRBBEREEENTIANESY
FRARIESH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

27 OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuep) 27 Hi 2T @

In September 2021, the Group entered into additional 20214698 « ANEE R L hAEER
shareholders’ agreements with other shareholders of Hih AR R 51T R R ek (12021 F R
Zhongshan Join-Share (“2021 Shareholders’ Agreements”). Rigagl) o BIF2021 F R R ek - 1L
According to the 2021 Shareholders’ Agreements, BESBIMARARS M REIKES
Zhongshan Health acquired 5% equity interests of IR BB ES %R ARE - HESFAAR
Zhongshan Join-Share each from the Company and one of #10,702,0007T ° P Lt IR Uk iEE -
the other shareholders at a consideration of IR+ R I B AR A3 % i - I
RMB10,702,000 for each of them, respectively. Subsequent RIEFILPRRETFHNEREFIKFE -
to the above share acquisitions, Zhongshan Health holds BE MR ZR HE6%H L & E
43% equity interest of Zhongshan Join-Share and enjoys a e RILP AR EERFETFRERESD
disproportionate return of its capital contribution with a IRE 2 EAI 9 IRFE - & & F 0] o B AE
minimum of 6% per annum depending on the level of fFEEmERILERNRELERRENK
Zhongshan Join-Share’s actual profitability each vyear. RNATERF L EEME R LR BEE
Zhongshan Join-Share is obligated to distribute all of its EERHEMBEFA LERKELED
distributable profits to its shareholders each year, whereas if W2 EERE - A SRIERNEEY
it does not generate sufficient profits to distribute the RILEREH NHENEBLZHE TR -
minimum return on capital contribution to Zhongshan A BRILPRBRENBAREE=F
Health, the Company shall complement the difference EDH BB % KRR RERENME—E
between the distributable profits of Zhongshan Join-Share SAFEERARFEEREFMERNS0%
for the year and the minimum return on Zhongshan LATRES - ANARIFE 2 I o EiEH L
Health’s capital contribution. In the meantime, the Group's BRHHE - OEERESNP LT REE
previous repurchase arrangement of Zhongshan Health's REEBENERFEE - EARRAR Lt
remaining contribution was cancelled. However, Zhongshan PSR ERARITEDR - B IL@RE
Health’s capital contribution shall be repurchased in full or ERERPINFRBREELETER F MAS
by part by the Company when Zhongshan Join-Share’s B A AT e AR AR FE AR I B E
guarantee default rate reaches 5% or above in three REBEBHNERFEENERRA
consecutive years or Zhongshan Join-Share's net asset as at WP RERENFTBEHEMZERRINER
the end of any accounting year falling below 80% of its SHERMEE -
paid-in capital. The redemption price shall equal Zhongshan
Join-Share’s net asset per share on the date of repurchase.
In the event the Company does not exercise the repurchase
upon the occurrence of the above trigger events, Zhongshan
Health has a right to require liquidation of Zhongshan Join-
Share, where the Group shall inevitably deliver cash or
financial assets to all other nominal shareholders of
Zhongshan Join-Share at a price equal to Zhongshan Join-
Share’s net asset per share on the date of its liquidation.
The Company determines the arrangement of the 2021 RRATEE2021 FRABETHEH
Shareholders’ Agreements leading to a material change to HREMBENEREE - At - AR7A
the original financial liability. Accordingly, The Company ERIERESRTA YR BTN
derecognized original financial instrument and recognized a cRBEE - RNEER  REBITANER
new financial liability. As of the date of change, the BEEENSHREGECANEZEARE
difference between the carrying amount of the original 4,572,0007C A BRI VAN £ B i 2 1) — 5T
financial instrument and the new financial liability e
amounting to RMB4,572,000 was accounted as part of the
Group’s equity.
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28 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FVPL

Financial liabilities arising from
interests in jointly controlled Trust
Plans

28 WARBEEANESTENEH
Bff

At 31 December
2020

20204
12H31H
RMB’'000
AREF T

At 31 December
2021
120214

12A31H
RMB’000
ARETX

H R SIS FEat Bl PT
EENERAE

16,384 —

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
and a third party group (“Third Party”) entered into a series
of contractual agreements related to certain designated
collective fund trust plans (“Trust Plans”). Under these
arrangements, the Group enjoys a variable return on the
trust schemes in the form of a guarantee fee by providing a
financial guarantee for the underlying investments of the
Trust Plans and a guarantee of trust returns for the
investors of the Trust Plans. The Trust Plans are funded by
designated investors. The underlying investments in the Trust
Plans mainly include debts to corporate borrowers with
pledged notes receivables.

The Group shares joint control with the Third Party over the
Trust Plans as the Group and Third Party jointly handle such
matters as review and approval of the underlying
investments, and management of risk of defaults. In
addition, the Group considers that its returns from the
interests in these Trust Plans are not substantially the same
as an ordinary share interest and as such has accounted for
these interests as financial liabilities.

HZE2021F12A31HIEEE » AAFE
F=FEE([E=F)RETHEEES
EefEasral((EEs8l) &I T — XK
Pk - BEZSTH  A5EBAARE
ARTEMEERERETEERARS
SR MR B B IR E T RENRE
NERENEAZEZE(EAAEMNA
Ol - ZE st ElmiEE R EERE
e HEEBRAEFZSEATEREN
BB -

HRAEBEEE =7 XEYEFXTEERE
ERELETERZ HEMEBORRER
AREERE =77 KRS i EFEatE
BEAN - AEBRSER LA EFERT S M E
@ PR ATRN T B - Rt ZEE
HEREMIARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X3 BHETIEIN HUARE FILIIR)

28 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FVPL 28 HBAREBEIIAERIIENSH

(CONTINUED) BfEw@
Details of the Group’s interest in the Trust Plans, which is REBRGERAETPNERERS T
accounted for as financial liabilities in the consolidated mERFIACHEE  FHOT

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest
As at 31 December 2021

ikt 5:040
R2021£12A318
Date and place of Group's
Form of business incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by a  Principal
Names of ventures structure establishment L HEREE] Paid-in capital interest ~ Company subsidiary  activities
ERAL/ R FREH  BEAT
bt 441 tREEEL B RBE FREE EdR% {23 fif HBTAERE  IERE
unaudited unaudited
(REEH) (REEH)
Yuecai Trust » Huijinkeji 129-1 Collective Fund Trust Trust plan June 2021 the PRC RMB134,100,000  RMB134,100,000 50% 50% 0% Investment
Plan (“Yuecai Trust Huijnkeji 129-1")
R BERRN IS EAE S EHAHE fRstatl 200156 %E ARE ARE 50% 50% 0%
(e 2 e MH129-15)) 134,100,000 134,100,000
Yunnan Trust Qingquan 48 Collective Fund Trust Plan Trust plan January 2021 the PRC RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000 50% 50% 0% Investment
("Yunnan Trust Qingquan 48")
EHfER — BRBRE-ALERTY fEstatel WNEFIARE AR AR 50% 50% 0% &
([EREfFE — BR8] 50,000,000 50,000,000

Yunnan Trust Qingquan 37 Collective Fund Trust Plan Trust plan March 2021 the PRC RMB161,000,000  RMB161,000,000 50% 50% 0% Investment
("Yunnan Trust Qingquan 37")

TR — ERIHE- B fastatal W01E3A%E ARE ARE 50% 50% 0%
(IE@fER — BR3I%) 161,000,000 161,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

28 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FVPL

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of the Trust Plans,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a
reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed below:

Aggregate information of individually immaterial jointly
controlled Trust Plans:

Aggregate carrying amount of RERE
individually immaterial jointly

28 BRAAEBEIAERITENEH
BE@

BERHREERBEN ST EEES
B ER - ARAHMBREFEDLH
HRE - REMT

BRFES LA BHEEHINELE
¥

At 31 December
2020

#20204F
12H31H
RMB’000
ARETF T

At 31 December
2021
20214

12A31H
RMB’000
ARETR

& B #5 sl R B Bl 3R
BEEHFEHETER S

controlled Trust Plans in the B A E A

consolidated financial statements 16,384 —
Aggregate amounts of the Group's RE B R %éﬁﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁ

share of profit of these controlled 15%%%%@%” LR E

Trust Plans in the consolidated B N 4R 5R

financial statements:

Loss from operation and total KEBEREH

comprehensive income WA 458 16,384 —

As of 31 December 2021, the Company’'s maximum
potential loss in relation to the financial guarantees issued
the Trust Plans amounted to RMB338,427,000, which would
be recognised if the underlying investments of the Trust
Plans default completely.

2021 5 &

HZE20215F 128310 - AR A EEE{TE
AN EREBEABORANE

HEE A ARE338,427,0007T © ATIE2
EAAEMNERREREZEY  ZEES
?&Eguu ©

HE BREPEBEMARRREARGAER2
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)
29 HEAME

TRETRN2021F12 A31BERBARE
BfREaEzRGaaNEEA -

29 LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of 31
December 2021:

31 December 2021
2021128318

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

Present Present value

value of the Total of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

=EHESE =KHEE =EEE =EEE

TR E RE R R E B $ L

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFRT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT

_Within 1 year . HN 5327 5966 4376 4669

After 1 year but within —FERERMER

2 years 5,467 5,818 1,923 2,065
After 2 years but within MEBREBRAFRN

5 years 4,252 4,466 1,851 1,915

OSSR LAL L S goestN 3774 3980

15,046 16,250 8,150 8,649
Less: total future interest & : AREF B F

expenses L] (1,204) (499)

Present value of lease HEaERE
liabilities 15,046 8,150
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Movements in current taxation in the
consolidated statement of financial position

are as follows:

30 GEMBKARMEAES

(a) ENBERGZSMBRAETYN
SEINT :

At 31 December At 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 AREBTX AREF T
Balance of income tax payable &S FTEH
at the beginning of the BRER
year 1,763 (12,877)
Provision for income tax on F NIRRT
the estimated taxable profit MHET RIS
for the year HEH 5(a) 50,394 62,254
Income tax paid during FANCHNETER
the year (41,763) (47,614)
Balance of income tax payable 7 &S AT H:
at the end of the year BREE 10,394 1,763

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred

tax (liabilities)/assets

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Liabilities

(b) EHZBEERBEERAR:

REETBERRARERNIELET
(BfE) EEHE RRBE20214F
%2020 12 A31H L FENES
mr

Deferred

tax

Deferred tax assets liabilities

BEFEH

BEFRBHEE aff
Re-

from Impairment Salaries  Financial ~guarantee Interest in Interest in
guarantees loss payable instrument fee associates Total  associates Net
REEAT REEAT
BRRER REEX BREN 2 SMIR BREREAR 5L 541 a5t 5L 541 FH
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARMTE ARETR ARBTE ARETR ARBTT ARMTRT ARNTR

At 1 January 2021 #202151A1R (481) 43,635 14,543 2,217 892 574 61,380 (176) 61,204
Recognised to the consolidated REABERED

statement of profit or loss 5@) 6,375 (2,345) 1,861 2,221 (768) 2,136 9,480 17 9,497
Charged to reserves HARE - - - (1,726) - - (1,726) - (1,726)
At 31 December 2021 #2021512A318 5,894 41,290 16,404 2,712 124 2,710 69,134 (159) 68,975
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

30 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 30 GEMBRARMA{HR @
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EHREEHRSERER (@)
(CONTINUED)
Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets liabilities
BREFTGHEE
Liabilities
from  Impairment Salaries Financial Re-guarantee Interest in Interest in
IEIENIE:N loss payable  instrument fee  associates Total  associates
ERFH &8 BERER
RMB'000 RMB'000
y A ARETT AREFT A y
At 1 January 2020 #2001 418 (14,583) 37,027 12,468 (3,049) 538 637 33,038 (2,861) 30,177
Recognised to the consolidated REABERED
statement of profit or loss 5(a) 14,102 6,608 2,075 276 354 (63) 23,352 2,685 26,037
Charged to reserves HALRTE - - - 4,990 - - 4,990 - 4,990
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318 (481) 43,635 14,543 2,217 892 574 61,380 (176) 61,204
() Reconciliation to the consolidated statement () HFEMBRARZER :

of financial position:

At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
120214 20204

12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised — R&RE B F5 ik I = 3R
in the consolidated statement of LB MEE

financial position HE 69,049 61,344
Net deferred tax liabilities RERE AR RFER
recognised in the consolidated ZIEEFRERAE
statement of financial position FER (74) (140)
68,975 61,204
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31

(a)

Movements in components of equity (a)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
components of equity between the

individual

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

BX - REERERE
tEmIEE 28
AR B REREIED NEA R
ENUERINGAREEDE -
AR AR ERIEE B FNEER
B BHBERIIMT

Share Share Surplus General Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
BRA AN (8 BHAR —REBREE BEks CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Note 31(c) Note 31(d)(i) Note 31(d)iv)
f WaE31(d)0) MaE31()iv)
Balance at 31 December #2019%12A318
2019 g ER 1,560,793 133,773 118,479 118,613 154,767 2,086,425
Changes in equity for 2020 F MM 2T
2020:
Profit for the year FRFE — — — — 94,569 94,569
Total comprehensive income 2T W25 — — — — 94,569 94,569
Issue of ordinary shares BITE @R — — — _ _ _
Appropriation to surplus RABADE
reserve — — 9,457 — (9,457) —
Appropriation to general R — R E R EE
reserve — — — 9,457 (9,457) —
Dividends approved in E—FEEERER
respect of the previous s
year — — — — (93,660) (93,660)
Balance at 31 December #2020512H318
2020 By eREE 1,560,793 133,773 127,936 128,070 136,762 2,087,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

Movements in components of equity

(CONTINUED)

Share
capital
13
RMB'000

ARETR
Note

31(c)
Haz31(c)

31 &X - fEEREKEE @

() #EzEBHZE @

Retained

earnings Total

BHln &%

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR

Share
premium
RAi R
RMB'000

ARBFR

Surplus General
reserve reserve
BUHATE —RERER
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR
Note Note Note
31(d)i)  31(d)(iv) 31(d)(v)
HiaE31(a)(i) HiaE31(a)(iv) HEE31(d)(v)

Balance at 31 December 1£2020%12H318

2020 B8R aR 1,560,793 133,773 127,936 128,070 136,762 2,087,334
Changes in equity for 2021 F MR RE)

2021:
Profit for the year ERFE = = = = 80,492 80,492
Total comprehensive income ~ Z2E Rz A% = = = = 80,492 80,492
Issue of ordinary shares BOEBR = = = = — —
Appropriation to surplus RBAHRE

reserve — — 8,049 — (8,049) =
Appropriation to general RR—RERER

reserve = = = 8,049 (8,049) =
Dividends approved in F—FEBHER

respect of the previous e

year = > = — (93,830) (93,830)
Balance at 31 December 12021%€12A318

2021 BEREE 1,560,793 133,773 135,985 136,119 107,326 2,073,996

Dividends (b) 2

In accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
board of directors’ meeting on 25 March 2022, the
proposed dividends appropriations for the year ended

31 December 2021 are as follows:

—  Cash dividends of RMB78,039,634
RMB93,647,561) to all shareholders representing
RMBO0.050 (2020: RMBO0.060) per share before

tax.

The profit appropriation resolution mentioned above
yet to be approved by the Company’s

has
shareholders.

(2020: —

BIEARNT 20223 H25A 2 &
EERFEHZE2021F12A31
HIEFEEZRMBEEMT :

MEREERREBEAR
#578,039,6347T (20204 : AR
#93,647,5617C) * BN IFL AT
AR #0.0507T (20205 : AR
#0.0607T) °

EXATRAE D ORBRRAFAR
AR R AL ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2021




31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(c)
The

Share capital

share capital of the Company as at 31 December

2021 and 2020 are as below:

31

BX - EREE @

(c)

P2 3

AR B HA20214F 2020412 A 31
BE R T

31 December 2021
20214E£12A31H

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

No. of No. of
shares shares
(000) RMB’000 ("000) RMB‘000
4yl & 17 E B
(F) AR¥ETT (FR) ARETFT
Ordinary shares, issued BEEITREEN
and fully paid: gl
As at 1 January ®m1A1H 1,560,793 1,560,793 1,560,793 1,560,793
Issuance of new shares BATHAR — — — —
As at 31 December ®12H31H 1,560,793 1,560,793 1,560,793 1,560,793

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the share capital/par value of the
shares of the Company and capital injection/
proceeds received from the issuance of the
shares of the Company.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented the contribution
from equity shareholders for purchase of shares
from subsidiaries.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of financial assets
(FVOCI) measured at fair value held at the end
of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in Note

1G)(0).-

(d) #EMERED

()

@ii)

(iii)

BREiE

e A E AR A, AR AR B
MEEERRIRAE R, B
TARRBEDFAEFRIAZE
HYZHE

BFENE

BARAREEBRESB ALE
BETRARBMHMHE -

KA BELE

ARABEABEENREH
RFIBRARBEFENS
BMEE (RAREBEAHM
2HRE) WA EENRE
FEE) - I 2R BE M TE1G)G0)
Pl A & 5T BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

31

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (CONTINUED)

(iv) Surplus reserve

(v)

Surplus reserve comprises statutory surplus
reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.

The entities established in the PRC are required
to appropriate 10% of its net profit, as
determined under the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and other
relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC ("MOF”), to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the
entities established in the PRC, statutory surplus
reserves may be used to net off with
accumulated losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital, provided that the balance
of statutory surplus reserve after such
capitalization is not less than 25% of the
registered capital before capitalization.

After making the appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserve, the Group may also appropriate
its net profit to the discretionary surplus reserve
upon approval by shareholders.

General reserve

Pursuant to relevant regulations, the Company
and its subsidiaries engaged in credit guarantee
business are required to set aside a general
reserve through appropriations of profit after tax
according to 10% of its net profit as
determined under the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises and other relevant
requirements issued by MOF after making good
prior year's accumulated loss to cover potential
losses against their assets.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (CONTINUED)

(e)

(v) General reserve (CONTINUED)
Pursuant to relevant MOF notices, Foshan Micro
Credit is required to set aside a general reserve
to cover potential losses against its assets, and
the minimum general reserve balance should be
1.5% of the ending balance of gross
risk-bearing assets.

(vi) Other financial instruments

Other financial instrument-equity component is
the equity component of the compound financial
instrument (Note 27) issued by the Group.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity holder/shareholders returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to
capital management during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management (CONTINUED)

Particularly for guarantee and credit loan operation,
the Group monitors regularly the residual balance of
outstanding guarantees or/and credit loans for single
customers and multiples of the total outstanding
guarantees or/and credit loans in relation to share
capital of companies in the Group engaging guarantee
or/and credit loan business respectively, so as to keep
the capital risk within an acceptable limit. The decision
to manage the share capital of companies in the
Group to meet the needs of developing guarantee or/
and credit loans business rests with the directors.

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practice used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from a customer’'s inability or
unwillingness to meet its financial obligations to make
timely payments under loans the Group guaranteed or
provided. Credit risk is primarily attributable to
unexpired guarantees issued by the Group, loans and
advances to customers and trade and other receivables
provided by the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the net carrying amount of each type of financial
assets as of the end of the reporting periods. In
addition to guarantees issued as disclosed below, the
Group has no credit risk arising from any other
guarantee.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (CONTINUED)

Credit risk arising from guarantees issued
operations:

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantees issued operations. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage of the risk
management system, including pre-approval, review
and credit approval and post-transaction monitoring
processes. The Group conducts customer acceptance
and due diligence by business department and risk
management department during the pre-approval
process. A transaction may be subject to the review
and approval of credit approval officer, regional risk
committee, or chairman depending on the transaction
size.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing
post-transaction reviews focus on various aspects,
including but not limited to customers’ product
markets, operating income, assets and liabilities, cash
flows from operating activities to detect potential
risks. The Group takes proactive preventive actions
based on the risk analysis and designs contingency
plans accordingly.

When a certain number of clients undertake the same
business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfil contracts will be
affected by the changes.
Concentration of credit risk reflects the sensitivity of
the Group’s operating results to specific industries or
geographical locations. As the Group mainly operates
its businesses in the PRC, there exists a certain level of
geographical concentration risk for its guarantee and
loan portfolios in that it might be affected by changes
in the PRC economic conditions.

same economic
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 MBERERRSMIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE @
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (CONTINUED) (a) EHEMRE@®
Credit risk arising from guarantees issued BUHIEBRESELNISHELRE -
operations: (CONTINUED) (%)
Guarantees issued: at the end of each reporting BHRER: REREHR 2%
period, the total maximum guarantees issued (net of Y B = IR AR (R RER) 10
counter-guarantees) are as follows: T~
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204F
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBF T
Performance guarantee B AR 6,171,385 6,695,054
Financing guarantee B EER 4,036,231 2,770,194
Litigation guarantee AR 13,092 140,000
Subtotal NEE 10,220,708 9,605,248
Less: Customer pledged deposits B FARE R (253,002) (271,725)
Total CEl 9,967,706 9,333,523
The total maximum guarantees issued represent the ERINSSEREEERSHTF
maximum potential loss that would be recognised if RETREENBTETRERR
counterparties failed completely to perform as B BRI -
contracted.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 MBEREERSMIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BiE@®
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (CONTINUED) (a) ERAEM @)
Credit risk arising from guarantees issued BUHBERESELNISHRELRE -
operations: (CONTINUED) (%)
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of R 20214 %2020 12 A31H & 17
guarantees issued (net of counter-guarantees) by Lo MERERAREN RS FE
industry at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as BNk RER) T
follows:
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
2021%12HA318 202012 A31H
RMB’000 % RMB’000
AREBTRT % ARBTT
Construction BIER 4,349,223 43% 5,370,792 56%
Real estate B E 1,482,638 14% 911,667 8%
Manufacturing BB 1,163,877 1% 830,344 8%
Wholesale e 2% 688,249 7% 641,943 7%
Technology services BT R 3 201,298 2% 207,747 2%
Leasing and commercial A& & i ¥R
services 286,451 3% 240,493 3%
Retail TEX 382,678 4% 276,680 3%
Service industry AR 75 3 47,921 1% 58,584 1%
Agriculture B 38,371 1% 44,738 1%
Transportation RiBiEW  BEXE
warehousing and N E AR
postal service 53,538 1% 45,744 1%
Finance & @t 305,592 3% 345,532 4%
Others HAth 1,220,872 10% 630,984 6%
Total of guarantees BHKERER
issued 10,220,708 100% 9,605,248 100%
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 HEEBEEREBMIAENAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ERERE))
(CONTINUED)

EiE N E )

(a) Credit risk (CONTINUED) (a)

Credit risk arising from financial assets measured
at amortized cost:

The Group adopts similar pre-approval, review and
credit approval risk management system for credit risk
arising from financial assets measured at amortized
cost. During the post-transaction monitoring process,
the Group conducts a visit of customers regularly after
disbursement of loans and receivables, and conducts
on-site inspection on a regular basis. The review
focuses on the use of loans and receivables, the
financial and operational conditions of the borrowers
or the progress of projects and status of the
collateral.

The Group classifies financial assets measured at
amortized cost into three stages and makes provisions
for expected credit losses accordingly, depending on
whether credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase since initial
recognition in the credit risk is performed at least on
a quarterly basis for financial assets held by the
Group. The Group takes into consideration all
reasonable and supportable information (including
forward-looking information) that reflects significantly
change in credit risk for the purposes of classifying
financial assets. The main considerations are regulatory
and operating environment, internal and external
credit risk gradings, debt-servicing capacity, operating
capabilities, contractual terms, and repayment records.
The Group compares the risk of default of a single
financial asset or a portfolio of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics as at statement of
financial position date and its risk of default at the
date of initial application to determine changes in the
risk of default during the lifetime of a financial asset
or a portfolio of financial assets. In determining
whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
considers factors indicating whether the probability of
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g
AEBERREHKATENESRE
EMNE R RBRRDEUNF =
h BELEAFHLREREER
e BREFGT  AEERERE
RAREWFKBRER@GES I
THETENRE - BEXE2ET
RERREYRERE - ERAD
M REERRNRABEEREE
o BRI

REE K ABBER AT ENTRE
EE D /=R - LIRLFTIER
HEEEBE BHEEBBIURR
ZemTAENERERBRER
BROHBAANBRES -

15 I B R = 1 o

AEBZINEFTEFHEREE
MIERRR B REREEEHLE
FREIRM - REBEETEREEN
BAERENHRDZERBRBRERE
REREGHABEZ NSRS
ERARKEBENER  BEAELE
o TEERAREEERKEER
% ASNERE AR - BERES
RERN BHNER - EFXTR
FoAKBENERSMEEXER
FHRUERAREFENEREER
EREM BEAHNREMEERM
B R R A 8 452 49 10 [ b B A 4
IRHER A B RO AR - LAREE
TREERAFENARLROR
REELIER - REBEBRER
KWBHOMEEERE LT - &/
BERTRY(TREAERMERTH
M/NEER) MmEERELEE
TBEE M RPE R RREZE N
BRI EREENEARR B

default has risen sharply, whether the financial asset VA ERIE S BB ERE LM -
has been past due (except micro-lending, which is past
due over 7 days), whether the market price has been
falling to assess deterioration.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Description of parameters, assumptions, and
estimation techniques

Expect for the credit-impaired financial assets,
expected credit losses (“ECL") is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL
depending on whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether
an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. ECL is the
product of the Probability of Default (“PD"), Loss
Given Default (“LGD"), and Exposure at Default
("EAD"), considering the time value of money. Related
definitions are as follows:

PD is the possibility that a customer will default on its
obligation within a certain period of time in light of
forward-looking information.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a
default in light of forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

32 MEEMREEREHTIENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE @

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (CONTINUED) (a) ERAEM @
Description of parameters, assumptions, and H2Y - BRIERAGHBEHTRIH
estimation techniques (CONTINUED) (%)

EAD refers to the total amount of on- and off-balance
sheet exposures in the event of default and is
determined based on the historical repayment records.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such
as how the PDs and LGDs of different maturity
profiles change are monitored and reviewed on a
quarterly basis by the Group.

There have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.

The impairment loss on credit-impaired assets applied
cash flow discount method, if there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. The allowance for impairment loss is deducted in
the carrying amount. The impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

It may not be possible to identify a single, or discrete
events that result in the impairment, but it may be
possible to identify impairment through the combined
effect of several events. The impairment losses are
evaluated at the end of each reporting period, unless
unforeseen circumstances require more careful
attention.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets when it has
exhausted practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
credit guarantee, lending and related consulting
services to SME enterprises in the PRC. Its interest rate
risk arises primarily from deposits with banks,
receivable investments and interest-bearing
borrowings.

The Group has adopted a series of core indicators for
interest rate risk management, standards for interest
rate sensitivity gap analysis and gquidelines for its
interest rate risk management. The analysis of the
Group’s interest rate risk includes an assessment of
the incremental gaps between interest-sensitive assets
and liabilities as a result of an interest rate change.
The Group manages its interest rate risk exposure by
adjusting the structure of its assets and liabilities
based on an assessment of potential changes in
interest rate using gap analysis, which provides a
measure of repricing characteristics of the Group's
assets and liabilities.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 MBEREEREHMTIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT
(CONTINUED)
(b) Interest rate risk (CONTINUED) (b) FUZEEME @
(i)  Interest rate profile (i) FIFEEEER

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204

12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBETT

Fixed interest rate & E A &
Financial assets TREE
— Term deposits with banks — ﬂﬂ@mﬁﬂﬁm&
and restricted bank PR BRI TF R
deposits 299,594 405,043
— Pledged bank deposits — FHERKRE 483,179 191,726
— Trade and other receivables — — JEHQ&HWEFHK
KI5 159,865 276,984
— Loans and advances to — BRERRBR
customers 613,110 499,992
— Factoring receivables — FERRIE A 174,408 180,700
— Receivable investments FEW BT E 25,837 25,837
— Financial assets measured at — A EEA
FVPL B ER
TREE 25,024 90,905
1.781.017 | = 1,671,187
Financial liabilities THAaB
— Other financial instruments — Hb 4@ T A = (55,404)
— Notes payable — BNER (6,000) —
— Debt securities issued — ENES (268,710) —
e (274700) (55,404)
Net B 1506307 1615783
Variable interest rate FENR X
Financial assets TREE
— Cash at banks — RITEFER 782,416 649,334
— Pledged bank deposits — FHERRER 76,397 331,361
— Receivable investments — JEWFIEERE 1,460 50,680
860,273 = 1,031,375
Financial liabilities TREE
— Other financial instruments — HthemT A (111,332) —
— Interest-bearing borrowings ~ — FFEE X (69,300) (137,500)
... (180632) ( (137,500)
Net AL o ST9EM 893875
Total net financial assets FERMEELTE 2,185,948 2,509,658
Net fixed rate financial assets as [ Fil & & B8 & &
a percentage of total net FRELFEMEE
financial assets WA DL 69% 64%
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase the Group's profit after taxation
and retained profits for the next 12 months by
(2020:

approximately RMB2,642,490
RMB3,692,930).

The sensitivity analysis above
exposure to interest rate

fixed rate

of the reporting period.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group fails to meet
the demands associated with its payables due, new
reasonable financing activities, or
encounter difficulties in meeting these demands with

borrowings and

reasonable costs.

The major liquidity management approaches of the
inflows and
outflows according to the market trend to maintain an
improving credit

Group include forecasting the fund

adequate funding base;
management; establishing the

Management regularly monitors the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long term.

indicates the
risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments
interest-bearing financial
measured at FVPL held by the Group at the end

liquidity risk early
warning system and business continuity plan; etc.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32 MERREERSHTIANAR
R =RE))

(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (c) HRENHEREE @)
(i)  Contractual undiscounted cash flow (i) FHWEERELFZE

RER AEEBFARES
RBBENARTRARRESR
EDMWT - NEE B X
FHEMREREXSHR
DMBEATR -

The following tables provide an analysis of the
contractual undiscounted cash flow of the
customer pledged deposits and liabilities of the
Group at the end of the years. The Group
expected cash flows on these items may vary
significantly from this analysis.

31 December 2021

302
-

20215£12A318
Between
Contractual three  Between
undiscounted Repayable Within months  one year
Carrying cash on three  and one  and five More than
amount outflows Indefinite  demand months year years five years
FAARER =fiA
FREEE Remki EHR ERHEE Z=EAAK E-§ —§Fif IFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT ARBTR ARBTRT ARETR ARBTRT ARETR ARBTR
Liabilities B
Customer pledged deposits BARESR 250,934 250,934 20,450 - 27,052 86,656 116,775 a
Other financial instruments HiheRITR 111,332 111,332 111,332 — — — — —
Interest-bearing borrowings AR 69,415 70,820 = = 75 70,745 - -
Lease liabilities HEaE 15,046 16,250 = = 1,190 4,776 10,284 =
Other financial liabilities HthemBR 51,533 51,533 - 2,356 14,718 31,037 3,422 a
Notes payable ENEE 6,000 6,000 — - 6,000 - - -
Debt securities issued ERES 268,710 309,056 = = = — 309,056 =
Financial liabilities measured at BARBEFAESRME
FVPL ok Y= 16,384 17,465 - - - 7,908 9,557 a
Total &t 789,354 833390 131,782 2,356 49,035 201,122 449,095 =
Guarantee issued REMER
Maximum amount guaranteed* EREReE 10,220,708 832,942 — 1,101,859 3,529,568 4,756,339 =
GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 HMBEREERSMATANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS R ERE))
(CONTINUED)
() Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (c) RENHEREPE (@)
(ij) Contractual undiscounted cash flow (i) XKFBEERBELTEE)
(CONTINUED)

31 December 2020
20204124318

Between Between

Contractual three  one year
Carrying  undiscounted Repayable Within three months and and five  More than
amount cash outflows  Indefinite on demand months  one year years  five years
BREEE EER E =EAR —FERF RFNE
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARE AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARE
Liabilities Bf
Customer pledged deposits FARES 271,725 271,725 248,308 9,283 1,449 6,026 6,659 —
Other financial instruments HitemIA 59,364 60,920 - - - 27,460 33,460 -
Interest-bearing borrowings HRER 137,793 143,579 — — 20,296 123,283 — —
Other financial liabilities Ememas 42,018 42,018 — — — 29,807 12,211 —
Total &t 510,900 518,242 248308 9,283 21,745 186,576 52,330 —
Guarantee issued REOER
Maximum amount guaranteed* BRERGE" 9,605,248 253,865 — 1448345 3834613 4,068,425 —
& The maximum amount guaranteed represents the & EREREBEENMATE
total amount of liability should all customers BERENBERAT2EER
default. Since a significant portion of guarantee o ARBARI D BER
is expected to expire without being called upon, EHTEHERKBITER
the maximum liabilities do not represent E% WEBENLREHE
expected future cash outflows. WARTEBRKIR SR

HE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (X 3% BAFTIEIN AN RE T TIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

32 MBEREEREHMTIANAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (d) &E%&EE

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in
RMB, while most of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in USD, HKD and RMB. At
the end of the reporting period, the recognised assets
or liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of the Group entity to which they relate. The
Group’s currency risk mainly arises from foreign
currency banks deposits. Management closely monitors
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

On the other hand, RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the PRC government may at its
discretion restrict to foreign currencies for current
account transactions in the future. Changes in the
foreign exchange control system may prevent the
Group from satisfying sufficient foreign currency
demands and the Group may not be able to pay
dividend in foreign currencies to its equity
shareholders.

AEBNEBEIEAARKET
MARENAKELEREEREE
TIAERTT - BT R ARKEE - R
BEHR CEREEXAGBEIE
NEHEAENAREERNIER
¥EtE - AREEERREZRN
SNERITER - EEEE T EIEIN
R XN FEEREELIHE
RINE R -

A—HE - AREILIEATAHLER
MER - REKTBKLAERIGR
HERINEETERRBERS - Sb
EEGIHENES S AREAEE
D EINER R - MAKE TR
R WA BE 8 LA SN 1) B 28 IR S A

R e

(e) Fair values (e) AR{EE

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) LXREEFAENEHEE
fair value REME
The following table presents the carrying value TRIEBEBM B MEERNE
of financial instruments measured at fair value at BRIAREEFZ2IFRE
the end of the reporting period across the three MARBE=ZFERI T
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in AEENUAARBEAENS
HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair MTARBREHARNERE
value of each financial instrument categorised in B-HF&MIEAREES
its entirety based on the lowest level of input EFHERFUAREEER
that is significant to that fair value BEBEAEEZENREEN
measurement. The levels are defined as follows: BAE - —EABRERNT :
Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using E—ERLE:-EERE—[E
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices REBABBFENLDRE
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities B AR EBEERMES
at the measurement date. HEREENBERLEAE

BIRR(E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (CONTINUED)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team performing valuations for
the financial instruments, including unlisted
equity securities and redemption options which
are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The team reports directly to the chief
financial officer. Valuation reports with analysis
of changes in fair value measurement are
prepared by the team at each reporting date,
and is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The Group also reassess the
valuation process and results regularly.

32 HEEREEREHTIEMNAR

R ERE))

(e) AREIE®E

() KAREESEHEHEE
REfE (%)

F_ERME:ERE_ER
BEAEN QI AEE AL
HaF—BROABREEE
EABERATABENER
BB -THERBEBENEERE
FBSTISERNEE -

FZEREE : ERTATERER
MERHIETENRAEE -

AEEREA-—EERRT R
TAETRHE BEI2ER
RABEERE=ZEBRNHK
E S E 5 M B B R o %
B ERRAMEAEER -
RERSH ZEGKREH
BERRBEFEEHOND
BERSE  YHUBRES
o REBNTEHEHTGE
HEBERER -

31 December 2021

2021££12H831H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—BRX HZBR HBZBR &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARE®TR ARE®TR ARETR
Recurring fair value REUARBERE
measurements
Assets: BE
Financial assets measured AR BETAEM
at FVOCl FEKETEN
TREE = = 73,002 73,002
Financial assets measured AR BEFAEBZ
at FVPL AENEMEE = — 31,094 31,094
Liabilities: =L
Financial liabilities BAREERTA
measured at FVPL Emit=20e 6
af& = —  (16,384)  (16,384)

221 EERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 MBEREEREHMTIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair values (CONTINUED) (e) AREE B
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) LAXREEGTENEHEE
fair value (CONTINUED) REE(45)

31 December 2020
2020912 B31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F-Ex F-BR F=EX At
RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TL ARBTTE ARMTR ARETR

Recurring fair value KEMAREEFTE
measurements assets BE
Financial assets measured ?‘ﬁ’&ﬁfﬁfﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬂ
at FVOC| TEKEFEN
TREE — — 41,050 41,050
Financial assets measured AR EET AER
at FVPL AENEREE — — 90,905 90,905
Liabilities: BE
Financial liabilities BAREBRA
measured at FVPL BRITEN SR
= — — — —
Information about Level 3 fair value EZEBRAABEFEEN
measurements
The valuation techniques used and the R E TN R EBER
qualitative and quantitative information of key Eﬁﬂm)ﬂ Wi ERTREE
parameters for recurring fair value 2N THEREEER - F
measurements categorized within Level 3. ZBRARBEFENESR
Quantitative information of Level 3 fair value BRI

measurement is as below:

Fair value as at Fair value as at
31 December 31 December  Valuation Significant
2021 2020 techniques unobservable input
1220215128318 12020612 A31H
HAREE BRAREBE MERN 13
Unlisted equity instruments 79,072 41,050  Comparable Discount for lack of
transactions marketability
FETRERTA AELRZ S Bz mALTE
Convertible bonds 25,024 90,905 Discounted cash Risk-adjusted
flow discount rate
ATERES fHRAERE [ R AT R &
Interest in joint ventures (16,384) — Discounted cash Future cashflow &
flow Risk-adjusted
discount rate
RegbEmEs nHRELRE AEAETERRR
HEATRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (CONTINUED)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
unobservable inputs such as risk-adjusted
discount rate was used in the valuation of
financial assets at fair value classified as Level 3,
which were mainly equity instruments and
convertible bonds. As at 31 December 2021,
unobservable inputs such as future cashflows
and risk-adjusted discount rate were used in the
valuation of financial liabilities measured at FVPL
classified as Level 3, which were mainly interests
in jointly controlled Trust Plans. The fair value of
these financial investments fluctuates according
to the changes in the unobservable inputs.

The sensitivity of the fair value measurement on
changes in unobservable inputs for Level 3
financial instruments measured at fair value on
an ongoing basis.

32 HEEREEREHTIEMNAR

R ERE))
(e) AREHE®
() LARBENENSHEE
RERE (&)

EZEARABEFTEEH
(%)

720214 52020412 A 31
B H®Zs2BEARE=EAR
hEBEEFENEREE (EE
RiEm TR R EnES) &
THER - RARRBRARRT
REZFATERYE - ©
2021128318 ' RKIR&
mENMERFAERREETR
ABRHEBEAREIZSER
F-EBRAREBEFENSD
BEE(EEZEHEREHIER
FrER AR HE - 25D
RIEEN AR BEBEEDTA
BREBENEE ML -

FE-EBEXcRIANTAH
RBBEPHNQAEEHX
BERANBERFEAE -

221 EEHRE ERPEBREMARRRERBGERLS

307
-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A B TS R MY AE ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 MBRAKREERESHMTANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE@
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair values (CONTINUED) (e) AREE B
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) LAXREEGTENEHEE
fair value (CONTINUED) REE &)
Information about Level 3 fair value FEZEAXAAEEFTEEN
measurements (CONTINUED) (%)
The movement during the year in the balance of FRA - FZEREHIAD
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: NABEBEEERIT

Financial assets measured at BEFTA

FVOCI: EHREFTEDN

SREE

As at 1 January BR1ATH 41,050 65,009
Payment for purchases BE 25,300 10,000
Proceeds from sales SHEMS (251) (13,999)
Net unrealised gains or losses REZREAMEE

recognised in other W 55 TSR ) R A 3R

comprehensive income for Wz ok 18 B9 F 58

during the year 6,903 (19,960)
As at 31 December W12A31H 73,002 41,050
Financial assets measured at BEAREBE AR

FVPL: AENESREE
As at 1 January W1A1H 90,905 127,008
Payment for purchases BE 6,070 70,000
Proceeds from sales SHES (65,500) (105,000)
Changes in fair value REFENIEm R

recognised in profit or loss RRBEZS

during the year (381) (1,103)
As at 31 December MR12A31H 31,094 90,905
Financial liabilities measured at B QR BET AE %

FVPL: AENERAR
As at 1 January M1 A1TR — —
Payment for purchases BE (2,930) —
Proceeds from sales SHES = —
Changes in fair value REENIERERD

recognised in profit or loss BREEED

during the year (13,454) —
As at 31 December M®12A31H (16,384) —
Total gains or losses R ERRTIFTEE

for the period included NMBEMNEFAE

in profit or loss for assets 75 2 B U 5 s s

and liabilities held at the end BT

of the reporting period (13,406) (139)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRA s ERaR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values (CONTINUED)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (CONTINUED)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

(ii))  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Litigations and disputes

In the second half of 2021, a group of individual investors
initiated an arbitration against the Company in respect of
their overdue lending with principals and interests amounted
to a total of RMB6,900,000 to a third party which was
guaranteed by the Company. The Company denies any
liability in respect of the arbitration, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe it probable
that the court will find against them. No provision has
therefore been made in respect of this claim.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no outstanding
litigation or disputes in which the Group was a defendant.

32

33

MEEMEEREMIANAR
BEEH®@®

AFEE @

() KAREESEHEHEE
REfE (%)

EZEARABEFTEEH
(%)

B £20214F Kk2020F12 A
MNBLEFE  EE—ERE
F IR 2 B IR AER
AREBEEY  HEMLAAQ
ABEEAEF=BIBE
—ERE -

(e)

AEEHNBRRINELE R
MBRERARERIAEBES
B < TR o

(i) ElFEXAREETEHEHE
EREEHALEE

7R2020F K% 2021F12 A31
B NEBIRBHEKAGE
MNeRMTAMKMEEHER
AREBEHESE -

RERIFER
B R Al 4

R2021F THF - —AFEAKEEFRH
ARARERNE=ZFEFREFTARE
6,900,000 7T %1 #f 38 AN B A AR A B HE #E
M A QR EREFHEENTME
- RIBEZEER  ARFESRAEZER
TARATREER TR PIRE R o H L
REZEEEL EAERE -

5"!‘-

MR2020%F12A31H  REEWTEEARK
REEF T B R OREFRA SR AL £ ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
iR A MR R MR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EXHEBIRXS

(a) Parent and ultimate controlling party (a) BATIRRZEHAH
The Company does not have a majority shareholder or NN R A E SR s AR AT T o

an ultimate controlling party.

As at 30 June 2019, Foshan Financial Investment M2019F6 A30H @ B ILTH & FIR
Holding Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Financial Investment B aRAR ((HLeE]  —
Holding”, 1L €@ EERERAF], a government MEBTERE) @B WE R R AR A
entity) obtained 28% of the Company’s equity ARG AR AF28%H ki - A
interests via acquisition and contributing additional It BILeEARARRRARRE

share capital to the Company. As a result, Foshan
Financial Investment Holding is the top shareholder of
the Company.

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FASEEERASHM

2021 2020
20214 20204

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Htat ARETR ARETT

= 4

Key management personnel BHREREABEH N

remuneration (1) 9,918 8,912
()  Remuneration for key management personnel of () AEEHBEREEASZTH
the Group includes amounts paid to the BERKFREN A TR
Company's directors as disclosed in Note 6 and NAEENSERRMF7E
the highest paid employees as disclosed in BHE=TMES -
Note 7.
(i) All the balances with key management personnel (i) FPEHEEEEEAR ZHED
are disclosed in relevant notes. BRFER BRI P IR ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EXFEBFEXS @

(CONTINUED)

HEAB A ZENRX S

(c) Related parties transactions (c)

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARBTR

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREF T

Cash received for disposal to HE TR

related parties YGRS — 114,341
Additions of interest-bearing Mgt BE X

borrowings 90,865 100,000
Decrease of interest-bearing RGO

borrowings (106,305) (48,500)
Additions of other receivables 748 b R UK IR 14,219 —
Decrease of other receivables H b fE I 5K IE R A (12,705) (15,000)
Additions of prepayment g TR IR 56,427 14,400
Additions of other payables 8 E Ath & < 5RIB 17,580 —
Decrease of other payables b JE A FIR R (7,580) —
Pledged bank deposits FHERRES 121,566 64,000
Settlement of pledged bank HEFLERRES

deposits (64,998) (71,500)

2021 5 &

HE BREPEBEMARRREARGAER2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EXFHABAIRS @

(CONTINUED)

(c) Related parties transactions

() EHFAEFZEBX S @)

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥F T
Collection on behalf in respect of KUK & fEWFKIA
disposed receivables — 3,778
Interest income B WA 111,007 6,009
Investment losses for disposal to HE TR S RIRE
related parties &5 18 — (15,624)
Guarantee fee income BRERA 1,001 1,750
Consulting fee income BHBRA 1,911 763
Acquisition of intangible assets WEEEEE 3,927 -
Additions of lease liabilities FieHeaE 4,433 —
Additions of financial liabilities EINE AR EBEFAE
measured at FVPL HAFENSRAEE 16,384 —
Providing guarantee REER 390,211 40,789
Releasing guarantee R R &R (30,789) (20,000)

(d) Balances with related parties

(d) EREAEEF ZE M EREE

At 31 December
2021
R2021%

At 31 December
2020

7 20204F
12H31H
RMB’000
ARBFTT

12A31H
RMB’000
ARETR

Pledged bank deposits FHERRES 84,568 28,000
Trade and other receivables JE L5 B L A JE MR SRR 211,541 169,040
Accrual and other payables FEET R EL A FE A 5R0B 10,000 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,433 —
Financial liabilities measured at BEAREEFAER

FVPL ATENERAE 16,384 —
Guarantee issued EEITRER 420,211 60,789

Apart from the above information, the Group had an bBr B ER I BE2021F K&

outstanding guarantee obligation for an associate’s
bank loan with a balance of RMB139,500,000 as of

31 December 2021 and 2020.

312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B BT R I ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (B X & SEFTHEIN HUAARKEFITIIR)

35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35 ASETHERRAR
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
H it ARETT AR®ET T
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EMEs 749,079 739,818
Pledged bank deposits FLERERERES 457,314 467,765
Trade and other receivables JiE Ui K% EL Ath e U 3k 1B 623,923 311,686
Loans and advances to customers EEME R REK 198,545 129,534
Financial assets measured at BAREBETABR
FVTPL TENEREE 248,876 310,905
Receivable investments JE W GRIEFEIR & 27,052 76,292
Current tax assets EHMSHEE = 918
Interests in associates REtE NG 2 — 0
Investments in subsidiaries RFRBZ’E 18(c) 501,272 511,272
Fixed assets & E & E 10,645 7,481
Investment property KEUFEHE 6,637 7,027
Intangible assets mVEE 1,587 273
Deferred tax assets BRIEATISTHREE 30,013 27,620
Total assets EEAG 2,854,943 2,590,591
Liabilities BfE
Liabilities from guarantees ERaE 190,834 154,991
Customer pledged deposits FARZER 240,435 264,443
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,005 6,158
Accruals and other payables FE & I L & 5K I8 53,579 77,665
Financial institutions bonds TREEES 268,710 —
Financial liabilities measured at BEAREEABZ
FVTPL ATENESMAR 16,384 —
Total liabilities BfEaEst 780,947 503,257
NET ASSETS FEE 2,073,996 2,087,334

221 EEHRE ERPEBREMARRRERBGERLS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A MR IR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (Fr X & BHEETIEIN HUARE FLIIR)

35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35 ASEEMBERKRIE@
POSITION (CONTINUED)

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARETT ARET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERREE
Share capital % 7% 1,560,793 1,560,793
Reserves & 513,203 526,541

Total equity attributable to AATIRERTAE

equity shareholders of the GHEEES
Company 2,073,996 2,087,334
TOTAL EQUITY st 2,073,996 2,087,334
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors B R2022F3 258 b R REE
on 25 March 2022. i o
Wu Liejin Company Stamp
RIE ATFEE
Executive Director and Chairman
HITEFFREFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fRa P ERaR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) / (BR X3 BB FTIE5N AN RE T TIIR)

INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Group is involved with structured entities through the
provision of financial guarantees. These structured entities
generally finance the purchase of assets by issuing securities
or by other means, and are sponsored by other institutions.
The Group determines whether or not to consolidate these
structured entities depending on whether the Group has
control over them.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the interests held by
the Group in unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by
the Group through its provision of financial guarantees are
set out as below, representing its interest in collective fund
trust plans as disclosed in Note 28:

Financial liabilities arising from interest
in jointly controlled Trust Plans
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16,384 —

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
consolidated structured entities.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgement:

Note 18 — Consolidation: whether the Group has de
facto control over an investee.
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37 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 32 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
loans and advances to customers, factoring
receivables, receivable investments and
financial assets measured at FVOC/

The Group reviews portfolios of trade and other
receivables, loans and advances to customers,
factoring receivables, receivable investments and
financial assets measured at FVOCI periodically
to assess whether any impairment losses exist
and the amount of impairment losses if there is
any indication of impairment. Objective evidence
for impairment includes observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows for trade and
other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, factoring receivables, receivable
investments and financial assets measured at
FVOCI. It also includes observable data indicating
adverse changes in the repayment status of the
debtors, or change in national or local economic
conditions that causes the default in payment.

GUANGDONG JOIN-SHARE FINANCING GUARANTEE INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
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37 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
loans and advances to customers, factoring
receivables, receivable investments and
financial assets measured at FVOCI
(CONTINUED)

The impairment loss for trade and other
receivables, loans and advances to customers,
factoring receivables, receivable investments and
financial assets measured at FVOCI (debt) using
the expected credit loss model is subject to a
number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of credit-impaired
stages, estimates of probability of default, loss
given default, exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors. The
expected credit losses for trade and other
receivables, loans and advances to customers,
factoring receivables, receivable investments and
financial assets measured at FVOCI (debt) are
derived from estimates whereby management
takes into consideration historical data, the
historical loss experience and other adjustment
factors. Historical loss experience is adjusted on
the basis of the relevant observable data that
reflect current economic conditions and the
judgment based on management’s historical
experience. Management reviews the selection of
those parameters and the application of the
assumptions regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity
investments.
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37 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 37 & &t 3IEr R st @
(CONTINUED)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED) (b) {HETAEEMEIRIR (@
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (i) FHFELHEERE
If circumstances indicate that the carrying BARTEE 1 (n)F At - WA B IR
amount of a non-financial asset may not be ETRFEeREENKREAET
recoverable, the asset may be considered LR - RIZ B EN LR A
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be DRE]  WIREBBEIED
recognised in accordance with accounting policy BERBENSTBURERS
for impairment of non-financial assets as ERERX -FeHEEN
described in Note 1(n). The carrying amounts of FHEgTHEZ AT
non-financial assets are reviewed periodically in AlEeEESERREREE
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts B M e e FEEREKE
have declined below the carrying amounts. BE AEEEEERZER
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying WEcEE A RESERSA
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The ABEEREEEREFERE
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair BENRSE EEEEAE
value less costs to sell and the value in use. In BR  BEELEMTETRK
determining the value in use, expected future ReRERERE WH
cash flows generated by the asset are U ES KT R B K AR E
discounted to their present value, which requires BEE2HE - AEEFABFAE
significant judgement relating to the level of BEITANER  BREER
revenue and amount of operating costs. The EENEBEENBRRIELD
Group uses all readily available information in il 22 3 W ok 4R B K2 & 38 X
determining an amount that is a reasonable REVEED - LEBE TR E®
approximation of the recoverable amount, HEHMEEBMANEE ZEM
including estimates based on reasonable and AR E B EEREEER
supportable assumptions and projections of the BEARTE  WEICRKH
level of revenue and amount of operating costs. LR E 2 SORE R G0 -
Changes in these estimates could have a
significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods.
(c) Depreciation and amortisation (c) IEREEH
Fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated and rEEEERETEEREREE
amortised using the straight-line method over their RIEETEER - ETEF A EAEE
useful lives after taking into account estimated RESETRITENEN -A&5H
residual value. The useful lives and residual value are EHEHNEFAIFEAFAREE
regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and VAR E # 51 A BB 3 & BRE) 7 & A0
amortisation costs charged in each reporting period. SRR o TRERI A HEARE
The useful lives are determined based on historical ERBEREEENBTLRRM
experience of similar assets and the estimated TR EMET - WME BB X
technical changes. If there is an indication that there ARREENENR=EEE L
has been a change in the factors used to determine RIS AT E L REITRHE o
the depreciation, the rate of depreciation is revised.
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37 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Provisions for guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on costs
required to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee
contracts when the Group computes the provisions of
guarantee losses. Such estimation is made based on
the available information as of the balance sheet date
and is determined by the Group’s practical experience,
default history of the business, taking into
consideration of industry information and market
data.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable income will be available
against which deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including 3 fair values and reports
directly to financial officer (Note 32 (e)).

a valuation

Judgement on the degree of control of
investment

Control means that the Group has the power over an
entity, and enjoys the variable returns by participating
in relative activities of the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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37 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

37

Judgement on the degree of control of
investment (continued)

Where the Group acts as a service provider of or
investor in structured entities, the Group makes
significant judgement on whether the Group controls
and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the
Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group's
power over the structured entities, performs analysis
and tests on the variable returns from the structured
entities, including but not limited to direct investment
income or loss and service fees earned as the asset
service agency, the retention of residual income, and,
if any, the liquidity and other support provided to the
structured entities. The Group also assesses whether it
acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the
scope of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which it is
entitled for asset services, the Group’s exposure to
variability of returns from its other interests in the
structured entities, and the rights held by other parties
in the structured entities.

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

mﬂ)

(9)

38 M&E=E2021%128
PR B ief R £ 3B &5
RRENBER

st FIEr & 45T (@

HigHRiENEENHE @

EAKEESERILEBNRGE
HEIREER  AREHAEE
EEENYEAHREEB TR
M EARHE - EETREE - A
SEREXZFEBFIEAEENE
MM RER  FEAKREYERE
TEI B - HEBL TR
gEEmETON AR BEES
BEE’M’E%QFHW%%%T%%HXE’UE%
BREBANERMREE - TR
ARRE - ARAGEECEEREHR
HREBE S REMFF (E) - K
SETBEBSMEHER(CTEN
IRRERE - HERESNEER
BHm - AEBEAELSBLEIRTH
H{th 1 25 0] S O AT B2 LA&EH@
THEBLCIRBPHANEN
REERERE %)\3&1&@/\17%

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning

on or after
LA B Hisk LA
ok
HA A 2

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the BEEMBMELREIR 2B #2  1 January 2022
Conceptual Framework HEZE '5’//55 2022%F 1 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and BB EFTERE 1658 2185] - % - B 1 January 2022
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use /5& R - BT AL AT iF 0 E 2022%F 1 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts &S EFTERIE3I752185] * HES 47 1 January 2022
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract — /Eﬁ AR 2022%F1 A1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020  HEM B MEERI2018F £20205F 8 1 January 2022
Cycle HA 2 G 2 U 20221 A1H
39 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 39 REPEERESH
REPORTING PERIOD
According to the resolution of the Company’s board of BEARRDER2 022$3ﬂ25E| WEEE
directors meeting on 25 March 2022, the details of BEARBR  RESEFFBHAM T
dividends appropriation is set out in Note 31(b). 31(b) °
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